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- , IN 

LAJ R, 
. 

and : 
3;IHCUIT COUEf . 2 0? 

Complainants , 
* « 

v s . 
B A L : i . / . ; : CITY. 

JLouis grossman 
nd 

5rossn3 , is wifej 

and 

. Mueller 
and 

Ethel I . . s e l l e r , his r i f e , 
and 

Cfffci. K ^ £ T ^ ^ and 

Defendants. 

B i l l J> F £ £ _ _ * i 

To the Honorable, the Judge of t! Id Court:-

Your Orators, Complaining, eay:-

First:- That curing the latter part of the year, 19E4, and the 

early part of the year, 19E5, upon tie solicitation of 

one, Mrs. Young, the owners of properties in the 1100 

block of . anklin Street* in City of Baltimore, Mary­

land^ •..ith some exceptions, sij; i n instrument, pur-

poi ting to hind saE d owners not to sell or rent or lease 

properties in that block to colored peoples. That in- . 

cludr rig the owners who thus signed, of whom, there 

re a very grest many, too numerous to make '-.o 

this complaint, in their entirety, about sixty in number, 

o the defendants, who owned at'time of such signing, 

now own as follows:- : 

The defendants, Louis Grossman and Lena Grossman, his'wife 
own property Ho, 1145 T. Franklin Street, 

The defendants, George ! . toeller and Ethel p. Httelle*, 
his wife, own property No. 1125 W. Frankli» 
•treat-
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And the defendant,-, CMSJOL .K/NidNu&v otnS 

||s^if&, o-n p-#>erty Ktf."5j^/JSstT*»ran8Ite 

That said named defendants, alone are made parties defendant, 

in place of all signers and owners of properties in the 1100 

"block of "... Franklin Street# both on account of their ownerships 

and signatories, as well as becsuse they are fairly representa­

tive of all the very numerous other owners and signatories of 

ich instrument; and hecause, they have demonstrated by their 

representation by counsel in another case filed by the All ' ts 

iTangelieal Lutheran Church, having :"or its object, similar 

purposes to this Bill, that they, as fair representatives of 

a numerous class might undertake as representatives of such 

class to oppose and contest this Bill, so that thereby the 

rights of the whole class of which they are representative, 

might be fairly presented to this Court. 

Second:- That the instrument so originally signed by the signatories, 

3 materially altered, changed, and added to and substracted 

fromj the signatures from the one document transferred to another, 

and after such alteration, change and additions and substractions, 

with the signatures from the first instrument affixed to tl 

of the second, v.ithout the consent or approval of the signatories, 

such instrument was recorded ss the ret and deed of the alleged 

parties thereto. That such changed and altered instrument, bea-s 

date , of February 16th,1925, and is recorded among the Land 

Beceris of Baltimore City, in liber S.C.I. "To. <f 35"8,fol. W),^ 
-11 

and is f-iled as Exhibit ITo. 2 in the case filed by saidT^aints 

Lgelioal Lutheran Church against these same defendants and oth-

' ', rhich, by stipulation made in open court in ed 

ease,, might be used in the proceedings now filed, for vhich pur­

pose reference thereto is now made, and same is now prayer to 

be taken as part hereof. 

Third:- That before such instrument was changed, alt ere- and goner illy 

added to and emasculate:, original instrument was signed by 

. 
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your Orator, Walter C. My lander, as attorney for all your Orators, 

as owners of interests or estates in and to premises, ITos. 1124, 

II26, 1128 ana 1130 * . •ranklin Street* That 1 never 

acknowledged "by him, either on his own behalf, or on behalf of 

•any of the other Orators- as such signature was intended at the 

time, signature only to a temporary instrument, to he folio 

ed, "by the permanent instrument, on which all the original ] ~ -

tures were to be taken anew and then acknowledged. That no 

permanent or final instrument was ever presented for r , 

and no such instrument ever executed or intended to he exe­

cuted by any of your Orators, in the form in which same new appears 

of record- Exhibit- hereinbefore referred to. 

Fourth:- That your Orators now charge and aver, that the signature of' 

your Orator, ar 0. Mylander, orney for all your Oratert 

s obtained by the grossest misrpresentations and falsehoods, on 

the truth and verity of which your: ;©ra relied, which v/ere 

fcerial to the subject matter of the agreement. That specifi­

cally your Orators allege among the misrepresentations sa made to 

induce ana/eia induce such signature, the following:-

(a) Thtjjfc averment by Mrs. Young, the solicitor for such signature, 

that all the titles had been examined bya reputable attorney 

ling, viz., John Eesseg ., therefore, it 

a a certainty that all signers thereto, • legally bound 

11 as the properties for which such signers signed, were 

legally boun * ; . 

That such representation false irj its entirety- as tl ' -1© 

i never been examined by said Hohn Hessejf or any e» itorney, 

and in many cases proper owners did not , and encumbrancers 

did not sign the same, with bhe result that same ox the suppos-

. by .That theJTalsity , 
ad was only discovered 

•all owners of houses in t 

of s-uch representations herelh above listec 
,, ,by y°ur Orators within the past few weeks. 
1 ' x " ^ B.11 parti ".loci -all owners 



block of "... Franklin Street (1100 block ) had signed except your 

Orators, with exception of two houses. That said Mrs. Young, 

further represented that they would not sign until your orators 

h :igned- but she further averred, that vhen your Orators signed, 

the remaining owners of the remaining two houses, woul i also sign*. 

That this representation was particularly important, $Wc throughout 

the many visits of said Mrs. Young to the office of the Orator, 

Iter C. Mylander, said orator always insisted, that while all 

your Gators were nntirely in accord with the purposes of the al­

leged agreement, they would not sign the instrument unless they 

were the last ones to sig1 , so that they might know that the 

purposes for which alone they would sign, viz,, the complete 

alignment of this block as ite block, v/ere accomplished, end 

bad it not been for the averments made by said Mrs. Young, in re­

lation to this matter 11 as her averments of title examina­

tion, hereinbefore mentioned, your Orator, Walter 0. Mylander, 

would not have signed Either for himself or others, •• 

Fifth:- That while it Iways the understanding, at the time when 

your Orator, "./alter C. My lander, signed such original instrument, 

that sarae should be re-written, and the actual signatories of all 

the parties thereto, taken in person, or in duly authorized manner, 

the ©instrument when so rewritten, was not submitted to the several 

parties for re-execution- and your Orators do not believe that 

the paper as re-written was nor is 4fe* of the same substance as 

the original instrument, which said Orator, ".'alter 0. ;.;yl -nder, 

signed, inasmuch as they have no recollection of any ej^ption hav-

ing boen made of premises known as r0. 501 f. Ca:rollton venue 

insofar as the only entrance to the £nd and 3rd fl or apartments 

thereof, front on Franklin Street and not on Carrollton :venue, 

t fehfiXE-zaxExsdfckfiat fur ther , the typewrit ten matter of the 

o r ig in ,* i n a t n a w t aisned to yom o r a t w , u l t e r c. Ijlanoer, 
— — 
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as same is recalled by your orator, " ..Iter C. inlander, dis­

regarding the narrative history of ownerships no*, contained there­

in, se<med vastly shorter and less xfccaixsHx voluminous than in 

the e ' jntioned instrument . corded. That while 

. in relation to this matter, your Orators are not able^after the 

lapse of many yearsx, to say, that the idea of the rest of the 

instrument might not be the same, as contained in the original 

instrument, except for the exception therein, of the premises, 

J. 501 II. Garrollton -venue, your Orator, '..'.Iter C. Mylander, 

does say, that the wording is much more prolix and full, than 
« 

v. hat was contained in the original instrument signed by him, as 

attorney for the rest of your Orators* 

57s£ftf- -** '-**!:- That Your Orators further allege and aver that the whole 

neighborhood supposedly covered by such instrument has changed J 

* S * the Influx of colored people into that block even within 

th? area of the houses signatories or supposedly signatories 

thereto, and that the new occupancies^ 4reWf a much more in­

different type, as illustrated by businesses and occupancies,a*^<t*< 

not harmonious with the character of a neighborhood suck as this 

1100 book of w, Franklin Streetj at the time of the obtent-

ion of the signatures. 

CKCe&Tft:.jij>it.- rhat your Orators are advised and therefore, aver, that under 

the circumstances herein stated, that, they are entitled to have 

such instrument as is recorded ( Exhibit heretofore referred to) 

set aside and annulled, as constituting a cloud on their title 

ownership of properties, ITOS. 1124, 1126, 1128 and 113Q . 

Franklin Street* 

pIGrtrntrit;-iTf^-jr-itfr.* That your Orators have already suffered great, damage and . 

injury, having suffered long and continuous vacancies of some 

of their Properties aforementioned, a ^ will continue to suffe: 



greater and more irreparable injury, unless this Court 

intervenes to remove the cloud of such recorded instrument, 

from their aforementioned owned properties* 

" ISirstotb:- That your Orators are without redress at lav; or in s.ny other 

manner, unless this Court intervene , ind "by its decree, annuls 

or avoids such instrument, as affecting the title to 

mentioned premises, ITO»« 1124, 1126, 1128 and 1130 -.7. Franklin 

Street* 

, Your Orators pray:-

1. r?het this Honorable Court may by decree, declare that the 

premises, loa. 1124, 1126, 1128 and 113C . nklin St«, 

are free from any 11 restrictions to which it may ap- . 

pear to have the purpose of such recorded instrument to 

subject it. 

'hat your Orators m\. ve such, further and other relief 

as their case may reouir . 

May it please Your Honor to grant unto your Orators, the writ of 

subpoena directed to the above named defendants, all resident in 

Baltimore City, directing and commanding them, and eaeh of them, to 

be appear in this Court on some certain day to be named therein* 

and to answer the premises, t ide bv; to perform such decree 

as may be p herein. 

, as in duty, ,; c, ^Jfc 

4444, 

S<ilr. for complainants. 

MUUd^t U', 
¥ 

0AA. JtL-

ZS. ^t^y^^^C, 

a l l Orato . rCet>t . v - w ^ . 6 ^ * ^ 
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Jtate 0 ] , City of Baltimore, to rit:-

I hereby certify, that on this 7th day of November, 19L-. , 
"before me, the subscriber, a Notary public of the .State of 

1 id, in or the City of Baltimore, aforer; ' , person­
ally appeared Walter 0. . . V. , one of above named Complainants, 
and made oath in due form of law, tlu matters end facts 
aet forth in the foregoing Bill of Complaint, are true to the 
best of his kno1, .1 , ion and belief * 

Itness my hand ] 1. 

T O ' : liC , 
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Dora Mylander : 
Florence Mylander : 
Anna Faust 
William >. Mylander 
August C. Mylander : 
Kate E. Mylander : IN THE 

and 
Waiter C. Mylander 

: CIRCUIT COURT #2 
Complainants. : 

vs OF 

Louis Grossman and : 
Lena Grossman, his wife BALTIMORE CITY 

and 
George H. Mueller and : 
Ethel P. Mueller, nis wife : 

and 
Carl Kretzier and : 
Mary Kretzier, his wife. : 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OF SAID COURT: 

Your respondents, George H. Mueller and Ethel P. Mueller, 

his wife, and KXXXXXXXXX±KXXKKK Mary Kretzier, xxxxxxisx answering the 

Bill of Complaint filed in this case, for themselves and for no one 

else, respectfully show unto Your Honor: 

First. 

Answer ing t h e f i r s t p a r a g r a p h of s a i d B i l l of 

C o m p l a i n t , your r e s p o n d e n t s s a y : - That they admi t t h a t d u r i n g t h e 

l a t t e r j a r t of t n e y e a r 1924 and t h e e a r l y p a r t of t h e y e a r 1925 they 

s i g n e d an a g r e e m e n t , i n c l u d i n g o t h e r p r o p e r t y owners i n t h e l i00 b l o c k 

West F r a n k l i n S t r e e t , i n t h e C i t y of B a l t i m o r e , S t a t e of Mary land , of 

t h e i r own f r e e w i l l , a s d i d t h e o t h e r s i g n e r s of t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t , and 

n o t a t t h e s o l i c i t a t i o n of M r s . Young or any one e l s e . Sa id ag reement 

was t o b i n d t h e s a i a owners n o t t o s e l l or l e a s e or r e n t t h e p r o p e r t i e s 

i n t h a t b l o c k t o c o l o r e d p e o p l e s . 

That your r e s p o n d e n t s , George H. M u e l l e r and E t h e l 

P . M u e l l e r , h i s w i f e , admit t h a t t n e y own t h e p r o p e r t y No. 1125 West 

F r a n k i i n S t r e e t , and t h a t your r e s p o n d e n t s , x^rxocxcrxn^^xxxxxoB. Mary 

K r e t z i e r , xxxacx&xxst admi t t h a t they own t h e p r o p e r t y No. 111b West 

F r a n i l i n S t r e e t . 

Your r e s p o n d e n t s deny t h a t t h e owners of a l l t h e 

p r o p e r t y i n t h e 110U b l o c k West F r a n u l i n S t r e e t a r e t o o numerous t o be 

- 1 -
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made parties hereto, as they are known to the complainants or their 

names and addresses can be secured with reasonable diligence and without 

extre Ordinary effort. And your respondents further aver that the 

nature of the other case mentioned in the Bill of Complaint filed in 

this cause does not and should not control in this case, as the matters 

to be considered by this Honorable Court in both suits are not identical, 

will not have the same effect and should not be considered as one. And 

furtnermore, that some of the defendants in the other case mentioned 

herein allowed decrees pro confesso to be entered against them and other 

defendants employed counsel and contested the claim of the claimants in 

the other case* 

Second. 

Tour respondents, answering the second paragraph 

of the Bill of Complaint filed herein, deny that the instrument so 

originally signed by the property owners was materially altered, changed 

and added to and subtracted from and that the signatures from one 

document were transferred to another after such alleged alteration, 

change and additions and subtractions so as to alter the agreement and 

make it a different instrument of writing from that recorded as the act 

and deed of the parties thereto. It is admitted by your respondents 

that the instrument of agreement between the property owners in the 1100 

block West Franklin Street bears date of February 16, li*25 and is recorded 

among the Land Records of Baltimore City in Liber S.C.L. No. 4358, Polio 

147, etc. and is filed as Exhibit No. 2 in the case filed by the All 

Saint's Evangelical Lutheran Church against these same defendants and 

others, but they deny that there was any stipulation made in open court 

in the said named case that may be used in the proceedings now filed, 

as no such proceeaings were contemplated at that time by the parties. 

Th i r d . 

Answering the third paragraph of the Bill of 

Complaint filed herein, your respondents deny the statements made in 

said paragraph, but on the contrary aver that the paper signed by 

'"/alter C. My lander, as attorney for himself and for the other petitioners 

in this case, was the original and only paper signed by him or by any of 

-Z-



the other property owners in the 1100 block ¥/est Frankiin Street and 

that the acknowledgments were properly taken before a Notary Public. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of said bill of 

Complaint, your respondents deny that Walter C. Myiander, as attorney 

for all your orators, was misled by any misrepresentations and false­

hoods and that ne was fully informed as to the terms of the agreement 

and as to the parties interested. And your respondents further 

allege that the identical agreement signed, acknowledged and recorded 

and filed in the cause of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran Ciiurch 

was from time to time in his possession and that he paid a pro rata 

share of John Hessey, Esq«,'s fee. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of said Bill of 

Complaint, your responaents deny that at the time that Walter C. 

Myiander signed such a written instrument that the sane was to be 

rewritten a.na tne actual signatures of all the parties thereto taken 

in person or in duly authorized manner. Ho otner agreement was 

understood to have been drawn up and that the one actually signed and 

filed was the only agreement. 

Sixth . 

Answering the sixth paragraph of said Bill of 

Complaint, your respondents deny that there was any change in the 

neighborhood supposedly covered by such an instrument and that the 

agreement executed was the result of the meeting of minds of the 

parties thereto. 

Seventh. 

Answering the seventh paragraph of the Bill oi 

Complaint, your respondents say that if the petitioners have been 

advised that under the circumstances herein they are entitled to have 

such instrument as recorded set aside and annulled, such advice is 

misleading, and it would work mischief until the rights of the parties 

are decided by this HonoraQie Court. 

Eighth. 

Answering the e igh th jjaragr- pn of the B i l l of 
- 3 -



Complaint, your respondents say that if the petitioners have suffered 

damage and injury through tne existence of tne agreement they entered 

into that the other sign era have likewise been damaged, but your 

respondents aver tnat the petitioners in this case, as well as ail 

the other signers, have "been protectea and benefitted, by the agreement* 

Ninth. 

Answering the ninth paragraph of saia Bill of 

Complaint, your respondents neitner admit nor deny the allegations 

made therein, but must, in justice of tnemseives, demand strict proof 

of same • 

Having fully answered ail the paragraphs of said 

Bill of Complaint, your respondents pray that tney may be dismissed 

with costs. 

And as in duty bound, etc. 

... 0L2L ^u 



STATE CP MARYLAND: BAL Till CHE CITY: TO WIT: 

4> 
of 

I HEREBY CERTIFY t h a t on t h i s $ 1 %i day 

—^ \j>^tQyi^y)(^\_ , , li?£i>, oef ore n)t, the s u o s c r i D e r , a 

Notary P u b l i c of t h e S t a t e of Mary land , in ana f o r the C i t y of 

B a l t i m o r e , a f o r e s a i d , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d George H. M u e l l e r and 

E t h e l P . M u e l l e r , h i s w i f e , and 4M^cx£X**xi*xx»sjcbc Mary K r e t z l e r , 

fciaxTCitliftxx'fcke r e s p o n d e n t s i n t he w i t h i n m a t t e r , ana made o a t h i n 

due form of law t h a t t h e m a t t e r s and f a c t s s e t f o r t h In t h e 

f o r e g o i n g p e t i t i o n a r e t r u e and bona f i d e to t h e "best of t h e i r 

Knowledge, i n f o r m a t i o n end b e l i e f . 

As w i t n e s s my hand and N o t a r i a l S e a l . 

N 
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[DECREE PRO CONFESSO] 

IN THE 

M^- / h ^ ^ y ^ J Circuit Court No. 2 

—OF-

BALTIMORE CITY 

The Defendant5.L» £ £ ^ < ! S-49̂ -v̂ P_ fi^^t^r^*^^ _'! iJ-__having been duly 

summoned ^-"+^--1 i j " - J — J " " ^ r i t i r m ) to appear to the Bill of Complaint and having failed to 

appear thereto, according to the exigency of the writj(«*id«Oi»d«iii-

frsjffi A 
It is thereupon this *^ J. day ofjflj=S-?»sJJggag=^—, in the year of nineteen hundred 

and_^**^r^__A^*£_by the Circuit Court No. 2 of Baltimore City, ADJUDGED, ORDERED AND DECREED 

that the complainant is entitled to relief in the premises, and that the Bill of Complaint be and is hereby 

taken pro confesso against said defendant.^ 

But because it doth not certainly appear to what relief the plaintiff is entitled, it is further ADJUDGED 

and ORDERED, that one of the Examiners of this Court take testimony to support the allegations of the 

Bill. 
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Mr. Clerk:-
Please file, &c., 
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DORA MYLANDER, e t a l , mrj^ 
* IN THE 

• * 

v s CIRCUIT COURT No. 2 OF 

LOUIS GROSSMAN, e t a l , BALTIMORE CITY 

P E T I T I O N 

TO THE HONORABLE, ELI FRANK, THE JUDGE OF THE SAID COURT:-

The petition of the above named Complainants, respectfully shows:-

1* That prior to the institution of the above entitled cast, 
an action, similar in its character, scope and effect, and 
in the precise relief sought, was filed in this Court, by 
All Saints Evangelical Luthsran Church of Baltimore City, 
against your petitioners, and others, as defendants; that 
said cause, is entitled:- All Saints Evangelical Lutheran 
Church of Baltimore City, Complainant versus George H. Ahrling, 
et al, defendants, and appears in docket 38 A folio 148, &c., 
of this Court. 

2. That after the filing of such latter cause, and before the 
institution of the above case, answers were filed by the 
defendants in the latter case (and Decrees Pro Confessox 
taken against those not so answering) by your petitioners 
and others, and the case proceeded to hearing, during the 
course of whi_ch, the proceedings were, by agreement, in-
fcerrxipted, to"~permit the filing of the above case, with 
the understanding that upon such filing, both max cases 
would thereafter, proceed, by way of consolidation, with 
the hearing. 

3# That all of the defendants in the above entitled cause, 
have answered, except those, against whom Decrees Pro Con-
fesso have been taken, and the above case, seeks the same 
relief, sought by the prior case, hereinabove mentioned. 

4. That your petitioners belief it proper to consolidate the 
two cases, that they may at once, proceed with the hearing, 
and submit the two cases, for such Order or Decree as may be 
seen fit to pass herein and thereia. 

Wherefore, your petitioners ?mrx pray the passage of an Order herein, 
authoriling such consolidation, and directing that henceforth 
proceedings in such consolidated case, shall mJL&xmim affeet 
both cases, as if had_4n each the/eof. 

And as, &c., 
Solicitor? for ret*ftioners~ 

WE, the undersigned, representing various of the parties, named in the 
proceedeings mentioned above*, do. hereby consent to the passage of such 
and Order of Consolidation. v£ZSolicitoK?for tjie contesting original defdti 
having assented in open Court. llfc* ^...PfirlLfA^ 2^/ 

~ 1 -
KJ 



UPON THE AFOREGOING PETITION AMI) ASSENTS, it is hereupon this J/^ day of 

December, 1929, ORDERED by THE CIRCUIT COURT N0„ 2 OP BALTIMORE CITY, ? 

that the above entitled case, be and it is hereby consolidated with the 

case herein depending, entitled:- All Saints Evangelical Lutheran Church 

of Baltimore City, Complainant versus George D, Ahrling, et al, defendants,^ 

(Docket 38 A folio 148, &c.,) to the end that henceforth proceedings shall (' 

ft 
be conducted as if said cases had originally been filed herein as one * 

case; and it is further Ordered that such consolidated cases, shall be I 

proceeded with, at once. 
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1 S a i n t ' s Evangel ioal l u t h e r a n Church 
of Bal t imore Ci ty , a body c o r p o r a t e . 

vs 

George D. Ahrling, 
Emma Ahrling, 
Marie I . ^ue^ley , 
John 3. Oassell , 
Carroll ton land and loan 
Association, a bod;/ corporate, 
Albert R. Conrad, 
Mary Jonrad, 
Agnes S. Dowd, 
iCatneriiie Dowd, 
loretta Dowd, 
iiiary S. Dowd, 
fiora Doyle*, 
Bernard J. Doyle, 
James P. Duggcin, 
John i;. Duggan, 
Marie G. Duggan, 
Anna Faust,-
Clinton J. Freebarger, 
Elizabeth R. Preeburger, 
Herbert H. Freeburger, 
Mary I. i?ra -ourgar , 
louis Preedmaa', 
Jos e ph i ne F. F r i sK y, 
Joseph F. Gerlaoh, 
Tena Gordon, 
Benjamin Gordon, 
Tena Grossman, 
Toui^ Grossman, 
Joseph A. Ganther, 
Regina S. Ganther, 
Th'omas Hardness, 
George Heiderman, 
Catherine Heider.aan, 
Touis Houseman, 
Fannie Houseman, 
Annie J. Jefi'ers, 
Joint StooK association o± the 
National Order of Sallilean 
Ftshe ttnaa, a b o dy c o r p o r a t e , 
Carl A x e t z l e r , 
Mary B. i r e ' t z l e r , 
Rose ^o lodne r , 
.uiiahael '••'. Teary, 
liana L. Leary, 

. leonhaaser, 
Rachel led'nnaaser, 
loyal Building Association, 
a body corporate, 
George H. Mueller, 

-el p. Muellert 
August G. Mylander, 

orenoe Mylander, 
Kate 3. Mylander, 

11 ard G. My Iande r, Walter G. Mylander\ ;v"i Ilia iq F. My land e r, 

ui is 

CIRCUIT CQUHI SO. 2 
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Catherine S. rlitt, ) 
Real Estate Trust Company, ) 
a body corporate, ) 
Frederics J. Scott, ) 
Anthony Seholtholt, J 
Catherine Seholtholt, ) 
311 en J. Shee^ells, ) 
H, Martin Tlmanus, ) 
Clara H. fi.nanus, ) 
xiugc 7/eber, ) 
Phi Hi pine Weber, ) 

To the Honorable, the Judge of the said Court. 

Your orator, All Saint's evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a body corporate, by Henry tegt its Attorney, com­

plaining say:-

First. That All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a body corporate, has succeeded to all the property and 

rights of Concordia Evangelical lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, 

a oody corporate, by Consolidation of Said corporations the Certificate 

or Plan of Consolidation having been heretofore recorded among the 

Charter Records of the Superior Court of Baltimore City on the 21st day of 

December, 19L,8 in Charter Records S. C. L. 115, folio 351 said Certificate 

of Consolidation being filed herewith as a part hereof and is marked 

Complainants Exhibit Ho* 1« 

Second. Chat the said Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congrega­

tion of Baltimore City on or about the 16 th day of February, 1925 owned 

fee simple oroperties 1104-1106-1108-1110 and 111^ West Framclin Street in 

the City of Baltimore (which properties devolved upon your orator by 

virtue of said jonsolidalion) and that the ^resident and Secretary of 

Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City executed 

v«/ithout authority so to do with certain of the defendants then owning 

or claiming to be the owners of various other properties Icnownaa numbers 

1100-1102-1114-1116-1118-1120-1122-3 124.-1 lrJ6-T12d-n 30-11.01-1103-1105-1107 

1 -1111 -111 7-1119-1121-1123-11&&-5127-11J9-1131-1133-1135-1 "37-:i.;9-1141 

1143-and 1145 West franklin Street on tne north and south sides of the 



ox which a certified copy is 
1100 blocK of .vest Franklin .street, tne pretended agreementTherewith filed, 

marked Complainants Sxhihit So. 2 and which is prayed to be taicen ai a 

part hereof, pretending to restrict for a period of ten years the properties 

therein .mentioned to the occupation only eitner in whole or in part by 

persona other than of African descent, ̂ s will more fully appear by re­

ference to said Exhibit l,o. 2. 

Third. Your Orator, avers tnat the aforesaid pretended agree­

ment purports to be executed by Rev. Henry B. Young, Pastor and President 

of Concordia Brangelioal Lutheran Congregation and Llilton 0. Storm, 

Secretary, thereof but that neither of them had Miy authority to execute 

this instrument of writing on b'ehalf'of said body corporate or the Con­

gregation and Council thereof, nor ^ s anyone authorized hgĉ fetea. to enter 

into this pretended agreement on behalf of the Church and that tne Con­

gregation and Council thereof have had no knowledge whatever that said 

pretended agreement had been executed oy the said Rev. Henry H. Young, 

Pastor and President and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary until recently 

advised within the last three months and that neither the Council nor 

Congregation haTe ratified tne action of its Pastor and Secretary in 

signing said pretended agreement, but on the other hand nave renounced and 

disaffirmed tne same and nave authorized the filing of this Bill of 

Complaint for the purpose of declaring said pretended agreement ^ nullity 

as to said Conoordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, 

a body corporate, and its successor the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Churoh of Baltimore City, a body corporate. 

Fourth. That the defendants Louis Houseman and Fannie house-

received a conveyance of property 110C Lin it ye »t to 

them from Leon Sohiff and uie Sohiff since the execution of the said 

pretended agreement as -foresaid and conveyances have been i.iade to the 

following defendants since the execution of said agreement:- To William 

H* Leonhauser and Rachel Leonhauaer from is the r Block - property 1105 '.if. 

franklin Street; to Frederick J. Scott iron Bllen J. Sheckella - property 

1107 I. Franklin street and a mortgage thereon executed by Frederick J. 



v « 

3oott to the Joint Stoek Association of the national Order of Galliiean 

Fisherman, a body oorporate; to Joseph I, Gsrlaoh, from Mary tfortfltng-r 

ton of properly Ho. 1120 .v. Franclin 3treet and that Joseph F. Gerlach 

has exeoated a mortgage tnereon to Loyal Building Association, a body 

corporate; and property lio. 1152 West Franklin Street is still owned by 

the defendants ."ora Doyle and Bernard J. Doyle us mentioned in said agree­

ment; 1114 iVeat Franklin Street fry the defendants, Lena Gordon and Ben­

jamin Gordon who acquire! their oitle by mesne eonveyanees under a 

mortgage foreclosure salo wnich mortgage nad "been executed prior 'GO the 

recordation of said agreement and people of African descent now occupy 

aaid property; properties 1123-1136" and 1137 .Vest Franklin Street are now 

owned .jointly by the defendants Mary T. ?reeourger, Elizabeth S. Free-

burger, Herbert H. Ffseburger, Olinton J. /reeburger and Marie P. Buckley; 

the defendants Joseph A. Gunther and ixegina 3. Gunther, hia wife, are now 

the owners of 310] West Franklin Street and the defendant the Jar^ollton 

T nd aid loan Association of BalLimore 3ity, a Dody corporate, holds a 

mortj age theTeon; the defendants George D* feriing and grama ¥» anrling 

are no* tbe owners oi 1100 "./est Fr^n^lin Street; that tbe defendant 

Bllen J- 3nee.:ells is now the owner of 11^0 ./est Franklin Street, tb 

defendants Mary B« Dowd, Agnes A. Dowd, Catherine Dowd, and loretta Jowd 

are now the joint owners of property 1109 .'/est franklin Street; that 

defendants Hugo Oeber a-nd Philippine Weber are now the owners of 1111 

Seat Franklin Street; defendant Ihomas Hancneaa of 111'/ .jeŝ  Franklin street 

and defendants John F. Duggan, James 2* Duggan and marie G. Dttggun are now 

the joint owners of 11£1 West FranKlin Street; that defendants Jatnerine 

S. Plitt, Josephine A Friejfy and John S. Jassell are now the joint owners 

of!123 '"/est Franklin Street and that the. defendant the Real BSstate 'J rust 

Company, a body oorporate, now holds a mortgage thereon; that the de­

fendant Rose ..olodner is now the owner of 1131 lest Franklin Street that 

the defendants Albert R, Conrad and '^i^ry Jonrad now own 1133 West Franklin 

Street; that the defendants A. Martin Timanua and Clara 3* Eimanus now 

own 1130 'Vest Franklin Street; the defendants George Heiderman and 

4. 



Catherine Haideraan are now the owners of 1141 West Franklin Street; 

defendants lena Grossman and L. Groaaman are the owners of 1145 V/est 

Franklin Straet; that the defendants Sari Kfatslar and Mary kretiler are 

the owners of 1116 last Franklin Street; and tne defendants, Miohael 1* 

leary and Nana Leary, his wife, are the owners of 1116 ./est Franklin Straet 

the defendant Louis Freedman is now the owner of 1119 West Franklin Street; 

and defendants George . . ..seller end Sthel 2, Mueller are the owners of 

1121 .vest Franklin Straet; that defendants Anthos\y Sohaltholt and Catherine 

Seholtholt are the owners of 11S7 West Franklin Street; that defendant 

Annie J. Jeffers who executed said pretended agreement now has a life 

estate in 1143 Jest Franklin Street; and the defendants Walter Q. My lander, 

r, August 3. Mylander, £atf A. Mylander, Florence In­

lander, Mil lard 0. Mylander and "jcixi'i ?aus t are now the ^oint owners of 

1124-1126-1188 and 1130 .Vest Franklin Straet* 

Fifth. That your Orator is advised that the aforesaid pretended 

agreement as recorded constitutes a cloud on tne title to said properties 

which it owne nos. 1104-1106-1106-1110 and 1112 West Franklin Street,in 

i said agreement purports to restrict the use or occupancy of said 

•properties by persons other tnan t&Q&a of African descent and that said 

1100 bloc*; West Franklin Street is now occupied by colored people with 

respect to four nouses therein and it is in » neighborhood whieh is largely 

colored or at least mixed with both white and colored residents. 

To tne end therefore. 

1. That said pretended agreement or instrument of writing 

purporting to have oe n made and executed on the 16th day of February, 1926 

d recorded among the land records of Baltimore Sity in liber S. 0. x. 

I\To. 4358, folio 147, etc., may be annaled"and set aside by the deeree of 

this Honc^able Sourt as to the said Joneordia Evangelical Lutheran Son-

gregation of Baltimore 3ity, a body corporate, now All Saint's Svangelical 

Lathe ran Shurch of Baltimore Sity, a body corporate. 

g. That your Orator may be granted such other and further 

relief as the nature of its ease may require. 

..lay it please your Honor to grant unto your orator tne states 

o. 



writ of subpeona directed against the defendanta George D. Ahrling and 

BBuaa Ahrling at 835 SrinKwood Road; Maria F« BaaJfclay, Illaabeth R. 

?raeourger, Clinton J. Freeburger, Herbert E. Freehurger and Mar; T. 

Freeourger residing at 1908 Pane Avenue; Albert R. Conrad and Mary I. 

Conrad at 1132 Seat Franklin Street; Agna • Dowd, Catherine Dowd, 

loretta Dowd and iiary £. Dov;d residing at 1109 :a.3t Fran&lin Street; 

x,ora Doyle and Bernard <,. Doyle/ at 1102 ./est Franklin Street; James P. 

Duggan, John F. Duggan and Maria G. Duggan it 1121 West Franklin Street; 

louis Freedman at 1119 Heat Franklin street, Josephine ]?• Friajcy, o/a 

Arohara Laundry, North west earner of Payette and Stricter streets; 

Joseph F. Gerlach, 1919 Cedrio Road; lena Gordon and Benjamin Gordon, 

at 409 3. Bond Street; Loui3 Groaaman at 1145 Seat Franklin Street; 

and Rose Kolo&ner now Known aa Rose Grossman at 1145 Heat oklin Street 

or 3507 Virginia Avenue; Joseph A. Gunther and Regina B< Gunther at 

1913 Jhelsea Road; Thomaa Harkneaa at 1117 ".'/est Franklin Street; George 

Heider fcherine Heiderman at 1141 West Franklin Street; Touis 

house ad Fannit Houseman, at 1100 ./est Praniclin Street; 4nnie J. 

Jeffera at 3427 Sdmondaon Avenue; Sari Kretaler and . •/ S. x».ret*ler at 

1118 Weat Franklin Street; Miohael 1. Taary and Nana T. Leary at 1116 

West Franklin street; William H« Leonhaueer and Rachel Ieonhauaer at 

1105 Vest Franklin Street; George h. hueller ana Bthel P. tueller at 

1125 West Fran*lin Street; Catharine S. Plitt ac 4700 Amber ley .venue; 

Frederiok J. Scott at 2425 MoQulloh Street; Anthony Soholtholt and 

Catherine Soholtholt at 1127 Weat Praniclin Street; gllen J. SheoKella 

at c^lo North Jnarles Street, Hugo Weber and Philippine Weber at 1111 

West Franilin Street; ,^ina j^aust, August c. My lander, Florence mder, 

Kate [ylander, Millard J. Mylander llliaa P. • kll in 

fcAsr J. Lder* Wrris -Iter J. ...ylander. 410 

Morria .building; Jarrolltoi: Land and loan iaaeoiation, a body corporate, 

its President being lagust Opel 3140 lee da street; Real Sat at a [Croat 

Company, a bod > »orp< rate, Milton Roberta bAi.b ita Preaident at 110] 

North Charlea Street, loyal Building Aaaooiation, a body cor 

Jamea 2. Sturgeon being ita Preaident at 2S21 Che Alameda; John s. 



C a a a e l l , r e s i d i n g a t | f. Mart in ^imanua 

I Clara £• Eimanua r e e i d i n g a t • ; jjne J o i n t Steak 

soo ia t ion of the Na t iona l Order of ftallilean Fiaherman, a body oorpor^Ce, 

a t 409 fea t .diddle s t r e e t ; aommaj them and eaoh of them to be and 

appear in t h i s Honorable Jour t on some c e r t a i n day to be named t h e r e i n 

and a f t e r the B i l l of Complaint of the sa id Al l S a i n t ' i g e l i o a l 

I a t h e r a n 3huroh of Bal t imore /Ci ty , o o r a t e , md abide ~oj and 

perform auo .aeed In - remiaea* 

ia in duty bound. 

Al l Sain g e l i o a l Lutheran 
Churob o,f Bal t imore Ci ty , 
body c o r p o r a t e , by 

^yfi^u^^ . So l i c i t o r fo r /aompla inan t 

V ice -p re s iden t 

SSAilS OF MARYLAND, QI'JZY 01 BAI2IM0JS3, to w l t : -

B3 Cjj»ZU2L-.!Ea»t en th j s clay of JtmilTTi 1* t f l e 

year one thouaand nine hundred and t w e n t y - a i n e , oefora me the aubaorib* , 

a Hetary Pab l i a of the S t a t e cf Maryland in and l o r the Oily of 

l t i m o r e , a f o r e a a i d , pe r sona l ly appeared I r a n i I . Carman, ¥ ioe»Preaide»t 

of All S a i n t ' s S r a n g e l i o a l l u t h e r a n Choroh of Bal t imore Ci ty , a body 

c o r p o r a t e , the complainant named in the aforegoing B i l l of Complaint 

and he made oath in due form of la* t h a t the Stera and faota B*t f o r t h 

in the aforegoi;j£; B i l l of J .re t rue to the bea t of h i s Knowledge, 

information and b e l i e f . 

nana and No ta r i a l S e a l . 

Hotary Pub l io . 

; 



«• 

3 

' 7 

In the ^ ^ ^ 
Circuit ^oart So. S 
of, Baltimore City. <ry 

All S a i n t s Evangelical t i l t 
e ran Churah Of Baltimore City 

a body corpora te 
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George D. Ahrling, 
Lr----_and others. 
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iJFQf All MSB BY THESE PS33MI3: 

ffffAT, All Saints Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore 

City, a body corporate and Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congre­

gation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, both of the City of 

Baltimore, State of Maryland and both oeing religious Corporations 

dttlj incorporated under the laws oi tne State of Maryland, the 

majority of the members of each Congregation naving assented to 

the same, do hereby execute this certificate of consolidation in 

accordance with Article 23, Section 115, The Code of Public 

General Taws of Maryland (1924), for the purpose of consolidating 

the two Corporations above mentioned to the end that all the 

property and assets together with all the debts and liabilities 

and all the powers, rights and privleges of said several Corpo­

rations snail be devolved upon the said consolidated Corporation. 

And 3ucn consolidation snail be upon tne following terms and 

conditions which snail constitute the articles of incorporation 

and regulation governing the consolidated Corporation. The name 

of said consolidated/ Corporation snail oe and is nereby called 

All Saints .'.vangslicM. Lutheran Churcn of Baltimore City. The 

constitution ox All Saints Evangelical Lutneran Cnureh of Baltimore 

City is as follows: 

3 0 I 3 I I U ' U 0 I. 

A R T I C L E I. 

TH £&. 

The name of this Church shall be 

" T T SAISTS EVA:TCEIICAT LUTHBRU CHUH3H 03" BlXIIMORji CITY". 

& re T I C I E II. 

DOCTRUTAL POSITION AHD SYHODIOAI COIMECTIGL. 

This Church, in accordance with the doctrinal position 

of the General Synod of the ivangelical Lutneran Churcn in the 



United States, now merged in the United Tutheran Church in 

America, and in the words thereof, "Receives and holds the 

Canonical Scriptures of the Old and Sew Testaments as the 7/ord 

of God and the only infallible rule of faitn and practice; and 

the Unaltered Augsourg Confession as a correct exhibit of tne 

faitn and doctrine of our Church as founded upon the Word"; 

and it adopts for its government and discipline this Constitution 

and By-laws, and in cases not nerein provided for tne "formula 

for tne Government and Discipline of the Evangelical Lutheran 

Church", heretofore publisned by tne General Synod of the 

Evangelical Lutheran Church in the United States, now merged as 

aforesaid, together with such modifications thereof or other 

regulations as may oe from time to time adopted or recommended 

by the United Tutheran Church in America; and it shall always 

be connected with the Maryland Synod, or with a District Synod 

of the United lutheran Church in America. 

A H i' I 0 I X III. 

OF .J DO ;R3. 

3SCTIQS I« The members of tnis Congregation shall con­

sist of those who have received Christian Baptism ia their infancy 

and been admitted to the Communion of the Church by the rite of 

Confirmation; by adult baptism in connection with their public 

profession of Faith; b^~ a certificate of good standing in, and 

honorable dismission from, some otner Evangelical Church, or by a 

public renewal of their profession of Christian Faith, and wno 

participate whenever possible in tne celebration of the lord's 

Sapper, and contribute regularly according to their means to the 

supcort of the Church, and to its benevolences. 

SSOTIQI Z. It shall be the duty of all members of this 

Church to lead a truly Christian life, to attend faithfully the 

public worship of God, to partake of the lord's Supper wnenever 

opportunity offers, and to contribute according to their several 



ability to all the regular expenditures and oenevolenoes of the 

Jhurcn. 

SIS JII OH 3. It is the duty of the parents to nave their 

children baptised in infancy, to IOOK carefully after their 

religious training, and to see to it tnat they attend regularly 

the catechetical olass and Sunday School, and to strive to bring 

theia up in the nurture and admonition of the Lord. 

SBCTIQS 4. 4very member is amenable to the Jhurch Council 

and must appear before it when cited to do so, and submit to the 

discipline of tne Church Kindly and justly administered. If any 

member Shall refuse to appear when cited, the Council may proceed 

a3 though he were present. 

4 I I I 0 1 1 IV. 

0? TS& PASTOHI. 

33CII0I I. The Pastor of the Churon must be a member of 

the Svangelical Lutheran Synod in connection with the Jnited 

Lutheran Jhurch in America within whose bounds this Church is 

located, and with wnioh tne Jhurch itself is connected. 

SECTIQJJ ii. The principal dutie3 of the pastor are tnose 

prescribed in Jnapcer III,|Section I, of the "formula of 

Government and Discipline" already referred to. 

SSCIIQI 3. Should the Pastor at any time be guilty of 

teaching unscriptural doctrine, or indulging in immoral practices 

(whicn May God in His mercy prevent), it snail oe the duty of the 

Ghurch Council to proceed against alia as prescribed in Cnapter III, 

Section 5, of the aforesaid "formula". 

3SCTIQH 4. I shall be the Pastor's duty to Keep a correct 

record of all his ministerial acts, to wit-.- of all baptisms -

infant and adult; confirmations; admissions and dismission by 

certificate, excommunications and other forms of accession or 

loss of membership; attendance at communions; marriages; and 

deaths; in a booK provided for tnat purpose, which booi of record 

is to be furnished by tne Jhurch and is to remain the property of 



the Church and to be open for its inspection. This boo*, snail ue 

in charge of tne Pastor, except daring a pastoral vacancy, when it 

shall he held oj the Secretary of the Church Council who shall 

Keep the record in it until the vacancy is supplied. 

i s i i e i i v. 

Of 5HB ©MIOSES Of VS& 3HUR0H. 

SBGTIOB I. The officers of the Church shall consist of 

the Pastor, six (6) elders, and six (6) deacons, (except that, 

if tnere shall not be a sufficient number of properly qualified 

members of tne Ohurcn available for tne respective offices of 

elder and 01 deacon at any annual election to ma^e possiole the 

securing and election of six persons ior each of said class of 

officers, tne number of elders and beacons respectively may oe 

less than six out not less than four lor eacn of said class of 

officers), who together shall constitute the Church Council, and 

they and tneir successors in office shall also oe cue legal trustees 

of the Church, and in behalf of the congregation ue a uody corporate 

by the name, style and title of 

"All SAlfiTd H1IQAI IUIHBHAJS ChUlICH Of MLTIMGSE QIIY*. 

SBOIIOH 2. At tne first election for Jhurch officers, after 

tne adoption of this Consolidation the whole number of elders and 

deacons specified in Section 1 of this Constitution snail oe elected, 

(except fekat, if tnere shall not be a sufficient number of properly 

qualified members of the Church available for the respective 

offices of elder and of deacon at fe&at time to ma.ie possible the 

securing and tne election of six persons for each of said class of 

officers, a number less that six out not less than four shall ue 

elected for each of said classes, as provided in Section I), one-

half of the elders and one-half oi the deacons to serve Cue year, 

and one-half thereof to 3erve two years. Dae respective terms of 

office shall be determined oy lot among themselves. At each 

annual election after the first only one-naif the number of elders 

and of deacons shall be elected to serve for two years. 



3E0TI0I 3- The elders and deacons elected shall be 

inducted into office by installation according to the order of 

service for that purpose found in tne liturgy published and recom­

mended by the United Lutheran Church in America. 

SECTION 4. Only male members of the Church in good and 

regular standing therein, and themselves entitled to vote, shall 

be eligible to the offices of elder and deacon. 

SECTION 5. No member of the Ohurcn Council shall oe 

eligible for election for more than two successive terms until one 

year after the expiration of his second term of office. 

SECTION 6. The duties of the elders, deacons and 

trustees shall be those usually pertaining to these offices, as 

set forth in Chapter III, Section 6, of tne "Formula for tne Gov­

ernment and Discipline of the Evangelical "Lutheran Cnurch" above 

referred to. 

A R T I C I 3 VI. 

OF TH1 CHURCH COUNCIL 

SECTION I. The Church Council shall consist of theFpastor, 

the elders and the deacons. V 

3B0TI0I Z. The pastor witn half tne other members of tne 

Church Council for the time being, and in the absence of tne pastor, 

two-thirds of the remaining members of tne Councel snail constitute 

a quorum for che transaction of business; out no business connected 

with the government and discipline or spiritual affairs of the 

Church shall be transacted without tne presence of the pastor unless 

he oe voluntarily or unavoidaoly absent, or the pastorate be vacant 

at tne time. 

SECTION S. The pastor shall be ex-officio president of 

the Church Council and Congregation and wnen present snail preside 

at all meetings, unless for good reasons ne declines to do so. 

SECTION 4. After each annual e lec t ion of* off icers the 

Council sna i l e lec t from the i r own number a v ice-pres ident wno 



shall preside at all Council and Congregational meetings in the absence 
sign 

of the pastor or if the pastor declines to preside; ne shall/all orders 

drawn by the Council on the treasurer; al30 a secretary from uneir 

own number who snail iceep an accurate record of their proceedings; 

and also a financial secretary from their own number or from the member-

shin of the congregation who enjoys the confidence of tne Church, who 

shall receive from the deacons the offerings of the Congregation and 

pay them over to the treasurer, taking his receipt therefor, and report 

the amount to the Council at each meeting; also a treasurer from tneir 

own number or from the membershio of the congregation W&Q enjoys the 

confidence of the Church, who shall ..ceep a full and accurate account 

of all funds received and disbursed on account of the Church and shall 

report to the Council.*, at eacn regular meeting, or whenever required 

to do so. fhe financial secretary and the treasurer if not members 

of the Council shall have tne privilege of attending the meetings of 

the Council but shall nave no vote on any question. 

S.iCTlOH 5. r2ney snail also elect one of their own number, 

or some other memuer of the Cxxurcn, who enjoys tne confidence of tne 

Congregation, to represent it in tne conventions of Synod of Con­

ference. 

8B0TI0B 6. The Churcn Council as tne trustees of the 

Church shall have full possession and control of tne property of tne 

Church, to hold it for the use of tne Congregation; but they shall 

not be permitted to purchase, sell, lease, or mortgage, or otherwise 

dispose of or materially alter any real or leasehold property of the 

Church without the consentNand approval of two-tnirds of tho voters 

ox the Churcn present, obtained at a congregational meeting for wnich 

the notice has been legally given, All deeds, leases, mortgages, 

_____ eontracts or ether instruments of writing relating to or affecting 

tne property or affairs of the Cnurch snail oe signed and executed on 

behalf of tne said body politic or corporate by tne President or the 

Vice-President of the Churah » 9 



Jounoil, or by auch other officer as the Church Council shall 

designate, and in cases requiring a seal shall be sealed with the 

corporate seal of the said body politic or corporate. 

SECTION 7. The Church Council shall hold one regular 

meeting each month at the Church or at such, other place as may he 

agreed upon. Special meetings may be called by tne pastor, or 

when the Church is vacant, by the vice-president at any time, and 

it shall be his duty to call a meeting when requested to do so oy 

two members of the Council or by ten members of the Church. 

SECTION 9* The Church Council shall have fulljower 

to select and adopt and procure a corporate seal for the said 

body politic or corporate and to maice sucn rules and by-laws for 

conducting the interests of the Church committed to their care as 

may be necessary,Iprovided they do not conflict with this Consti­

tution. 

SSOTIOH 9. An annual meeting of the Church Council 

shall be held within twenty days before tne annual election for 

members of the same. At this meeting a full statement of all 

receipta and expenditures of ihe Church shall be laid before the 

Council by the treasures, and audited by a committee appointed 

for that purpose. 

SECTION 10. Should a vacancy accur among the number 

of elders or deacons tne remaining members of the Council shall 

have power to fill the vacancy until the time of tne next annual 

election for Church ofiicers, at which time some one shall be Re­

gularly elected oy the eongregation to fill the still unexpired 

portion of the term of office of tne member causing tne vacancy. 

A R T I C 1 ] VII. 

Oi1 EJECTIONS. 

SECTION I. All congregational meetings for elections 

or other business must be published by the Church Council to the 



congregation at least two weeKS before being held. The election 

shall be under the control and direction of the judges appointed, 

agreeably to Section 7 of thia Article. 

S30TIOH S< At these elections only those members 

shall be entitled to vote who are in full connection with the 

Church, who submit to its government and discipline regularly ad­

ministered, who have partaken of the Lord's ;3upper within tne pre­

vious year (unless providentially prevented), and who contribute 

according to their ability and engagements to all its necessary 

expenditures. 

SJBCSIOI 3. All elections for officers of tne Church 

Council must be held by ballot ana majority of the votes cast 

shall be necessary to caoice. 

330TI01 4. At an election for Pastor tne election 

shall be by ballot; and it snail oe necessary tnat the candidate 

receive two-thirds of the votes of all tne members present quali­

fied to vote, to constitute a choice, provided thai at least a 

majority of the electors are present. So voting by oroxy or 

power of attorney snail ba permitted, but it is allowed that where 

a qualified voter is unable to be present at the election, such 

voter may send his or her ballot, endorsed with his or her nam*, 

in a sealed envelope addressed to the juiges of such election, and 

tne ballot thus sent shall be counted. 

3SC2IOB 5. At an election for elders and deacons the 

Church Council shall nominate as many persona as are to be elected, 

and the congregation may nominate aa equal number, and the caoice 

snail be xrom tne wnole number thus nominated. 

SECTIOB 6. xhe regular annual election for elders and 

deacons shall be held at the annual congregational meeting provided 

for in Article VIII (on tne second Monday of May each year) or 

within twenty days thereafter, and tne existing officers snail 

continue in the discharge of their duties until tneir successors 



have been elected and duly installed. 

SBQIIOH 7. At a reasonable time before every 

e1ection tne iastor (or President) shall apooint from among the 

members of the Church qualified to tote at that election, three 

judges who shall have charge of the election, agreroably to Section 

I of tnis Article, and who shall have a record of tho qualified 

voters. All voting shall be done by ballot; and the judges shall 

rnaxce a certified report of tne result of trie election to tne 

c-ongregat-ion or by its authority to the Council. 

H 1 I 0 ; I I VIII. 

A5S0AI SOHGRSGATIOJAI H3.iTIBQ;3. 

There snail be neld each year on the second Monday of 

May a meeting of tne congregation for tne transaction of tne gen­

eral' easiness of the Ghurcn and for tne election of Ohuroh /offi­

cers. At that meeting the Ghurcn Council snail present through 

its officers a full statement of the receipts and expenditures of 

the Ohuroh and such other matters as pertain to its welfare. 

At the Congregational Meetings hold for tho election of 

e"iders and deacons and for the transaction of the regular and or­

dinary business of the Church,- one-fifth of the membership of the 

Church snail constitute a quorum. But at Congregational Meet­

ings held for the election or dismissal of a castor, or for the 

mortgaging or sale of the Ohuroh property, a majority of the 

members snail be necessary to constitute a quorum. 

FT T i oTH ix. 
flTLC TO 2SOPBRTI. 

If at any time tnis Cnurch should cease to exist, fail 

to elect officers, or change its ecclesiastical relations contrary 

to the previsions of this Constitution, tne title to its property 

shall be vested in tho Board of dome missions and Church Extension 

of tne United LUTHSBAJi Church in America. 



A B I I 0 I 1 X. 

C3HATI0H ABB iimntNI 

SiSGTIOJ I- Article II of this Jonsoivution snail never 

be changed or aaiended so long as one memoer is opposed to such 

change or amendment. 

S-iSO'IIOK c. Alterations or amendments may be made to this 

Jonstitution, except to Article II. when recommended by a 

majority of tne Jhurch Council and approved by a vote of "cwo-

thlrds of tne members of tne Jhurcn present at a Congregational 

meeting lawfully called after at least six weeds' notice of 

the changes proposed has been given. 

BY - LOS-

I. The Jhurch Council shall meet on the first Tuesday of 

every month in the Jhurch building or at such other time or 

place as may be agreed upon for tne transaction of regular 

business. 

II, Tne following shall oe tne order of'business for the 

Jouncil meetings: 

I. Prayer. 

Reading and adoption of Minutes. 

'6. Reports of the Secretary and the Treasurer. 

4. Reports of Jommittees. 

5. Unfinished Business. 

6. New Business. 

7. Appointment of Jommi.teea. 

6. Adjournment. 



r 

The o f f i c e r s of the 'Conscl ida ted Corporation s n a i l be the 

P a s t o r who s n a i l a l so be the p r e s i d e n t of the Congregation and Council 

which o f f i c e r s and Council a re as f o l l o w s ; -

Hev. Otto C.F. Jamce, A.m. Castor and p r e s i d e n t 

Carman Vice-Pres iden t 

Carman Financ ia l Sec re ta ry 

George '/. Stenner Sec re ta ry 

Gerhard V. - Reimsrs Treasurer 

SIDJSRS 

Gerhard '7. Maimers appointed to f i l l term exp i r i ng Sunday,May 19,1929 

Fran* -V. Carman appointed to f i l l term exp i r ing Sunday,.lay 18,1929 

F r e d e r i c * S. Myerly appointed to f i l l terra e x p i r i n g Sunday,May 19,1929 

John Obersider appointed to f i l l terra exp i r i ng Sunday,May 19,1929 

J.ouis rierger appointed to f i l l terra exp i r ing Sunday, lay 19,1929 

Harry ijaapp appointed to f i l l terra expi r ing Sunday,May 18,1929 

DiACQilS 

Robert R. Burton appointed to f i l l term exp i r ing Sunday,..lay 1 S , V J ; J J 

T.eRoy F. Snoops ap.oointed to f i l l t e r ^ exp i r i ng Sunday .May 19,1929 

George W. Stenner appointed to f i l l term e x p i r i n g Sunuay,,lay I f ,1929 

John '.V. Mee£S appointed to f i l l term exp i r ing Sunday,May 18,1929 

George Simuerman appointed to i i i 1 term exp i r ing Sunday,May 18,19ii9 

William Beard appointed to f i l l term exp i r ing Sunday,May 19,1929 

2he term of the above o f f i c e r s except tne Pas to r and the 

P re s iden t a re to expi re Sunday, May 19,1929. 

I t la understood and agreed between the two Corporat ions 

t h a t a l l monies held by Concordia Svangelioal t u t h e r a n Congregation 

s h a l l be app 1 ied to tne payment of t h e i r debts so f a r as the same can 

be appl ied and the balance of the funds if any, s n a i l be turned over 

to the Treasure r of the Consolidated Congregation and »o oe apo l i ed only 

to the spee ia l purpose and ob jec t s for which c o n t r i b u t e d , Said Con­

s o l i d a t i o n i s to be e f f e c t u a l trom tne seven teen th day of December,1928. 

And the sa id bodies Corporate and eacn of thera do hereby 



appoint Henry Vogt to be their true and lawful Attorney for ..them and 

in their stead to acknowledge this Certificate of Oonsolidation as the 

act of each of said bodies Corporate. In acknowledgment of which 

Certificate of Consolidation witness the hand of Rev. Otto Q.f« Jainte 

as r'resident of All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran Church of .Baltimore 

City and the Corporate Seal thereof attested by Ceorge W. Stenner, 

its secretary, and the hand of William j?uehsjh/. President of Concordia 

Evangelical lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City and the Corporate 

seal thereof attested by William Beard, its Secretary this seventeenth 

day of December A.D. nineteen nundred and twenty-eight. 

All Saint's .evangelical Lutheran 
Church of Baltimore Oity. 

&J-mt°A^&vJ^: 
President 

Attest: 

Secretary 

Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 
Oongregation of Baltimore City. 

QY-f-

STA'IE 0? MAHYTAHD, 0121 Of BA1IIMGHB , to wit:-

I ESSSBli CC'tTIFY, that on this seventeenth day of December, in the 

year one thousand nine nundred and twenty-eight, before me, the suoscriber. 

a i.otary rublic of the State of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore 

personally appeared Henry vogt, trie Attorney xiamed in the. aforegoing 

certificate of Consolidation and he acknowledged said certificate of 

Consolidation to be the respective act of All Saint's evangelical 

Lutheran Churcn of Baltimore City and Concordia Evangelical Xutneran 

congregation of Baltimore City. 

As Witness my hand and Ivotarial Seal. 
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Teon Sohiff , &a. 

Agreement with 

Nora Doyle, &?. 

This I nden tu r e , Had* th i s 16tn day of February in the yea r n i n e ­

teen Hundred and twenty- f ive by and between the p a r t i e s h e r e i n a f t e r 

mentioned as se i zed and oossessea of the p r o p e r t i e s He re ina f t e r r e f e r r e d 

to or some i n t e r e s t or e s t a t e t h e r e i n . 

t ae sa id p a r t i e s ne re to a re se ized and possessed of the 

fo l lowing p r o p e r t i e s in the City of j a l t i . a o r a or so.ae i n t e r e s t therein. ; 
Teon Sahiff and Dannie Sohiff , h i s wi fe , of the p roper ty now .cnown as 

ITo. HOC '".'est ^-"anK.lin S t r e e t ; Nora Doyle, of the proper ty now renown as 

Fo. 1102 West J r a n r d i n S t r e e t ; Joneordia Svangelieal Lutheran Jhureh 

of the p r o p e r t i e s now cnown as Boa. 110i-110*-1108-1110-1118 "/est 

F rank l in S t r e e t ; Realty Centre , Inc . of the p rope r ty now cnown as Ho. 

1114 .Vest Pramclin S t r e e t ; li. ;/. T ea ry and A. Y. T e a r y , h i a wi fe , of the 

p roper ty now .cnown as No. 1116 '.Vest F rank l in S t r e e t ; Jar"! A r e t z l e r and 

Mary 3. K r e t o l e r , h i s wi fe , of trie p rope r ty now cnown as Ho. 1118 'Vest 

F r a n k l i n S t r e e t ; Uary J . '.Vorthington, of the orooer ty now cnown as Ko. 

1120 'Vest F r a n k l i n d t r e e o ; o. H. F reeba rge r , ..lary I . F reeba rge r , SlizabetL 

.. F reeburge r , Herbert a. .^ree burger , Cl inton J . F reebarger and Marie 

F. rsuj-iley, of the p r o p e r t i e s now .cnown as Hoa. 1122-1135 and 11«)7 .Vest 

F r ank l in S t r e e t ; Walter G. Mylander, William F. Mylander, Log oat J. 

Mylander, Kate E. Mylander, Florenoe J y l a n d e r , Mi l l a rd S. Mylander and 

i ^aus L of the p r o p e r t i e s new cnown as Los. 1124-ll«i6-1126 and 1130 

it F rank l in S t r e e t ; Joseph A. Gunther and xegina S. Gunther, hia wi£e., 

of the p roper ty now -cnown as !To. 11.01 Weit F r a n c l i n S t r e e t ; George D. 

Ahrllhg and Soma 7. a h r l i n g , h i s wi fe , j f the p rope r ty now cnown as Ho. 

110.3 'Vest F rank l in S t r e e t ; Joseph Bleak and Bather SIOCJK, h i t w i fe , of 

the proper ty now cnown as Ho. 1105 "Vest F r a n c l i n S t r e e t ; 3. H. 

Shee/cells and S l l en J . Sfceocella, h i s wife., of the o r o o e r t i e s now 

cnown as i*os. 110*7 and l i s y '.Vest Frarnclin S t r e e t ; Mary i . Dowd, Agnes 



R. Dowd, Catherine Dowd,and loretLa Dowd, of the properly now ten own as 

Ho. 1109 West Franklin Street; Hugo 7/eber and Philippine Yeber, hia 

wife, of tne property now Known as No. 1111 'Vest j?ranKlin Street; 

Thomas Hardness, of the property now saown as No. 1117 West Franilio 

Street; loais Fraedmao of the property now Known as Ho* 1119 7/esu 

.FranKlin 3treet; John P. Duggan, James p. Duggaa, Marie G. Duggan, of 

the properties now Known us No. ll«il .'/est Franklin Street, Josephine 

D. Cassell of the property now Known at Hoi ll^o West PraaKlin Street 

George H. Mueller and Ethel P. Mueller, his wife, of the property now 

Known as No. 11&5 "/est Praniilin Street; Anthony F. Soholholt and 

Satherine M. Soholholt, his wife, of the property now Known as No. 112 

V/eat FranKlin Street; Rose ^olodner of the property now Known aa ITo. 

1131 West ?ranKlin Street; Albert; R. Jonrad and Mary Jonrad, his wife, 

of the property now Known as Ho. 1133 'Vest Fpamclla Street; W.Martin 

Timanus and Slara B. Timanus, his wife, of the property now Known as 

So* 1139 '.Vest Franiclis Street; George Haideraan and Catherine Ileiaer-

aian, of the property now Known aa No. 1141 ./est, Frahilin Street; 

Anne- J. Jeffers, ox the property now Known as No. 1143 '.'/est FranKlin 

Street; Lena Grossman and X. Grossaian, of the property now Known as 

No. 1145 West ?ranKlin Street. 

Now Therefore each and all of said parties do in aonsidera­

tion of the execution of theea presents and of tne uutual covenants 

and agreements and stipulations herein contained and divers other 

good and valuable considerations to tnem and each of them tnereunto 

noYing receipt whereof 'oj eayin and all of them is hereby acknowledged 

hereby jointly and severally for themselves and each of themselves 

their and each of their heirs eersonal representatives, successors 

and assigns, grant, warrant, covenant, eronise and agree a.nongst them­

selves and each and all of them with all and eaca of the others, their 

and each of their heirs, personal representatives, successors and 

assigns that they and each of then their and eajh of their heirs, 

personal representatives, successors and assigns snail and will have, 

hold, stand seized and possessed of s iid respective properties 

interests and estates subject to the following restrictions, limita-



lions, conditions, covenants and agreements, stipulations and 

provisions to wit, tnat neither of tne said respective properties 

nor any oi them nor c.ny part ox them sljall DO at any time occupied 

or used b'j any negro or negroes or person or persons either in whole 

or in part 01 negro or African descent except only that negroes or 

persons or African descent either In wnole or in part may be employed 

as servents oy any of the owners or ooc lpiers of said respective 

properties and as and whilst so employed may reside on one premises 

occupied by their respective employers. That a majority of tne parties 

to this agreement may by an instrument in writing duly executed, 

acknowledged and recorded according to law at any time after the 

execution of this agreement remove ohe entire property affeoted by 

this agre ment from tne operation and effect of this agreement. 

That no sale lease or disposition or transfer thereof shall 

be made to operate otherwise than subject to tne aforesaid restrict­

ions as to and upon use and occupancy that neither the said parties 

nor any of them their or any of tne neirs, personal representatives, 

successors, or assigns will do or suffer or permit to oe done any of 

the matters or things aoove mentioned excepting only as aforesaid and 

that ell and singular the restrictions, limitations, conditions, 

covenants, agreements, stipulations, provisions, matters and tilings 

whatsoever herein contained or mentioned shall run with .md bind tne 

land for a period of ten years from July 1st,1924 and no longer and 

shall for said period 01 ten years in each and all of the above 

mentioned property and properties and every part thereof and the neirs 

person," representatives, successors and assigns of each and all of 

the parties hereto and shal1 be icept and performed by and inure to 

the benefit of and be inferoible by all ind everj '*•'• ' suad person 

body and bodies, politio or corporation at any time owning or 

occupying said land property,premises, interest or estate o^ any 

part Ob them or any of them but no owner or occupant shall oe re­

sponsible except for his or h^r or its acts of defaults while owner 

or oooupant. 



It is und-sralood &nd agreed between the parties hereto 

that neither this agreement ncr any part thereof shall have any bind­

ing force or effect on any property exeet;t that whiah is loaated in 

the eleven hundred bloc,: of lest Franilin Jtreet on both sides of 

said street. If at any time a 2*urt ef last resort sho ild declare 

this agreement null and void all parties to this a ' »nt are released 

from any faether obligation nereunder. 

Jhis agreement maybe executed, in several parts of lilce 

purport except xor the properties descrioei and the parties ;md ail' 

the Darts ultncagxi separately executed ihall be deemed and ta^en 

together us constituting one original agreement and shall be in no 

wise binding or of any effect unless or until it snail nave been 

executed in respect to properties (exclusive ox property Ho. 5J1 

Horth Sarrollton Avenue. which binds on the 4orth side of ̂ rarnclin 

Street) fronting out otherwise binding on seventy-five per centum 

of the front feet on both sides of the .oil owing street the eleven 

hun^ red b 1 oas. of Wes t Frank 1 in Street. 

fitness the hands and seals of the parties hereto. 

Test as to all: 

SI izabeth Young 

(Conoordia Evangelical Lutheran) 
( Church Corporate Seal ' 

R.Nt S h a c i e l l s i 
Sl len J . Shec-eelIs 1 
Mary 5. Dowd ( 
Agnes R. Dowd ( 
Ka thar ine Dowd 
L o r e t t a Dowd 1 
hag 3 ileber 1 
Phi l 1 ppine 'li'oe? 
Ihomas Har^cness 
J . A. Gun the r 
^egIna £. Gun ther i 
George 3. fcirling 
i i j u F. Anrling 
Joseph islocii 

,d3V j i l O C A 

Louis Jreedmsn 
John JF Duggan 
James j>. Duggan 

:ie S. Sugg an 
Josephine D. J a s a e l l 
u^'irae H. Mueller 
Mrs. i t he l f. Muel l s r 

thony ?• Soholhol t 
Ja ther ine M. Seholhol t 
Rose ...olodner 
Albert R. Jonrad 

Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 

'Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Seal ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 
Sea l ) 

'Sea l ) 
Seal ) 
Sea l ) 

' Sea l ) 
Seal) 

[Seal J 
Joncordia ivangelica 
by Mi 1 ton 0. Storm, 

1 lathe "an Jhuroh 
Secretary and 



5. 

Henry 
t#Y./B. Young, p a s t o r & i*a a idan t 

M. /. T i a r y (Seal ) 
Mrs - Y. T iary ' (Sea l ) 

3arl i r a j t a l a r (Sea l ) 
•y •;. K r a t z l a r (Seal ) 

Mary J . V/orthington (Sea l ) 
I t e r J. Mylander (Sea l ) 

I n d i v i d u a l l y and as Lttprnay for . 
Plorenaa : iy l ind^r ^ ^ ^ ^ V ^ ^ f e k a l ) 
Kata :. !yl ndar (Sea l ) 
August J. Myland • (Seal ) 
Wil l i i :; ' . ly lander (Seal ) 
Mi l la rd J. y lander (Sea l ) 
!.nn:i FauiBt (Seal ) 
Mary 3on"rad (Seal ) 
S. H. Fraaburgar (Sea l ) 
,»'. l a r t im Timanus (Seal ) 
J l a r a $. Zimanus (Sea l ) 
Ge o rga :-ie L da ruian (Sea l ) 
^<i,in$r ine 3 3i 1 : rman (Seal) 
inna J. J a f f a r s (Seal ) 
Tana Srassoi (Seal ) 
I . Srosaaan (Seal ) 
Mary T . Preeburgar (Seal ) 
i£li*abath S. f r a a b u r g a r (Sea l ) 
ttarbart H. f r aabu rga r ( s e a l ) 
CSlinton J . Fraaburgar (Sea l ) 
Maria #« Buoilay (Seal ) 

Rea l ty Centre Inc . ) 2he Saaj ty 3ancra, Lnaorporatad 
Corporate Seal ) by Louis J- Myara, P res iden t 

Laons 34hiff (Seal) 
Dannie o J i i i : t (Seal ) 
Mrs. N. Doylai (Seal ) 



SIA. ^YTAKI», JifY Of B LIIM0RJ8, 33 

I HSRSBY CERTIFY, Heat on t h i s 16th da,/ of February, 19£fi before 

oat trie s u b s c r i b e r a Notary Publ ic of tne S t a t e of Maryland in and fo r 

tne City of Bal t imore a f o r e s a i d pe r sona l ly appeared Joseph A. Gunthar 

and Regine £• Gunther, h i s wi fe , Joseph Blo*K and Set he r Bloex, h i s wi fe , 

R. N. Shecfcels and a l i e n J . Sheeicels, h i s wi fe , Mary £. Dowd, Agnes H. 

Dowd, Ca the r ine DoWd, "Loretta Dowd, nugo Weber and P h i l i p p i n e Hfeber, h i s 

w i l e , Jnouias tiancnese , Loais .^reeduian, John W* Duggan, Jti..ies p . Duggan, 

Marie G. Duggan, George E. Muel ler and Sthe3 p . Muel le r , h i s w i fe , 

Anthony 7'. 3cho lho l t and Cather ine M. S a h o l h o l t , h i s wi fe , Alber t I. 

Conrad and Mary Conrad, h i s w i fe , George he ideroan and Cather ine 

Heideraian, h i s w i fe , Iena Grossman and I . Jrossuieja, I.eon Sohiff and 

Dannie Sohiff , h i s wi fe , Hera Doyle, M, 7 . T ivy and M< Y. Leary, his 

wi fe , Ja r ! ^ r e t z l e r and Mary 3. i r e t i l e r , h i s wife and lary J , Worthing-
r 

ton and t] . .JK/J owl edged the ^a id Indenture or Agreement to be t h e i r 

aot and deed. 
As Witnesf .ay hand and No ta r i a l SeaJL. 

v n t ( i r 1 „ i q a o 1 Elizabeth Young 
. .o tary Publio 

l£ Of MARYLAND, JIxY Q? BAI2IM0RiS, 33 

I HilR&b2 ^ . . A i ^ i , Iha t on t h i s 17th day of February , li)25 before 

iiie tne eubso r ibe r A Notary Publio of tne 3 t a t e of Maryland, in and f o r 

the Glty of ^al t io iore a f o r e s a i d p e r s o n a l l y appeared Josephine D. J a e e e l l , 

Rose ^.olodner, •»'• Martin limanas and Clara B, riuianus, h ie w i fe , and 
C 

Anne/Jeffera and they ae^ncwledged the sa id Indenture or Agreement to 

be t h e i r aot and deed.a 

As 'ViLness my hand and Louar i a l Seal* 

N o t a r i a l Sea l . Sl ieabeth Young 
Notary P u b l i e . 

STA2B v* MARYLAND, C1YY uF BAL2] IS, 33 

I HilRiBY CERTIFY, That on this 21at day of February,1925 before 



r 

me the s u b s c r i b e r a Notary Publ ia of the S t a t e of Maryland In and for 

the Gity of Bal t imere a f o r e s a i d p e r s o n a l l y appeared Walter J. My l ande r 

i n d i v i d u a l l y and Walter J. Mylander, Afctorhey for Dora Mylander, Florence 

aiylander, ^ a t i e Mylander, August J . Mylander, dfilliam j . Mylander and 

Mil la rd J . Mylander ana Anna Faust and he ao-finowledged sa id Indenture 

:v Agreement to oe h i s ac t and • . and he a lao acknowledged sa id 

Indenture or Agreement to be the aa t and deed of Dora Mylander, Florenae 

Mylander, i ,u . i e Mylander, August J . Mylander, Williani F . [Jylander and 

Mi l la rd 0* Mylander and Anna JaUii, . 

At 'Witness cay hand and n o t a r i a l Sea l . 

H o t a r i a l Sea l . S l i s a b e t h Young 
Notary Jab l i e . 

STATU OF MARYIAND, OITY OF BA1TIM0R3, 33 

I H ^ : ^ i CERTIFY, That in t h i s £3rd day of ^eoruary, 19*6 before • 

.ue the s u b s c r i b e r a no t a ry Pabl io of the S t a t e of Maryland in and f o r the 

City of Balt imore a f o r e s a i d p e r s o n a l l y appeared 3 . • iTeeburger and 

iviary I . F reeburge r , El izabeth 3. jTeeourger , HoroerL H. Freeburger , 

J ] i n t o n J . Freeburger and Marie F. Sue/Cley u,nd they ajrcaon'ledged sa id 

Indexiture or Agreement to he t h e i r Ldt and d e e ; . 

As Witness Sly hand and N o t a r i a l S e a l . 

i.c^arial Seal. 
Slisabeth ioung 

Sotary Fub]La. 

STATS OF MARXIAND, CITY OF BAIT1MOR4, M 

I H£R.riB¥ JS1I1FY, That on tnis <i5tn duy of February, 1^25 

before me the subscriber a Notary Public of the Staie of Maryland in 

and for the 3ity of Baltimore aforesaid nersonally appeared George 0. 

Ahrling and Smma F. Ahrling, his wife, and they aoknowledged the said 

Indenture or Igreement to be their aot and deed. 

As Witness my hand and notarial Seal. 

notarial Seal. Sjiiabeth Young 

Notary Public 



S--

STAIiS OP MABY1ABD, 3ITI 0? BALTIMORE, SS 

I HJSRSBY 3SHTIFY , 2hac on this £5th day of February, 1925 

befo • r .ne the subscriber a Notary Publio of the State of Maryland in 

and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid personally appeared Louie J. 

My era President of the Realty CSentre, Incorporated and he acknowledged 

said Indenture or Agreement to be the aot of aaid body corporate. 

Ad Witness my hand and notarial Seal. 

notarial Seal* Bliaabeth Young 
. otary Pub1la 

SSAJHE OS MABYAJ3), OISI OF BAL2IM0R]*, 33 

I HSRSBlt 33RIIFY, what on t h i s 16 6h day of February , 1925 

before me the s u b s c r i b e r a Notary .Public of the Sta te of Maryland in 

and for the City of Bal t imore a fo r e sa id pe r sona l ly appeared Henry B* 

Young, P re s iden t of the Joncordia Evangel ical Lutheran Jhurch and n e 

acknowledged sa id Indenture or Agreement to be the sa t of sa id body 

co r p o r a t e . 

As Witness my hand and N o t a r i a l 3 e a l . 

N o t a r i a l oea". Bl izabe th Young 
Notary Pub]La 

Rec'd for Record-recorded & Exd March 24th 1925 at 2.45 0»Clk P.M. 

Stephen C. Little, Clerk 



I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy taken from Liber 

S.C.L.No.4358, folio 147 &c. one of the Land Records of Baltimore 

City. 

In Testimony whereof I hereto set my hand 

and affix the seal of the Superior Court 

of Baltimore City on this the 7th day of 

January A.D. 1929 

" » • » " • ' -

Clerk of the Superior Court 

of Baltimore City 
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THIS INDENTURE, Made this /<£^LT~day of 

in the year Nineteen hundred and twenty-five, by and betwee# the par­

ties hereinafter mentioned as seized and possessed of the properties 

hereinafter referred to or some interest or estate therein. 

WHEREAS* the said parties hereto are seized and possessed 

of the following properties in the City of Baltimore, or some inter­

est therein:-

LEON SCHIPP and FA.NNIE SCHIPP,his wife, of the property now known 
as No. 1100 West pranklin Street: 

NORA DOYLE of the property now known as No.1102 West Franklin Street: 

CONCORDIA EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH of the properties now known as 
Nos. 1104, 1106, 1108, 1110 and 1112 West Franklin Street: 

REALTY CENTRE,INC., of the property now known as No. 1114 West Frank­
lin Street: 

M, W. LEARY and M. Y. LEARY, his wife, of the property now known as 
No. 1116 West Franklin Street: 

GAEL KRETZLER and MARY E. KRETZL3R, his wife, of the property now 
known as No. 1118 West Franklin Street: 

* MARY J. WORTHINGTON of the property now known as Ho. 1120 West Frank­
lin Street: 

S. H. PREEBURGER,MARY L.FREEBURGER,ELIZABETH R. FREEBURGER,HERBERT H. 
FREEBURGER,CLINTON J.FREEBURGER and MARIE F.BUCKLEY of the properties 
now known as Nos. 1122, 1135 and 1137 West Franklin Street: 

WALTER C. MYLANDER, WILLIAM P. MYLANDER, AUGUST C. MYLANDER,KATE E. 
MYLANDER, FLORENCE MYLANDER,MILLARD C. MYLANDiR,and ANNA FAUST of the 
properties now known as Nos. 1124,1136, 1128 and 1130 West Franklin 
Street: 

JOSEPH A. GUNTHER and REGINA E. GUNTHER,his wife, of the property now 
known as No. 1101 West Franklin Street: 

GEORGE D. AHRLING and EMMA F. AHRLING, his wife, of the property now 
known as No.1103 West Franklin Street: 

JOSEPH BLOCK and ESTHER BLOCK, his wife, of the property now known as 
No.1105 West Franklin Street: 

R. N. SFECKELS and ELLEN J. SHECKELS, his wife, of the properties now 
known as Nos. 1107 and 1129 West Franklin Street: 

MARY E.DOWD,AGNES R. DOWD, KATHERINE DOWD and LORETTA DOWD of the prop­
erty now known as No. 1109 West Franklin Street: 



HUGO WEBER and PHILIPPINE WEBER, his wife, of the property now known 
as No. 1111 West Franklin Street: 

THOMAS HARKNESS of the property now known as No.1117 West Franklin Street: 

LOUIS FREEDMAN, of the property now known as No.1119 West Franklin Street: 

JOHN F. DUGGAN, JAMES P. DUGGAN, MARIE G. DUGGAN of the properties now 
known as No. 1121 West Franklin Street: 

JOSEPHINE D.CASSELL,of the property now known as No. 1123 West Franklin 
Street: 

GEORGE H.MUELLER and ETHEL P.MUELLER,his wife, of the property now known 
as No.1125 West Franklin Street: 

ANTHONY F. SCHOLHOLT and CATHARINE M. SC HDL HOLT, his wife, of the proper­
ty now known as No.1127 West Franklin Street: 

ROSE KOLODNER, of the property now known as No.1131 West Franklin Street: 

ALBERT R. CONRAD and MARY CONRAD, his wife, of the property now known as 
No. 1133 West Franklin Street: 

W.MARTIN TIMANUS and CLARA E.TIMANUS,his wife,of the property now known as 
No.1139 West Franklin Street: 

GEORGE HEIDERMAN and KATHERINE HEIDERMAN of the property now known as No. 
1141 West ^ranklin Street: 

ANNE C.JEFFERS,of the property now known as No.1143 West Franklin Street: 

LENA GROSSMAN and L.GROSSMAN of the property now known as No.1145 West 
Franklin Street. 

NOW,THEREFORE,each and all of said parties do, in consideration of the 

execution of these presents,and of the mutual covenants and agreements and 

stipulations herein contained,and divers other good and valixable considera­

tions to them and each of them thereunto moving,receipt whereof by each and 

all of them is hereby acknowledged,hereby jointly and severally,for themselves 

and each of themselves, their and each of their heirs,personal representa­

tives,successors and assigns,grant,warrant,covenant,promise and agree amongst 

themselves,and each and all of them with all and each of the others,their 

and each of their heirs,personal representatives,successors and assigns,that 

they and each of them,their and each of their heirs,personal representatives 

successors and assigns, shall and will have,hoId,stand seized and possessed 

of said respective properties,interests and estates subject to the following 

restrictions,limitations,conditions,covenants and agreements,stipulations and 

provisions,towit: 

That neither of the said respective properties,nor any of them nor any 



part of them,shajl be at any time occupied or used by any negro or negroes or 

person or persons either in whole or in part of negro or African descent,except 

only that negroes,or persons of negro or African descent, either in whole or in 

part,may be employed as servants by any of the owners or occupants of said re­

spective properties and as and whilst so employed may reside on the premises oc­

cupied by their respective employers. 

That a majority of the parties to this agreement may,by an instrument in writ­

ing duly executed,acknowledged and recorded according to law,at any time after 

the execution of this agreement remove the entire property affected by this agree­

ment from the operation and effect of this agreement. 

That no sale,lease or disposition or transfer thereof shall be made to operate 

otherwise than subject to the aforesaid restriction,as to and upon use and occu­

pancy; that neither the said parties,nor any of them,their,or any of the heirs, 

personal representatives,successors or assigns,will do or suffer or permit to be 

done any of the matters or things above mentioned,excepting only as aforesaid,and 

that all and singular the restrictions,limitations,conditions,covenants,agreements 

stipulations,provisions,matters and things whatsoever herein contained or men­

tioned shall run with and bind the land for a period of ten years from July 1,1924 

and no longer,and shall,for said period of ten years,bind each and all of the 

above mentioned property and properties and every part thereof,and the heirs, 

personal representatives,successors and assigns of each and all of the parties 

hereto,and shall be kept and performed by and inure to the benefit of and be 

enforcible by all and every persons and person, body and bodies politic or corp­

oration at any time ov/ning or occupying said land,property,premises,interest or 

estate,or any part ofthem,or any of them,but no owner or occupant shall be re­

sponsible,except for his or her or its acts or defaults while owner or occupant. 

IT IS UNDERSTOOD and AGREED between all the parties hereto that neither 

this agreement nor any part thereof shall have any binding force or effect on 

any property except that which is located in the Eleven hundred block of West 

Franklin Street, on both sides of said street. 



If at any time a Court of last resort should declare 

this agreement null and void, all parties to this agreement are re­

leased from any further obligation hereunder. 

This agreement may be executed in several parts of 

like purport, except for the properties described and the parties, 

and all the parts, although separately executed, shall be deemed 

and taken together as constituting one original agreement,and shall 

be in no wise binding or of any effect unless or until it shall have 

been executed in respect to properties, (exclusive of property No.501 

N.Carroll ton Avenue, which binds on the North side of Franklin Street,) 

fronting or otherwise binding on seventy-five percentum of the front 

feet on both sides of the following Street:- the Eleven hundred block 

of West Franklin Street. 

WITNESS the hands and seals of the parties hereto. 
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STATE OP MARYLAND: 

CITY OP BALTIMORE: ss:-

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 16th day of February, 

1925, before me,the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of 

Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, personally 

appeared, Joseph A. Gunther and Regina E. Gunther, his wife; Joseph 

Block and Esther Block, his wife; R.N.Sheckels and Ellen J.Sheckels 

his wife; Mary E.Dowd, Agnes R.Dowd, Katherine Dowd, Loretta Dowd; 

FUgo Weber and Philippine Weber, his wife; Thomas Harkness; Louis 

Freedman; John F.Duggan, James P.Duggan, Marie G.Duggan; George H. 

Mueller and Ethel P. Mueller, his wife; Anthony F.Scholholt and 

Catharine M. Scholholt, his wife; Albert R.Conrad and Mary Conrad, 

his wife; George Heiderman and Katherine Heiderman, his wife; Lena 

Grossman and L.Grossman; Leon Schiff and Fannie Schiff,his wife; 

Nora Doyle; M.W.Leary and M.y.Leary, his wife; Carl Kretzler and Mary 

E.Kretzler, his wife; and Mary J. Worthington, and they acknowledged 

the said Indenture or Agreement to be their act and deed. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

^ijCSl—^r— 
STATE OF MARYLAND: 
CITY OF BALTIMORE: ss:-

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 17th day of February, 

1925, before me,the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State of 

Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, personally ap-



' 

peared Josephine D. Cassell; Rose Kolodner; W.Martin Tiraanus 

and Clara E. Tiraanus, his wife; and Anne C. Jeffers, and they 

acknowledged the said Indenture or Agreement to be their act 

and deed. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

STATE OF MARYLAND: 

CITY OF BALTIMORE: ssj-

I HEREBY CERTIFY,that on this 21st day of February, 

1925, before me, the subscriber, a Notary Public of the State 

of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, personal­

ly appeared Walter C. Mylander, individually, and Walter C. Mylander, 

Attorney for Dora Mylander, Florence Mylander, Katie Mylander, Aug­

ust C. Mylander, William F. Mylander and Millard C. Mylander, and 

Anna Faust, and he acknowledged said Indenture or Agreement to be 

his act and deed, and he also acknowledged said Indenture or Agree­

ment to be the act and deed of Dora Mylander,Florence Mylander,Katie 

Mylander, August C. Mylander, William F.Mylander,Millard C.Mylander, 

and Anna Faust. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 



STATE OF MARYLAND: 
S3 |-

CITY OP BALTIMORE: 

T HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 23rd day of Feb­

ruary, 1925, before me,the subscriber, a Notary Public of the 

State of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, 

personally appeared S. H.Freeburger and Mary L. Preeburger^Eliza­

beth R.preeburger, Herbert H. Preeburger, Clinton J.Freeburger, 

and Marie P. Buckley, and they acknowledged said Indenture or 

Agreement to be their act and deed. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

STATE OF MARYLAND: 
ss: -

CITY OF BALTIMORE: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 25th day of 

February, 1925, before me,the subscriber, a Notary Public of 

the State of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore afore­

said, personally appeared George D. Ahrling and Emma F.Ahrling, 

his wife, and they acknowledged the said Indenture or Agreement 

to be their act and deed. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

\Notary/ P u b l i c , ^ 3CT] 



STATE OF. MARYLAND: 

CITY OF BALTIMORE: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 25th day of Feb­

ruary, 1925, before me, the subscriber, a Notary Public of the 

State of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, 

personally appeared Loui3 J. Myers, President of the Realty 

Centre, Incorporated, and he acknowledged said Indenture or 

Agreement to be the act of said body corporate. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

Kbte-r^ PuTolicV <*•• 

• 

STATS OP MARYLA1TD: 
ss r-

CITY OP BALTIMORE: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this 18th day of Feb­

ruary, 1925, before me, the subscriber, a Notary Public of the 

State of Maryland, in and for the City of Baltimore aforesaid, 

personally appeared Henry B. Young, President of the Concordia 

Evangelical Lutheran Church, and he acknowledged said Indenture 

or Agreement to be the act of said body corporate. 

^JlTotary Pub: 

AS WITNESS my hand and N o t a r i a l ^See^. 

' c*jR t a r y Pub ijyj \ a^ 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 
J 

^ m,&j 
BALTIMORE CITY 

ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH 

VS. 

GEORGE A.AHRLING, e t a l 

IP". C le rk : 

Please f i l e . 

WU^aft 
CORNEY EOR RESPONDENT, 

I E M R I C I C SCOTT. 

DAVIS & EVANS 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

K 9 

^W^/^: 
B A U M G A R T E N 6c C O . , I N C , 

W^M 



ALL SAIHTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERN CHURCH i IN THE CIRCUIT COURT NO 

VS. of 

GEORGE D.AHRLIHG, et al : BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT: 

Frederick Scott, one of the respondents in the above 

oase exhibited says for a special plea: 

That on or about the day of 1926,Mary 

E.Dowd, Agnes R. Dowd,Katherine Dowd,Loretta Dowflt and The Lafayette 

Square Protective Association, a corporation ( of which latter 

corporation the complainant cor-ooration was a member) received 

from tMs Honorable Court a. preliminary injunction restraining 

the said .Frederick Scott from living in premises 1107 Franklin 

Street or permitting persons of African descent from living in 

said premises, said I107 Franklin St, having been sold to the 

respondent by one Ellen J.Skekels, which \Ellen Skekels wee a 

member of the aforementioned Lafayette Square Protective Asso­

ciation; that the said preliminary injunction was ney.er dissolved 

that the respondent demurred to said preliminary injunction 

which demurrer lias nener been heard. That said aforementioned 

suit of Mary E. Dowd et al Vs.Frederick Scott et al is still 

pending in this Honorable Court. 

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT,FREDERICK 
&COTT 

file:///Ellen


In t h e C i r cu i t Court Nc. 2 

of 

Balt imore C i t y ' 
3?y /&f 

All S a i n t s Evange l i ca l Luthern 
Church of Bal t imore City 

v s . 

George D. Ahrling, et. al. 

A N S H E R 

Mr, C l e r k : 

Please f i l e , e t c . 

At t y . f or ,The Loya 1 B5Tdg 
and Savings Assoc. No.2, 
I n c . , o f Bal t imore C i t y , 

e of t he Defendants . 

/CS2A C\ 
it 

M^3 fJk 



All F a i n t s E v a n g e l i c a l : In the C i r c u i t Court 
Luthern Church of 

Bal t imore C i ty , : No. 2 

v s . . : t <"• o f 

George D. A h r l m g , e t . a l . : Bal t imore C i t y . 

. • 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGE OF SAID COURT: 

The Answer of The Loyal Euilding and Savings Association 

No. 3, Incorporated, of Baltimore City, incorrectly named as the 

Loyal Euilding Association in these proceedings, to the Bill of 

Complaint of All Saints Evangelical Luthern Church of, Baltimore 

City, against it and others in this Court exhibited. 

This Defendant neither admits nor aenies the matters 

and fact3 set forth in said Eill of Complaint, with the exception, 

however, that it does admit that it at one time was the holder of 

a mortgage on property No. 1120 I. Franklin Street, from one 

Joseph F. Gerlach, which mortgage has been fully paid off by the 

sail Joseph F. Gerlach, ana a release executed and recorded among 

the Land Records of Baltimore City; that it has no interest in the 

subject matter of said Eill of Complaint; and it prays hence to be 

dismissed with its costs. 

And as in duty bound, etc. 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT HO, 2 

0? BALTJ CITY. 

All oaints Evangelical 

Lutheran Cuurch, 

vs. 

Jeorge D. Ahrling et al, 

A N S V E R 

Solicit©/ for Rc/se Xolodner 
G-r o s s;.ia*i. S 

% / / . C%± 
•HERS a £ YOUNG, C R O T H t R S a S E T T L E 

A T T O R N E Y S AT LAW 

9 2 3 - 9 3 8 EQUITABLE BUILDING 
* 

B A L T I M O R E 



ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH, 

vs. 

D. AHRLING et al. 

* 
* 

* 

* 
* 

* 

PEN THE CIRCUIT COURT NO.2 

BALTI CITY. 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGE 01 3AIE COURT:-

The answer of Rose Kolodner Grossman to the bill 

of complaint herein exnibited against her and otiiers, respectfully 

shows:-

FIRST: Txiat having no knowledge of the matters and facts 

set forth in the first, second, tnird and fourtn paragraphs of said 

bill sne neither admits nor denies trie same, except that sue admits 

tnat tnis respondent is the owner of the leasehold interest in the 

lot known as 1145 West Franklin Street. 

SECOND: That ehe admits the facts alleged in the fifth para­

graph of said bill of complaint. 

And naving fully answered said bill of complaint as 

she is advised is necessary, s-ie prays thai sue may be nence dismissed 

with ner reasonable costs. 

And as in duty bound, etc. 

Soli' odner Grossman 





. EEIICAL it DHURCH 
• BAITIMO: CITY, a body corporate, 

Complainant 
TT: T:W 

v g IKCUI to. 2 

. : LIES, et aif 
and 

-
. PHI 

Defer... ants 

Jo . OITY 

TO EH a . COUHT:-

Your respondenta, Josephine ?. Frisk; • Catherine U. Plitt, two of 
of the above named defendants, answering the Bill of Complaint herein 

Inst them and others exhibited, in the above entitled cause, the 
whole thereof, and each and every paragraph thereof, respectfully show:-

iswering the whole of s£id Bill of Complaint, and each 
every paragraph thereof, your respondents 

together with their brother, ?o$fy$\ S. Cassell, are the oily 
heir 3 next of kin of their decaesec Mother, Josephine D. 
Cassell, widow, who during her l'fetime, rid at the date 
her death, owned and possesses the property mentioned in 
Pill of Complaint, end know "o. 112«* Test 

of 
id 

PranKlin street, 
In the City of Baltimore, Maryland, subject to an annual ground 
rent of ."43.00; that after the death of their Mother, letters 

Lstaatlon were grantefl XXXXEHH to Jofla"** D. Cassell, 
as administrator of the estate of said decdent.and ir due; course 
after notice, and compliance wit oil prerequisites, the admin­
istrator conveyed said property, subject to said rent, unto 
your respondents, jointly with their brother, aforenamed. That 
thereafter, your respondents have oontinously caned and posses­
sed the spme, and are at this time, the owners thereof, together 

their aforenamed brother. That they ĥ 've no personal 
knowledge of the material allegations set out in said Bill of 
Complaint, with relation to the execution of said agreement, 
therein referred to and mentioned, ^nd in accord?, ce with the 
re* ' °rener! ! les, they deny the same. 

"toa.,11:- That they, admit all allegations therein set forth, fin said 
Bill of Complaint herein filed) relating to changed ' -lib or -
hood, within the area, territory and scope of said restrictive 
agreement. 

''ID:- at your respondents are advised and therefor aver, that it 
tuld he inequitable to cancel said agreement as to the said 

Complainant, without cancelling same as to all parties, in­
cluding your respondents, which your respondents believe should 
be done. 

Wherefore having fully answered answered said Pill of Complaint, the; 
pray that the whole agreement, referred to in the Bill of Complaint, 
be cancelled in its entirety, as to all par.ties, at the cost and char; 
o f the c ajsp 1 a in ant. 

_l_ vJ 



And a s , & c , 

o r i e n t s reraeo. 
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IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT NO. ' 2 of 
JW-'. 

ALL SAINTS EVNAGBLICAL 

LUTHERAN CHURCH 0E BALTl 
CITY. & bodv corporate 

Complainant 

VS 

GEORGE D, AHRLING et al 
Defnndant 

~~~ ; o? ^"T-" c . , ' ILL: 
AUCTJ8r?i C , KATE E . . FLORENC 
ffivlander and ANNA FAUS* 

S i x of t h e d e f e n d a n t s 

P l e a s e f i l e , &c . 
^yKCA^z-

Jk IT iTPs io r 
Due s e r v i c e of cop 

Answer , a d m i t t e d 
day of F e b r u a r y , 

i n t s " 
with lib. 

l i s 2 5 t h 
1929, 

a u l l o l l u f o r u i m n l a i n u n t ' 
M Y U N D E R Be PATZ 

A T T O R N E Y AT LAW 

4 I O - 4 I 6 M O R R I S B U I L D I N G 
B A L T I M O R E . 

Ill 



ALL SalHTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH 
OF BALTIMORE CITY, a body c o r p o r a t e , 

Compla inan t 

* IN THE 

VS 

GEORGE D. AHRLING,' e t a l , and 

Y^LTS* C. MYLANDER, 

?rILIlAM P . MYLANDER, 

AUGUST C. MYLANDER, 

KATE E. MYLANDER, 

PLOEENCS MYLANDER, and 

ANNA PAUSE , 

D e f e n d a n t s 

A N S !» E R 

TO THE HONORABLE, ELI PRANK, THE JUDGE 0 ! ID COURT J-

Your resoondents, Walter C. Mylander, William P. inlander, August C. My-

lander, Kate E. Mylander, Florence Mylander and Anna Faust, six of the 

above named defendants, answering the Bill of Complaint in this cause, 

exhibited against the:, and others, the whole thereof, and each -rid. every 

paragraph thereof, respectfully show unto this Co\irt:-

1. That answering the said Bill of Complaint, the whole thereof, and 
each and every paragraph thereof, your respondents aver that they, 
together with their sister, Dora Mylander, are the owners of prop­
erties, mentioned in said Bill of Complaint, u d known as lies, 1124-
1126,xx£ 1128 and 1130 lest Franklin Street, in the City of Balti­
more, Maryland, which said properties are possessed by then. That 
they have no personal knowledge of the other allegations of alleged 
matter and fact set forth in said BJill of Complaint, material to 
the determination of the matter presented to this Court therein, and 
do therefore, in accordance with the revised General Equity Rules 
deny the same, except as hereinafter specifically admitted. 

2. That they admit all allegations thejrein set forth (in said Bill of 
Complaint) relating to changed neighborhood, within the area, terri­
tory and scope of said alleged restrictive agreement, therein men­
tioned . 

3. That your respondents â e advised and therefore aver, that it would 
be inequitable to cancel said agreement as to said Complainant, 

\ ithout cancelling same as to your respondents, and as to all parties 
named herein, which your- respondents believe should be done. 

Wherefore having fully answered said Bill of Complaint, they pray that the 
-hole agreement, referred to in said Bill of Complaint, be cancelled in its 
entirety, as to all parties, at the cost and charge of the Complainant. 
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CIRCUIT COURT 110. 3 Of 

ILL 1VAKGELIC*! 
iUTEPRAH CHURCH, fce., 

Complt. 

VS 

GEO! GE T). IHRLMS, e t a l 

B oTI o i l o r" t ' o r ^ e s p on < 
Due s e r v i c e admitted t h i s 

pay of February , 19£9 

~^¥#rar 1 _ 

::? JOTHI g. GASSEI 

C!£F OF THE 

Mr. Clerk:-
Please file, &c, 

M Y L A N D E R & P A T Z 
A T T O R N E Y AT LAW 

4 1 0 - 4 1 6 M O R R I S B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E . 
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LUTE'. 
ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL/CHURCH OP 
B̂ T I ITY, 8 body corporate, 

Complainant 

THE 

CIRCUIT COIT̂ T T ,o. 2 of 

vs •p 1 T r ! l T j ' f n y 

GEORGE . HHRLIIIG, e t a l , end 
JOHN g# CASSKII 

Defendants 

A IT 

T^ 7E^ HONORABLE, ELI EH; JUT/ O P rpTTF1 

Your respondent; John S. Cassel l , one of the defendants in the ahove 
en t i t l ed cause, answering the P i l l of Conpl-int herein against him end 
others exhibited, and each °nd every paragraph thereof, respect fu l ly 
she: ^ unto t h i s Court:-

PI ET:- rnhnt angering the whole of said B i l l of Complaint arr1 each 
everjr paragraph thereof, your respondent, avers that ±he;sc 
XKfetanc w±±k his l i s t e r s , Josephine P . Prisky and Catherine 
P l i t t , are the only he i r s at law,, and ner t of kin o^ t h e i r 
ceased Mother, Josephine 
time. nd at the date of 

and 
i-and 
D. 
de-

D. Casaell, widow, who during her life-
her death, pwned and possessed the prop­

erty mentioned in said Bill of Complaint, and known as No. 1123 
'Vest P-anklin street, in the City of Baltimore, flaryl£nd, sub­
ject to an annual ground rent o45 $48.00; that after the death 
of their mother, letters of administration on her estate, were 
granted to your respondent, and in due course, after notice 
and compliance with all prerequisites, your respondent, as such 
administrator, upon '. .:-: of Court, conveyed said property, sub­
ject to said rent, unto your respondent, nd his sisters, afore­
named. That thereafter, your respondent, together with his 
sisters has eontinously owned and possessed their aforementioned 
property, and together 1 ith his said sisters, is at the present 
time, the owner thereof. That he has no personal knowledge of 
thex material allegations set out in said pill of" Complaint, wifr 
relation to the execution of said agreement, therein referred $o, 
and therefor, ir accordance with the revised general Equity Rules 
deny the same. 

SECOND:- That he admits all allegations therein ~>et forth, (in said Rill 
of Complaint herein filed,] relating to change! neighborhood, 
within the area, territory and 
ment. 

scope of said restrictive agree-

THIRD:- That your respondent is advised and therefor avers, that few it 
would be inequitable to cancel' said agreement as to said Complai­
nant, without cancelling same as to al] parties, including your 
respondent, which your respondent belfeves should be done. 

Wherefore having fully answered -aid Bill of Complaint, he prays that the 
whole agreement, referred to nd mentioned in said Bill of Complaint, 
he cancelled in its entirety, as to all piartles, at the cost and charge 
of the complainant. 
And a s , &c., /footstol^Z 

dent 



IK THE 
CIRCUIT COURT #2 
OP BALTIMORE CITY 

£3-
ALL SAIHT*S ETUfGE~LIUAL^ 
LUTHEit&N CHURCH OP 
BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y 
c o r p o r a t e . 

V S . 
L . GROSSMAN a n d LENA 
GROSSMAN, h i s w i f e , 

ET AL 

ANS. 

M r . C l e r k : -

P l e a s e f i l e , e t c . 

/i&Z \ 

Service admitted th: 
day 1929. 

C A R M O 
A T T * R N E Y - A T - L A W 

S.41 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 



: 

ALL S A l N f ' S EVANGELICAL L U T H E A A E 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITT, a body : 
c o r p o r a t e • 

V S . : 

L . GROSSMAN and L S I GROSSMAN, 
h i s w i f e , ET AL 

TO TEE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OF SAID COURT:-

Your r e s p o n d e n t s , L . Grossman and Lena Grossman, 

h i s w i f e , by James J o s e p h Carmody, t h e i r a t t o r n e y , f o r answer 

t o the p e t i t i o n f i l e d by t h e P l a i n t i f f i n t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y : -

F i r s t s 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangel ical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the sail agreement 

for and on behalf of the petitioner did so with full knowledge of 

their responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and 

that the said agreement was signed by them in jood faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the said petition, 

your respondents deny the allegations set out in the -petition and 

demand absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry 

B. Young, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 

Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, 

Secretary xhereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the 

signing of the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings 

IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT #2 

OP 

BALTIMORE CITY 



were held in the church u,t which the congregation attended and also 

the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing said agreement 

was done t.fter a free discussion of the circumstances surrounding the 

case; that the said agreement was "binding upon the Concordia 

Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, 

and its successor, the All Saint !s Evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a body corporate* 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the said petition, 

your respondents neither affirm nor deny the statements uade therein, 

but demand absolute proof of same* 

Pifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of the said petition, 

your respondents say that they neither admit nor deny the allegations 

stated therein, but demand positive proof of same* 

Having iully answered the said petitition, your 

respondents pray to be hence diimissed with costs* 

AND A3 in duty bound, etc* 



STATE OF MARYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO WIT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i s 

d a y o f AXV\M^ 
**£. 

, 122 y, "before me, t h e s u b s c r i b e r , 

a n o t a r y P u b l i c of the S t a t e of Maryland* in and for she 

C i t y of B a l t i m o r e , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d L . Grossman, one of 

t h e r e s p o n d e n t s h e r e i n , and made oath in due form of law 

t h a t t he na t t e r s and f a c t s s e t f o r t h i n t he a f o r e g o i n g 

answer a r e t r u e and "bona f i d e t o t h e "best of h i s knowledge 

an d b e l i e f . 

AS WXfKBSS my hand and n o t a r i a l a e a l * 



IN THE 
CIRCUIT COUHT #2 
OF BALTIMORE CITY 

NT'S EVAEGEl/rCAL ALL SAIH 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF 
BALTIMORE CITY, a 13 047 
corporate • 

VS. 

AGNES R. DOWD 
MARY I, D07D 
KATHBRINE DOWD 
LORETTA DOWD 

3T AL 

ANS ",7ER 

Mr. Clerk:-

Please file, etc 

n 

Service A^/eoiJv adniVted 
t h i s £sd==Laa* otytyU**/l*i..~ 
19B9 4 •rftfLt^i^m*r~Z / , 

J / y ^ J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y - A T - L A W 

541 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

I M O R E , MD. 



\ 

: 
ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a "body 
c o r p o r a t e . : 

IN THE 
V S . 

: CIRCUIT COURT #2 
AGNES R. DOWD 
MARY S. DOWD OP 
KATH SHINS DOWD '. 
LORETTA DOWD BALTIMORE CITY 

ET AL ! 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

Your r e s p o n d e n t s , Agnes R. Dowd, Mary E . Dowd, 

K a t h e r i n e Dowd a n d L o r e t t a Dowd, "by J a m e s J o s e p h Carraody, t h e i r 

a t t o r n e y , f o r a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d by t h e p l a i n t i f f i n 

t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y : -

P i r 81 • 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s h a v e n o k n o w l e d g e o f t h e 

m a t t e r s s t a t e d i n t h e f i r s t p a r a g r a p h o f t h e p e t i t i o n , b u t 

demand a b s o l u t e p r o o f of s a m e . 

S e c o n d . 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s d e n y t h e a l l e g a t i o n s a l l e g e d 

i n p a r a g r a p h two o f t h e p e t i t i o n , a n d 3ay f u r t h e r t h a t a n a g r e e m e n t 

was e n t e r e d i n t o on b e h a l f o f t h e A l l o a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n 

C h u r c h o f B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a b o d y c o r p o r a t e , w i t h t h e v a r i o u s o w n e r s 

of t h e p r o p e r t y m e n t i o n e d i n t h e s e c o n d p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , 

a n d t h a t t h e P r e s i d e n t and S e c r e t a r y who s i g n e d t h e a g r e e m e n t f o r 

and on b e h a l f of y o u r p e t i t i o n e r d i d so w i t h f u l l k n o w l e d g e of t h e i r 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y and t h e r e s p o n s i k i l i t y of y o u r p e t i t i o n e r a n d t h a t 

t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t was s i g n e d by t h e m i n good f a i t h . 

T h i r d . 

A n s w e r i n g t h e t h i r d p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , y o u r 

r e s p o n d e n t s d e n y t h e a l l e g a t i o n s s e t o u t i n t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n a n d 

demand a b s o l u t e p r o o f of s a m e , and 3ay f u r t h e r t h a t t h e R e v . H e n r y 

B . Y o u n g , P a s t o r and P r e s i d e n t of C o n c o r d i a E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n 

C o n g r e g a t i o n of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , and M i l t o n 0 . S t o r m , 

S e c r e t a r y t h e r e o f , h a d f u l l k n o w l e d g e of t h e f a c t s s u r r o u n d i n g t h e 



c 

of t h e agreement men t ioned h e r e t o f o r e ; t h a t p u b l i c m e e t i n g s were 

h e l d i n t h e Church a t which t h e c o n g r e g a t i o n a t t e n d e d and a l s o t h e 

P a s t o r and S e c r e t a r y ; t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n i n s i g n i n g s a i d ag reemen t 

was done a f t e r a f r e e d i s c u s s i o n of t h e c i r c u m s t a n c e s s u r r o u n d i n g 

t h e c a s e ; t h a t t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t was b i n d i n g upon t h e Concord ia 

E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n C o n g r e g a t i o n of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , 

and i t s s u c c e s s o r , t h e A l l S a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n Church of 

B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a oody c o r p o r a t e . 

F o u r t h o 

Answer ing t h e f o u r t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , 

your r e s p o n d e n t s n e i t h e r a f f i r m nor deny t h e a l l e g a t i o n s s t a t e d 

t n e r e i n , b u t demand a b s o l u t e p r o o f of same* 

F i f t h . 

Answer ing t h e f i f t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , 

your r e s p o n d e n t s say t h a t t h e y n e i t h e r admi t nor deny t h e s t a t e m e n t s 

made t h e r e i n , b u t demand p o s i t i v e p r o o f of s a m e . 

Having f u l l y answered the s a i d p e t i t i o n , your 

Responden t s p ray to be hence d i s m i s s e d w i t h c o s t s . 

AND AS in d u t y bound , e t c . 

^j^i^^^y ftc 
ht^L^t^ G /{j/<f-ZsV-€^ 

*C^feS&> Jh fe ^ ^ P C / 



STATE OF HAHYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO f l f l 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i a <rJC5^XD?0U 

day o f * \ ^ \ J Q ^ <sQsfsc , 19&9, b e f o r e n e , t h e s u b s c r i b e r , 

a N o t a r y (Pub l ic of t h e S t a t e o f M a r y l a n d , i n a n d f o r t h e 

C i t y of B a l t i m o r e , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d A g n e s R. Dowd, 

one of t h e r e s p o n d e n t s h e r e i n , a n d made o a t h i n due form of 

l a w t h a t t h e m a t t e r s a n d f a c t s s e t f o r t h i n tfhe a f o r e g o i n g 

a n s w e r a r e t r u e a n d b o n a f i d e t o t h e b e s t of h i s k n o w l e d g e 

and b e l i e f . 

AS WXfVBSS my h a n d and n o t a r i a l » e a l . 

xc JT^" 



I l l THE 
C I R C U I T COURT # 2 
OP BALTIMORE C I T Y 

s 
ALL S A I N T ' S 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF 
BALTIMORE C I T Y , a b o d y 
c o r p o a t e . 

V S . 
S . H . PREE3URGER, MARY L . 
FREEBURGER, E L I Z A B I T H H . 
FREBURGSR, HERBERT H . 
FREEBURGER, CLINTON J . 
FREEBURGER a n d MAEIB F . 
BUCKLEY, ET A L . 

ANSWER 

M r . C l e r k : -

P l e a s e f i l e , a t e . — . P l e a s e i i l e , a t 

Se 
th 
1& 

rvice of copy admitted 
«s day of 
29.-

'a 

J A S . J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y-AT-LA W 

841 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 

( / 



ALL S U I T ' S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OF BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y 
c o r p o r a t e . : 

I I THE 
V S . 

CIRCUIT COURT £2 
S. H. FREEBURGER, MARY L. FREEBURGER, : 
ELIZABETH R. PREEBURGER, HERBERT H. OP 
PREEBURGER, CLINTON J. PREEBURGER, 
and MARIE P. BUCKLEY, ET AL. BALTIMORE CITY 

: 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OF THE SAID COURT:-

Y c u r r e s p o n d e n t s , S . H. F r e e b u r g e r , Mary L . 

F r e e b u r g e r , E l i z a b e t h R. F r e e b u r g e r , H e r b e r t H . F r e e b u r g e r , 

C l i n t o n J . F r e e b u r g e r , a n d M a r i e F . B u c k l e y , by J a m e s J . Car raody , 

t h e i r a t t o r n e y , f o r a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d by t h e P l a i n t i f f 

i n t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y s -

F i r s t . 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s h a v e n o Knowledge of »»he 

m a t t e r s s t a t e d i n t h e f i r s t p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , b u t demand 

a b s o l u t e p r o o f of s a m e . 

S e c o n d • 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s d e n y jfche a l l e g a t i o n s a l l e g e d 

i n p a r a g r a p h two of t h e p e t i t i o n , a n d s a y f u r t h e r t h a t a n a g r e e m e n t 

was e n t e r e d i n t o on b e h a l f o f A l l S a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n 

C h u r c h of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , w i t h t h e v a r i o u s o w n e r s 

of t h e p r o p e r t y m e n t i o n e d i n t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , and t h a t t h e P r e s i d e n t 

a n d S e c r e t a r y who s i g n e d t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t f o r and on b e h a l f o f y o u r 

p e t i t i o n e r d i d so w i t h f u l l k n o w l e d g e of t h e i r r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a n d 

t h e r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of y o u r p e t i t i o n e r and t h a t s a i d a g r e e m e n t was 

s i g n e d by xhem i n good f a i t h . 

T h i r d * 

A n s w e r i n g t h e t h i r d p a r a g r a p h of t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , 

y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s s ay t h a t t h e y d e n y t h e a l l e g a t i o n s s e t o u t i n t h e 

p e t i t i o n , and s ay f u r t h e r t h a t t h e R e v . H e n r y B . Y o u n g , P a s t o r and. 

P r e s i d e n t o f C o n c o r d i a E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n C o n g r e g a t i o n og B a l t i m o r e 

C i t - , a body c o r p o r a t e , a n d M i l t o n 0 . S t o r m , S e c r e t a r y t h e r e o f , h a d 



f u l l knowledge of the f a c t a s u r r o u n d i n g t h e s i g n i n g of t h e s a i d 

a g r e e m e n t men t ioned h e r e t o f o r e ; t h a t p u b l i c m e e t i n g s were h e l d 

i n t h e chu rch a t wh-ch t h e c o n g r e g a t i o n a t t e n d e d and a l s o the 

P a s t o r and S e c r e t a r y ; t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n i n s i g n i n g s a i d a g r e e m e n t 

was done a f t e r a f r e e d i s c u s s i o n of t h e c i r c u m s t a n c e s s u r r o u n d i n g 

t h e c a s e ; t h a t t h e s a i d ag reemen t was b i n d i n g upon Concord i a 

E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n Congregation* of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body 

c o r p o r a t e , and i t s s u c c e s s o r , t h e A l l S a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l Lutheran. 

Church of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , , 

F o u r t h . 

Answer ing t h e f o u r t h p a r a g r a p h of t he p e t i t i o n , y o u r 

r e s p o n d e n t s n e i t h e r admi t nor deny the s t a t e m e n t s made t h e r e i n , b u t 

demand a b s o l u t e p roof of same« 

F i f t h . 

Answer ing t h e F i f t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , your 

r e s p o n d e n t s say t h a t t h e y n e i t h e r a f f i r m nor deny t h e a l l e g a t i o n s 

s t a t e d t h e r e i n , bu t demand p o s i t i v e p roof of same* 

Hav ing f u l l y answered t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , your 

r e s p o n d e n t s p r a y to be hence d i s m i s s e d wi th c o s t s . 

AND AS i n d u t y bound , e t c . 



STATE OF UA3YLAND: BALTI2.ICHE G I T T : TO f i l l 

^_y I II3HEBT CERTIFY, tha t on t h i s ^G^XC^M 

day of HLM'AM, <X>jsft , 1^29, before ae , the subscr iber , 

a Hotary Public of the Sta te of Maryland, in and for the City of 

Balt imore, aforesaid , personal ly appeared Marie F. Buckley, 

one of the respondents he r e in , and made oath in due form of 

law tha t the matters and fac t s se t fo r th in the aforegoing 

answer are true and bona fide to the best of his knowledge and 

b e l i e f . 

AS T7ITKESS my hand and n o t a r i a l s e a l . 

^ A A ^ o-v>^Ji? 
Nota ry T u b l i c 



^mm^m 
IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT #2 
OF BALTIMORE CITT 

X. 
ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF BALTIMORE 
CITY, a t o d y c o r p o r a t e . 

V! 

NORA DOYLE 

ET AL 

-ANSWER-

Mr. Clerk:-

Please file, etc. 

Service, of covy admitted 
this ,%£"£* day of 

J A S . J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N EY-AT-LAW 

S 4 I E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 

iafan ^tUu.a*~> /m 



: 
ALL SAINT fS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body III THE 
c o r p o r a t e . : 

CIRCUIT COURT # 2 
va« 

: OP 
NORA DOYLE 

ET AL BALTIMORE CITY 
: 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

T o u r r e s p o n d e n t , N o r a D o y l e , hy J a m e s J o s e p h 

Carmody , h e r a t t o r n e y , f o r a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d by 

t h e P l a i n t i f f i n t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y s : -

P i r s t . 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t h a s no k n o w l e d g e of t h e 

m a t t e r s s t a t e d i n t h e f i r s t p a r a g r a p h o f t h e p e t i t i o n , b u t 

d e m a n d s a b s o l u t e p r o o f o f same > 

S e c o n d , 

T h a t y o u r r e s p o n d e n t d e n i e s t h e a l l e g a t i o n s 

a l l e g e d i n p a r a g r a p h two of t h e p e t i t i o n , a n d s a y s f u r t h e r t h a t 

a n a g r e e m e n t was e n t e r e d i n t o on " b e h a l f of t h e A l l S a i n t ' s 

E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n C h u r c h o f B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , 

w i t h t h e v a r i o u s o w n e r s o f t h e p r o p e r t y m e n t i o n e d i n t h e s e c o n d 

p a r a g r a p h o f t h e p e t i t i o n , a n d t h a t t h e P r e s i d e n t a n d S e c r e t a r y 

who s i g n e d t h e a g r e e m e n t f o r and on b e h a l f of y o u r p e t i t i o n e r 

d i d so w i t h f u l l k n o w l e d g e o f t h e i r r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a n d t h e 

r e s p p n s i b i l i t y o f y o u r p e t i t i o n e r and t h a t t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t 

was s i g n e d by them i n good f a i t h . 

Thi r d o 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondent denies the allegations set out in siid petition and 

demands absolute proof of same, and says further that the Rev. 

Henry B. Young, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical 

Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and 

Milton 0. Storm, Secretary thereof, had full knowledge of the 

facts surrounding the signing of the said agreement; that public 



meetings were held in the Church at which the congregation 

attended and also the Pastor and Secretary; that their 

action in signing said agreement was done after a free 

discussion of the circumstances surrounding the case; that 

the said agreement was binding upon the Concordia Evangelical 

Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a hody corporate, 

and its successor, the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, abody corporate. 

Fourth . 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the petition, 

your respondent neither affirms nor denies the statements made 

therein, hut demands absolute proof of same. 

Pi fth. 

Answering the fifth praragaph of the 3aid 

petition, your respondent says that she neither admits nor 

denies the allegations stated therein, hut demands positive 

proof of same. 

Having fully answered the said petition, your 

respondent prays to he dismissed with costs. 

ABE AS in duty hound, etc. 



STATS OP HLBTLilBl 3ALTILK RE CITY: TO WIT: 

on t h i s " W ^ S u \ K I HEHEBY CBBTIFTY, t h a t 

day of <*\j|>s\.)^ "SOIM » 1929 , "before me, t h e s u b s c r i b e r , a 

Notary P u b l i c of t h e S t a t e of M a r y l a n d , i n and f o r t h e C i t y 

of B a l t i m o r e , a f o r e s a i d , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d Hora D o y l e , 

and made o a t h i n due form of law t h a t t h # m a t t e r s and f a c t s 

s e t f o r t h i n t h e a f o r e g o i n g p e t i t i o n a r e t r u e and bona f i d e 

t o the b e s t of h e r knowledge and b e l i e f * 

AS VIfKISS my hand and n o t a r i a l s e a l . 

N tfbtary T u b l i 
o~*frft o 



IS THE 
CIRCUIT COUHT #2 
OF BALTIMORE CITY 

ALL S A I K T ' S ^ / A ^ E L / C ^ L / 
LUTHERA1T CHURCH OP 
BALTIMORE CITY, a 'body 
corporate 

VS. 

LOUIS FRIEDMAN 

ET AL 

ANSWER 

K r . C l e r k : -

P l e a s e f i l e , e t c . 

£0 

S e r v i c e of copy a d m i t t e d 

J A S . J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y - A ^ - L A W 

S-41 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 
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^ 

: 

ALL S A I E T ' S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y : 
c o r p o r a t e . 

V S . : 

LOUIS PRIEDKAN , ET AL 
: 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OP THE SAID COURT:-

Your r e s p o n d e n t , L o u i s F r i e d m a n , by J a m e s 

J o s e p h Carrnody, h i s a t t o r n e y , f o r a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d 

by t h e p l a i n t i f f i n t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y s : -

P i r s t . 

That your respondent has no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demands 

absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your respondent denies the allegations alleged 

in the second paragraph of the petition, and says further that an 

agreement was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical 

Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the 

various owners of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of 

the petition, and that the President and Secretary who signed the 

said agreement for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full 

knowledge of their responsibility and the responsibility of your 

petitioner and that the said agreement was signed by them in good 

faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondent denies the allegations set out in said petition and demands 

absolute proof of same, and says further that the Rev. Henry B. Young, 

Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 

the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings were held in 
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t h e Church a t which t h e c o n g r e g a t i o n a t t e n d e d and a l s o t h e P a s t o r 

and S e c r e t a r y ; t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n in s i g n i n g t h e ag reemen t was done 

a f t e r a f r e e d i s c u s s i o n of t h e c i r c u m s t a n c e s s u r r o u n d i n g t h e c a s e ; 

t h a t t he s a i d a g r e e m e n t was b i n d i n g upon t h e C o n c o r d i a E v a n g e l i c a l 

L u t h e r a n C o n g r e g a t i o n of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , and i t s 

s u c c e s s o r , t h e A l l S a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n Church of B a l t i m o r e 

C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e . 

F o u r t h . 

Answer ing t h e f o u r t h p a r a g r a p h of t he s a i d p e t i t i o n , 

your r e s p o n d e n t n e i t h e r a f f i r m s n o r d e n i e s t h e s t a t e m e n t s made t h e r e i n , 

b u t demands a b s o l u t e p r o o f of s ame . 

F i f t h . 

Answering the fifth paragraph of said petition, your 

respondent says that he neither admits nor denies the allegations 

stated therein, but demands positive proof of same. 

Having fuliy answered the said petition, your 

respondent prays to be hence dismissed with costso 

AND AS in duty bound, etc. 



STATS OF LlARYLAlID: BALTIMC RE CITY: TO ".flT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i s 5 J \ A X X I A X / ( 

d a y of A^ flAYvjoysArv » I 9 g 0 i "be fo re me , t h e s u h s c r i b e r , 

a N o t a r y P u b l i c o f t h e S t a t e o f M a r y l a n d , i n a n d f o r t h e 

C i t y of B a l t i m o r e , a f o r e s a i d , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d L o u i s 

F r i e d m a n , and made o a t h i n due fo rm of l aw t h a t t h e a a t t e r s 

and f a c t s s e t f o r t h i n t h e a f o r e g o i n g p e t i t i o n a r e l l M 

a n d b o n a f i d e t o t h e b e s t o f h i s k n o w l e d g e and b e l i e f . 

AS T/ITNESS my h a n d and n o t a r i a l s e a l . 

No*tary P u b T i c ^ j "• 



Iff THE 
CIRCUIT COURT #2 

OP BALTIMORE CITY 

ALL SAINT'S EVA»Gmlf?AL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF BALTIMORE 
CITY, a b o d y c o r p o r a t e . 

VS. 
GEORGE A. HEIDERMAN a n d 

KATHERIKE HEIDERMAN, h i s 
w i f e , ET AL 

-AKS\7ER-

M r . C l e r k : -

P l e a s e f i l e , e t c . 

JI 

»y for Responden t s 

r v i c e P f / copy a 
i s ^ 4 ^ 3 d a y of 

Ser 
t h 
1S29 . 

J A S / J t C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y - A T - L A W 
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B A L T I M O R E , M D . 
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I 

: 

ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN : 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body IN THE 
c o r p o r a t e . : 

CIRCUIT COURT #2 
VS. 

: op 
GEORGE A. HEIDERMAN and EATHEEINE : 
HEIDERMAN, his wife, ST AL SALT DIORE CITY 

: 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

Your respondents, George A. Heiderman and Katherine 

Heiderraan, his wife, by James Joseph Carmody, their attorney, for 

answer to the petition filed by the plaintiff in the above case, 

say :-

Pirst. 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed th» agreement for 

and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of their 

responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and that the 

said agreement was signed by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the 3aid petition, 

your respondents deny the allegations set out in said petition and 

demand absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry Bo 

Young, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 

Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, 

Secretary thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the 



signing of the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public 

meeting s were held in the Church at which the congregation attended 

and also the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing said 

agreement was done after a free discussion of the circumstances 

surrounding the case; that the said agreement was "binding upon the 

Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a 

body corporate, and its successor, the ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL 

LUTHERAN CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondents neither admit nor deny the statements made therein 

but demand absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answer ing t h e f i f t h p a r a g r a p h of s a i d p e t i t i o n , your 

r e s p o n d e n t s say t h a t t hey n e i t h e r a f f i r m nor deny t h e a l l e g a t i o n s 

s t a t e d t h e r e i n , bu t demand p o s i t i v e p r o o f t h e r e o f . 

HAVING f u l l y answered t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , y o u r 

r e s p o n d e n t s p ray t o be hence d i s m i s s e d w i t h c o s t s . 

AND AS in du ty bound , e t c * 

Ajt'^orgvey for Respondent s 



STATE OP MARYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO WIT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on thi 3 ^ C ^ € ^ C J A \ 

day of A'JJ)V>*VAX <XXK * 1-29, "before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, aforesaid, personally appeared George 

A. Heiderman, one of the respondents, and raade oath in 

due form, of law that the natters and facts set forth in 

the aforeeoirg i-etition are true and bona fide to the best 

of his knowledge and belief. 

AS WITNESS my hand and Notarial seal. 

Notary Publ 



n: THE 
CIRCUIT COURT #2 

OP BALTIMORE CITY. r"l^ 

L SAINT'S BVANGJlAcAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH 0? BALTI­
MORE CITY, a body c o r p o r a t e 

AL 

VS. 

LOUIS HAUSMAN and FANNIE 
HAUSMAN, his wife, ET AL 

-ANS7EB-

llr . C l e r k ; -

P l e a s e f i l e , e t c . 

$?-

n « s 

1L-29 • ' 

S e r v i c e ; o t A ' o p y a d n i j j t a d 
t h i s yyb'iil d-ay of 7yv' 

J A S . J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y-AT- L A W 

541 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 
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: 

ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN : 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body I I THE 
c o r p o r a t e . 

: CIRCUIT COURT #2 
73. 

: OP 
LOUIS HAUSMAN and FANNIE HAUSMAN, 
his wife, BT AL BALTIMORE CITY 

: 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT :-

Your respondents, Louis Hausman and Pannie 

Hausman, his wife, by James J. Oarmody, their attorney, 

for answer to the petition filed "by the plaintiff in the 

above case, says-

First. 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand, 

absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President arid Secretary who signed the said agreement 

for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of 

their responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and 

that the said agreement was signed by them in good faith. 

Third• 

Answering the third paragraph of said petition, your 

respondents deny the allegations set out in said petition and demand 

absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry B. ^oung, 

Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 



' I — — — — 

t he a g r e e m e n t men t ioned h e r e t o f o r e ; t h a t p u b l i c m e e t i n g s were 

h e l d i n t h e Church a t which t h e c o n g r e g a t i o n a t t e n d e d and a l s o 

t he P a s t o r and S e c r e t a r y ; t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n i n s i g n i n g s a i d 

a g r e e m e n t was done a f t e r a f r e e d i s c u s s i o n of t h e c i r c u m s t a n c e s 

s u r r o u n d i n g the c a s e ; t h a t t h e s a i d agreement was b i n d i n g upon 

t h e C o n c o r d i a E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n C o n g r e g a t i o n of B a l t i m o r e 

C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e , and i t s s u c c e s s o r , t h e A l l S a i n t ' s 

E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n Church of B a l t i m o r e , C i t y , a "body c o r p o r a t e . 

F o u r t h . 

Answer ing t h e f o u r t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e s a i d 

p e t i t i o n , y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s n e i t h e r deny n o r a f f i r m the s t a t emen t s 

made t h e r e i n , h u t demand a b s o l u t e p r o o f of s ame . 

Pi f t h . 

Answering the fifth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondents say that they neither admit nor deny the allegations 

stated therein, hut demand positive proof of same. 

Having fully answered the said petition, your 

respondents pray to he hence dismissed with costs. 

AND AS in duty bound, etc • 



/ 

STATE C? MARYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO 'J IT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i s XN^\XSJMJ 

day of >A ^JJSS^ <js>pa. , 1S29, b e f o r e ae , the s u b s c r i b e r , 

a H o t a r y P u b l i c of t n e S t a t e of M a r y l a n d , i n and for t h e 

C i ty of B a l t i m o r e , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d L o u i s Hausraan, one 

of t h e r e s p o n d e n t s , and made o a t h i n due form of law t h a t 

t he m a t t e r s and f a c t s s e t f o r t h i n t h e a f o r e g o i n g p e t i t i o n 

a r e t r u e and "bona f i d e to t h e bes t of h i s knowledge and 

b e l i e f , 

AS WITNESS my hand and n o t a r i a l s e a l . 

Mtt<A* ^ y v s ^ ^ 

o t a r y P u b l i c 
V 



II? THE 
CIRCUIT COURT # 2 

OF BALTIMORE CITY 

•S EVANGEL'lCA] ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF 
BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y 
c o r p o r a t e 

VS . 
TA, LBOHHAUSER a n d RACHX3 
L3CNHAUSBR, h i s w i f e , 
ET AL 

ANSWER 

M r . C l e r k : -

f)/f P l e a s e f i l e , e t c . 

7Q> fi^3X i\ 

S e r v i c e / ^ y # c o r y a d m i t t e d 
t h e £&~* day o f ^ . ^ u u w ) ^ , -
1929. sfS J\ /h 0 

^Z^uv^ p\. \^fjf.\ 

4 

J A S . J . C A R M O D Y 
A T T O R N E Y - A T - L A W 

541 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 

^^/TJA^/W? 



: 

ALL S A HIT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHEHAK : 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a 
body corporate : IN THE 

: CIRCUIT COURT #2 
VS. 

J OP 

WILLIAM H. LEONHAUSER and : BALTIMORE CITY 
RACHEL LEONHAUSER, his wife, 
ET AL ; 

TO THE HONOR ABLE THE JUDGE Cp SAID COURT: 

Your respondents, William H. Leonhauser and 

Rachel Leonhauser, by James Joseph Carmody, their attorney, 

for answer to the petition filed "by the Plaintiff in the 

above case, say: -

Pirst. 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, hut 

demand absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an 

agreement was entered into on behalf of the All Saint
fs 

Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, 

with the various owners of the property mentioned in the second 

paragraph of the petition, and that the President and Secretary 

who signed the said agreement for and on behalf of your petitioner 

did 30 with full knowledge of their responsibility and the 

responsibility of your petitioner and that the said agreement was 

signed by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of said petition, your 

respondents deny the allegations set out in said petition and demand 

absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry B. Young, 

Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing 



of the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings 

were held in the Church at which the congregation attended and 

also the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing 

said agreement was done after a free discussion of the 

circumstances surrounding the case; that the said agreement 

was hinding upon the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a "body corporate, and its successor, the ALL 

SQint»s Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body 

corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondent neither affirms nor denies the statements made 

therein, hut demands absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of said petition, your 

respondents say that they neither admit nor deny the allegations 

stated therein, hut demand positive proof thereof. 

Having fully answered the said petition, your Hespondents 

pray to he hence dismissed with costs. 

AUD AS in duty hound, etc. 



STATS OP MARYLAND::: BALTIMORE C I T Y : : TO tflT: 

,f ^sW. 
I HEREBY CERTIFY t h a t on t h i s / ^ ^ ^ T d a y 

, li*29, b e f o r e me, t h e s u b s c r i b e r , 
/SO 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and lor the 

City of Baltimore, aforesaid, personally appeared William 

H. ^eonhaiser, one of the Respondents, and aade oath in 

due form of law that the matters and facts 3et forth in 

the aforegoing answer are true and bona fide to the best 

of his knowledge and belief. 

AS WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 



Ill THE 
CIRCUIT COURT ft 

OF BALTIMORE CITY 

I Ai ALL 3 AI N T 'S SVANGth 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OP 
BALTIMORE CITY, a "body 
c o r p i r a t e . 

TS. 

GEORGE F. MUELLER and 
ETHEL P. MUELLER, his wife 

ET AL 

ANSWER 

Mr. Clerk:-

Please file, etc. 

f£>S3SLC\ 

Service 
this 
1S29 . 

copy admitted 
day of^^VU^V' 

J A 3 . M C A R M O 
A T T O R N EY-AT-LAW 

341 E Q U I T A B L E B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E , M D . 
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: 
ALL SAINT 'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OF BALTIMORE CITY, a body 
c o r p o r a t e : 

V S . 
: 

GEORGE P . LIUELLER a n d ETHEL P . IIUELLER, 
h i s wi f e , ET AL 

: 

TO THE HONORABLE, the JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

Your respondents, George H« Mueller and 

Ethel P. Mueller, his wife, "by James Joseph Carmody, their 

attorney, for answer to the petition filed by the plaintiff in 

the above case, say:-

Pirst • 
< 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragaph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same* 
Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in the second paragraph of the petition, and say further that an 

agreement was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical 

Lutheran Cliurch of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various 

owners of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the 

petition, and that the President and Secretary who signed the suid 

agreement for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full 

knowledge of their responsibility and the responsibility of your 

petitioner and tnat the said agreement was signed by them in good 

faith. 

fh i r d. 

Answering the third paragraph of said petition, 

your respondents deny the allegations set out in said petition 

and demand absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. 

Henry B. *oung, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical 

Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and ^ilton 

0. Storm, Secretary thereof, had full knowledge of the facts 
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surrounding the signing of the agreement mentioned heretofore; 

that public meetings were held in the Church at which the 

congregation attended and also the Pastor and Secretary; that 

their action in signing the said agreement wus done after a free 

discussion of the fact3 surrounding the case; that the said 

agreement was binding upon the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 

Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and its 

successor, the All Saint 's Evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a body corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the said 

petition, your respondents neither affirm nor deny the allegations 

stated therein, but demand absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of the petition, your 

respondents neither admit nor deny the statements made therein, 

but demand positive proof of same. 

Having fully answered the 3aid petition, your 

respondents pray to be hence dismissed with costs. 

AND AS in duty bound, etc» 



STATB 0 ? MARYLAND: BALflHOBl CITY: TO viITi 

I HERI2BY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i 3 

of ^\ A^ox 

day 

, 1929, "before me, the subscriber, a 

Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, personally appeared George ft. Mueller, 

one of the respondents herein, amd made oath in due form 

of law that the matters and facts set forth in the aforegoing 

answer are true and bona fide to the best of his knowledge 

and belief* 

AS WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 

* c J Notary 1 No^aTry P u b l i c 
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: 

ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN : 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y XI THE 
c o r p o r a t e , 

: CIRCUIT COUHT #2 
V S . 

: OP 
HUGO WEBER a n d PHILIPINE 7/EBER, 
h i s w i f e * 3T AL : BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUPOB 07 THE SAID COURT;-

Your r e s p o n d e n t s , Hugo i e b e r and P h i l i p i n e 

W e b e r , h i s w i f e , "by J a m e s J o s e p h C a r m o d y , t h e i r a t t o r n e y , f o r 

a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d by t h e p l a i n t i f f i n t h e a b o v e 

c a s e , s a y : -

Pi r s t . 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same• 

Second. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the said agrement 

for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of 

their responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and 

that the said agrement was signed by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondents deny the allegations et out in the petition and demand 

absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry B. Young, 

pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and «ilton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 



V \ 

the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings were 

held in the church at which the congregation attended and also 

the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing 3aid 

agreement was done after a free discussion of the circumstances 

surrounding the case; that the said agreement was binding upon 

the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore 

City, a bfcdy corporate, and its successor, the All Saint's 

Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth praagraph of the petition, 

your respondents neither affirm nor deny the statements made 

therein, but demand absolute proof of same. 

Pi f th. 

Answer ing t h e f i f t h p r r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , 

y o u r r e s p o n d e n t s say t h a t t h e y n e i t h e r admi t nor deny t h e 

a l l e g a t i o n s 3 t a t e d t h e r e i n , b u t demand p o s i t i v e p r o o f of same. 

Having f u l l y answered t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , your 

r e s p o n d e n t s p r a y t h a t they may hence be d i s m i s s e d w i t h c o s t s . 

AND AS i n du ty bound , e t c . 

^ ^ % r 



STATS OP MARYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO JIT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this /5^ioVvv^ 

day of A'jiV̂ '̂̂ Ô ) - » 1929, "before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, aforesaid, personally appeared Hugo 

Weber, one of the respondents herein, and made oath in 

due form of law that the matters and facts set forth in 

the aforegoing answer are true and bona fide to the best 

of his knowledge and belief. 

AS JITNE3 3 my hand and notarial seal. 
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: 

ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL 'LUTHERAN 

CHURCH OP BALTIMORE C I T Y , a body : in THE 
corporate. 

CIRCUIT COURT #2 
VS. : 

OP 
VINCENT G-3NC0 

ET AL : BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGB OP SAID COURT: -

Your respondent, Vincent Genco, by James Joseph 

Carmody, his attorney, for answer to the petition filed by the 

plaintiff, says:-

Pirst. 

That your respondent has no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demands 

absolute proof of same. 

Second* 

That your respondent denies the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and says further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the s;,.id agreement 

did so with full knowledge of their responsibility and the responsibility 

of your petitioner and that said agreement was signed by them in good 

faith. 

Third . 

Answering the third paragraph of the said petition, 

your respondent denies the allegations set out in said petition and 

demands absolute proof of same, and says further that the Rev• Henry 

B. Young, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 

Congregation of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, 

Secretary thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the 



signing of the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public 

meetings were held in the church at which the congregation 

attended and also the Pastor and Secretary; that their action 

in signing said agreement was done after a free discussion of 

the circumstances surrounding the case; that the said agreement 

was "binding upon the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and its successor, the All 

Saint *s Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a "body 

corporate• 

fourth, 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the petition, 

your respondent neither affirms nor denies the statements made 

therein, "but demands absolute proof of same • 

Fifth. 

Answering the f i f th paragraph of the p e t i t i o n , 

your respondent saj£ that he ne i ther admits nor denies the 

a l l ega t ions 3tated the re in , but demands posi t ive proof of same» 

Having fully answered the said agreement, your 

respondent prays to be hence dismissed with cos ts* 

AND AS in duty bound, e t c . 

^^y $+*6* 



STATS OF LIAR YL AID: BALTIMORE CITY: TO I I T : 

day of ^At\s\ 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i s ^ - 6 

^ 
, 1^2y, before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the City 

of Baltimore, personally appeared Vincent Genco, the respondent 

herein, and made oath in due form of law that the matters and 

facts 8et forth in the aforegoing answer are true to the best 

of his knowledge and belief* 

AS WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 
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ALL SAIIIT «S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHUHCH CP BALTIMORE CITY, a "body : III THE 
c o r p o r a t e • 

: CIRCUIT COURT #2 
V S . 

: OP 
AITN^JEPFERS , ET AL 

: BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HONORABLE, t h e JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

Your r e s p o n d e n t , Ann C . J e f f e r s , by Ja raes J o s e p h 

C a r r a o d y , h e r a t t o r n e y , f o r a n s w e r t o t h e p e t i t i o n f i l e d "by 

t h e P l a i n t i f f i n t h e a b o v e c a s e , s a y s : -

P i r s t • 

That your respondent has no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, hut demands 

absolute proof of the same. 

Second. 

That your respondent denies the allegations stated 

in paragraph two of the petition, and says further that an agreement 

was entered into on "behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the said agreement 

for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of 

their responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and 

that the said agreement was signed by them in good faith. 

Thirds 

Answering the third paragraph of the s^id x.etition, 

your respondent denies the allegations set out in 3aid petition and 

demands absolute proof of aame, and says further that the Rev. 

Henry B. Young, Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Luther 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, 

Secretary thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the 



signing of the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings 

were held in the Church at which the Congregation attended and 

also the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing said 

agreement was done after a free discussion of the circumstances 

surrounding the case; that the said agreement was binding upon the 

Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a 

body corporate, and its successor, the All Saint's Evangelical 

Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondent neither affirms nor denies the statements made 

therein, but demands absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondent neither admits ncr denies the allegations stated 

therein, but demands positive proof thereof. 

Having fully answered, the said petition, your 

respondent prays to oe hence dismissed with costs* 

AND as in duty bound, etc. 

(L^lrTU. V^Ajjflud^ 



mitT-*T-sri-T.m, r a n 

STATE OF I U H T I I A I D J BALTIMORE CITY: TO WIT: 

of 

^ I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this^Jj^Q-U^ day 

VgXjVtv. QLST*, » lb29, before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, aforesaid, personally appeared AUjr C. 

JEFF3RS and nuide oath in due forn of law that the matters 

and facts set forth in the aforegoing petition are true 

and bona fide to the best of her knowledge and belief* 

AS '.71 TIT ESS my hand and notarial seal. 
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: 

ALL SAWT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body : 
c o r p o r a t e . IK THE 

V S . : CIRCUIT COURT # 2 

CARL KRET3LBR a n d MARY E . KRET3LER, OP 
h i s w i f e « e t a l . : 

BALTIMORE CITY 
i 

TO THE HONORABLE THE JUDGE OP SAID COURT:-

Your respondents, Carl Kretzier and Mary Eo 

Kretzier, his wife, "by James Joseph Carmody, their attorney, 

for answer* to the petition filed by the plaintiff in the above 

Cv.se, say:-

Pirst • 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same. 

Second. 

That your repsondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint*s Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the said agreement 

did so with full knowledge of their responsibility and the 

responsibility of your petitioner and that said agreement was signed 

by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, 

your respondents deny the allegations set out in the said petition, 

and say further that the Rev. Henry B. Young, Pastor and President 

of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, 

a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary thereof, had full 

knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of the agreement 

Cv.se


m e n t i o n e d h e r e t o f o r e ; t h a t p u b l i c m e e t i n g s were h e l d i n t h e 

c h u r c h a t which t h e c o n g r e g a t i o n a t t e n d e d and a l s o t h e P a s t o r 

and S e c r e t a r y ; t h a t t h e i r a c t i o n in s i g n i n g s a i d ag reement was 

done a f t e r a f r e e d i s c u s s i o n of t h e c i rcums tances> s u r r o u n d i n g 

t h e c a s e ; t h a t t h e s a i d a g r e e m e n t wa3 b i n d i n g upon Concord ia 

E v a n g e l i c a l L u t h e r a n C o n g r e g a t i o n of B a l t i m o r e P i t y , a "body 

c o r p o r a t e , and i t s s u c c e s s o r , t h e A l l S a i n t ' s E v a n g e l i c a l 

L u t h e r a n Church of B a l t i m o r e C i t y , a body c o r p o r a t e . 

F o u r t h . 

Answer ing t h e f o u r t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e p e t i t i o n , 

your r e s p o n d e n t s n i e t h e r a f f i r m nor deny t h e s t a t e m e n t s made 

t h e r e i n , b u t demand a b s o l u t e p roo f of same* 

F i f t h . 

Answer ing t h e f i f t h p a r a g r a p h of t h e s a i d 

p e t i t i o n , your r e s p o n d e n t s say t h a t t h e y n e i t h e r a d m i t nor deny 

the a l l e g a t i o n s 3 t a t e d t h e r e i n , but demand p o s i t i v e p r o o f of same« 

H a t i n g f u l l y answered t h e s a i d p e t i t i o n , your 

r e s p o n d e n t s p r a y t o be hence d i s m i s s e d w i t h c o s t s . 

AHD AS in du ty b o u n d , e t c . 

J^tti* /fej^ 



STATS OP MARYLAND: BALTIMORE CITY: TO WIT: 

.XvT 
I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this ^L ̂  

day of ^YSA^A/J^ (X A/V » l̂ jjf, before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, personally appeared Carl Kretzler, one 

of the respondents, and made oath in due form of law that 

the matters and facts set forth in the aforegoing answer 

are true and bona fide to the best of his knowledge and 

belief,» 

AS '.WITNESS my hand and notarial seal. 

^^"otary Public *0 
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2 JL/J 4T%^ 
ALL SAINT'S WIMblffi&liS 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF 
BALTIMORE CITY, a "body 
c o r p o r a t e . 

V S . 

ANTHONY P. SCHOLTHOLT and 
CATHERINE SCHOLTHOLT, his 
wife, ET AL 

ANSWER 

Mr. Clerk:'-
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: 
ALL 3JUST'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OF BALTIMORE CITY, a body 
corporate. ; in THE 

VS. CIRCUIT COURT #2 

ANTHCKY P. 3H0LTH0LT and OP 
CATHEREIITE SHOLTHOLT, his wife, 
ET AL : BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HOEOBABLE THE JUDGE OP SAID CCURT:-

Your respondents, Anthony ?. Sholtholt and 

Catherine Sholtholt, his wife, by James Joseph Carrnody, their 

attorney, for answer to the petition filed by the plaintiff in 

the above case, say:-

Pi r s t . 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, but demand 

absolute proof of same. 

Sec ond. 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the Ail Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various woners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the said agreement 

for and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of 

their responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and 

that the said agreement was signed by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondents deny the allegations set out in the petition and demand 

absolute proof of same, and say further that the Rev. Henry B. Young, 

Pastor and -^resident of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, a body corpo*ate,and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 



1 

the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings were 

held in the church at which the congregation attended and also 

the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing said 

agreement was done after a free discussion of the circumstances 

surrounding the case; that the said agreement was binding upon 

the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore 

City, a body corporate, and its successor, the All Saint's 

Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate« 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the petition, 

ycur respondents neither affirm nor den;' the statements made 

therein, but demand absolute proof of same. 

Fifth . 

Answering the fifth paragraph of the petition, 

your respondents neither admit nor deny the allegations stated 

therein, but demand positive proof of same* 

Having fully answered the said petition, your 

respondents pray to be hence dismissed with costs. 

AND AS in duty bound, etc. 



mmmmmmtmtm^mmm 

STATE OF UAHTLlHDl BALTIIIORE CITY: TO flfl 

I HERESY CERTIFY, that on this ^U±^iy\ 

day of A'.ŝ yyjQ, Q)Â  , 1^2S, before me, the subscriber, a 

Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, personally appeared Anthony P. Sholtholt, 

one of the respondents herein, and made oath in due form of 

law that the matters and facts set forth in the aforegoing 

petitiona are true and bona fide to the best of his knowledge 

and belief* 

AS WITNESS LIY hand and notarial seal. 

cuaty* j S ^ t ^ 

QvyvsAv 

o"tary P u b l i c " 1 
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ALL SAINT 'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a b o d y 
c o r p o r a t e . 

V S . 

THOMAS IARKIISS 
ET AL 

II THE 

CIRCUIT COURT #2 

OP 

BALTIMORE CITT 

TO THE HOKORABLE THE JUDGE OP S ID COURT:-

Your respondent, Thomas Harkneas, "by James 

Joseph Carmody, his attorney, for answer to the petition filed 

"by the plaintiff in the above case, says:-

Pirst. 

That your respondent has no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, hut demands 

absolute proof of same. 

Sec ond. 

That your respondent denies the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and says further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint's Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the agreement for 

and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knwoledge of their 

responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and that 

said agreement was signed by them In good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondent denies the allegations set out in said petition and demands 

absolute proof of same, and says further that the Rev. Henry B. ^oung, 

Paster and ^resident of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Church of 

Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton ©• Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 

the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings were held 

in the Church at which the congregation attended and also the ^astor 

and Secretary; that their action in signing said agreement was done 



after a free discussion of the circumstances surrounding the 

ease; that the said agreement was binding upon the Concordia 

Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore City, a body 

corporate, and its successor, the All Saint*s Evangelical 

Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate* 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of said petition, 

your respondent neither affirms nor denies the statements made 

therein, but demands absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth Paragraph of the petition, 

your respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations stated 

therein, but demands positive proof of same. 

Having fully answered the said petition, your 

respondent prays to be hence dismissed with costs. 

AND AS in duty bound, etcc 

'js*t&±^ l*fWj^s^LP4A^ 
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STATS CF LIARYLAHD: BALTIMORE CITY: TO T7IT: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this ^ M ^ I I A A 

day of _ >-A j^yu^ "OOyvg » 1S29, before me, the subscriber, 

a Notary Public of the State of Maryland, in and for the 

City of Baltimore, aforesaid, personally appeared Thomas 

Hurkness, and riade oath in due form of law that the 

matters and facts set forth in the aforegoing petition 

are true and bona fide to the best of his knowledge and 

belief. 

AS 119139 the hand and seal hereto. 

"V Nota ry ^ u b l i c 
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ALL SAINT'S EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body 
corporate o 

VS. 
IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT #£ 
JOHN P. DUGGAN 
JAKES f*. DUGGAN : OP 

ET AL 
BALTIMORE CITY 

TO THE HONORABLE TH E JUDGE OP SAID COUET:-

Your respondents, John P. Duggan and Jame3 P. 

Duggan, by James Joseph Carmody, their attorney, for answer to 

the petition filed by the plaintiff in the above case, say:-

Pirst • 

That your respondents have no knowledge of the 

matters stated in the first paragraph of the petition, hut demand 

absolute proof of same« 

Second* 

That your respondents deny the allegations alleged 

in paragraph two of the petition, and say further that an agreement 

was entered into on behalf of the All Saint*s Evangelical Lutheran 

Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, with the various owners 

of the property mentioned in the second paragraph of the petition, 

and that the President and Secretary who signed the agreement for 

and on behalf of your petitioner did so with full knowledge of their 

responsibility and the responsibility of your petitioner and that 

the said agrement was signed by them in good faith. 

Third. 

Answering the third paragraph of the petition, your 

respondents deny the allegations set out in the petition and demand 

absolute proof of same, and say furth;er that the Rev. Henry B. ^oung, 

Pastor and President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation, 

of Baltimore City, a body corporate, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary 

thereof, had full knowledge of the facts surrounding the signing of 



the agreement mentioned heretofore; that public meetings were 

held in the church at which the congregation attended and also 

the Pastor and Secretary; that their action in signing said 

agreement was done after a free discussion of the circumstances 

surrounding the case; that the said agreement was "binding upon 

the Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of Baltimore 

City, a hody corporate, and its successor, the All Saint's 

Evangelical Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate. 

Fourth. 

Answering the fourth paragraph of the petition, 

your respondents neither affirm nor den;' the statements amde 

therein, but demand absolute proof of same. 

Fifth. 

Answering the fifth paragraph of the petition, 

your respondents say that they neither admit nor deny the 

allegations stated therein, hut demand positive proof of same. 

Having fully answered the s: id petition, your 

respondents pray to he hence dismissed with costs, 

AND AS in duty bound, etc« 



STATS OP IlAKYLAED: BALTIMORE C I T Y : TO WIT: 

o f 'Sft** 
I HEREBY CERTIFY, t h a t on t h i s / ^ U i j ^ 2 day 

*£>- , i y2 i j , "before me, t h e s u b s c r i b e r , 

a N o t a r y P u b l i c of t h e S t a t e of M a r y l a n d , in and fo r t h b 

C i t y of B a l t i m o r e , a f o r e s a i d , p e r s o n a l l y a p p e a r e d John P . 

Duggan and James ft. Duggan and made o a t h in due form of 

law t h a t t h e n a t t e r s and f a c t s s e t f o r t h i n t h e a f o r e g o i n g 

answer a r e t r u e and "bona f i d e t o t h e h e s t of t h e i r knowledge 

and " b e l i e f . 

AS WITNESS my hand ana n o t a r i a l s e a l . 

^ v loUry futile 

O-K/V^A, 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT 
MO. 2 OF 

BALTIMORE CITY 

ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OF BALTI. 
MORE CITY 

Complainant 

78 

GEORGE D. AHRLING, et al 

Defendant 

3^ 
JL 

Mr. Clerk 

Solicitor for 
Defendants 

Due service of copy ad­

mitted this day o 

L 
Solictor for Com­
plainant. 

?w ortn G4110—500, ^ - 2 8 28589 



ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH 

OF BALTIMORE CITY, a body corporate. 
Complainant 

vs 

GEORGE D. AHRLING, et al. 
Defendant 

IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT N. 2 

OF 

BALTIMORE CITY 
S \ 

ANSWER 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE JUDGE OF THE SAID COURT*-

The Joint and several answers of George D, Ahrling and Emma F. 

Ahrling, owners of the dwelling house, property known as 1103 

West Franklin Street, to the Bill of Complaint herein exhibited 

against them and others, respectfully show unto this Court:-

1. That they have no personal knowledge of the allega­
tions of matter and fact set forth in the first, second, third 
and fourth paragraphs of the said Bill of Complaint and do, 
therefore, deny the same, except that they admit that they are 
the owners of the dwelling property known as 1103 West Franklin 
Street, 

2. That they admit the facts alleged in paragraph five 
of the said Bill of Complaint, 

3. That they aver that it would be inequitable to cancel 
said agreement as to the complainant without cancelling same as 
to them and as to all the parties defendant, which they believe 
should be done. 

Wherefore, having fully answered said Bill of Complaint, they 

pray that the said agreement be cancelled in its entirety at 

the cost and charge of the complainant. 

And as in duty bound, etc, 

Mj_. 
Solicitor for Defendants, Geqxge 
D. Ahrling and Emma Ahrlii 
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HOWARD M.EMMONS 
A T T O R N E Y AT L A W 

M U T U A L L IFE B U I L D I N G 



-

All 3aint*a 2v ng l i oa l Lutherac ) 
Jhuroh of y 1 t i aore 2 i t y , 

I": Q 3 T; J C T P Q T ' t S • ) 
J 0 a 31 -.. i D U3 t . 

&eorge -. b "1 Lng, e t al uad 
Re i/3 Sst be r rus t Jo Q any, 

a body a o r p o r a t ? . 
. J d i »n Li nt>3 • 

IS ZH3 

-, a ..;., . ; JIJJY. 

A. if O I J R 

fc the Honorable, the Judge of the aaid 3 o u r t : -

Your raapafi.dent, Ihe *e&] Batata 2 rus t Jc... • .ay, a body c o r p o r a t e , 

by Howard M. Smmona, i t a Attorney for answer ^ the b i l l of J ' J ; -

p l a i n t f i l e d In the above cause aaya : -

l a t . £hat answering the sjiid b i l l oi Jomplu.int, the whole 

the reof and each and aver j paragraph thereof , you3 oondent .»Viiio 

that it doea hold t uiort ige on property do• 1123 Feat Franiliu Street 

fro..' Catherine 3« Plitt, Joaephine F.Frisiy *nd Jehn 3. 3assell and 

that Lt has no personal Knowledge of the other ^legations of matters 

and faota set forth in laid bill of oomplaint material to the deter­

mination of oi.e matter presented LO thia 3ourt and loss therefore, in 

aooordanoe with the revised Sonera! Squity Sales, deny the same wcoept 

as hereinbefore and hareinafter apeoifiaally admitted. 

End. . That your respondent ia uaply jeoured by Lts aortgage 

o.. the above mentioned property ind aa several aousea in aaid 1100 block 

jst Pranjtlin Street are noi occupied by aolored families the deter­

mination of thia lotion ia not aateria] to your respondent tho ao-

jordiii-"1 y submits its rights in the >remiaea xor protection to this 

OhOrable Joan. 

Wherefore having fully auswered aaid bill of Jomplaint m 

everj part Luereof your respondent pray a *hct it be henoe dismissed 

with ita costs. 

j , aa in duty bound,eto. y ^ , ^—cr-""— 

a body ojrporate. 

pafi.de


In Ihe ' : 
Jiraui'u Jcart N-o. 2 
of Baltimore Jity 

,11 oaint1^ -ivb.ngeliaa.1 Lutheran 
3huroh of Baltimore Jity, 

body oorporate. 

va. 

George D. Ailrling, e t 

t i t i o n and Order 

Mr. J l e n c ; - J/ zr 

V 

Pie aaa f i1 a. 

ii t u o rna 

/ / 
'36 %la4ZsL rfff 



A]] S a i n t ' s i"? LJ:.*1 Iu.th.eran ) 
; r jh of Bal t imore -Jity, • ) 

body uo rpora t e . ) IB 2BJt 
I 

' . ) J 13G UIT J 0 U ? x IS 0 • 2 
) 

, e t a l . ) OF 3 .T2IAQ Si 3I2TX 
J 
) 

Jo the Honorable, the Judge of the said Jou r t . 

2he p e t i t i o n c^ a l l S a i n t ' a Svangeliaa] Lutheran Jhttreh of 

Balt imore 3 i t y , i boo:; c o r p o r a t e , rea latfull ly re :<r ;-.-

l a t . Ihat he r e to fo re on tha La af ,1929, 

your p e t i t i o n e r f i l e d i t s b i l l of complaint iga ina t tha var ioua de-

fandants s a t ca- in I • U ox complaint he re to fo ra f i l e d aaid ia fandanta 

being tha ownejra of the reapeo t ive houaea on the n o r t h and -oitii s idea of 

the 11QO ;:"o.jv Weat Frawclln S t r e e t , to tha end that a j e r t a i n neighbor-" 

hood agre tment the re in mentioned be dec la red a n u l l i t y aa uo the aom-

a t . 

2nd. rhat alnoe the f i l i n g of the said b i l l of jotaplalht the 

leasehold proper ty No. 1122 Weat f rank l in Street . ten told and t r a n f e r r -

r'1 to Vinoenzo Senoo md t h a t tha said Vinoenzo Genoa haa f i l ed hia answer 

to i b i ] n of aomplaint , a l though not a p,arty there to* 

or- . Dhat through 1.. i I,_ - r tenoa your p e t i t i o n e r in f i l i n g Ua 

b i l l o. aomplaint overlookei the faot tha t )ora Mylander tel ... undivided 

i n t e r e a t in propert , iea Up.1124-1126-1128 and 113*- feat ? ran^ l in S t ree t and 

that the aaid Dor.. My] inder waa not made a party C3 aaid 3auae and your 

t i t i o n e r dea i rea la^i aha be now made a j iart j Lefendant. 

4 t h . *.iiat your pa u i t i o n a ? in i i l L^,; aaid ui] of sjo^ipluint 

oausad Marie G. Duggan to ue named - party defendant t he re in but your 

p e t i t i o n e r i s s inae adviaed that she no longer haa any i n t e r e a t or e a t a t a 

in proper ty f.o. 1 U 1 ,;eou F rank l in S t r e e t , aha having somreyed tha aame, 

p r i o r to tha f i l i n g ox sa id b i l l , -., laed i a t ed Maroh 22nd, 19tt7 and r e -

aorded among the Land Reoorda of Balt imore J i ty in Liber S> -i. L« iio. 471o, 

f o l i o 73 to Jamea ?. Duggan and John F. Duggan, who are a l ready p a r t i e s to 

Iu.th.eran


ri ; o r r / > n : ' 

.'" i PTJr m i ' i r ' l V c 

• I ? T [ r - n p t r e "':0 T n - ' - ' . ; c TTTT ' f ; p p r ; , c " 7 

F'TT- j c "? fo ©qq Oq ©njq ©18 T.Tc ] q T A : ' T'T C i ?©j c y- ©qq CTJ qq.JOJ q.©8 Bq.08J 

ptre Bj?q.q.r?t T V qt>qq ttt?l jo i r i o j ©til rn tri*»c epT?tn < q "'" ' ©q' .;::'., c r £poq is 

/ ' r i r o^cH." ;_"r jo TT-r-ff " ^ ; n ; " t : . L^~T I ^':r:*,', -V" B,q.nf«g , L" TO q.ix©px 8©,ij-©0XA 

' u r r v r *1 srtnsa^ p©j«©<ldt ' ' u ^ ' - c r a c i . . ' ; i - f p j . c " '©jorax^X^a J ° -""TT sqq. ^ o j 

ptre ,Ti ' msxAl^l TC Bq.'Bq.f ©qq 3:0 rxtQJAd- &t8q.OH « ' , ; e o u r ; an? ©qq. ©to e jc~ 

' p^pL 'T- ra rn j c :• „ > , P T : H cro q.8q;r 'MISHFO kffSOTH I 
* jt° 

- 4 V '•• v 4 i*C '-. . .1 ... _L 3 BLVJ a.iliXk. kiW I 4Ac . i . -

J P ^ C T I T T - J C T / " f t V C " " 

~^^^^~>^^^^%!^DlfU -^> ' 

©q n j cc JOi 
/^poq s ' ^ I T ^ ejotnfq.i^cr i c qoa 

3 ©A.© tXT* jetrOTq.xQ.oc xnc 

ptm /'(• ©pxois oq ptre p©xxj F-JC T OI P ^ P U q.trx*?xdJnQc ~c [1X3 

axejetfq pett8tr ©q oq £pp ' . ' r i . ; f r etnoc rrc q.jTtor r>r_q~?jcTTC-T 

eq oq r"-pt-^ TC ;?r-:' TT- in©T q 9tn ptri mwoc 'StrxPXX'B?' SXXJ 

OXt ~" 9nxPXP©J *J &Ptn [/Js T'jcf q.Bixx*98 ptre ptrex^-" 'eaomxq.X1B9 ' q ? 9 a q ? 

TXTLT'TT'-Jj q.e©K 2HII " r 8trxp|B©j ortr©*) oitr©r>tiXA PX^s s1-"1 ^Bttx^St© p©^.c©jxp 

c nrit- gro J X J I B,©q.8Q.£ eqq ' Q-trx© L:. •• ::• j c [XXP PX^B
 r^i petcRtt q.tr8trx8xdTnoc 

q. ' j . etro jq 7i ©c sxqq cu i t q . oq JOtroH Jticil ©BTJexd I T (C«n 

•q:- ' pep £fiTaa~'' iepuBi,^] saca pus c r " 

9©JPop rrrrp r, 

B T U n ' 

OZtceouxA r "" T" OQ f..bi rCTiicM: ...re/' t cq o i v c L T "i-H ;. '°^C *T »XJ'8 

qu-npu? ; i -••"• c:̂  BT z<n/; [dtnoo j c L L i a PX^© 8ttX88xoiBXP q.JtiOC ©XQ.'B'icaOH B"j 

/In r>£>vf^ eq .'*• 'i" j e p a o on BiC â ^©troxQ-XQ-8^ ino / ! eaoj©; 

" L I T ^ " f . ' T r T q 

• T.Tr 

r- B©A©XXeQ 

'XJfW :'T"? euA OQ BB p©BBXcexP so y ^ c t r s 

811 I J O T - c T l i n o d J t T ^ © 8 H 8 0 f T l J o T ."i ^ p T T n 7 CSTTn "T n 

jetrOTq.xQ.oc


on tha aforegoing p e t i t i o n md t f f i , iv i t L ^ la t h i a w ^ 

iarah, 1J~V orderad )j tha S i r a u i t J0ur t No* 2 oI Bal t imore J i t y that 

the b i l l of j o a p l a i n t he re to fo re f i l e d in thia jauae ba and the same ia 

hereby dismiaaed as to Maria S« Duggan, one oi tha defend mta named t h e r e i n ; 

and i t ia f a r t h e r ordered -rial leave u^ and tne aa.ua ia hereby granted making 

Dora I n l a n d e r and Viaeanao GUI-JG a d d i t i o n a l p a r t i e s Lefendant 1.3 t h i s juase 

and tht t the S t a t e ' > ^ ;'i i 0! ouu paona he issued for thetf to anawer aa id 

b i l l of aocaplaint. 

/ 
/ 

aa.ua


• • • 

A-&C^* 

01 
vs. 

CJ 

SUBPOENA TO ANSWER BILL OF COMPLAINT 



EQUITY SUBPOENA 

The State of Maryland 

To 

^mJM^k MM<t... 
.Cmr^a...^ 

of Baltimore City, Greeting: 
WE COMMAND AND ENJOIN YOU, That all excuses set aside, you do within the time limited 

by law, beginning on the second Monday of L^J?^Sf^".. .., next, cause an 

appearance to be entered for you, and your Answer to be filed to the Complaint of 

against you exhibited in the CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 OF BALTIMORE CITY. 

HEREOF fail not, as you will answer the contrary at your peril: 

WITNESS, the Honorable JAMEag. OORTER^hief Judge of the Supreme Bench of Baltimore City 

the I ( n J , of WtZlClJL , 192 f 

Id..,, -day of /SuSlC^aGL. inihe year^/lf 

Cleric. 

Issued the. &&/...... day of. 

MEMORANDUM: 

You are required to file your Answer or other defence in the Clerk's Office, Room No. 235, in the Court 
House, Baltimore City, within fifteen days after the return day. (General Equity Rule 11.) 



Circuit Court No. 2* 

SUBPOENA TO ANSWER BILL OF COMPLAINT 

Filed. day of. 192. 

Solicitor. 



EQUITY SUBPOENA 

The State of Maryland 

To &M 

d. 

REISSUED TO ^"e"turn'T)ay~T92"/ " 

ouatK: 

of Baltimore City, Greeting: 

WE COMMAND AND ENJOIN YOU, That all excuses set aside, you do within the time limited 

by law, beginning on the second Monday of LyM^L/.x , next, cause an 

appearance to be entered for you, and your Answer to be filed to the Complaint of 

^ fe^S . 

against you exhibited in the CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 OF BALTIMORE CITY. 

HEREOF fail not, as you will answer the contrary at your peril: 

WITNESS, the Honorable JAMES, R. GORTER, Chief Judge of the Supreme Bench of Baltimore City 

the / . / T.. day of.. 

in the year 1 Issued the. 

Clerk. 

MEMORANDUM: 

You are required to file your Answer or other defence in the Clerk's Office, Room No. 235, in the Court 
House, Baltimore City, within fifteen days after the return day. (General Equity Rule 11.) 



I n XVIQ 

J i r o a i t Court No. -
ox Bal.timora J i t y 

Z££. 

All S a i n t ' s Svangalioal Iut3 
Jhuroh of Bal t imore 3 i t y , a 

body j c roc ra ba . 

V g i 

r^e i>. khr] ing , a t a l . 

Jeore.^ i?ro Jonfesso 

$30 Jtta^L /fsj 



i i n t ' a . tg e l i J. -2 T a th 3 
Churoh oi Balt imore 3 i t y , » 

body s o r p o r a t e . 

va 

George D. Ahr l ing , e t 

,1 tCUIT 300 II HO. 2 

BALilM . iiS 2ITI 

DSORiLS PRO JO] . . 

Jae defendants Cfisrroilton Land and Loan l a a o o i a t i o n , a body 

c o r p o r a t e ; J o i n t Stoos Aaaooia t ion ox the Nat ional Order s i G a l l i l e a n 

Fisherman, a ood;y JOT p o r a t e ; a l b e r t i . Conrad; Mary Jonrad; Bernard J . 

Doyle; Joaeph 1 • ii i r laoh; Ten.. Gordon; Benjamin Gordon; Joseph a . 

Gunther; Regina £. Gunther; Miohae] .;. Leary; Nana I . Leary; mien J . 

lohookel l s ; "• • U •-' rimanua wd ! lara -.- jfitnanus, hairing been duly 

tear .to the -Ji l l ox Jomplaint and havin I Lied Co appear 

t h e r e t o , according to the as. Lgsncy of OJJ *r i t of •• ub poem ; 

I t id thereupon -chia ^)d a^— Lay of March, i. the ye 

of n ine teen hundred and twenty-»nine by one 3 i r o u i t 3ourt No. 2 of 

l t imore 3 i t y , Ordered - >eore I that the oomp] l inant La 

e n t i t l e s to r e l i e f in the premises, and tha t the B i l l of Complaint bo 

and i taxes pro jonfesao a i i na t Said i e fendan ta , Car ro l l ton 

land axi Loan Lsaooiat ion, a body ao rpo ra t e ; J o i n t 3tooj£ t&aoaiatlon 

oi the National Order of i a l l i l e a n f isherman, a body o o r p o r a t e ; Libert 

R, Conrad; Mary 2onr d; Bernard J . Doyle; Joaeph -.'. Ga '1 to i; Lena 

Gordon; Benjamin Gordon; Joa tph i. Panther ; tegina £• Gunther; Michael 

;;. le try; Nana L. Leary; Bllen J . ioheojcell*; f« Martin 2im«nua and 

31ar .• rimanua; But because i t Loth not a o r t a l iear to ihut 

r e l i e f the p l a i n t i f f i s . e n t i t l e d , i t La f u r t h e r jud ind Ordered, 

;imony be taace . mder the dQth r a l to support the a l l e g a t i o n s 

oi the B i l l . 

y 



IN THE 
CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 of 
BALTIMORE ClTY / U f 

ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL 
LUTHERAN CHURCH OP BALTIMO 
CITY, a body corporate, 

Complainant 

IE 

VS 

GEORGE u. AHRLING e t a l 
DORA MYLANDER, 

D e f e n d a n t s 

and 

efendant 
named 

Due service of copy of withii. 
Answer admitted this 1st day 
of April, 1999. 

Dollcltoi' ror Complainant^ 
M Y L A N D E R & P A T Z 

A T T O R N E Y AT LAW 

4 1 0 - 4 1 6 M O R R I S B U I L D I N G 

B A L T I M O R E . 

T H E DAILY R E Q O R D CO. . B A L T I M O R E , M D , 



ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH 
OP BALTIMORE CITY, a body corporate, 

Complainant 

VS 

GEORGE D. AHRLING e t a l , and 

DORA MYLANDER, 
D e f e n d a n t s 

* 

IN THE 

CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 

OF 

BALTIMORE CITY 

A N S W E R 

TO THE HONORABLE, ELI FRANK, THE JUDGE OF THE SAlD COURT:-

Your respondent, Dora Mylander, one of the above named defendants 

in the febove entitled cause, answering the Bill of Complaint in 

this cause exhibited against her and others, the whole thereof, 

and each and every paragraph thereof, respectfully shows unto this 

Court:-

That as and for her answee to the said Bill of Complaint 

tec the whole thereof, and each and every paragraph thereof, 

she adopts in tot©, the answers filed by the defendants, 

Walter C. Mylander, William F. Mylander, August C. Mylander, 

Kate E. Mylander, Florence Mylander and Anna Faust, herein 

heretofore filed, in answer to the said Bill of Complaint 

the whole thereof, and each and every paragraph thereof; 

and your respondent further answering said Bill of Complaint 

and each and every paragraph thereof, avers, that it would 

be inequitable to cancel said agreement, referred to in said 

Bill of Complaint, as to the said Complainant, without can­

celling same as to your respondent, and as to all parties 

named in the answer herebyjoadopted, which your respondent 

believes should be done. Having fully answered, she prays the 
cancellation of said agreement, and the dismissal of the Bill with costs. 

And a3' *"' * 7h>m?zA 
*0k Solicitorsfor respondent. 



*" !? "' " " "~""— >„MMH 

No. 

<Et <£t- No. 2 

J.tn. docket. 

A1JL.. Saint[ .avangelioal. 
Tuth-3r;,.i Jnuroh. 

George D. Aftrljbag, e tu i 

"' » t7 
- ? io* I 

\ :'M\ 

Summons for Witness 

Filed. 

No A 632 4 

J ^ X day of. (Oct 



SUMMONS FOE WITNESS. ft 3? /Vf 
[S[ DOCKET HZ- POLIO ' / 

In the Circuit Court No. 2 of 
As/.4 

returnable" on y o n i - - / - - / 

e Citv 
Term, 19 J& 

Th^/Sheriff will please summon the following witnesses, 

the 9^. Vy7. day of 

10 o'clock A. M 

l i l t i Fruruclin S t r e e t . 

7 
... .-. Ihoinaa i . p r ioe j^K 

544 J.,. Pay ^oxi § t r e e t . 

•^? J iTfryJ i.ii.. A C iffi-A 

• S l ' f l ^ j u f J , , J O l ' J L l l 

1? .also. .a. ._SUlQI$ej^^ 

.0^rj[y...j}trj9.e.t„..t.a...j^ 

.J^?A£in&l..ai5r„eemen^ 

persona of African deaoent from oooupyin^ (aouaea in ^ao 1100 DIOQK West 

F rank l in S t r e e t . 

to testify for ^ l . l . . . ^a i j . iL . . ^ . . . j i \ : ^^ . a . l i ^^ l . . . . I .A .k4 l . ' d . r . « i i . . . : y .Uar .dJX. 

in the case of„..All.-.3ftJL&lLi.s...^y.an£.e..li!j.(Al..Xu.t«jbia.rajQ...<<{auLr.aiL. 

vs. 

....Oap..?£a...D.....4Uftr„llng^...et. ..al.... 

(PjkMMfc 
Clerk of Circuit Court No. 2 of Baltimore City. 



190^1 CANO.C'.._'.. Docket 

(El. (£t Nn. 2 

jbMuA*^ 

#i»»J> 
&h 

Summons for Witness 

Filed .f...." day of. \< 19 ^ / 



-

LA DOCKET ~1L... FOLIO i 7L.....M..... SUMMONS FOE WITNESS. V / \ DOCKET ..ZZL FOLIO.. 

In the Circuit Court No. 2 of Baltimore City 
Term, 19 K 7 

returnable returnable (in. _._. , 

(L^JA^. 192?..at ../\ 

3**** 

ThejSheriff will please summon th^^ollowing witnesses, 

the 4SJ&...'rzzz, day of 

A. M. 

Clerk of Circuit Court No. 2 of Baltimore City. 
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jtt{ W 

- : r c , 2 

rrny 
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ALL SAINTS EVANGELICAL LTJT] 
E CITY, a body coxvorate 

* I B ' 

Complainant 
CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 

vs 
* 

KJE T. AHRLING, e t a l , 
Defendants « n 

I O N 

TO THE HOflOHABLE, EII FRANK, TEE JUDG. . S \IT> COURT:-

The p e t i t i o n of Will iam P. I n l a n d e r , August C. Myiggder, Kate I . . lender 
Florence Mylander, Dora If. i n l a n d e r , Anna F a u s t , / w a i t e r C. Mylander, 

±B%^jbc&m!tt3£&z$3i£&$i}^^ 3e f endant s 
named in the above entitled cause, respectfully show unto this Court;-

1. That heretofore they filed answers to the Bill of Complaint 
herein exhibited, which they desire to amend, by adding thereto 
nunc pro tunc, the following paragraph:-

'Paragraph A; That further answering the said Bill of Com­
plaint , the whole thereof, and each and every 
paragraph thereof, your respondents aver and 
allege that the purported deed or agreement, 
certified copy whereof is filed as Complai­
nant's ixhibit i\io. 2, is not in fact the 
deed or agreement, which they are alleged to 
li.ve sacs: signed; that said agreement or deed 
to which their signatures were obtained, was 
^fter such subscription, altered and inter­
lineations inserted without the knowledge or 
consert of your respondents- and withoiit, fur­
ther execution or acknowledgment; that at no 
time did anyone purporting to be a Notary 
Public, take their acknowlddgments thereto; 
that certain material alterations and modifi­
cations were tker- c (after 
de in said all 

the alleged deed or agreement which they sigft&t 
consisted of only a few typewritten lines and 
several pages, whereon provision had been mi 
for signatures. That such changes were made 
without notice, knowledge or consent and ren­
ders the agreement or deed, copy of which is 
filed in this cause, inoperative. That they 
have just aeouired intimation of this con­
dition, and did not theretofore know of the 
changes, alterations, amendments, modifieatims 
and interlineations made in said instrument.1 

'ParSftraun hi':- Twir mr.-pnrHfmtg ^nrt.^r nvpv t w t ^ 
said .alleged rnvc.c.mrm* n-n n —i ^irTT^hr 
a n ^ g ^ e ^ ^ t M ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t

 w 



rpara: raph Qtr- That at the time the signatures of your petitioners 
were obtained, certain material representations were 
made by the solicitor seeking such signatures (Mrs. 
Young), which were believed by your petitioners at 
the time to be true and correct, and which motivated 
your petitioners iH signing the alleged deed or agree­
ment which they signed or authorized to be signe , 
to the effect that all the proper and legal owners 
of 98% of che frontage of the 1100 pi :>ck, of ^est 

nklin Street, had theretofore signei , 1. that 
the remain3 ] Lgn immediately upon viewing 
the signatures of your petitioners upon said alleged 
agreement or deed; that all such representations 
were false and untrue, were known by the party or 
parties making them, to be false anc untrue at the •fvVi'E 
they were made, were knowiirgly made for the express 
purpose of misguiding your petitioners onar matters of 
which they had no personal knowledge and were made so 
as to induce your petitioners to sign or authorize f#£ 
signing^said agreement or deed. That certain other 

fact were made by said par-
and with the -"me effect. 

material misstatements of 
ties for the same purpose 
That certain relrfvent facts were concealed by said 
party or parties entrusted with the duty of obtain­
ing signatures, which should have been communicated 
to your petitioners, and which were designedly with­
held from your petitioners, the failure to bring to 
the attention of your petitioners of these matters 
further induced your petitioners to sign ' -ree-
ment or deed, which otherwise they would not have done. 

2. That your petitioners are advised and therefore aver that it is 

necessary to have this Court authorize such amendments to their 

answers. 

"'herefore your petitioners pray the pass 
zing such amendments and additions to their 
hereinabove set forth as 'Paragraphs 
ure and interlineation, nunc pro tunc 
their aforesaid answers herein. 

And as., &c., , 

of an nrder herein author! 
respective answers as are 
>t end—<*6', by w a y 0f eras-
the date of the filing of 

TITIOJT, i t 
0 . 

UPC. P 
1929 , by THE CIRCUIT COUIiT 
aforenamed p e t i t i o n e r s and e 
by a u t h o r i z e d t o amend t h e i r 

ch 

is hereupon this **""*d>!y of 
2 op BALTIMORE CI" ' OREERED that the 
and all of them, be'and they are here-

respective answers herein filed, nunc 
pro tunc as of the date of the filing of such answers, by wag of era­
sure and interlineation thereto, by adding 'paragraphs 'A'fWB' s«%#^ 
*&t~ as set forth in the aforegoing petition to the'ir respective answer 
hereinbefore filed, i nd it is hereby further ORHJRED that such amend­
ments and additions shall be 
this OREER. 

conside: ê  as made ut>on the filing oi 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 OF BALTIMORE CITY. 

S 

AIL SAINTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH OF BALTIMORE CITY, 

vs. 

GEORGE D. AHRLING, et als. 

BEFORE: FRANK, J., 

Docket A-51, 1929. 

Thursday, October 24th, 1929. 

The above entitled cause came on for hearing "be­

fore his Honor, Judge Eli Frank, on Thursday, October 24th, 

1929, at 11 o'clock A. I. 

Mr. Henry Vogt appeared in "behalf of the plaintiff. 

Messrs. James J. Carmody, Walter C. Mylander and 

Nathan Patz appeared in "behalf of the various defendants . 

Opening statement made on behalf of the plaintiff 

by Mr. Vogt. 

Opening statements made on behalf of the defendants 

represented by Mr. Mylander and Mr. Carmody. 

MS. VOGT: Your Honor, I wish to offer some formal 

oroof as to the titles of the property, particularly ag&ins 

,'«wiai * ^ ^ ^ ^ 
. Bpc 
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those defendants as to whom decrees pro-confesso have been 

taken. 

Thereupon - - -

HEJTRY VOGT, 

a witness of lawful age, produced on behalf of the Dlaintiff 

having been first duly sworn according to law, was examined 

and testified as follows: 

\ 

» 

I 

J 

DIRSCT EXAMINATION. 

THE WITNESS: I have been engaged in the practice 

of la* for fifteen years and have examined a large number of 

titles to fee simple and leasehold property in Baltimore 

City during that time. In connection with this case, I have 

examined titles of the properties on the north and south 

sides of "vest Franklin Streets, between Arlington Avenue 

and Carrollton Avenue-- I should say the 1100 block West 

Franklin Street. Mr. Carmody, will you admit the leasehold 

interests of the various parties, it will save me a great 

deal of detail. 

MR. CARMODY: I will admit anything to expedite the 

case, I do not think you would produce anything that was not 

— J „ 
right. 

J 
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THE WITNESS: Well, let me go into the titles against 

those defendants against whom decrees T)ro-confesso have 

been taken. Ho. 1115 West Franklin street at the time this 

Bill of Complaint was filed was in the name of Michael W. 

and Nanna L. leary, both of ̂ whom executed this neighborhood 

agreement. Properties 11S0 West Franklin Street at the time 

this neighborhood agreement was executed in February, 19S4, 

on or about that time was in the name of Mary J. Worthing-

ton, she having acquired it from Charles T. Kaiss on April 

28th, 1920, subject to a ground rent of $60. On October 1st, 

1925, Mary J. Worthington deeded property 1120 to Joseph 

P. G-erlach, he being a defendant in this case, and Mrs. 

Worthington having executed the neighborhood agreement. 

This time, in connection with 1122 West Franklin Street, at 

the time the neighborhood agreement was executed property 

1122 West Franklin Street was owned by Mary L. Preeburger, 

Herbert H. Preeburger, Clinton J. Preeburger, Elizabeth 

P. Preeburger and Marie P. Buckley, being the heirs of Solomon 

H. Freeburger and Mar7/ Preeburger, and on February 12th, 1929, 

they conveyed their leasehold interest in an estate in and 

to 1122 West Franklin Street to Yincenzo Genco, who is a 

party defendant in this proceeding. Property 1101 West 
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Franklin Street on September 8th, 1927, was mortgaged by 

Joseph G-. and Regina Gunther to Garrollton Land & 'loan 

Association, which is a party defendant in this suit; 

Mr. and Mrs. G-unther are both parties to the neighborhood 

agreement, the Carrollton Land &. Loan Association having 

acquired this mortgage after the recording of the agree­

ment. 1107 West Franklin Street, in February, 1924 was 

owned by Frederick J. Scott, under a deed to him from Helene 

B. Baker, dated December 23rd, 1925. It is Frederick J. 

or Frederick I. Scott, I donTt know which. 

THE COURT: Well, then, he did not own it in February 

1924, did he-- December 23rd, 1925? 

THE WITNESS: That is right, 1925. On December 24th, 

1925, Ellen J. Scheckells leased the property for the term 

of 99 years to Helene B. Baker and Ellen J. Scheckells, 

together with her husband, both having executed the neigh­

borhood agree-lent; the husband having since died, leaving 

her the sole owner. I will go back to 1105 for the moment. 

1105 was acquired by William H. Leonhauser and Rachel Leon­

hauser, on June 4th, 1926, subject to a ground rent of $65.; 

Esther Block accuired the property from Rose I. Loeffler 

on April 16th, 1924, subject to a ground rent of *65.; 



Esther Block having executed this neighborhood agreement. 

The owners of 1117) and 1115 West Franklin Street do not 

appear to have executed the agreement. The present owners 

of that property are Jacob and Nathan Yoloshen, but they 
m 

did not own it at the time, the title at that time was in 

the name of Mary R. Yoeckel, she in turn conveyed it to 

Gross Grant Real Estate Company and they to Nathan and Jacob 

Yoloshen. 1119 West Franklin Street was owned by Louis 

Friedman at the time this neighborhood agreement was signed 

and he executed a mortgage on August 23rd, 1922, to Mechanics 

Lexington Permanent Building & Loan Association, which mort­

gagee was not a party to the agreement and which the mort­

gagee still appears— is still unreleased of record. 

THE COURT: Did Friedman sign it? 

THE WITNESS: Friedman signed but not the mortgagee. 

THE COURT: Friedman signed after the mortgage was 

made. 

THE WITNESS: The mortgage was made on August 23rd, 

1922, that is the date of the mortgage, and the mortgageor 

alone signed but not the mortgagee. 

THE COURT: So that the mortgage is not subject to 

it. 



THE WITNESS: The mortgage is not subject to it. 

As to property 1123, the defendants admit— I think Mr. 

Mylander's clients, Catherine Plitt and Josephine P. Frisky 

and John 3. Cassell admit the title of the property as 

in them. 

THE COURT: What is their attitude in the case. 

THE WITNESS: They in their answer admit the owner­

ship of that property. 

HE. MYIANDER: They ask that the whole agreement be 

set aside. 

THE COURT: Yes, they consent to the relief. 

MR. CARMODY: Your Honor, I do not think they consent 

to the specific relief asked in the bill, they want the 

whole thing s'et aside. 

THE WITNESS: 1125 West Franklin Street is owned by 

G-eorge H. and Ethel P. Mueller, and they executed the neigh­

borhood agreement. 

THE COURT: Are they contesting this case. 

THE WITNESS: They are contesting, yes, sir. 

1127 West Franklin street is now owned by Catherine M. and 

Anthony Scholtholt, they having acquired title on March 

30th, 1922, from Stoner E. and Catherine C. Waidner, and 

) * 
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on March 7th, 1925, executed a mortgage to the Mutual 

Help Building & Loan Association, which was recorded on 

March 7th, 1925, and the mortgagee is not a party to this 

proceeding. 

KR. MYLANDER: And which mortgagee I represent. 

MR. CARMODY: That does not help them though. 

THE WITNESS: On March 7th, 1925, that mortgage was 

recorded. 

THE COITRT: Is the association a party to this pro­

ceeding. 

THE WITNESS: The mortgagee is not a party. 

MR. MYLANDER: *• will gladly become a party, your 

Honor, I represent them as attorney of the association. 

THE COURT: If you make application I will pass upon 

it. 

TfR, MYLANDER: All right, your Honor, we will file 

it in the course of the proceeding. 

THE WITNESS: 1129 is owned by Ellen J. Sheckells, 

her husband, Richard N. Sheckells having died i>rior to the 

filing of this bill. 1131 is owned by Rose Grossman Kolodner-

it should be Rose Kolodner Grossman. She signed the neigh­

borhood agreement as Rose Kolodner in conjunction with her 



\ 

husband, who is dead, and she has since married Louis Gross-

nan, who is the owner of 1145 Mest Franklin street at the 

time this agreement was executed and Lena Grossman having 

died before the marriage to Mrs. Kolodner. 1133 West Frank­

lin is owned by Albert R. and May Eyll Conrad, against whom 

a decree pro-coufesso has been taken,subject to a ground 

rent of 349. 1135 and 1137 West Franklin street are owned 

by Herbert H., Mary I., Clinton J., Elizabeth R. Freeburger 

and Marie F. Buckley, they having signed the neighborhood 

agreement and being the heirs of both Marie H. Freeburger 

and Solomon H. Freeburger. 1137 I included inll35. 

Now, one of those properties is in fee, 1139 is now owned 

by W. Martin and Clara D. Timanus. They executed the 

original neighborhood agreement and are parties to this 

proceeding. 1141 is owned by Anne C. Jeffers, who has a 

life estate under the Will of Anne Pumphrey. She is now 

81 years of age. 

MR. KYLUFDXR: Did the remaindermen sign that? 

THE WITNESS: They did not. 

Q, So that Anne C. Pumphrey is the life tenant of that 

property? 

A The life tenant being the mother of Mrs. Martha C. 



Jeffers, the daughter of Louise Cordell. That should be 

1143, your Honor. 1143 is owned under the conditions I 
-

mentioned, but 1141 is the one owned by Rose Kolodner Gross-

man. 

THE COURT: You said 1131 belonged to her. 

THE WITNESS: I have my notes here but I am running 

ahead of my notes. 1131 is owned by Mrs. Rose Kolodner Gross 

man, that is correct. 

THE COURT: Then she owns both of them? 

THE WITNESS: Let me correct myself as to 1141. 

1141 is not owned by Mrs. Grossman. 1141 is owned by George 

A. and Katie Heiderman, who signed this original neighbor-

* 
hood agreement under the name of Katherine Heiderman, both 

of them having signed the agreement. 1145, as I specified 

before, is now owned by Mr. Louis Grossman, his wife Lena 

having died. As to the remainder of the property on the 

north side of the street, 1100 block West Franklin Street, 

is owned by Louis and Fanny Hausman under an assignment to 

them dated June 9th, 1926, from Leon and Fannie Schiff, both 

Mr. and Mrs. Schiff having executed this neighborhood agree­

ment. 1102 "'est Franklin street is owned by Mrs. Nora Doyle 

under an assignment to her dated August 88th, 1923, conveying 



to her a life estate, with remainder to her son Bernard J. 

Doyle, and Bernard Doyle originally mentioned in this oro-

ceeding, I think a decree pro-confesso has "been taken 

against Bernard J. Doyle. The remaindermen did not sign 

the neighborhood agreement. 1104, 1106, 1108, 1110 and 

1112 Wtet Franklin street at the time of this alleged instru­

ment was signed were owned by Concordia Evangelical Lutheran 

congregation of Baltimore City In fee simple. 

THE COURT: Are they occupied by the church edifice? 

THE Y/ITlfESS: The church edifice occupies 1106, 

1108, 1110 and 1112 and the church parsonage occupies 1104. 

1114 West Franklin Street on August 20th, 1924, was owned 

by Isadore M. Bloom. That was ?rior tc the execution of the 

paper. On March 3rd, 1925, Isadore H. Bloom assigned to the 

Realty Centre, Incorporated, the Realty Centre Incorporated, 

I think, having signed the neighborhood agreement. On March 

3rd, 1925, Realty Centre, Incorporated, mortgaged the property 

to Benjamin Gordon for |2,000., which mortgage has subse­

quently been foreclosed and the property conveyed by Jacob 

I. Cardin, Trustee, to Harry Craven on April 8th, 1927; 

Craven was not a party to this agreement, of course. 

\ 

> 



THE COURT: But he took it subject to the agreement. 

THE WITOT5SS: No, on March 3rd, 1925, this mortgage 

was executed. It was recorded on March 4th, 1925. 

THE COURT: Was that before the agreement? 

THE WITNESS: Before the agreement was recorded. 

•8. CARMODY: February 16th. 

MR. MYLA3TDEE: Yes, but it is the date of recording 

that counts as against mortgagees or buyers. 

THE WITNESS: 1118 West Franklin Street is now owned 

by Carl and Mary E. Kretzler, subject to a ground rent of 

#60. They are oarties to the agreement and parties defendant 

in this cause. 1120, I believe I mentioned that as being 

owned by Joseph F. Gerlaeh, against whom a decree pro-con-

fesso has been taken. 1120 at the time the agreement was 

executed was owned by Mary J. Worthington and she, on 

October 1st, 1925, having assigned to Joseph F. Gerlaeh, 

against tahom a decree pro-confesso has been taken. As to 

properties 1124, 1126, 1128, and 1130, they are owned by 

defendants who admit the title is in them in their answer 

and who confess to the ratification of the agreement. Those 

four properties are in the names of— no, I don't think I 

went into that phase of those titles because those titles 



are admitted in the answers, they are admitted to be the 
• 

clients of Mr. Mylander and I did not go into the titles 

of those properties. I do not know whether I have omitted 

anyr your Honor. 

THE COURT: You omitted 1122. 

THE WITNESS: I stated that property was owned in 

the name of Vineenzo G-eneo after the filing of this Sill 

of Complaint, which deed was recorded February 12th, 1929. 

Q, (By Mr. Mylander): Is that all your titles? 

A Yes, that embraces all the titles to those properties. 

4 TTow, Mr. Vogt, can you tell of your own knowledge 

which of those properties are now occupied by colored -people? 

A 1114 occupied by colored people. 

0, That is the property which you described and which 

you have given the history of the title as having been mort­

gaged by the Realty Centre, Incorporated, to Benjamin Gordon 

for -#2,000. by mortgage dated March 3rd, 1925, and recorded 

March 4th, 1925? 

A That is correct. 

Q, And the date of this paper, have you that before 
• 

you-- it was March 24th, was it not? 

A You mean the recording of the neighborhood agreement? 
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Q, The recording of the neighborhood agreement? 

A March 24th, 19S5, a period of twenty days later. 

0, Can you tell us what happened to that mortgage from 

the Realty Centre, Incorporated, to Benjamin Gordon? 

A It was foreclosed by Jacob L. Cardin, Trustee, and 

he had it conveyed to Harry Craven, in whom the title now 

stands. 

Q, And that was free and clear of the neighborhood 

agreement? 

A That is correct. 

Q So that that property is occupied by colored people 

and is outside of the instrument, is that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. CARMODY: I object to that. 

THE COURT: You mean as a conclusion of law? 

MR, CAPMODY: Yes, as a conclusion. 

THE COURT: I sunpose that is right, Mr. Mylander . 

Q, It has been occupied by colored people how long? 

A I should say— as far as I know it has been occupied 

by colored people fora year, as far as my knowledge goes. 

MR. CARMODY; I move that be stricken out, all that 

is outside of the agreement. 

\ 
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THE COURT: Yes, I wi l l s t r i k e tha t out. 

Q, There are on« or two you haven' t given us the t i t l e 

of, or have you given t i t l e to a l l ? 

A It is possible I may have overlooked some. My re­

cords are very voluminous and I went over them hastily. 

THE COURT: Do the numbers run up to 1130 on the 

even side? 

THE WITTTE33: I have a plat, if your Honor would like 

to see it. 

THE COURT: Yes, I think that might help me. 

Q, Was that copied from the Atlas? 

A That was eooied from the Atlas with a memorandum as 

to the titles. 

Q, That gives the house numbers on that street? 

A That gives the house numbers and the owners of the 

properties and the parties against whom decrees pro-confesso 

have been taken I have marked D. "P. in red letters. 

MR. MYLAHDER: I understand this is by consent of 

counsel introduced in evidence. 

THE COURT: Have you any objection, Mr. Carmody. 

IS, CARMODY: I have no objection. The attorney 

states it is correct and I will certainly take his word for 

it. 
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THE WITNESS: I t i s cor rec t , I assure you. 

Q, I know t h a t you have marked on t h i s p l a t , Mr. Vogt, 

a property which has apparently a long boundary on Franklin 

s t r e e t , i t i s narked as 501 Carrol l ton Avenue. I s tha t 

colored or white? 

A That i s occupied by a s tore on the lower f loor. 

Q, That i s one of Crook's s t o r e s , i s n ' t i t ? 

A That i s one of Crook's s t o r e s . 

Q, Who occupies the second and th i rd f loor , can you t e l l 

us? 

A I do not know, s i r . 

Q, Do you know if they are colored or white, if you 

know? 

A I say I don't know. 

Q, I)o you know how the entrance is arrived at to the 

second and third floor of that building? 

A The entrance to that building, to the upper stories 

as to the rear of the first floor is on West Franklin street. 

0, Ajjd the second and third floors have no front en­

trance to Carrollton Avenue? 

A None whatever, the store occupies the entire Carroll­

ton Avenue entrance or front. 
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Q, Can you tell us who are the occupants of 1113 and 

1115, that is, whether or not they are colored or white? 

A Now, that property was advertised for sale to 

colored people and is not hound by this agreement, your 

Honor. But as to who are actually in there at this time, 

I don't know. 

Q, They have never signed the agreement'* 

A They have never signed the agreement and it was 

advertised for sale to colored people by 3. J. Frederick 

& Brother. 

Q, Now, you further say that you found a few of these 

properties owned by a life tenant and not by the remainder­

men and mentioned in that connection 1102 as signed by 

A. Nora J. Doyle, life tenant. 

Q, And the remaindermen did not join in on the signatures 

of the paper? 

A Nora J. Doyle did net join in. 

Q, Now, you mentioned also another property 

A Let me see the agreement first. 

(Paper handed witness). 

A I said Mrs. Doyle signed this paper. I don't off­

hand see her signature on it. Purports to bind that property 

1102. 
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MR. CARMODY: The third name from the top, Nora 

Doyle, is that the one you are looking for? 

THE WITNESS: This paper is not signed in that order. 

GKinther is the first one. 

Q, That is it on the last nage, Mrs. N. Doyle? 

A I ski-oped the entire page, Mrs. N. Doyle signed the 

p ap er. 

Q, And that is the life tenant? 

A That is the life tenant alone. 

Q, The life tenant alone? 

A Yes, sir. 

<i That is 1143? 

A No, 1102. 

<4 Now, go to 1143, -1143 you say is the prooerty which 

was signed Toy Mrs. Jeffers, life tenant, who is 81 years 

old? 

A That is correct. 

Q, And the remainderman did not sign that? 

A He did not. 

Q, So that we have a situation here-- can you tell us 

whether the frontage of this property which you have marked 

5 "01 Carrollton Avenue, to the rear of that property on 
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Franklin Street as to the second and third floors, the only 

entrance is "by way of Franklin Street, whether they had 

signed this agreement? 

MR. CARMODY: I object. It isn't on the block and 

is not included in the bill. 

MR. KYLANDER: We claim it is in the block. 

A It is in the block, No. 127 on the land Records 

and the entrance to the second and third floors of that 

property is exclusively on Franklin Street. 

MR. CJLRKODY: Do they face on Franklin Street? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, the windows of that house all 

face on Franklin street. 

MR. MYIANDER: They also have windows on Carrollton 

Avenue. 

MR. CARM0DY1 Is it a corner property? 

THE WITNESS: Northeast corner of Carrollton Avenue 

and Franklin Streets, but has a frontage, I would say, on 

Carrollton Avenue of eighteen feet and runs back on Franklin 

street one hundred and twenty feet, the short dimension being 

on Carrollton Avenue. 

THE COURT: What would ordinarily be known as the 

properties on Carrollton Avenue? 



THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

Q As I understand your statement, the store faces on 

Carrollton Avenue? 

A That is correct. 

Q But the only entrance to the rear portion of the 

first floor and tfe the second and third floors, all rented 

out, is on Franklin Street? 

IE. CiiHMODY: I object. 

A That is correct. 

THE COURT: The form of the question is bad, but he 

has already testified to it. There are some things put in 

there that the witness does not seem to know about. 

MR. 1Y2AOSR: It is simply a fair statement of the 

evidence, your Honor. 

THE COURT: I do not think there is very much danger, 

I think, Mr. Carmody, it is probably substantially correct. 

Q. How, Mr. Vogt, you say that that house binds on 

Franklin Street one hundred and twenty feet? 

A Approximately, I have never measured it. 

Q, Can you tell from your title abstracts there the 

dimension of 1114? 

A It begins 108 feet west from Arlington Avenue and 
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runs west twelve feet, with a depth of eighty two feet, a 

rectagonal lot. 

Q Have you anything in your title abstract showing the 

width of 1113? 

A 1113, it seems there is a strip of land between 

1113 and 1115 of one foot three inches in width, which I 

presume was originally brought into the title to correct 

the lots, from the records it would appear that each of 

those lots 1113 and 1115 are each fifteen feet wide— one 

is fifteen feet and the other is fifteen feet, three inches, 

with a depth of one hundred and forty two feet. 

THE COURT: Which has the three inches? 

fHE WITNESS: 1113 is fifteen feet, three inches and 

1115 is fifteen feet in width with a depth of one hundred 

and forty two feet. 

Q, How, 1143? 

A I don't know what is in back of those l o t s . 

0, Gan you give us the width of 1143? 

A Thirteen fee t width by ar^ectagonal depth of eighty 

four f e e t . That t i t l e dates back to 1874. 

Q, 1102 i s the l i f e t enan t ' s t i t l e ? 

A 1102. 



22 

Q, Can you give us the width of that? 

A Paul R. Johannsen assigned that property to Nora 

Doyle for the term of her life and no longer, with remainder 

over to her son Bernard J. Doyle. 

0, What is the front? , 

A That lot is twelve feet wide "by a depth of fifty 

six feet, four Inches. 

Q, How, the cotinsel for some of the defendants mention­

ed 1105 in his opening statement as being occupied by 

colored people. Have you any reference to that? 

A I think he is mistaken in that statement. 

MR. CARMODY: I think I am mistaken, yes. 

THE WITNESS: 1105 is owned "by leonhauser. Block 

executed the agreement. At this' time I don't know if I 

mentioned 1109, Mr. Carmody. 1109 is owned lay Agnes R., 

Mary E., and Katherine A., and Loretta G. "Dowd, who owned 

the house at the time this agreement was signed and con­

tinued to do so at this time. 

MR. CARMODY: They signed the agreement? 

THE WITNESS: I think so. 

Q, Will you tell us the width of your church lot, 

including the parsonage, 1104, 1106, 1108, 1110 and 1112? 

A The church building on 1106, 1108, 1110 and 1112 
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West Franklin street has a width of fifty-six feet on 

Franklin Street, with a depth of some fifty-eight feet. 

How, the parsonage, 1104, has a width on Franklin Street 

of sixteen feet, with a depth northerly of fifty-eight feet. 

Q, You have net stated in all of these eases which 

are fee simple and which are ground rents? 

A I can tell you that. 

Q, (Jive us which are leasehold and which are fee 

simple? 

A 1100 '/est Franklin street is leasehold. 

Q, 'The ground rent is how much? 

A I do not find a memorandum of that ground rent. 

The ground rent on the next door property-- I am afraid I 

don't know what that ground rent is. It ia leasehold 

property. 

Q, All right, take the next. 

A 1102 is leasehold, having a ground rent of |>66. 

Q, And did that ground rent owner join? 

A He did not. 

Q, Go ahead? 

A I can tell you the owners of the ground rent on 1100, 

the ground rent on 1100 did not join. 1104 
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MR. 'CARMODY: What is his name, do you know? 

THE WITNESS: I am afraid my records are not com­

plete in that respect, Mr. Carmody. 

Q, How, 1104, that is the church parsonage? 

A 1104 is in fee simple. 

Q, And 1106, 1108, 1110 and 1112, that is all the church 

and that is all fee simple? 

A That is all fee simple but at the time this agree­

ment was executed there was a mortgage on the church, to 

give the complete data. 

Q, For a big amount? 

A It had been paid down. I understand it was a mort­

gage of $3,000. to the Hopkins Place Savings Bank. 

MR. CARMODY: Wasn't t h a t burn t up before t h a t da t e? 

THE WITNESS: Not before the execut ion of t h i s ag ree ­

ment or t h i s paper , t h a t was subsequen t . 

Q, Was it before the recording of this agreement? 

A It was not. At the time this agreement was executed 

the mortgage was unreleased of record and unpaid. There 

was some part still remaining open. 

Q, Now, let us take 1114 and 1116? 

A 1114 has a ground rent of -3160. upon it and the 
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reversion or ground rent owner did not join. 

Q, That is the property which you say is occupied by 

negroes? 

A That is the property that is occupied by negroes. 

1116 has a ground rent of .#60. upon it. 

Q, Did the ground rent owner join? 

A He did not. 1118 has a ground rent of |60., the 

reversionary or ground rent owner did not join. 1120 has 

a ground rent of $60. and the reversionary did not join. 

1122 has a ground rent of $60. and the reversionary did not 

join. As to the south side of the street, 1126, 1138 and 

1130, they are in fee simple. 

Q. How, 501 Carrollton Avenue, which binds also on 

Franklin Street, you have already told us they were not 

parties to the agreement at all? 

A They were not parties to the agreement either as to 

the leaseholc. estate or any other estate in that property. 

Q, low, take 1101? 

A 1101 is leasehold property. 

Q, Ground rent how much? 

A 50, that is in fee simple, they subsequently 

let m* straighten out my notes. 1101 is leasehold property. 



26 

Q, Ground rent how much? 

A ?ry records do not contain that. 

0, Did the ground rent owner join? 

A No, he did not Join. 

0, 1103? 

A 1103 is leasehold property. 

9, Ground rent how much? 

A I think the ground rent on that is $60.-- ,$65. 

Q Did the ground rent owner join in the agreement? 

A He did not. 

0. 1105? 

A 1105 has a ground rent of $ 6 5 . — one of these parties 

took a conveyance of the reversion, I don't want that mistake 

overlooked. I don't know whether it is 1105 or not. 1105 

is leasehold property with a $65. ground rent. 

Q, Did the ground rent owner join in the agreement? 

A He did not. 

4 1107? 

A Ground rent $65. 

Q, Did the ground rent owner join? 

A He did not. 

0, 1109? 
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A 1109 ife the matter which has heen troubling me. 

That was originally in leasehold but the reversion was yield-

i ed up and surrendered, being in fee. 

Q. ftow, 1111? 

A That is a leasehold property. 

Q, 1113 and 1115 you have marked on this as negroes? 

A 1113 and 1115 are negroes. 

0, nov, 1117? 

A 1117 is leasehold property. 

Q, Did the ground rent party join? 

A He did not. 

Q. 1119? 

A 1119 is leasehold property. 1121— 

Q, Did the ground rent party join? 

A. The ground rent owner did not join. 1121 is lease­

hold property and ground rent $48.? the reversionary did 

not 30 m . 

Q, You are giving us these ground rents as all being 

open at the time of the making of this agreement, are you, 

Mr . Vogt? 

A Absolutely. 

<i And they are still open at the present time excepting 
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where you state to the contrary? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

Q, Nov;, -nroceed. 

A 1123, the title to that property has been admitted. 

0, That is Cassell? 

A That is Cassell, that is a leasehold property. 

Q, Is the ground rent ovmer a party? 

A He did not $oin in the conveyance. 

Q 1125? 

A That also-- no, I cannot tell as to that. There is an 

assignment and it appears to be leasehold prouerty. I did 

not see a conveyance of the reversion. That is leasehold 

also . 

Q, Bid the ground rent owner .join? 

A No, he did not. 

% 1127, that i s the Scholtholt t i t l e ? 

A That is the leasehold, the reversionary did not join. 

Q, 1129? 

A 1129 Is leasehold and the reversionary did not join. 

Q, 1131? 

A Is leasehold and the reversionary did not join. 

Q, Was the 1131 ground r e n t open at t h e time the a<?ree-
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ment was made? 

A That is correct, sir. 

Q 1133? 

A Leasehold. 

Q, Did the ground rent r>arty join? 

A No, he did not. 

Q. 1135? 

A 1135-- one of those titles is in fee, 1135 is lease­

hold property; the ground rent owner did not join. 1137 

is fee simple property. 

Q Now, 1139? 

A .1139, I think that is leasehold property. 

Q, 1141? 

A 1141 is fee simple property but only the owner of 

the life estate joined in this conveyance. 

Q, Now, 1145--

A That is leasehold oroperty with the life estate, 

that is the Jefi'ers property. 

Q, No, 1143 is the Jeffers prouerty? 

A 1143, that is also leasehold. 

Q. 1145? 

A I don't know if that is leasehold or fee. 
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Q, Now, according to your statement here, Mr.Vogt, 

every one of the parties in that 'block where the prooerty 

is subject to a ground rent, not a single one of the re­

versionary owners join in this agreement? 

IS. CARHODY: I object. 

THE COTTRT: That is simply a statement. You might 

ask the question. The form of the question is bad but it is 

only summing it up. 

A That is absolutely correct, where there is a ground 

rent, the ground rent owners did not join in this conveyance. 

Q, You have mentioned heretofore 1114, which was fore­

closed under a mortgage, now occupied by colored people; 

1113 and 1115 have never signed the paper and occupied by 

colored people; 1143, which was signed by the life tenant 

only; 1102, which was signed by a life tenant only; now, 

there were some other properties which you mentioned which 

were subject to mortgages, where the mortgagee did not join; 

one of them was 1127. What is the width of that -property? 

A 1127, there was a mortgage at the time this paper 

was recorded open on the property; that mortgage is to the 

Mutual Help Building & Loan Association. 

Q, Is that "still open? 
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A It is still open. 

Q, What is the width of that, property? 

A That property is fourteen feet wide, with a de^th 

of one hundred and forty two feet. 

Q, How, let us take 1119. You say that was subject to 

a mortgage and the mortgagee did not join, is that right? 

A On August 23rd, 1922, before the date of this agree­

ment, Louis Friedman executed a mortgage to the Mechanics 

Lexington Permanent Building & Loan Association, which mort­

gage is still outstanding and unreleased. 

Q What is the width of that? 

A The width of that property is fifteen feet. 

Q, Are there any other properties which have unreleased 

mortgages on them that you have in your list outside of the 

ones that I have mentioned? 

A Yes, sir, the Loyal Building & Loan Association; they 

held a mortgage on 1120, but that mortgage has since been 

released. 

Q, How much i s that mortgage? 

A I coiildn't t e l l you t h a t , s i r . 

Q, That was open at the time of the execution of this 

oaper? 
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A TTo, no, I am mistaken about that. Mr. Gerlach execut­

ed that mortgage after he had acquired the property, which 

was after this agreement was executed. 

Q, Any other open mortgages? 

A None others open other than I have referred to. 

Q, To make certain of my figures here, I just want you 

to check up once more. You have told us that the frontage 

of that property 501 North Carrollton Avenue, which has an 

entrance on Franklin Street, and which is the only entrance 

to the upper floors, rented out, was 120 feet on Franklin 

Street? 
• 

A That is correct, sir. 

Q You have told us that 1114, according to your title 

records, has a frontage of twelve feet; 1113 Franklin street 

a frontage of fifteen feet, three inches; 1115 a frontage 

of fifteen feet; 1143 has a frontage of thirteen feet; and 

1102, another life interest, a frontage of twelve feet. Am 

I right on that, twelve feet? 

A 1102 has twelve feet, that is correct. 

0, How, 1127, where there is an open mortgage and did 

not join, has a frontage of fourteen feet? 

A 1127 has a frontage of fourteen feet. 



33 

Q, And 1119 has a frontage of fifteen feet. Tfow, the 

church frontage combined, amounts to how much? 

THE COURT: He has given us that, seventy two feet, 

fifty six and sixteen, that is two hundred and eighty eight 

feet, the sum total of frontage. You make it two hundred 

and eighty eight feet of non-assenting properties, either 

non-assenting or mortgagees, including the church, which 

says that they never executed. 

Q, Have you any list of how many houses subject to a 

ground rent where the ground rent owner did not join? 

A I did not compile a list. 

THE COURT: Suppose you do that by half past one. 

Q, Kr. Vogt, do you know anj'thing of your own personal 

knowledge as to any change in occupancy since the date of 

this agreement in this block? 

A Since th.3 date of the agreement in what respect? 

Q, Let us say if a house gets vacant, how does the new 

tenant compare with the old tenant or occupants, if you know 

anything about it of your own knowledge; if not, say so. 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: I think that is very indefinite, gentle­

men, his opinion of the charadter of the new tenant as com-



34 

pared with the old. 

MR. MYLA5TDER: If he has any knowledge as to the 

changed conditions of occupancy prevailing, whether there 
• 

has "been a changed occupancy, how does the general run of 

this changed ccciipaney compare with the occupancy prior to 

the agreement. 

THE COURT: Can you answer.that? 

A I can, your Honor. As to 1103 West Franklin Street, 

which is the Ahrling property, those- people vacated the 

property there before the filing of this bill of complaint, 

and they had a most difficult time getting a tenant into 

the property. As to the church oroperties, those prooerties 

are vacant and have been vacant since about the last part 

of December. 

THE COURT: The church property? 

THE WITUESS: Yes, the church property is unoccupied. 

The equipment is in there but the services are not being 

held there. 

MR. CARM3I3Y: I move that be stricken out. 

THE COURT: What is the objection. 

MR. CARMODY: The objection is that the question was 

as to changes of ©ccupancy. 
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n 

THE COURT: What Mr. Vogt states is that the change 

made there is that they are no longer using the property, 

it is vacant. 

THE WITNESS: It is vacant and for sale. If you 

will permit me to follow it up— 

THE COURT: I think we will take a recess and follow 

this up at half past one. 

(Recess from 12.30 until 1.30 P. M.). 

______________________ 

AFTER RECESS (1.30 P.M.) 

Thereupon — - - - -

HENRY V0GT, 

whose examination was suspended for the purpose of taking 

the noon recess, resumed the stand for 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued). 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Q, Mr. Vogt, at the time of adjournment for recess, you 

were telling us about the changes that have taken place in 

the block since the date of signing this paper? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q, How, you had proceeded on the north side as far as 

the church property and you were telling about the church 

property when the adjournment was taken. Will you proceed 

with, your answer? 

A I started to say something with resoect to the church 

not being-- not holding their services in that building at 

this time. The equipment is all in there but the Concordia 

people have consolidated with the All Saints people. The 

property has been offered for sale and no one but colored 

people offered for it and those offering for it when inform­

ed of this restrictive agreement will not enter into negotia-

tions for its purchase. 

Q, How about the parsonage? 

A The parsonage is still vacant. The same thing applies 

to the parsonage and more particularly. White tenants will 

not apply for it and there have been no white applications 

for it and, of course, the colored applicants have been 

legion but on account of this restrictive agreement, are no 

longer interested when confronted with it and will not 

consider going in there. 

Q, It appears that there are not very many houses in 

that block which are held for rent, judging from your state-
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ment it is male up principally either of old owners or some 

who have come in since then, but notwithstanding all that, 

there are a considerable number of houses for rent, are 

there not? 

A. Those houses which become idle are difficult to dis­

pose of and only to a certain character of tenants who will 

rent only at a reduced rental. 

Q Can yo\i get a fair type of tenant in that block even 

at a reduced rental? 

A Ho, it- is difficult to get a fair type of tenant, 

it cannot be done. 

Q, People who rent houses-- white people who rent 

houses, what is their reaction based upon your observation 

in that block to living next door to colored people? 

(Question objected to). 

MR. ITYLARBER: Based upon his observation. 

THE COURT: Mr. Vogt can tell of his own personal 

experience. 

MR. CAEMOM: That is the very thing in this case. I 

don't want to prolong it one minute, I am very anxious to 

get through with it and if the question could be framed 

without argument,! would not object to it at all. I object 
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to the form of the question. 

THE COURT: Mr. Mylander wants Mr. Vogt to tell 

simply his experience in this matter. 

MR. MYLODER: That's all. 

A That relates to the church property', to the Darson-

age, to 1114 Test Franklin Street, to 1143 West Franklin, 

and to 1105, the house which Mr. Ahrling occupies 1143 

they had a difficult tirne in obtaining a tenant, they had a 

difficult tine in obtaining a tenant for 1105 and only at a 

reduced rental and only a tenant who would welcome living 

in the same block with colored people, would take it only 

on that consideration,at a reduced rental. At 1143 the 

same conditions prevail. 1114 is occupied by negroes, 

^ust next to the church 

Q, Do you know anything of properties 1124, 1126, 1128 

and 1130? 

A I do know that those houses have had a "For Rent" 

sign on them, one or two, for some length of time, a "For 

Rent" sign was on one or two of them. I am not sure. 1113 

or 1115 no, 1117 had a sign on it which seemed to drag 

along and nothing could be done with it. 

0. So that it is impossible 
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(Objected to). 

Q, Let me finish the question, please, won't you, Mr. 

Garmody. State whether or not it is -oossible tc replace any 

old residents when the house is vacant with the same type 

of people that occupied it at the time of this agreement? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: I think the form is bad. You might ask 

him how the replacements compare with the former tenants. 

Q, How do the replacements generally compare with the 

occupants at the time of this agreement? 

A. The replacements are of a different character alto-
• 

gether. The replacements in Ahrling's, for instance, they 

have moved out into the suburbs, and, of course, the type 

of tenant coming there is of the rental class, who is will­

ing to take a house at a reduced price to live in a section 

which is surrounded by colored people. It is a different 

type altogether. There aren't so many of the old neighbors 

in this block, a number of those houses are rented out, 

quite a few. 

0; About how many of the old occupants are still there, 

can you tell us? 

A. Those l iv ing in t h e i r homes who are pa r t i e s to t h i s 

proceeding, I don ' t think there i s more than ten families at 
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the most. 

Q, This old lady of eighty some years who signed as a 

life tenant, she is one of the old occupants, isn't she? 

A ITo, she doesn't live there, she lives with her 

daughter out on Sdmondson Avenue. 

Q, She formerly lived there, didn't she? 

A Sometime back she did, I don't know Just when,but 

I do know they are not Living there at this time. 

Q, I?ow, Mr. Vogt, the Court has asked you to make a 

rough analysis-- not a rough analysis, "but an exact analysi 

giving a detailed statement of how many of the properties 

in that block are subject to ground rent where the ground 

rent owners did not Join in this agreement? 

A This resume based on my memorandum of title is as 

follows: 1103, 1105, 1107, 1111, 1117, 1119, 1121, 1123, 

1125, 1127, 1129, 1131, 1133, 1135, and 1141 are all lease­

hold titles and aggregate two hundred and thirty one feet, 

eighteen inches, or two hundred and thirty three feet, six 

inches on the south side of the street, and 1143, the life 

tenant's property, is thirteen feet, making a total of two 

hundred and forty six feet, six inches on the south side. 

There is to be added to that thirty feet. 
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THE COURT: That is the aggregate feet on the north 

side. 

THE WITNESS: On the south side we are speaking of. 

THE COURT: How much is it? 

THE WITNESS: On the south side it is two hundred 

and forty six feet, six inches of leasehold prooerty, includ­

ing one life tenant. 

Q, In the two hundred and forty six feet, six inches 

you are including thirteen feet which you have pointed out 

as an inadequate joinder before? 

A That is right. 

Q, The rest include all the properties not included 

in our orevious totals of inadeouate ioinder? 

A Except 1113 and 1116 having a total of thirty feet, 

which is not bound in any way by this agreement, making a 

total of two hundred and seventy six feet, six inches of the 

one life tenant, the leasehold property and the two houses 

which don't attempt to come into this agreement. That is on 

the south side. 

0, What is the total length of the south side? 

A Three hundred and forty one feet, ten inches. 

0, Where did you get that? 
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A The three hundred and forty feet, ten inches I took 

as the total of the widths from the plat at the Appeal Tax 

Court that I cheeked off with these other dimensions and they 

don't vary more than one or two inches at the most. 

Q, Kow, take the north side? 

A The north side of the street, 1100 

Q, Do we start out with the same length of feet on the 

north side, three hundred and forty one feet, ten inches? 

A There is a twenty foot alley which bisects the north 

side. 

% So on the north sid<§ the total frontage is reduced 

by twenty feet, the width of Carlton Street, is that cor­

rect? 

A That is correct. 

Q, Is that twenty or twenty five feet? 

A The alley is twenty feet, but there is another five 

foot alley to the east of Carlton Street, making a total of 

twenty five feet for the alleys to come out. 

Q, So that makes the net frontage on the north side of 

the street three hundred and sixteen feet and ten inches, is 

that right? 

A That is right, sir. 
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Q, Can you give us the ground rent and the leasehold 

ownerships, the aggregate there? 

A I have gone over ray memoranda of t i t l e again and I am 

i n a p o s i t i o n to s t a t e t h a t the f i r s t l o t s on t h e nor th 

s i d e , 1100, 1102, 1114, 1116, 1118, 1120 and 1122. 

Q, Did any of those ground rent owners join in? 

A ITone of them. The total frontage is eighty five 

feet. The church property is in fee but there is a mortgage 

on it which was on it at the time the agreement was recorded, 

which the mortgagee did not sign, and the width of the church 

property is seventy four feet, making a total of one hundred 

and fifty nine feet. 

Q, There was a failure to join in all the ownerships? 

A To join in all the ownerships on the north side of 

the street. That takes everything up to Sarlton Street. 

I have not considered the properties owned by the Mylander 

family and that at the corner of Carrollton Avenue and Frank­

lin Street, which comprises the westernmost half of the block 

on the north side of the street. 

Q, Did you notice the ground rent on the corner of 

Carrollton Avenue and Franklin Street owned by the Mylander 

interests? 
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A I did not. 

THE COURT: Does that one hundred and fifty nine feet, 

including the church property, embrace the whole of the 

easternmost half of that block or is there some property 

that comes out of there? 

THE WITNESS: That is the entire easternmost half, 

your Honor, on the north side as in all of the interests 

included in the agreement. 

THE COlTRTt That is the entire easternmost portion? 

THE WITNESS: The entire easternmost portion on the 

side. 

CR033 EXAMINATION. ' 

By Mr. Garmody: 

What is the total frontage on the north side? 

Three hundred and forty-one feet, ten inches. 

MR. IYLANDER: Less the alleys. 

THE WITNESS: Less the alleys. 

And the alleys are twenty five feet? 

That is correct. The plat which I filed does not 

show the five foot alley. 

THE COURT: Well, it is shown here. 

THE WITNESS: It shows the twenty foot alley; your 
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Honor. 

THE COURT: The rear lines of the property 501 Carroll 

ton Avenue is shown as being some distance from the western­

most line of the last Mylander property, I assume that is an 

alley. 

THE WITNESS: No attempt was made to -draw it at all 

exactly, the little alley divides it exactly in half, Carl­

ton street. 

THE COURT: I mean the five foot alley is immediately 

west of* the Mylander property. 

?rR. MYIANDER: That is correct. 

Q, Have you a list of the total number of properties 

the owners of which signed this agreement on the north 

side? 

A The owners of all interests 

Q Owners with any interest, either leasehold or fee 

simple? 

A Well, with any interest, of course, the owners of 

the equitable interests with the right of redemption of those 

leasehold estates from the mortgage date on the north side 

of the street, the entire north side, from Arlington Avenue 

to Carlton Street and Mr. Mylander's four properties, I 



should say some interest in each of those lots did execute 

the agreement. 

Q, In each and every one of the lots? 

A Yes, some interests. 

Q, There is no exception en the north side. Now, on 

the south side? 

A No, I should say there wasn't any exception to the 

north side other than to the church property. Some signatures 

were pinned to that agreement, that is the gist of our con-

tent ion. 

MR. MYLANDER: How about 1114. 

THE WITNESS: 1114, the equity of redemption was open 

and the mortgage was foreclosed and in that way the agree­

ment was not binding on that lot. As to the church, the 

Pastor appended his signature as well as the secretary but 

it was done with the authority, as likewise a seal was pre­

pared to have been placed upon it. With that exception^ 

the entire north side, outside of the corner lots 501 North 

Carrollton Avenue, which runs back a good distance on Frank­

lin street, did sign the. agreement. 

Q, Not to get too far away from what we have in mind, 

how many properties or owners of properties on the south 
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side signed this agreement? 

A Do you mean the ordinary interests? 

0, Any interests? 

A Two houses, 1113 and 1115 did not sign. 

0, Those two houses at that time were occupied by what 

people, white or black? 

MR. MYIAITDER: At which time? 

MR. CARROTY: At the time the agreement was signed? 

A I don't know when they came in there. 

Q, You don't know whether there were negroes in the 

block at the time this was signed or not? 

A There was, I think, one family there, but I can't say 

as to both of those tenants there. 

Q, Which house was occupied by that one family? 

A. That, was on the north side of the street, 1114 

no, that couldn't have been,1114 came in after those at that 

time. I should say there were no colored families in the 

block when the" agreement was executed. 

0, At the time the agreement was signed weren't 1113 

and 1115 a double house occupied by negroes and they were 

the only ones in the block, or do you know? 
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A I donft know that. 

Q, Well, suraming up those who have signed the agreement, 

all signed it except two and those two were on the south 

side, is that right? 

A Well, the properties someone purporting to hold 

an interest in each of those houses except two houses, 

did sign the paper, signed this particular paper. 

% That is what I meant? 

A Yes. 

% Everything on both the north and the south side of 

the street at the tine this paper was signed was signed "by 

people who had some interest in the property, whether life 

estate, leasehold, fee simple or something? 

A Leasehold, equity of redemption, life estate,or what 

not. 

Q, Are you in the real estate "business, Mr. Vogt? 

A I an not. 

0, You don't know whether that church has ever been 

offered to white people or not, do you? 

A I have done my best to get someone to purchase the 

property. As I outlined "before, the applicants are legion 

of the colored variety, but absolutely none of the white 



49 

class. The entire district around there is black, it is 

physically impossible. 

Q, Did you ever offer it to a possible white purchaser? 

A I couldn't conceive of any white congregation that 

would want it. 

•̂  Wasn't there a Catholic Order that asked about that 

property? 

A Absolutely not, not to me, sir. My sign has been 

on that property for a great many months and they never ask­

ed me about it. 

Q, You never heard about an out-of-town Catholic Order 

making inquiries about that property? 

A, I did not, sir. 

THE COURT: Would you sell it to them now if they 

made a prooer offer? 

THE '/ITTTE33: Your Honor, a oro-->er offer I suppose 

it would be my duty to relieve my clients from the burden 

of this thing, if they were willing to take it over. St.Pius, 

I understand, wants to get away from there, ju&t a few blocks 

away. How would another Catholic organization want to come 

there in the midst of it, I cannot conceive. 

(Testimony of the witness concluded). : 
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MR. VOGT: Mr. Carmody, as to the consolidation of 

these churches, are you willing to admit that or do you 

wish us to go through the formal oroof? 

MR. CARMODY: It is a matter of record, is it not. 

MR. VOG-T: It is a matter of record, we have the 

certificate filed in the church records of the City of 

Baltimore. Here is just a copy. 

THE COjDRT: Is that a certified copy. 

MR. TOGT: It is the original agreement filed in 

there, your Honor, the parties who executed it are here. 

THE COURT: Let Mr. Carmody look at it and if he 

has no objection, it might just be admitted. 

MR. CARMODY: I have no objection. 

THE COURT: The only purpose is to show the title. 

MR. VOGT: That title has devolved upon the plaintiff 

in this case. $e offer that in evidence, your Honor. 

It is marked Complainant's Exhibit Ho. 1. 

fPaper referred to was thereupon marked and filed 

in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit Ho. 2). 

MR. VOG-T: How, as to the operations of the Con­

cordia congregation, we have a pamphlet here in that form 

as to how the Concordia congregation should meet and so 
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forth. 

MR. CASjMODY: There is no objection. 

MR. VOO-T: The parties admit this printed pamphlet 

is a cony of the constitution and by-laws of the Concordia 

Evangelical Lutheran congregation at the time of this paper 

writing of February 16th was obtained. It is dated 1907. 

THE COTJRT: You say they were in force at the time 

this agreement was signed. 

MR. VOGT: The notary's certificate on there showing 

that the paper was properly executed and filed among the 

charter records of the City of Baltimore. It is a plan of 

consolidation and by-laws and this pamphlet was printed and 

distributed among the members. Now, article four, section 

six section six of article six in that pamphlet I wish 

to call to your Honor's attention as follows: 

(Section referred to was thereupon read to the Court 

by Mr. Vogt) . 

Thereupon - - -

M. OLIVER 3T0RM, 

a witness of lawful age, produced on behalf of the plain­

tiff, having been first duly sworn according to law, was 
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examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Yogt: 

0, Mr. Storm, where do you live at this time? 

A Towson, Maryland. 

0, Where did you live around February, 1925? 

A In Covanstown. 

Q, Were you or not a member of the Concordia Evangeli­

cal Lutheran Church at that time? 

A I was. 

Q, Were you a member of the council in February, 1925? 

A I was. 

Q, Will you tell us what this book is that I will 

hand you? 

A It is a record of the meetings of the Church Coun-

cil and the congregation. 

Q, Of which corporation? 

A Of the Concordia Lutheran Church. 

Q, Mr. Storm, you say you were the secretary of the 

church for the year 1925, is that correct? 

A 1925; yes, sir. 
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Q, And you were a member of the council also, were you 

not, at that time? 
4 

A A member of the council. 

0, Are these minutes for the year 1925 in your hand­

writing; is this the record which you prepared as a result 

of you--

A This is my record. 

0, Will you look over your record and tell us what 

authority, if any, was passed by the congregation or the 

council authorizing you or the Pastor or anyone else to 

execute an agreement restricting the property from occupancy 

by colored peoole? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: Why? 

HR. CifftMODT: An attempt is being made, your Honor, 

to introduce the minutes of the organization and if an omission 

was made in the minutes to record the regular meetings that 

were held to pass upon this particular question, if they 

are omitted from these minutes, we are not bound by them. 

THE COURT: Ho., it is always competent for you to 

show they were omitted, but it is competent for the plaintiff 

to show that they were not omitted, that these minutes are 
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complete. You might ask him, for instance, whether all 

the meetings held during that time were in that book. 

Q, Is your record complete or not as to the meetings 

held during that time? 

A They are. 

Q, Will you tell us whether or not there is any 

memorandum of any meeting held where any such authority was 

given or passed? 

A There was no meeting held either by the council or 

by the congregation. 

Q, There was no congregational meeting held by the 

church members or by the council? 

A That is right. 

% Now, Mr. Storm, I hand you this agreement purporting 

to restrict for the 1100 blockof West Franklin Street against 

colored people. Will you tell me whether or not that is 

your signature on this paper, is that your signature on 

there? 

A Yes, sir, that is. 

Q, Now, Just read what is above your signature; is this 

in your handwriting? 

A Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Church. 
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0, And where is your signature? 

A Two lines belowl 

Q, Is this your handwriting, "Concordia Evangelical 

Lutheran Church?" 

A It is not my handwriting. 

Q, What is that there, is that the seal 

A This isn't the seal of the church. The seal was 

kept at that tjtme by the treasurer in the safe. 

Q, Bid you draw this design with the words "Corporate 

Seal" in there at the time? 

A There was no seal there to put on and I did not 

draw it on at that time, I simply signed the paper and handed 

it "back. 

Q, Mr. Storm, this paper is dated February 16th, 19E5. 

If I told you that it was not Sunday, would you say it was 

correct? 

THE COURT: Well, don't let him speculate on that. 

Q, Tell me in your own way what you know 

THE COURT: February 16th, 1925, was Monday. I will 

take judicial notice of that. 

A I signed it on Sunday. 

Q Will you tell the circumstances surrounding the exe-
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cution of this paper "by you, Mr. Storm? 

A It was after church services and I lived in Govans 

and I was on my way home at the time. I was one-half square 

from the church when I was called hack. When I went in, Mr. 

Berger, Reverend Young and Mrs. Young were in the church 

Q, Which Mrs. Young, do you mean the notary Mrs. Young, 

is that correct? 

A This lady over here (indicating), 

THE COURT: Y0u were called hack to the church, the 

Reverend Young was there. Who else? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Berger. 

THE COURT: And Mrs. Young did you say? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And you were there? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

0. What had happened to the congregation that morning, 

if anything? 

A This was after the service and there was no one else 

in the church. 

Q, And you were called hack, and what, if anything, was 

said to you there? 

A The only thing that was said to me, I was called 
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back to the sacristy and told to sign this paper, that is 

what-- the first agreement I found there, that is what was 

told me, and this was another agreement. 

THE CCT7RT: Who told you that? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Berger told me it was all right to 

sign. 

Q Mr.Stoma, are you positive this was Sunday? 

A It was on Sunday, I am positive. 

Q And are you ecually as positive that the corporate 

seal was not there to be appended to that paper? 

A I am. 

Q, How long had Reverend Young been connected with 

this congregation? 

A 

Q 

A 

4 

A 

Q 

For one raonth. 

Who was the old Pastor or the former 

Reverend T>. H. Miller. 

And what happened to him? 

He resigned on account of his health. 

And Reverend Young took his place and 

Pastor? 

had been there 

one month before the execution of this paper. What was the 

correct name of your congregation, Mr. Storm? 

A Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of B»l t i -
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more City. 

Q Then the name signed to this paper is not correct, 

is that right? 

A The church name is not correct. 

Q, And the words on this device purporting to he a 

seal are equally incorrect, is that it? 

A Yes, sir. 

0. How, hs.d there been a congregational meeting or a 

council meeting, were you in a position to have known whether 

such business was transacted and such a meeting in regard to 

authorizing such an agreement to be signed? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COTRT: Ask him if he was present at all the 

meetings. 

Q, Were you present at all the council meetings? 

A As secretary I was present at all meetings. 

Q, For the year 19S5? 

A For the year 1925. 

Q, For the previous year, Mr. Storm, what is your re-

collection of the church. 

TEE COITRT: Ycu have not asked him the question you 

started to ask. 
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Q, You say you did attend all council meetings for the 

year 1925. Will you state whether from your own knowledge 

any "business was transacted at those meetings requiring 

the passing of authority for the execution of a paper such 

as this, which is now the subject of this suit? 

A There was not, to my knowledge. 

9, And you say you were present at all the meetings. 

Now, take for the year 1924, Mr. Storm, what, is your re­

collection of the church at that time? 

A I was a member of the council holding no official 

office. 

Q Were you or not present at a meeting of the congre­

gation held in January, 1923 or 1924, on January 8th, 1924, 

were you present at that congregational meeting, Mr.Storm? 

A I was. 

Q, You were present at that meeting? 

A Yes. 

Q, Will you take this book, Mr .Storm, and tell me if 

the minutes in there relating to the business transacted 

at that meeting are correct? 

A This is the first agreement. 

Q, What is the date of that meeting there? 
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A Tuesday, January, 1924. 

Q, What agreement was r>ror>osed at that time? 

A. In area agreement consisting of the area "bound 

"by Lafayette Avenue, Fremont Street, Mulberry, and I think 

it was Carey. 

Q, That was in January, 1924? 

A Yes, sir. 

0, What was the authority passed at that time? 

A The authority was passed by the congregation at that 

time by a majority of one to sign this agreement. 

% Which affected the area outlined. How far did that 

go on the north, to Lafayette Square? 

A I think it was Lafayette Avenue. 

Q, Hos far south? 

A Mulberry street was the southern boundary of it. 

Q, '"hat was the reason, if any, for the church decid­

ing to go into such an agreement, Mr. Storm? 

A We drew a good many members from that neighborhood 

and it was to protect the interests and help the members of 

the church so that they wouldn't have so far to go. 

Q, Would the area included in that agreement have any­

thing to do with the church's stand on the agreement? 
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A Well, we had a good many members of our Sunday School 

that we drew from around there, that was Sunday School. 

Q, Compare with the agreement attempting to "bind the 

one block in which the church property is located, was there 

any difference in the attitude or your particular attitude 

toward such an agreement as compared to the entire zone or 

district? 

A I did not know that there was such an agreement in 

existence. Hov̂ ever, I signed it, I did not read it. 

Q, You mean this paper of February 16th, 1925, is that 

correct? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

Q, You say you did not read that agreement? 

A I did not read it. 

Q, 'Yhat waa represented to you at the time? 

A I was told I was that the other agreement had 

fallen through and I was to sign this. I did not question 

it, I came in and signed it and went on out. 

Q, "That was yimr understanding as to what the agreement 

was? 

A. I took it for granted they were trying to revive 

the old agreement. 
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Q, Covering what section? 

A Covering the block area. 

Q. Prom Fremont Avenue to Carey Street? 

A From Fremont Avenue to Carey street. 

Q, Can you tell me how many blocks are embraced in 

that area? 

A Rot offhand, no, sir. 

Q, Can you approximate it? 

A Yes, between ten and twenty, somewhere around there. 

Q, What, if anything, did you tell the other members 

of the congregation, Mr. 3tor$, about this paper which you 

signed in 1925? 

(Question objected to). 

Q, What, if anything, did you tell your fellow members 

or the council as to the signing of this paper? 

THE COURT: I imagine that would be a self serving 

declaration. Mr. Carmody may ask him that and if he wants, 

that might come in very well as a matter of rebuttal, but 

I do not think it is a part of the case in chief. It does 

not seem to me you can bolster up the testimony in chief 

by showing he made a statement to somebody else. 

MR. VOG-TJL: No, I said if he did not communicate the 
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• 

signing of this paper to his fellow members. 

THE COURT: Your question was what he said. 

MR, VOG-T: I do not want to lead him, I asked him 

what, if anything, he said. 

THE COURT: If the answer is nothing, I will let it 

stand. If he said anything at all, I will strike it out. 

A I did not say a word to any of the members of the 

congregation about this agreement. 

Q, And the other agreement had been a year and a month 

or two months previous to that, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

0. Bo you know what the relation is between Mrs. Young, 

the notary, who witnessed these signatures, Mr. Storm, and 

the Reverend Young, the former Pastor of the Concordia church? 

A To my knowledge, there is no relation whatever. 

0, Will you tell us, if you know, what was the first 

time you acouired any information about this particular agree­

ment or paper dated February 16th, 19S5? 

A- At the time the question of this meeting came up with 

the All Saints Church? 

Q, Can you tell us about when that was, approximately--
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the records will show the-- the certificate shows December 

21st, 1928--

A I did not, "but I received a letter 

Q, Dated January 25th, 1929, the date showing the 

institution of this Bill of Complaint, what, if anything, 

did the members of the council or congregation do on 

authorizing the institution of this suit, if it is a resolu­

tion? 

A At the time this suit was instituted, I was not a 

member of either church. 

Q, Do you know anything about the change of the 

neighborhood in the 1100 block of West Franklin Street? 

A The only time I was in that block was on Sunday. 

Q, The only time you went there was on Sunday? 

A The only time I went there was on Sunday. 

Q, Who were the occupants of 1114 West Franklin Street, 

if you know? 

A That is the property right next to the church? 

Q, Yes, to the west? 

A Colored people were in there the l a s t time I went 

th er e. 

Q, You say there were colored people there? 
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A Colored people next to the church. 

Q, 1114 West Franklin Street, can you tell us when it 

was the last time you v?ere up there? 

A Around December. 

Q, Last year? 

A Just before the merger of the church. 

Q, December, 1923, is that right? 

A December, 1928. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

3y Mr. Mylander: 

Q, Is that the first time you had noticed colored people 

were there? 

A Well, they had been there some time. 

Q,. About how long? 

A Two or three months and there were some families 

across from the church. 

0, When did they move there? 

• A I guess they were there about a year. 

ft About a year prior to December, 1928? 

A Yes, sir. 

^ So that the first colored families that were in that 

block went there approximately December, 1927, that is, 1113, 
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and 1115, and then December, 19:28 as to 1114? 

A I think so. 

Q, You do know of some attempt having been made prior 

to that by one of the signers to this agreement to put 

colored families in another house in the block, do you not? 

A No, sir, I do not recall that. 

Q, How does the appearance of that block compare with 

the last time you went there with the time,approximately, 

when this agreement was executed? 

MR. GARMDDY: I object. 

THE COURT: I will let him make a comparison so far 

as he was able to observe it. You mean physical appearance? 

MR. CARMODY: Physical appearance, what he could 

see by passing by? 

A Well, some of the houses aren't as well kept as they 

were. I did not take particular notice of it because the 

church is only a few numbers from the corner, I go right 

in the church and come right out. 

M, When was the last time you were there? 

A December, 19E8. 

Q, You say you have not been there since December, 1928, 

at all? 
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A I have not. 

Q, Did you see many "For Sale" or "For Rent" signs in 

the block when you were there December, 1928? 

A I could not say, I did not take particular notice 

of that. 

CH033 EXAHIHATIOH. 

By Mr. Carmody: 

0. You signed this agreement, you admitted this was 

your signature? 

A Yes, sir. 

0. What does "S. C. R." stand for at the end of your 

name? 

A It is "5. C. C." 

nQ, Secretary of what? 

A Secretary of the Church Council and also Secretary 

of the Church. 

Q, You. signed it as Secretary of the Concordia Evan­

gelical Lutheran Church here, did you sign that in good 

faith? 

A I signed it with the understanding-- I was under 

the impression it was a revival of the first agreement. 
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Q Do you see the name "Concordia Evangelical ^mtheran 

Church" a"bove your signature? 

A I notice it; yes, sir. 

Q, And you signed it as Secretary? 

A I signed my name under it. . 

Q, Above your name. Well, did you see the signature 

of the Reverend Henry B. Young? 

A I signed first. 

Q, Did you see him sign? 

A I was there present when he signed. 

Q, And he signed as the Reverend Henry 3. Young, 

Pastor and President? 

A He did not write "Pastor" and "President" under 

that. He was not President. 

Q, The paper shows it is? 

A That isn't his writing "and President" is not his 

writing. If you will look at it, you will see that it is 

in a different handwriting. 

Q It appears here the Reverend Henry B. Young,Pastor 

"and President" is written in a different handwriting under­

neath his name? 

A Underneath his name. 
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TIE COURT: How much of it is in a different hand­

writing. 

MR. CAjRMODY: "And President." 

THE COURT: Do you know how those words "JLnd President" 

got there, Mr. Storm? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, I do not. 

THE COURT: You say he was not president of the 

church? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, he was not the president, 

that is a separate office and was not held by the pastor. 

Q, Do you know whose writing this "and President" is 

on there? 

A No, sir, I do not. 

Q, At the time that was signed, was there a Notary 

present? 

A Kiss Young or Mrs. Young, this lady over here, 

was present at the meeting when that was signed. 

Q, Did she have you acknowledge this as your act? 

A She did not say a word to me about it. I signed the 

paper-- I came in the room where it was being signed, signed 

the paper and went out. I did not stay to see who else sign­

ed it. 
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Q Mr. Storm, you signed that as an officer of the 

church, did you not? 

A I signed it as Secretary. 

Q, You signed it as Secretary? 

A '.Yithout authority. 

Q, You knew, I presume, that you were signing some kind 

of a legal document, did you not? 

A I thought it was a revival of the old agreement 

which we had authority for before. 

Q, You did not read it? 

A No, sir. 

Q, You knew other interests or individuals outside 

the church, did you not? 

A From what I understand, the church was supposed 

to be the one that signed. That is what I was told. 

Q. You knew there were other Interests besides the 

church involved in this agreement? 

A Yes. 

Q You knew that the church's interests were involved 

in this agreement, did you not? 

A Yes. 

Q And you signed as secretary for the church? 
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A Signed as Secretary. 

Q In the church building? 

A In the church building. 

Q, And you now want to repudiate that, is that right? 

A I signed it without authority. 

Q, And you were a member of the church? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, When did you sever your connection with this parti­

cular ehurch? 

A In 1928-- 1929 of this year. 

Q, What month? 

A It was either February or March; it was around Easter. 

Q, Up to the time you severed your connection with the 

ehurch, did you know of an offer of any Catholic institution 

that wished to acquire that property? 

A I did not. 

(Objected to). 

TÎ E COURT: That isn't cross examination, Mr.Carmody. 

That is the only ground on which I will sustain the objec­

tion. 

MR. CARfODY: If the Court could bear with it, we 

could have the fullest lattitude. 
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Q, Who was in the church at the time you signed it? 

A Mr. Berger, Reverend Young, and this lady over here, 

Miss Young. 

Q. Who is Mr. Berger? 

A Mr. Berger is one of the members of the council. 

f4 What is his first name? 

A Mr. Louis Berger. 

THE COURT: A member of the council? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

Q, He was a member of the council when he started? 

A Yes. 

0, And the pastor was there? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, And the Pastor signed it and you signed it? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, And Mr. Berger and the notary signed it? 

A Yes, sir. . 

Q, You knew that a meeting had been held prior to that 

night, did you not, in the basement of the church? 

MS. VOG-T: Objected to. 

THE COURT: Well, if he knows, he can tell us, of 

c our s e . 
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A The only meeting I know of was for the first agree­

ment, that is the only one I know of. 

Q, Bid you know that it was held that night? 

A That night? 

Q, Yes, •hen you were a half "block away and returned? 

A No, it was not that night. 

0, "fas there a meeting that night in the "basement of 

the church? 

A No, "because the day I signed it was on Sunday. 

Q, And when did you first report that to the council 

or the congregation? 

A Oh, it was never reported. 

Q You never made any report to the congregation? 

A I never made any report . 

Q, Bid you ever speak to the Pastor of the church 

a"bout your act? 

A We never discussed it after that. 

Q, Bid you knew that property interests were involved? 

MR. FYLATTBER: You have asked that question a num"ber 

of times already. 

THE COURT: Well, I think he said he did. 

THE WITNESS: I said before that I did. 
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THE COTJRT: He said he thought the property in the 

whole area was involved. 

Q, Did you ever discuss the question after that with 

any person? 

A I did not, I never did. 

Q. Did you know that this document was put on record? 

A I never heard of it, no, sir, being put on record, 

the last time I heard of it was when I signed it; I never 

heard a word about it since until this suit cgrne up. 

Q, TTho told you to sign it? 

A Mr. Berger said it was all right to sign. I came 

in from the outside and they said I was to sign this agree­

ment, that it was all right, and I took it for granted that 

it was a revival of the first agreement. 

Q, What authority did you have to sign a first agree­

ment? 

A By authority of the meeting of the congregation. 

Q, It empowered you as Secretary to sign a paper, 

did they? 

A Evidently because I was not Secretary when the firs 

agreement was signed. 

Q, Then you thought you were signing the first agree-



75 

ment and, accor&iing to your own statement-- I do not want 

to misquote you-- you knew you did not have authority to 

sign it? 

A I took it for granted It was a revival of the first 

agreement which had been brought up. 

Q, And you had no authority to seal the first agree­

ment? 

A I was not secretary then, I was secretary after 

this first agreement had been signed the following year. 

THE COOKS: Had been signed? 

THE WITNESS: The first agreement had been signed 

by the former Secretary. 

REDIRECT EXA'"PTATI0TT. 

"By Mr. Yogt: 

Q, Mr. Storm, when you saw Mrs. Young there, did she 

represent to you that she was a notary public? 

A As far as I know, she did net say a word. 

0, Did anyone else represent themselves to be a notary 

public at that time? 

A Not to my knowledge. 

Q. That is the Sunday when you signed this paoer? 
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A Kot to my knowledge. 

0. Can you place the date of the signing of this paper 

on the Sunday in the month of February or March, can you 

tell me what date it was actually signed? 

A I cannot recall exactly, I cannot recall the actual 

date. 

Q, Can you tell me approximately when it was? 

A Sometime in February, 19 25. 

Q, And you have already said that the zone or area 

agreement was in 1924, that you thought this was a revival 

of that, is that correct? 

A Th?t is correct. 

Q, "/ere there any other signatures' on this paper at 

the time, Mr. Storm, when you put your name on it? 

A I only saw the one page and the church, as I re­

collect it, was the only signature— my signature was the 

first one on that page, that is the only page that I saw. 

0. Bo I understand you to say that the words"Bvangeli­

cal Lutheran Church" are in your handwriting? 

A They are not. 

Q, Were those worets there before you signed or not? 
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A They -were. 

Q, They were? 

A They were. 

Q, As to this seal, was that there when you signed? 

A That was not there. 

THE COTTRT: Mr. Berger, you say, was a member of 

the council? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Was he an officer of the church in 

addition to that? 

THE WITTTESS: I do not recall just now whether he was 

or not. 

THE COURT: Do you know where this agreement came 

from, who had it in his possession before you got there or 

after you got there? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Berger had hold of it when I got 

there, he was in the little room with it. 

THE COTTRT: Do you know where he got it from? 

THE WITNESS: No, I do not. 

THE COTTRT: All you know is that when you got there 

Mr. 3erger had it in his hands? 

TEE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 
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(Testimony of the witness concluded). 

Thereupon - --

JOHN H. HESSEY, 

a \ivitness of lawful age , produced on behalf of the p l a i n ­

t i f f , having been f i r s t duly sworn according to law, was 

examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMIHATIOH. 

"By Mr. Vogt: 

Q, Mr. Hessey, you have been asked to come here and 

bring with you a cony of the area or zoning agreement dating 

back to January, 1924, or prior to that time. Have you 

such an agreement with you? 

A I have a copy of an agreement which was prepared in 

1923 for the northern part of the area. There was also a 

separate agreement prepared for the southern area. 

Q, Have "Du that southern area agreement with you? 

A No, I do not. I have had so many copies 0f these 

Mr. Vogt, and I have loaned them out to so many oeople 

who were interested in these agreements, that I am unable 

to find a copy of the southern area agreement. 

file:///ivitness
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Q, Have you a plat showing which area was embraced 

in this entire district which was sought to be restricted 

at that time? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q How far north does that district extend, *r. Hessey? 

A Lafayette Avenue on the north. 

Q, How far to the south? 

A It goes down to Mulberry street at one place. 

Q, And how far south of the other places? 

A At Franklin Street at another place. 

0. That is on account of the Child's Nursery and Hospi­

tal which, I presume, occupies a block? 

A I see that the nursery and child's hospital is 

omitted from this, I am only taking this plat that I found 

in my files. It has been ouite a while ago. 

Q. How far to the west did that extend, Mr. Hessey? 

A Carrollton Avenue is on the west. 

Q, And to the east how far did it go? 

A This shows one place it touched Carey Street but 

only for a short distance and I see it is-- Fremont Avenue 

is the eastern line. 

Q. That was divided into two districts, is that cor-
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rect, which you speak of as the north and south area? 

A For the purpose of getting it signed up easier, 

although it was not divided into two areas, what we call 

the north area and south area so that they night be working 

on the two areas at the same time. 

MR. infLAJTDER: Do the two together constitute one 

area? 

THE WITKE33: Ho, they were to be separate areas. 

I mean to say, the papers all provided that they were to be 

separate areas, and, of course, we had any number of agree­

ments for each area, each paper providing that it should be­

come a part of the general agreement; but the areas were 

separated areas. 

MB. MYIAUDER: What were the limits of the north and 

south areas. 

THE COURT: Or what was the dividing line between 

the north and south area. 

THE WITNESS: Harlem Avenue seems to have been the 

dividing line between the northern area and the southern 

area. 

Q, (By Kr.Vogt): Was the agreement which you prepared 

for the southern area similar to the one prepared for the 
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northern area? 

A The agreements were identical except as to the 

location of the properties, what clauses in them, if any, 

as to the percentage of property owners signing them be­

fore they could becone valid and binding, seventy five per 

centum of the front feet on both sides of those parts of 

the following streets and avenues in the City of Baltimore 

designated as follows, and then follows the designation 

of the oarticular streets. 

THE COURT: Is that on both sides or on one side? 

THE WITNESS: This says on both sides, the north 

and the south side of the street or the east and the west 

side of the street . 

TEE COURT: I was wondering whether you might have 

more than seventy five per cent, on one side and less than 

seventy five per cent, on the other. 

THE WITNESS: Seventy five per cent, on both sides. 

Q, And that southern agreement is the one which the 

church decided to go into, is that correct? 

A I could not t e l l you t h a t , I d o n ' t know anything 

about t h a t . 

Q, Well , th j s agreement i s da ted December 
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A Ho, I say this is dated 1923, I drew many agree­

ments during that tine, Mr. Vogt, because as I would draw 

some of them would say they did not have enough, they had 

different ones signing the agreement . 

0. What success, if any, lid your plan meet with 

towards binding the entire zone embracing the northern area 

and the southern area? 

A Well, they did not get sufficient signers for either 

one of those areas, and hence, they were unable to put the 

agreements en record. 

Q, Are you personally acquainted with the conditions 

in those two areas at this time? 

A So, sir, I am not, I have not been up there in the 

area for quite some time and I could not answer that. 

THE COURT: According to the terms of these two 

agreements, could either become effective without the other? 

THS WITNESS: Yes, sir, either area could become 

effective without the other. 

Q, How mahy blocks were embraced in either one of those 

two districts; take the southern area first? 

A Approximately nine or ten. 

0, Can you tell us which clocks are actually in the 

j . — _ _ . : : — - — L 
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southern area by numbers and the names of those streets? 

MR. MYLATOER: We understand the Court will take 

judicial notice of the location of the streets.. 

THE COMRT: Well, it might save me some trouble. 

A Edmondson Avenue from Fremont Avenue to Garrollton 

Avenue 

k That is, both sides of the street? 

A "Both sides of the street. Bennett Place from Fre­

mont Avenue to Arlington Avenue, Franklin Street from Popple-

ton to Carrollton Avenue, Mulberry street from Arlington 

Avenue to Garrollton; Brantley Place from Schroeder to 

Arlington; Carrollton Avenue from Harlem to Mulberry, Ar­

lington Avenue from Harlem to Mulberry and Schroeder Street 

from Mulberry to Harlem. 

Q, That (is more than eight or nine blocks, is it not? 

A Oh, no, when I counted the blocks I have counted 

just one block bound by the four streets. If you count 

the other way, of course, you have to multiply that by four. 

I have taken the actual block itself, Mr. Vogt. That was 

the southern area. 

Q, And you say by insufficient signers appending 

their names to those two area agreements they were abandoned, 
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and what was resorted to in their place, if anything? 

A Well, there was one agreement in this area put on, 

that, was the Franklin Street agreement. 

MR. MTULNOTBR: That is the HOG clock? 

THE WEEHESS: The' 1100 block West Franklin Street. 

% Well, that dates a whole year and several month3 

later, does it not? 

A I don't know the date cf it "but it may be. They were 

working on it quite a while up there. 

TCR. WfT&B'BER: How long? 

THE WITHE33: Oh, quite some time; at least a couple 

years. 

Q, MR. ir/MnDER: How long did it take to get the 1100 

block West Franklin Street signed up? 

A Oh, I am talking about the area, and it took a couple 

years. The Franklin Street block took a very short time. 

MR, FYLASDEE: How long would you ^udge? 

THE WITTTS3S: Mr. Mylanier, that has been four or 

five years ago and I could not say. 

MR. M/TLAUDBR: Would you say two or three moftths? 

THE WITHE3S: A H I know is this, I know after one 

of the properties had been occupied by a colored person the 
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next morning my office was beseiged by five or six people 

asking me to prepare the agreement for 1100 block West 

Franklin Street, I know I prepared the agreement immediate­

ly and I turned it over to them to be signed. I know some 

time later it was brought back to my office to be filled 

and I think that the records in the meantime were checked 

to see that the property owner6 had properly signed the 

agreement. 

THE COURT: You mean 75^, 

THE WITNESS: I am not certain about-- let me see 

the agreement. 

MR. MYLANDER: Was it iust 75^? 

THE "WITNESS: I do not remember the particular clause. 

MR. ir/IATTDER: You prepared the agreement, did you, 

Mr. Hessey? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

Q, (By Mr. Mylander): Did you personally check up on 

the titles? 

A Ho, I had someone to do that for me. 

0, Who was acting as solicitor to get the paper signed 

up? 

A There was no 
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Q, I do not mean attorney in the sense of attorney-

at-law, but who was acting upon getting the paper signed? 

A I could not answer that because my recollection is 

that I turned it over to these people at that time, Mr. 

Ramey was president of the Lafayette Square Protective 

Association was living and he was very active in the matter. 

Q, Did you make any representation to anybody at all 

about the titles being checked up and found to be 0. K.? 

A No. 

Q, Then, how did you know you had all the right names 

positively, these various ownerships? 

A As I say, that was checked up, I believe. Whether or 

not I have that with me is another question. 

Q, Well, it is not material whether you have it. I 

was just wondering-- you intended to have all the parties 

there, did you not? 

A Ho, I see from this that they are not set forth in 

here, the title examiners. 

Q, But the owners are set forth? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, The alleged owners opposite the named properties? 

A Yes, sir. 
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THE COTJKT: In the "body of the agreement? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, in the body of the agree­

ment . 

Q, When you prepared that agreement you intended that 

to be a full statement of the ownership of those various 

properties, did you not? 

A When, you say a full statement, it was known that 

none of the ground rent owners would come in to sign or any 

of the mortgage owners to sign. 

Q, You never thought to get the mortgagees to join 

in? 

A We never a t tempted t o do t h a t , Mr. Mylander. That 

was discussed frequently. 

0, Didn't you, as an attorney, know you could not bind 

the property without the mortgagee joining in? 

A Positively, sir. 

Q, And t:iat it was easy to wipe out the signature by 

foreclosure of the mortgage? 

A There is no question of what I knew but what the 

association was advised to do. 

Q, Did you tell Mrs.Young, that lady over there, that? 

A I did not.Say I told Mrs. Young that but this was the 
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understanding, that it would be laborious to get them and 

get the ground rent owners and the mortgage owners to sign 

as well as other owners, that no effort whatever was made to 

get their signatures. 

Q, Mrs. Young you knew was the lady who went out and 

got the signatures? 

A I don't know whether she did or not. 

0, But you made no secret of it? 

A Hone whatever. 

MR. CAV'CDY: Mr. Hessey don't know who got the 

signatures. 

THE COURT: Ho, you are assuming that Mrs. Young got 

the signatures. I think your question is objectionable on 

that ground. 

Q, Mt. Hessey, when you were checking up those titles, 

. did you make any effort to get the remaindermen in; fee 

simple property, for instance, or leasehold property, or 

property which happened to come under a deed of trust or 

under a Will with a life estate like Mrs. Jeffers case, where 

.the lady was eighty one years old, with remainder over, did 

you make any effort to bring in any remaindermen? 

A No, sir. 
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Q You did not think it was necessary? 

A I told you we endeavored to get the owners of the 

property, either the leasehold or the fee simple title 

owners hut no one else. 

Q, Would you regard life tenants as a fee simple or 

leasehold title owner? 

A Why, of course not. 

Q, 3ut you made no effort to include the remaindermen 

in this paper, did you? 

A If I knew the situation I would have done so, Mr. 

Mylander. 

0, Didn't you have an examination made of these titles? 

A I say I think there were some made but I am not 

pssitive of it four years later. 

THE COURT: Look through your files to refresh your 

memory. 

THE WITHESS: I say this, there may have been one 

or two instances in which it was never found, if you know 

what a job it is. 

Q, As you are looking through your, abstracts, I am 

interested particularly in 1102 and 1143? 

A I don' t think I have any abs t rac t s here , Mr. Mylander. 
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As I say, I had so many folders on this and I only tried to 

get the papers asked for. I am positive that the records 

for the 400 block North.Carey Street were examined but I 

would not be positive that they were examined for this 

particular 1100 block. 

Q, Then the information which you have in the body of 

the papers representing certain parties as the owners of 

certain properties were only from casual information, which 

was developed from a cursory investigation of the respective 

premises, is that right? 

A And by having signed the agreement. 

Q, And the fact that the same people signed the agree­

ment, but you had this written up--

A You understand, Mr. Mylander, the information as to 

the names of these properties was not in here at the time 

the agreement was signed, That agreement was prepared with 

this blank space here. 

Q, So that it was all filled in after execution, is 

that right? 

A There is no question about it, sir. 

Q, Let us make ourselves clear as to how much of that 

was filled in after execution, the first page and the second 
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page? 

A I would say at least the first and second page, Mr. 

Mylander. 

0, How about the third page? 

A I could not say that after this length of time. 

Q, So there is no way after looking over the paper 

of telling what was before execution and what was after 

execution? 

A I say the only change in the paper was the insertion 

of the party signing it and the number of the property. 

Q, Mr. Hessey, you represented the active interests 

in getting this paper executed, as attorney, that is right, 

isn't it? 

A I would say so, yes. 

0, So you do know approximately how long they were in 

the course of getting this -oaoer executed? 

A Only I say it took some little time. 

Q, This paper took some little time? 

A I don't know whether it ivas a month or two months 

or three months. 

Q, You do know, however, from your own personal know­

ledge that it was a physical impossibility and does not eon-
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form to facts at all that the notary signifies that the 

first execution was on the 16th ana the last the 23rd, 

you know it was all in one week? 

A I would not say that. My recollection is what 

happened was when the acknowledgements were actually entered 

on there oh, yes, they were taken at different times, 

and if I am not mistaken I expressly suggested that they 

must keep a record of when they were taken 

Q, But did she, do you know? 

A And when the acknowledgements were entered the 

names were entered on the dates that they were supposed to 

he signed, I think you will find that a record was kept of 

the actual dates. I am not certain of that. 

Q, Hy signature which appeared as attorney for owners, 

viz, then setting out the owners? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, There are three words stricken out and in place of 

them is written "individually and as attorney". Do you 

know in whose handwriting that word "individually" is? 

A I won't say as to t h a t . 

^ Can you t e l l us whether or not that i s the no ta ry ' s 

handwriting? 
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A Ho, t h i s i s n ' t the n o t a r y ' s w r i t i n g . 

Q, You d o n ' t know whose handwr i t ing t h a t i s ? 

A I t looks more l i k e my h a n d w r i t i n g . 

(Examination of the w i tnes s suspended) . 

MR. MYLAIBER: If your Honor p l e a s e , the p l a t show­

ing the a r e a of t h i s d i s t r i c t , t h e zoning p r o p o s i t i o n which 

was o r i g i n a l l y contemplated, we ask to f i l e as an e x h i b i t . 

1R. CARHODfT: I objec t to t h a t . 

THE COURT: You o b j e c t . 

MR. CARMODY: Yes, t h e reason for t h a t I might say--

IB.HYBUfM&R: The t e s t imony of Mr. Storm showed t h a t 

he thought he was s ign ing a c e r t a i n a r ea p r o p o s i t i o n and we 

a re e n t i t l e d to show what t h a t c e r t a i n a r ea p r o p o s i t i o n 

r e a l l y was t h a t he thought he was s ign ing . 

MR. CARMCDY: I t i s e n t i r e l y out of the case , i n my 

op in ion . I t i s r e a l l y of no value one way or the o ther 

in t h e ca se , i t simply encumbers uo the r ecord wi th a map 

of p rope r ty thfet i s not i n d i s p u t e and has no r e l a t i o n what­

ever to the agreement s i gned . 

THE COURT: I do not t h ink i t ou.^ht to be admit ted 
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in evidence, I think it ought to be used for illustrative 

purposes, but there may be a great deal of information 

in there that is not relative to this case and I do not think 

you need it. Mr. Hessey has given us the full details, I 

have them very clearly in mind now and I think any sort of a 

reliable plat, as I assume this is, ought to be admitted to 

be used for convenience. But I do not see that it is evidence 

in the case binding on the parties unless Mr. Hessey will 

testify that it was exhibited to the parties and made a part 

of their negotiations and agreements, so to speak. Suppose 

we just let it come in for the oresent and see what develops 

when Mr. Hessey comes back. I agree with Mr.Carmody that 

I do not think it makes any difference one way or the other. 

Thereupon - - -

WILLIAM FDCES, JR., 

a witness of lawful age,produced on behalf of the plaintiff, 

having been first duly swcrn according to law, was examined 

and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Vogt: 
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Q, Mr. Fuchs,how long have you been connected with the 

Concordia Church? 

A About thirty four years. 

Q, Did you or not live in the vicinity of that church 

building in the HOC block West Franklin Street? 

A I livedat 512 TCorthArlington Avenue, that is right 

around the corner. I was a kid in a grocery store there 

about three years when Bryan first ran for president. 

Q, For thirty four years, then, you have been attending 

this church and you live in the immediate neighborhood 

practically all of that time until when? 

A Ho, I did not live in the neighborhood all that time. 

Q, You worked in the neighborhood I mean? 

A I attended that church all of that time, I lived 

right there in the neighborhood. I was born around the 

corner from there. 

Q What office, if any, did you hold in the Concordia 

Lutheran Church? 

A Oh, I have held all kinds of offices in the church, 

mostly though in the church council; Sunday school work. 

Q, You have held a great many offices, you say, in the 

thirty four years of your activity there? 
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A Yes. 

Q, Do you recall or not, Mr. Puchs, a congregational 

meeting held some time in January, 1924? 

A I do. 

Q, I hand you the congregational records book with 

the minutes in it and direct your attention to the minutes 

held in January, 1924. Will you tell us whether or not those 

records are correct of that meeting on the business trans­

action at that time? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: Did you ever see those minutes before? 

THE WITNESS: I have seen all of these minutes but 

it has been a long time ago, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Do you know whether you saw these minutes? 

TEE WITNESS: I couldn't say these minutes but I have 

the thing in mind even clearer than this. 

Q What is your recollection as to the occurrence at 

this congregational meeting on January 8th, 1924? 

A I remember vividly this matter brought up. Mr.Ramey 

at that time was particularly active in this area agreement--

0. You mean the agreement purporting to affect the zone 

or a number of blocks? 
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A A number of blocks, and this particular meeting of 

the congregation was called in regular order. I remember 

distinctly for the simple reason that the matter was brought 

up and there was wrangling in that matter because.it was a 

very close vote. In fact, the president of the congregation 

made it distinctly plain that he was to be ouoted as being 

opposed to signing this agreement. I voted for signing the 

agreement but the vote was 7 to 6, and you can imagine in 

church it was at least an hour anc: a half wrangling about 

this matter. 

THE OOimT: That was in council? 

THE WITNESS: No, that was in the congregational 

meeting. 

THE C0TF?T: 7 t o 6? 

THE WITNESS: It was in council to bring it up. 

THE COURT: '//hat was the name of the p r e s i d e n t a t t h a t 

t ime? 

THE WITNESS: Mr. John C. Louis. 

Q, How were the offices held, was the Pastor the presi­

dent of the congregation? 

A According to our by-laws, since we have joined this 

particular Synod the president of the congregation is never 



the Pastor. The council elects from its own members its 

President, its Treasurer and its Secretary. 

Q, So at the time Reverend Young signed this second 

paper purporting to affect only the 1100 block West Franklin 

Street, he was not the President of the church? 

A The Pastor of the church never was President, not 

since I have been a member there in thirty four years. He 

could not, according to the by-laws. 

Q Mr.Fuchs, has any authority been conferred on the 
• 

Pastor to sign any papers of this kind? 

(Question objected to). 

THE-COURT: Well, you mean by that authority,you 

mean express authority. 

MR.VOGT: Yes, any express authority by resolution. 

THE COURT: I think you ought to ask whether any such 

authority was given at any meeting he attended. 

Q, You say that the by-laws do not contain anything 

authorizing the Pastor to execute such agreement, that is 

correct, is it not. 

A Of course, he could net do anything like that without 

authority. 

Q, At'these meetings which you attended from time to 
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time, was any authority or resolution passed giving the 

Pastor the right to execute papers of this character? 

A I was a member of the council and a very active 

member of the council during the year that this particular 

paper 

Q, Which paper? 

A The area paper was signed. I was also a member of 

the church in 1925-- I mean a member of the council.and I was 

very active, and if anything like that would have gone on 

I surely would have known it. 

Q, You say a vote was passed authorizing the execution 

of the large area agreement in January, 1924? 

A Yes. 

Q, "fill you tell us what recollection or knowledge you 

had concerning this agreement purporting to affect the-

HOC block West Franklin Street, was that submitted to any 

council meeting or any congregational meeting that you at­

tended? 

A I never heard of it. If it had been presented to any 

council meeting or congregational meeting, I would have known 

of it. 

0, When did you first acquire information as to this 
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agreement relating to the 1100 bloclc Franklin street, what 

was your first information and knowledge of that? 

A When we went to sell or consolidate the two churches 

and try to dispose of the property, then my attention was 

called to this particular transaction that there was a 

block business or block transaction, something like that. 

Q, You mean a one block transaction? 

A Yes. I want to get this clear to the Court. Accord­

ing to our by-laws, we must be notified-- the congregation 

must be notified by a notification of at least two weeks 

before a congregational meeting can be called. Therefore, 

speaking about this second agreement, there never was any 

congregational meeting called to pass on it; there could 

no t be. 

0. Was there any council meeting called to pass on it? 

A No, sir, and I attended all the council meetings. 

Q, When was your first information obtained as to the 

existence of this one block agreement? 

A When we went— when we consolidated the two churches, 

?;hich was in formation the latter part of last year. 

Q The latter part of 1928? ' 

A 1928; yes, sir. 



Q. Can you tell us which date that was, the exatft 

date? 

A No, it must have been in October, when the subject 

was brought up to consolidate the two churches owing to the 

fact there was a tremendous decrease in membership up there 

owing to the fact that the condition of the neighborhood 

changed so rapidly. 

(4 What, if anything, was done toward ratifying or 

repudiating the consolidation? 

A Nothing. Our church was about to consolidate. 

We voted on that but then we felt it was a thing we should 

never get into. We had to dispose of the church property. 

To my knowledge, we never had an offer from any white people 

to try to buy it and knowing the condition in that neighbor­

hood, you could not possibly sell it to whites. The only 

thing you could do was to sell it to colored people. I had 

three or four colored fellows come down there and try to 

buy the-property from me personally. I was President of the 

congregation in 1928. 

Q, Could you rent this property to any white people in 

that block? 

A Well, I never heard of any offer being made. I do 

not think you could possibly rent the church there. Your 
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Honor, I never had an offer. 

Q, Have you had any applications? 

A Not whites, I have had three or four colored fellows 

down there trying to "btiy the property. Of course, whentthey 

found out we were in this other agreement, I did not hear 

much about it. 

THE COURT: You say you were President of the con­

gregation in 1928? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Not during the time of consolidation? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir, I was a member of the church 

council in 1924 and 1925 and President of the church in the 

latter part of 1928. 

Q Was there or not any resolution passed repudiating 

this agreement, Mr. Puchs, and authorizing the institution 

of this suit after the congregation was informed about it 

in 1928, the latter nart of the year? 

A Yes, sir, at that time we decided to engage counsel 

and repudiate this allege second agreement, and that is why 

this suit was brought. 

Q The suit was brought as a result of that? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, Now, as to the change of neighborhood in the 1100 
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block West Franklin street, you say you have been accuainted 

with that section for thirty four years. Will you tell us 

what change, if any, has taken place in the character of the 

neighborhood in the 1100 block West Franklin Street? 

A Your Honor, I was torn two squares away from this 

particular church and in all I have lived around that neigh­

borhood practically as long as I have lived. I went to this 

church when Bryan first ran. I was confirmed there and was 

also grocery boy there, so I got familiar with that block 

around there and served groceries all around that neighbor­

hood, and I can see a trenendous change come over that neigh­

borhood. Formerly a fine class of people lived out around 

that neighborhood, they were fine people, and gradually, 

of course, it wjsnt down and down and the better class moved 

out, and then, of course, we got a weaker class in and it 

got weaker and weaker and more undesireable, and eventually 

negroes moved in. 

S[ How far back does that change take place with 

respect to this purported second agreement of February, 19S5? 

A Oh, the change in the last three years has been more 

rapid than the last fifteen years previous to that. After 

the negroes first started tip-- when Mr. Ramey first started 

that thing in 1923 to try to protect that neighborhood up 
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there. 

Q, And say the last three years it has clisinter-grated? 

A Oh, terribly. 

Q, '.'/hat about the 1100 block. West Franklin Street? 

A Oh, that is much worse. Why, that five or six 

hundred block Carrollton Avenue, I had a young man working 

for me up there a young fellow, who moved out of there and 

I think in three months time the neighborhood was black. 

0. What about these other blocks, Arlington Avenue, 

for instance, in the 500 block? 

A I lived 512 for four or five years at the time Bryan 

first ran for President and it was a fine neighborhood. 

Now there are "For Rent" and "For Sale" signs out there 

and there they are for practically a year or more. 

Q, What about the 1000 block west Franklin street ad­

joining this block on the east. Do the same conditions pre­

vail there? 

A The 900 and 1000 block is the same way; all the way 

down to Fremont Avenue. 

Q, How about on the west of this property, the 1200 

block West Franklin Street? 

A I had a r e l a t i v e l iv ing in the 1200 block ut> to about 
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six years ago. That neighborhood is coming down. That is up 

near the Fairfield Dairy. In fact, all that neighborhood 

is, the last three years it has been terrible the way that 

neighborhood has been going down. 

Q, Particularly the district embraced in the large area 

or zone, which was massed upon in January, 1924, you say 

that, is now largely occupied by negroes? 

A Absolutely, all the churches up there are digging 

out as quick as they can, they are losing their membership. 

As soon as a white family moves out of a house in comes a 

negro family. There are three story houses v.^ there and 

two or three negro families go into the house. They are 

very large houses up there, three story houses. 

Q, Is the Christ Evangelical Episcopal Church occupied 

by negroes now? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: Gentlemen, I know about these things my­

self pretty well. 

A I could not answer that anyhow, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Then the question is withdrawn I suppose, 

THE WITfBSS: I only know of it as hearsay, I don't 

know it as a fact. Therefore, I cannot testify to it. 
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All Saints Evangelical Lutheran Church is now in 

actual possession of this church property as a consolidated 

congregation, is that correct? 

A It is, sir. 

GROSS EXAMISA.TIOS. 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Mr. Fijchs, I will ask you is there any lot or pcrtion 

of lot in West Baltimore, west of Fremont Street, east of 

Fulton Avenue, south of North Avenue or north of Baltimore 

street, other than this "block that is white or partially 

white? 

A I am afraid you are covering too much territory. 

THE COURT: It is a big order. 

TEE WITTTE33: It is a big order. Your Honor, I 

go past there in an automobile quite frequently and I am 

pretty well familiar with that section, but it is just a 

little too much territory. There is very little of it in 

that connection that I can absolutely testify that it is 

a hundred T>er cent, white. I do not think it is fair to 

ask me that, it is too much territory. Maybe twenty-five 

per cent, of that territory I can testify to but not as much 

as one hundred. I go by there quite frequently in an auto-
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mobile. 

Q, I notice some of our friends around the Court room 

here seem to take umbrage at the thought that nice white 

people usually do not like to live next to colored people. 

Have you any personal observations of your own on that sub­

ject? 

A Well, Jtr. Mylander, I don't know. I would personally 

not want to. I have seen them get a negro in the block 

and seen them dig out quick. Take, for instance, the 700 

block North Carrollton Avenue. I know this particular young 

fellow that worked for me 

(Objected to). 

THE CO^RT: Yes, I do not want that. I will have 

to depend upon my own knowledge for that. 

l 

CROSS EXAHEfAS ION. 

By Mr . Carmody: 

0. -'/ere you a member of the church council in 1925? 

A Yes, sir. 

0, Who is Mr. Berger? 

A Mr. Berger has been a member of the church for many 

years . 
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Q Was he a member of the council? 

A In that particular year-- I cannot answer that ques­

tion whether he was a member of the council that particular 

year. I know he was either in 1924- or 1925, but if it 

was in either year, of course, I could not tell you that. 

Mr. Berger has been on and off. Sometimes he would b*s— 

you see, this is the way our constitution read. A man could 

be treasurer of a church without being a member of the coun­

cil and the treasurer would meet with us. He had no vote 

but he could meet with the council and bring his report in. 

Mr. Berger has teen treasurer on and off for quite a x̂ hile. 

He met with us in a good many instances but he wouldn't have 

a vote or he would not be a member of the council. 

M. V/here would the council meet? 

A Usually at the Darsona^e. Sometimes we would meet 

at some of our homes,during the summer months if it was warm 

we would go out to some member's house who lived in the sub­

urbs where it was cool. 

0, But in winter time you would always meet at i±ie par­

sonage, would you? 

A Yes, at the parsonage; sometimes in the church but 

mostly in the parsonage, during these specific years you 
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speak of. 

0, If I told you that in January, 1925 that you met at 

Mr. Berger's house, would you say that I was incorrect? 

A No, I would not because we met at Mr. Berger's house. 

I told you we had no specific place. It just depended on 

how the members were situated. Sometimes we would meet at 

Mr. Berger's house. I know in the last twelve years we have 

met at Mr. Berger's house quite frequently. 

Q, Was Mr. Berger a member of the church council? 

A Now, I could not tell you that. Are you specifying 

1925? 

Q, In 1925? 

A I couldn't tell you that. I know from the best of 

my recollection that lie was a member either in 1924 or 1925. 

A member of the council is elected for two years, then he 

must go out of office. 

^ He cannot be re-elected? 

A He cannot be re-elected unless a year intervenes. 

Q, When did the new Pastor come in, Mr. Young, when did 

the Reverent* Mr. Young, who signed that paper, come in? 

A Reverend Mr. Young, I went after him myself personally. 

If I am not mistaken, he came from out-of-town. I think this 
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Baltimore here and was here about a month. If you tell me--

you mean 1925? 

Q, February 16th, 1925. 

A Yes, I suppose he was here a month. He was a real 

young chap. 

THE COURT: Is he still with you? 

THE WITNESS: No, he is not, your Honor. He was 

there for a short while. Of course, when the congregation 

went down we could not afford to pay a large salary and he 

eventually resigned. They had some differences up there and 

he got out. 

Q, I think at the present time he is in Washington? 

A I think he is. 

MR. VOGT: He is in Hagerstown right now. 

THE WITNESS: That is right, Hagerstown is his home. 

Q Who informed you that such an agreement was in ex­

istence? 

A Which agreement are you speaking of? 

Q, I mean the last agreement with regard to the 1100 

block West Franklin.Street? 

A fell, that was brought out at the meeting we had at 
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All Saints Church, when the two councils combined. I mean 

they combined for discussion as to the consolidation of the 

two churches. We could not go any further down at the Con­

cordia. 

Q, What month was that and year? 

A Wow, I think it was about October, 1928, October or 

November, I am not certain; around that time. It must have 

been October because I know we decided to consolidate the 

two churches as ef January 1st, 1929. 

Q, % o was the secretary then? 

A In 1928? 

0, Yes. 

A Mr. Zimmerman was secretary of the Concordia church 

in 1928. 

Q, Mr. Storm was not secretary then? 

A Ho. 

4 Have you the minutes of 1928 here, do you know? 

A What dates do you want? 

Q, At the time you claim you discovered that there was 

such an agreement in existence in October, 1928, who was the 

secretary at that time; Mr. Zimmerman you say? 
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A Yes, I am sure George Zimmerman. Mr. Zimmerman 

was such an efficient secretary, even though he was a member 

of the council we arranged it to have him continue as secre­

tary. 

Q. ffas Mr. Storm present at that meeting when Mr. Zim­

merman was secretary? 

A I c o u l d n ' t t e l l you t h a t . 

Q, Was t h e Reverend Mr. Young present a t t h a t meeting? 

A No, s i r . 

% Who made the announcement that there was such an 

agreement in existence? 

A It is utterly impossible for me to answer that ques­

tion. 

Q. Will yojar minutes show whether Mr. Storm was present 

there in October, 1928, about the time you consolidated? 

A I said about that time. 

Q, Well, make it about. 

A Here under date of December 9th, in looking over this 

record here I notice that the matter of joint councils met 

at the Concordia Church. At that time it was brought out 

that the church was in a restricted block and it had been 

signed by Pastor Young as President. 
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Q, That is in the minutes signed by the Reverend Mr. 

Young as President? 

A Yes. 

TEE COURT: What meeting is that? 

THE WITNESS: December 9th, 1928. 

MR. MYLANDER: Read it. 

THE WjTNESS: (Reading): "The meeting of the joint 

Church Councils was again resumed and the Chairman pointed 

out to the Meaibers present that a neighborhood agreement, 

restricting the block in which Concordia Church property 

is located to white people only, had been signed by Rev. 

Henry B. Young as President of Concordia Evangelical Luther­

an Congregation of Baltimore City and by Mr. Milton 0. Storm, 

its Secretary, and that the Members of Concordia Congrega­

tion and also those of its Church Council had had no know­

ledge of this action on the oart of the Pastor and Secre­

tary; that they had no authority 'whatsoever to execute such 

an agreement; also that their action had never been subse­

quently ratified by the Church Council nor the Congregation 

of Concordia Church." 

0, "/as Mr. Storm present at that meeting, the secre­

tary? 
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A He was not secretary at this time, Mr. Zimmerman 

was secretary according to the records here. We only had 

the church council and Mr. Storm was not a member of the 

church council. 

Q, Who conveyed the informationto the church council 

at that meeting of the existence of the agreement; Er. Young 

was not there, was he? 

A Mr. Fuchs, Mr. Berger, Mr. Knapp, Mr. Snyder, Mr. 

Passeler, Mr. Bing and Mr. Zimmerman. The chairman pointed 

out to the members that the presence of a neighborhood 

agreement existed. 

Q, Who was chairman? 

A I was. 

Q, When did you find it out? 

A I did not find it out until we found it out at this 

particular meeting. 

Q Who spoke about it? 

A They got into a wrangle in this way at that meeting. 

We had the All Saints Church Council there and there were 

six of those gentlemen there and there were seven from our 

church. At that tine we discussed the idea to try and sell 

this property, then there was some discussion by Mr. Young. 



I don't know who brought it up-- it might have been a previous 

time. You see, this was the second meeting we had, the pre­

vious meeting it strikes me in connection with this church 

property 

Q Well, let \is see what your first meeting did. You 

certainly had knowledge of it when you brought it up as 

Chairman? 

A Yes, it might have been a previous meeting. Here is 

a week previous to this, here it was brought out at the meet­

ing previous of November 27th. I just testified as to the 

December 9th meeting and this was November 27th, about twelve 

days or two weeks previous. 

0, W^at was said then about it? 

A At this particular meeting: "Mr. Vogt outlined in 

detail the necessary legal procedure to be taken in such a 

merger and also suggested a possible means of abrogating the 

neighborhood agreement which Concordia Congregation entered 

into some three years ago. He stated before proper merger 

papers could be prepared by him, it should be decided what 

the future name of the United Congregation would be and 

the form of Constitution under which they would operate," 

and so forth. There is nothing there. 



117 

Q Mr. Vogt is the one who prepared that resolution 

of the second meeting? 

k Mr. Vogt prepared that. 

y, He prepared that resolution? 

A Oh, I ionft know that. There is no resolution here. 

I cannot see where tliere is any resolution here unless some­

one on the floor made a motion and it was seconded. 

% fell, was there? 

A In what connection do you mean? 

Q. Was there any action taken with regard to the meet­

ing of Efovenber 27th? 

A Oh, no, not at this t>artieul&r meeting. On December 

9th°it was felt by all members present that it should be 

determined from Mr. Henry Vogt, our attorney, what the best 

plan would be to follow in order to permit of the sale of 

Concordia Church property to colored people and Brother Car-

man, Vice President of the Church Council of All Saints 

Church was asked to ascertain this and also what it would 

probably cost if any court action was necessary." 

Q The resolution reads to sell the Concordia Church 

to colored people as distinguished from white people? 

A There wasn't any resolution made there at all,it was 
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a matter of discussion, according to this. There was no 

motion made or anything like that, just discussion. 

Q, To sell it to colored people? 

A Yes, that was on the 9th. Now, it had been pre­

viously on the 27th of November brought up for the first 

time. 

k At the previous meeting who was Chairman of the 

Council, were you chairman? 

A I was chairman of the council on November 27th. 

Q, Well, now, you had knowledge of the existence of the 

agreement 

A Just let me refresh my memory according to these 

records. Of course, you know Mr. Carmody, in speaking of 

this agreement, I naturally assumed that it was this large 

proposition and not this small one block proposition. 

At that time there was some talk around amongst some of the 

members, but just who started this thing about the specific 

block, 1100 -block West Franklin Street , all the members dis­

cussed it. I think Mr. Berger, if I am not mistaken, brought 

it up. I personally knew nothing about it until about this 

time. I won't tell you whether it was on November 27th but 

it was around that time, maybe two weeks previous. It must 
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have been at this time or previous to this because I am 

reading from November 27th minutes and naturally I knew it 

then because I presided at that particular meeting. 

Q, Now, the previous meeting to that, did you have any 

knowledge of it? 

A Here we have a meeting on the 23rd. Here we have 

Mr. Berger brought this matter up on November 23rd, we had 

a Joint meeting between the two churches at that tirae and the 

church councils. 

Q You brought it up again? 

A No, this is previous to the other two meetings, we 

are taking November 23rd; the other meeting I spoke of was 

November 27th and December 9th. 
0 

% What does it say about it then? 

A This particular time Mr. Berger made a long talk 

here and he said the surrounding neighborhood— "he also 

pointed out the fact that the Lafayette Square Protective 

Association secured the signature to an 'area' agreement 

(the area consisting of approximately eight city squares) 

by a constitutional congregational meeting in the year 1925, 

which was to be in effect for a period of ten years, but 

understood this particular agreement was never consummated. 
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Also that a short period of time after this agreement was 

executed, some of the householders in the 1100 block West 

Franklin Street appeared before some of the members of the 

Church Council of Concordia Church following an evening, hour 

of worship with what is known as a 'block' agreement, asking 

that the secretary execute it. Discussing among themselves 

the question and as these representatives of the block de­

sired quick action, the secretary of the church council of 

Concordia Church signed the document and upon looking up the 

records of the secretary following that particular time, 

there is no evidence upon the records that this latter action 

was ever prooerly passed uoon by the Church Council or the 

congregation of Concordia Church. In view of this, brother 

Berger stated he was not certain whether Concordia Church 

was legally bound by the latter agreement or not. He also 

stated that it was his personal feeling that either of the 

two agreements was null and void as colored people moved in 

next store to the church this past summer and are still there." 

Q, At that meeting did he state to the Council that this 

agreement was on record and put on record in March, 19'S5? 

A Not according to my personal recollection or accord­

ing to the minutes here of this November S3rd meeting. He 
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did not state it was legally put on record. I never knew 

the thing oersonally to be put on record myself until Just 

this minute, to tell you frankly. 

Q, How many meetings were held with regard to this 

block arrangement in the church, do you know, or do you know 

of any? 

A Personally I know of none myself; I don't know; I am 

not familiar with it. At that time, Mr. Carmody, I was not 

living there, I was living in Aghburton at the time, and I 

would only get to the church on Sunday. If they had any 

meetings there at all I am not familiar with it. I attended 

church there oretty nearly every Sunday during that parti­

cular year. 

tc Did you know that Mr. Hessey was the attorney for the 

objectors to the colored residents of that section, did you 

ever hear of that? 

MR. MYLUfMK: Specify it a little more fully. 

Q. Connected with the zone mentioned in the testimony. 

THE COFRT: You mean these restrictions? 

MR. CARMODY: Yes, the restrictions. 

A That is a hard question. I believe I did know some­

thing about some attorney being there. Of course, I know Mr. 
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Hessey slightly and I have a faint recollection that he had 

something to do with it. However, I am not certain. 

Q, Ton don't know positively that he had drawn two 

agreements, one with regard to the block and the other with 

regard to the zone? 

A HO, I ion't know that. The only thing I know, Mr. 

Ramey was very active and I knew Mr. Ramey very well and I 

know he was very active in trying to get these agreements. 

% Do you know why the resolution in the minutes, why 

mention is only to colored oeople? 

A Surely, that was in 1928. We had been satisfied 

we could not sell only to colored people. Anybody up there 

knows well enough from observation. For goodness sake, how 

can you sell that congregation to white people? We are not 

particular, if we could possibly sell that property to any­

one who comes along, we would sell it; we are not questioning 

¥/hether the people are white or black or anything, we want to 

dispose of the property. We have all our money tied up in 

it. 

Q, Have you ever advertised it in the daily papers for 

sale? 

MR. MYLA52ER: I o b j e c t t o t h a t . 
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THE COURT: Overruled. 

A I donft know whether it has ever been advertised. 

Mr. Vogt has a large sign up there "For Sale" and in addi­

tion to that, as I say, two or three colored real estate men 

have been down to see me but when they found out we were 

going to move out of there, they were all after it; they were 

all trying to secure that property, colored people. 

(Testimony of the witness concluded). 

Thereupon - - - -

OlORGE FREDERICK ZIMHERMOT, 

a witness of lawful age, produced on behalf of the plaintiff, 

having "oeen first duly sworn according to law, was examined 

and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Togt: 

H Mr. Zim-.en :an, how long have you been a member of the 

Concordia Church? 

A Since 1915. 

W, Were you familiar or not with the meeting held at 

the church on January 8th, 1924? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Regarding the proposal to sign up an agreement .af­

fecting a. large area? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, Have you the record book of the congregation there, 

can you turn to that resolution, Mr.Zimmerman? 

A Yes, sir. 

% That recollection have ycu, if any, as to what 

agreement was submitted.to the congregation for execution 

at that time? 

A A zoning agreement, which my impression is consisted 

of the territory between West Lafayette Avenue and Mulberry 

and between Freraont and Carrollton Avenue. 

Q, And you say that that paper was authorized to be 

signed by a majority of one vote at the council meeting, is 

that right? 

A Yes, sir. 

H Did you vote for the execution of that paper? 

A Yes, sir. 

0, Had you had any knowledge as to the execution of an 

agreement affecting the one block, would your vote have been 

affected by the difference in the agreement? 

(Question objected to). 
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THE COURT: I sustain the objection. 

Q, When did you receive any information as to this 

agreement affecting the 1100 block West Franklin Street 

alone? 

A About the first part of October, 1928. 

Q, Who communicated that information to the church 

council? 

A Mr. LOTUS Berger. 

Q, Did yoxi have any information as to that agreement 

prior to that time? 

A No, sir. 

^ Did you ever enter :nto any discussion regarding 

segregation agreements between this first zoning agreement 

and the time when the second matter was first brought to 

your attention? 

A lo, sir. 

Q, When anyone mentioned the matter of segregation of 

the races as to that section, what did you have in mind in 

connection with the church? 

A Will you repeat that? 

0, I say, when any mention was made to you of segregat­

ing the races in that section, what did that mean to you in 
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connection with the church property? 

A No mention 

(Objected to). 

_THE COURT: He said there was no discussion. 

You say there was no discussion between that time? 

Ho, sir. 

Was or not any resolution or minutes entered upon 

your records, Mr .Zimmerman, that a meeting was held on "behalf 

of the church in which this one "block agreement was authorized 

to "be signed? 

A No, sir. 

0, Have you examined your records for that? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And there are no such indications. Who has the custo­

dy of the church seal, Mr. Zimmerman, do you have it as se­

cretary? 

A Ho, sir. 

C, Who has the custody of that seal, do you know? 

A I think the financial secretary had it. 

Q, Who was he at that time? 

A In 1925? 

Q. In 1925, that is right? 
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A I don't know, I wasn't a member of the council then. 

Q, Is this the seal of the congregation, is this an 

impression marked on that paper of it? 

A Yes. 

% Will you read what is in that seal? 

A Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation of 

Baltimore City, Seal. 

MR. YOST: I would like to offer that in evidence as 

an exhibit. 

("Paper referred to was thereupon marked and filed 

in evidence as Plaintiff's Exhibit Uo. 4). 

Q, Was that sane seal in use in 1925? 

A I cannot answer that, I wasn't a member of the coun­

cil then. 

Q, But you do know' this seal was used up to 1928 f do 

you not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, Was there any other seal used by the church? 

A Hot that I know of. 

W, What is your knowledge as to the presence of colored 

people occupying property 1114 West Franklin Street, how long 

have they been there? 
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A Well, as I recall it, they came in there during the 

summer of 1928. 

0, Were there any other colored people situated in 

that "block? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, Where? 

A Across the street from the church, two four story 

houses. 

Q, When did they move in there? 

A Approximately a year previous to the time we found 

out about this other agreement. 

!rR. MYIA1TDER: That is, in 1927. 

TEE WITNE33: About the fall of 1927, to the best of 

my belief; I am not certain. 

Q Were any other colored people occupying houses in 

that block if you know of? 

A I could not answer that. 

CR0S3 EXAMINATION. 

q 

A 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Do you pass through that neighborhood often? 

No, sir. 

Mien was the last time you were there? 
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A I was in there.in January of this year. 

Q, You were? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, And the time before that was when? 

A The last service that was held in the church, I 

think that was the last Sunday in December, 19S8. 

0, Up until the end of 19S8, then, you had more or less 

weekly contact with that neighborhood in that block, 1100 

block west Franklin street, is that right? 

A Yes, sir. 

^ Will you tell us whether or not you noted any 

changes in the physical appearance of the block between 

February, 19So and December, 1928? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, Tell us what you observed, did you find any houses 

vacant? 

A There were houses vacant, there were signs on some 

of the houses. The neighborhood surrounding was occupied 

by colored people and on two different occasions we had to 

have police protection for our church on account of negroes 

and others congregating on the corner. 

Q, Negroes arid o t h e r s ? 
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A negroes and white people too. 

0, What do you mean by others? 

A White boys and white men, and my correspondence will 

show you where I had to communicate with Captain Lastner 

of the Police Department to get protection. 

0, That was about what time? 

A One time was during the spring of 1928 and the other 

time he was around in August or September, 1928. 

< Do you know whether there were any robberies com­

mitted in that block? 

A So, sir, none that I know of. 

Q, Did you take any note of any robberies in the news­

paper items? 

A Wo, sir. 

Q, What was the condition of the block in February, 

1925? 

A Well, it was I would consider a moderate class block 

at that time,moderate class of people such as I am myself 

lived in that block. 

Q. In other words, you mean to say the mass of people 

who lived in that block in 1925 were whites? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q, And Edmondson Avenue at that time, was that white 

or colored in February, 1925? 

A That was white. 

0, And Arlington Avenue? 

A White. 

H And Carrollton Avenue? 

A White. 

Q, In other words , Franklin street was but one of many 

streets that were all white but were threatened with colored 

invasion, is that right? 

A Yes, sir. 

y. At the present time is Arlington Avenue white or 

colored? 

A ^rom my observation, it is colored. 

0, Solid or partial? 

A I think it is solid. 

4 How, Carrollton Avenue, is that solid? 

A I don,+; know about Carrollton Avenue, it has been 

quite a while since I have been up Carrollton Avenue. 

'4 How about Edmondson Avenue, do you know anything 

about that? 

A Edmondson Avenue between Arlington and Carrollton 
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is at least part black. I don't know that it is wholly 

black. 

Q The territory to the south is all together black, 

is it not? 

A I am not quite certain of it. 

Q, In other words, ??ulberry street, Saratoga street, 

Lexington street, that is solid? 

A Yes. 

*4 You don't find any white Dersons even on the s t r e e t s 

the re , do you? 

A I wouldn't l i k e to answer t h a t . 

0, Well, you don' t find any l iv ing in the houses? 

A I never have. 

Q, So that if you will compare the 1100 block Franklin 

Street as it existed in the early portion of the year 1925 

with the last time you saw the neighborhood would you say 

it was in December, 1928, what conclusions would you arrive 

at as to that block? 

(Question objected to). 

THE COURT: Don't you think I should draw tho^e con­

clusions? 

MR. FYLA^DER: Your Honor, I withdraw the question. 

That is all. 
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Q, (By Mr. Vogt): Mr. Zimmerman, on December 15th, 

19S8, did you have a council meeting or joint council meeting 

of any kind? 

A December 14th and 16th, two joint meetings. 

H You have one resolution there as to the filing of 

a bill for the nullification of this agreement. Can you give 

us that resolution? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, What date is that passed? 

A December 16th, 19S8. 

Q, Will ycu read the resolution, please? 

A (Reading):"Resolved that Reverend Henry B. Young, 

President of Concordia Evangelical Lutheran Congregation 

of Baltimore City, and Milton 0. Storm, Secretary, were 

without authority in executing a neighborhood agreement 

restricting Concordia Church and the block in which it is 

located to the occupancy of white people only, and that 

said congregation had not authorized them to execute such 

agreement. Further resolved, the Concordia Consolidated 

Congregation of Concordia Church and All Saints Church take 

proper steps to set aside this neighborhood agreement and 

have the same declared illegal and void as to its effect upon 
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Concordia Congregation, and that Mr. Henry Yogt, Esquire, 

Attorney, be authorized to act for us." 

0, What is the- date of that? 

A "December 16th. 

CROSS EXAMINATION. 

By Mr. Carmody: 

'4 When did you learn of this agreement affecting the 

1100 block? 

A About the first part of October, 19S8. 

Q Did you say the seal was in' the possession of the 

financial secretary? 

A I am positive it was. 

Q, What was Br.Storm's office? 

A Daring what year? 

Q In 1925? 

A In 1925 he was secretary. 

0 What kind Of secretary? 

A Secretary of the church council and congregation. 

0, What kind of secretary, financial secretary? 

A No, recording secretary. 

Q, Did you have two secretaries? 

A Not at that time, no, sir; we had two secretaries 
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during the year. 

Q You liaj "but one secretary and the seal was in the 

possession of the financial secretary 

A Oh, I see what you mean. We had two secretaries then. 

Q, One to talcs charge of the seal and one to do the 

recording? 

A We had a financial secretary and a recording secre­

tary at all times. 

THE COURT: In 19 25? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Bo you know who was the financial secre­

tary then? 

THE WITNESS: Ho, sir, hut this book will show it. 

Q, Show us in that book? 

A Mr. Louis Berger 

Q, Read it from the meetings, not from the summary. 

A Mr. Louis Berger during the entire year of 1925 was 

financial secretary. 

Q, '"fas it stated at that meeting on December 16th call­

ed to repudiate the agreement, was it stated at that meeting 

that the agreement had been recorded? 

A Ho, sir. 
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Q, That was not disclosed? 

A No, sir. 

0, Did you know that it had been recorded? 

A Ho, sir. 

Q, Did you know who had signed it for the church? 

THE CCURT: The resolution says so. ^ 

A Yes, we knew that Mr.Storm and the Pastor had sign­

ed it. 

<°i Did you know that the Pastor had signed it as Presi­

dent? 

A Ho, sir. 

0. Did you know that Mr. Storm had signed it as Secre­

tary? 

A Ho, sir, I did not know that. 

Q, Did you know the signature above the name of the 

two officers just mentioned? 

A I have never even seen the agreement, I donTt know 

what it looks like. 

Q, You don't know that? 

A Ho, sir. 

Q, '.'/ho gave you the information that there was an agree­

ment in existence? 
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A Mr. Louis Berger. 

Q, At one of the public meetings? 

A At one of the council meetings. 

Q, What date did he give you that information? 

A I have a lot of minutes here. 

Q, By the way is that the same Mr. Louis Berger who 

was financial secretary in 1925? 

A Identical. 

Q Who had the seal? 

A Yes, sir. 

'< When did he give you the information that that agree­

ment was in existence? 

A If I recall correctly, it was at one of the .joint 

meetings between the two councils. 

Q, You cannot place the date, can you? 

A Well, it is in here. 

Q, And the minutes don't show it? 

A It is in here. I was secretary of the joint council 

meeting and was also secretary of the Concordia, so I have 

two sets of minutes here. 

Q, In the same "book? 

A Yes, sir. On Friday, November 2-3rd, 1928, was a joint 
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meeting between the two church councils. Do you want me to 

read it? 

A Ye?, I wish you would. 

A (Reading): "Brother Berger outlined the present 

conditions existing at Concordia Church that of the scatter­

ed and declining membership of both the church and Sunday 

school; the absence of a Pastor; the surrounding neighbor­

hood and the fact that Concordia Church was supposedly bound 

by a 'block agreement' not to dispose of the church property 

to colored people for a number of years to come. He also 

pointed out the fact that the Lafayette square Protective 

Association secured the signature to an 'area* agreement 

(the area consisting of approximately eight city squares) 

by a constitutional congregational meeting in the year 1925 

which was to be in effect for a period of ten years, but 

understood this particular agreement was never consummated. 

Also that a short period of time after this agreement was 

executed, some of the householders in the 1100 block West 

Franklin Street appeared before some of the members of the 

church council of Concordia Church following an evening hour 

of worship with what is known as a "block" agreement ask­

ing that the secretary execute it. Discussing among them-
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selves the question and as these representatives of the 

block desired quick action, the secretary of the Church 

Council of Concordia Church signed the document and upon 

looking up the records of the Secretary following that 

particular time, there is no evidence upon the records that 

this latter action was ever properly passed upon by the 

Church Council or the congregation of Concordia Church. In 

view of this, brother Berger stated he was not certain 

whether Concordia Church was legally bound by the latter 

agreement or net. He also stated that it was his personal 

feeling that either of the two agreements was null and void 

as colored people moved in nezt door to the church this 

past summer and are still there." 

Q, You heard Mr.Storm testify? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, That when he signed that agreement there was only 

Mr. Berger, Mr. Young, Mrs. Young and himself present? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q, "Does that statement of Mr.Storm agree with what you 

have ûst read? 

THE COURT: Do you think the witness ought to be call­

ed upon to answer that? 
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MR. VOG-T: We object, your Honor. 

THE COURT: That is a matter for argument, Mr.Carmody. 

You may contend that it does not and the other side may 

contend that it does, and I will have to decide it. 

Q, Was that the first knowledge you had of the existence 

of that agreement? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q. Did you know they had these meetings in the church 

to form a "block association or agreement? 

A Ho, sir. 

j 
Q You did not? 

A No, sir. 

Q, Had you heard it discussed at all before that? 

A ITo, s i r , not the block agreement . 

Q "Did you know Mr. Young, the P a s t o r ? 

A Very i n t i m a t e l y . 

Q, Bid you know t h a t he had signed t h i s agreement? 

A ITo, s i r . 

Q, As President? 

A No, sir. 

(Testimony of the witness concluded). 

(Thereupon, at 4 o'clock P. M., an adjournment was 
taken until 10 o'clock Monday morning.) 
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Monday, October 28, 1929 

Hearing in the above entitled cause was resumed 

on Monday, October 28, 1929, at ten o'clock a. m. 

Present: Counsel for the.respective parties. 

Mr. MYLANDER: In order that the record in this 

particular case might stand right, I understand the amend­

ment to our answer is granted in this case, is that right, 

your Honor? 

The COURT: Yes, I will grant it in this case. 

Mr. MYLANDER: That is without prejudice to our 

filing an answer* in the other case. 

Mr. CARMODY: Of course, I will expect the testi­

mony to substantiate the allegations. 

Thereupon --

JOHN H. HESSEY, 

previously produced, sworn and examined on behalf of the 

plaintiff, resumed the stand for 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (continued) 
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By Mr. Vogt: 

Q,. Mr. Hessey, will you state whether or not legis­

lative sanction was procured to this particula- paper, 

which is the subject of this controversy? 

A. It was not, so far as I know, Mr. Vogt. I did 

not have anything to do with securing it. Whether any­

body else did or not, is a question I do not know. I 

have never heard of it having been secured . 

Q,. I understood you to say that when this agreement 

was executed that as the parties appended their signa­

tures, you included the property that the signer owned, 

is that correct? 

A. If you will let me have the paper, I will try to 

tell you how they were secured. 

(Paper handed witness). 

A. The paper was prepared with a blank space for the 

insertion of the names of the persons who signed the 

paper, together with the property to be put in after their 

names- That was the only blank in the agreement. Then 

the agreement was turned over to these people who were in 

my office or to some representative. They went out and 
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secured the signatures to this agreement. If I recall 

properly, this agreement was finally brought into my 

office by the notary. 

Q,. Who is that? 

A. lira. Young. 

Q> Was she the representative of these people in 

procuring that paper? 

A. She had something to do with it, yes, in securing 

the signatures. 

Q,. She made the collection of the funds to — 

- A. That I can not tell you, I had nothing to do whatso­

ever with the collection of the funds, Mr. Vogt. 

Q,. Well, you mentioned there was a blan^ in there --

A. I was going to tell you how the paper was pre­

pared. Then after Mrs. Young, brought it back into my 

office we took the list which she had, as I recall it, 

which showed the names and the dates on which the ack­

nowledgments were tak:m, and then I caused a separate 

acknowledgment to be written up for each date on which 

an acknowledgment was taken, there being filled in that 

acknowledgment the names of the persons who acknowledged 
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on that particular deed. The acknowledgments were then 

attached to the paper, they were then inserted in this 

blank space — I might say there was not sufficient blank 

space to ta'se care of all of these names that are in 

here, so that the first page had to be rewritten and the 

second one had to be rewritten in order to get the names 

in here properly. The only change that was made in 

this agreement was the insertion of the names and the 

property after the agreement was brought back to my office. 

Q. Well, the first party executing or signing that 

agreement would have substantially a blank paper as to 

the description of properties, is that correct? 

A. As to the numbers of properties, yes, but as to 

the block location, no. 

Q,. What designation as to the block location is in 

there? 

A. I will read it to you, Mr. Vogt, it is here. 

Q,. Just let me ask you this a moment, if you will. 

Nothing was in the paper connecting the ownership of any 

particular lot, or was it, in that lot with the party who 

was to sign it, that was a blank? 

A. No. 
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Q,. "ill you tell me hov; much of this first page was 

blank when the instrument was first sent out? 

A. As I say, from the words, "This Indenture", down to 

"or some interest therein", I see was on the paper, then 

came a blank space, then followed, "Now, Therefore, each 

of the parties", which follows immediately after the names 

and the location of the property. I say there was not 

that particular blan't space because this page had to be 

rewritten after it came back. 

Q,. So none of the parties were designated in the 

agreement when it was first sent out? 

A. No, the only designation was that it was to be ef­

fective or of not binding force except upon that property 

which is located in the 1100 block of West Franklin street 

on both sides of the street. Now, that was in there,that 

is the only thing that was in there. 

Q. Have you any knowledge of how the ievice, with the 

words, "corporate seal" on it, came to be attached to that 

paper, Mr. Hessey, as to the church? 

A. Mr. Vogt, in looking at that I would say that after 

this paper was brought back to my office to verify and to 
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check the signatures, you could see it was in proper shape 

and I entered there, "Gonoordia Evangelical Lutheran Church", 

and the word, "corporate", after the word "seal". The word, 

"seal" was the only word appearing thereon. 

Q. That is the date the paper was put on record? 

A. I won't say it was the date it was put on record, 

but it was after it came back to my office and before it 

was put on the record. 

Q,. Who returned that instrument to your office? 

A« I think Mr». Young did to have me put on the acknowl­

edgment . 

Q,. Then it was nothing more than the scroll with the 

word, "seal"? 

A. The usual word, "seal", you find at the end of these. 

Q,. Not, "corporate seal", but just the word, "seal"? 

A. Just the word, "seal". 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Q. Mr. Hessey, did it occur to you when you saw the 

paper with the signature, Walter C. Mylander, attorney, and 

then setting out the various names of the owners, that that 

was a crude way to sign a final consummated paper? 
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A. Well, i t occurred to me - - t h i s i s what occurred to 

me, Mr. Mylander. When I saw i t at f i r s t , I f i r s t thought 

or wondered where the power of at torney would be by which 

you had signed i t . I saw there was no power of a t torney, 

and I found none on record, and I don't think I found any 

place of record for the deed because if i t was a long 

while ago t h a t the property was acquired, I did not go 

back t hat far . 

Q. So i t did appear to you to be so i r regu la r that 

you found i t necessary to change the wording of i t some­

what? 

A. I changed i t individual ly and as a t torney. I 

not ice now; I did not notice a t the time when I got that 

far that you had signed i t . 

Q> I t se ts forth the names of a l l the owners, the 

seven co-owners, and you thought the l a s t name could not 

be myself over̂  again, so you changed that to,"Willard G.rt, 

or you thought i t was,"Willard 0."? 

A. No, I did not change i t , I put in your individual 

capacity as well as a t torney. I say t h i s , I advised them 

at the time there might be some question as to the authori ty 
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t h a t you had to s ign in that f a sh ion . 

Q,. I t would be a l l r i g h t on a c o n t r a c t , wouldn ' t i t ? 

^ A. Oh, y e s . 

Q,. But you would hardly see that signature on a 

comoleted deei of transaction? 

A. No, of course not. 

Q,. If you were putting through a title you would not 

take my signature the other way, would you? 

A. Of course not, unless I had the reference to your 

power of attorney. 

Q. How many of those sheets were sent out; can you 

tell us how many sets of those papers were sent out for 

signature at the same t ime? 

A. Of this particular paper, you mean the 1100 

block West Franklin street? 

Q. The 1100 block West Franklin street? 

A- As I recall i t , t h e r e was only one, because i t was a 

sho r t block and q u i t e a number of them came in to my 

of f i ce on the morning a f t e r the co lored people moved in 

and were ready to s ign i t ' h en and t h e r e . 

Q. You say i t i s only a shor t block? 
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A. I mean it is only one block and the other agreements 

I had prepared covered so much territory. 

Q. But i t wasn ' t a sho r t b lock , I be l i eve the t e s t i ­

mony shows the two s i d e s t ake in 750 f e e t ? 

A* Well , I don ' t know. I mean j u s t one b lock. 

Q. You saw the o r i g i n a l papers which you s e n t ou t , 

d i d n ' t you p repare them? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q,. And didn't those original papers have in them a 

clause something like this, That this paper is one of a 

series which, together, should make up the whole agreement? 

A* That was in the northern and southern territory, 

Mr. Mylander. They had that because there were more than 

one of those papers out. 

Q,. You say that agreement was not in this agreement? 

A. It may be. 

Q,. In o t h e r words, i t i s n ' t in the paper as w r i t t e n 

t h e r e ? 

A. No, I don ' t be l ieve i t was. 

Q,. But in the paper as signed, w a s n ' t t h e r e a c lause 

t h a t t h i s agreement was one of a s e t of s i m i l a r papers 
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which together should constitute one agreement; I am not 

giving the exact words? 

A. Not as I recall it in this particular block. That 

is true with reference to the larger areas-

Q. Have you any duplicates or exact cooies in your 

office of what was signed for this particular block? 

A. I would say not. As I told you before, I have so 

many of these for all of the territories, I have given so 

many of them away and it became so involved, I could not 

pick you out an exact copy for the one for the 1100 block 

West Franklin street. 

Q. The paper here as submitted, the first page, was 

rewritten, is that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. The first page has in it, beginning with, "Whereas" 

reciting the various ownerships, all of that was not in 

the original paper, am I right? 

A. From the words, "or some interest therei'n", was 

not in the original paper. It couldn't be inserted in 

there. 

Q,. It embraces from this ooint here, beginning at 

the third line of the second paragraph to the end of the 
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page? 

A. Yes, s ir. 

Q,. Now, the second page, what was in that? 

A. Clear down to the words, "Now, Therefore". 

Q* Firstly, I understand the second page from down 

to there (indicating), was not in it? 

A. Yes. 

Q,. That is more than half of the second page? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. Those were rewritten by your stenographer? 

A- I think so; yes, sir. 

Q,. Did you personally check the wording of the balance 

of the second page and the third page to see if this was 

exactly the same? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. ?Jithout any c o r r e c t i o n s whatever o r change in 

phraseology here and t h e r e ? 

A. The exact agreement tha t was sent o u t . 

Q,. Did you p e r s o n a l l y check i t up? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q,. And ye t you h a v e n ' t got the o r i g i n a l papers here 
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from which the check up was made? 

A. I told you, Mr. Mylander, i t has been quite a 

number of years ago, and I have had two or three of these 

s u i t s and I don't bel ieve I can pick i t out , to save my 

soul . 

Q,. Here is a signature, F. S. Freeburger, Agent, what 

are those numbers? 

A. 1142, 1135 and 1137 Franklin street. 

Q,. You didn ' t write the signature as agent and you 

struck t h a t out, d idn ' t you? 

A. I could never tell you that. 

Q,. Well, it is irregular to sign a formally consummated 

paper or formally consummated deed simply so and so, agent, 

without referring to power of attorney, isn't it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. He signed it individually, but when it came to his 

signature as agent, you thought that signature did not add 

anything to it? 

A. I can't say whether I struck it out. 

Q,. But you thought my signature would look a whole lot 

better if you made it read individually and as attorney for 
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the other parties? 

A. I won' t say about the looks of i t , Mr. Mylander. 

Q,. I t would look more l i k e a formally consummated deed? 

A. Yes. 

Q. It did not look like a proprietary paper or contract? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. That word, "corporate seal", you say you drew in? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Is there any other change or alteration in that 

paper that you have knowledge of? 

A. Of course, this isn't a change, but that is my hand­

writing, "Test as to all". The word, "seal", after Mary E. 

Dowd, is my handwriting. 

Q,. In other words, opposite the words, "Mary S. Dowd", 

there was no seal, and you thought there should be a seal, 

so you put the word, "seal", there? 

A. Oh, ye.,, x put it there. 

Q,- I t wouldn ' t have looked r igh t without the s e a l , 

would i t ? 

A. No, i t wouldn ' t have looked r i g h t . 

Q. I n o t i c e here i s ano the r co rpo ra t ion with the s e a l 
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just drawn in, "Realty Centre, Incorporated". Do you 

know who drew that seal in instead of an impressed seal, 

just a drawn seal? 

A. That resembles the handwriting of Mrs. Young. I am 

not positive, however. These words, "and president", are 

in my handwriting also after the words, "Henry B. Young." 

Q,. That is, the Reverend Henry B. Young did only sign 

as pastor, as the witnesses have testified, and then you 

inserted afterwards when it came to recording it, "and 

president"? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. ^ere is another signature stricken out, what is 

that? 

A. That says,"Milton 0. Storm, secretary, parsonage." 

Q,. That was signed at the wrong place, therefore you 

struck it out? 

A. I don't know I struck it out . It is stricken out, 

at any rate. 

Q. All of these signatures did not constitute the 

various signatures obtained at various times on separate 

sets, will you explain to us why we have a page like this, 

for instance, only one-third filled and the following page 
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filled up? 

A. I can not answer that, Mr. Mylander. 

Q,. If all of those signatures --

A. It may be my impression is wrong. There may 

have been more than one agreement, but I can not recall it. 

Q,. The pa^er looks like it, doesn't it, as. though 

there might have been more than one agreement? 

A. It does. 

Q. In the ordinary pract ice of your of f ice , you would 

not l e t a page l ike that in the centre of the paper go out 

only one-third f i l l e d , would you? 

A. Of course, Mr. Mylander, none of these were signed in 

my office. 

Q. I understand, but the ordinary signatures would be 

in consecutive order, wouldn't they, I don't care who 

got them, if a notary got them? 

A. They ought to be. 

Q,. Nov/, coming to the dates of these, you say Mrs. Young 

furnished you a memo, she took such and such acknowledg­

ments on such and such a date and you filled in the cer­

tificates? 

A. That is my recollection. 
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Q,. Did she convey that information to you orally, or 

have you a memo of the subject? 

A. I think she had a book which she carried around 

with her which showed that. 

Q,, I want to know what relation Mrs. Young bears to 

this whole matter, who paid you your fee for .attention 

to these papers? 

A. Lafayette Square Protective Association. 

Q. Who collected the fees, do you know? 

A. They had officers. The late Robert L. Ramey was 

president -and they had a treasurer, his name was Duncan, 

and others, and they had meetings at the various churches, 

at which time they collected dues from the property 

owners in the various blocks around there. 

Q. Most of these people were not members of the 

Lafayette Square Protective Association, you know that, 

don't you? 

A. I can not tell you who were and who were not, I 

did not have anything to do with that portion of it. 

Q,. I w ant to find out to whom, accounting was made of 

the various sums collected from each signer of that paper? 
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A. That I can not say because I did not have anything 

whatsoever to do with that. It was paid by the Lafayette 

Square Protective Association, as I recall it, I was paid 

for the work which I did for that particular block. 

Q. This paper, when it was rewritten, you filled in 

the sixteenth day of February or did you fill in the 

sixteenth day of .February rather than some other date? 

A. Answering it offhand, I would say that is the date 

of the first acknowledgment. Yes, sir, that is the 

date of the first acknowledgment. 

Q. Then why did your stenographer, in writing that 

paper, leave blank lines for the date and the month, if 

the date was already determined when she first rewrote 

that paper after the signatures had been obtained to it? 

A. I could not say that. 

Q. Now, I understand you to say that the first and 

second pages were rewritten? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I understand you also -- if 

I am incorrect here, correct me — that the third 

paper was rewritten, but you say it was written exactly 
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like the original paper was? 

A. ¥es. You see, Mr. Mylander, the space that you have 

on the first and second pages where I have inserted the 

names and the property owned by the parties, that space 

could not be determined until after they had all signed, 

and there wasn't any such space as that left in the original 

agreement. 

Q. On all of the several propositions up there you felt 

it necessary to examine titles? 

A. There was only one other, Mr. Mylander, and that was 

done. That is the 400 block North Carey street. 

Q. Did you examine the title in that block? 

A. As I say, I had it done. 

Q,« But you felt the necessity for having it done? 

A. It was only done, as I explained the other day, to 

check up the record on it. No attempt was made in that 

instance either to secure the mortgagees or the leasehold 

owners or any remaindermen at all. 

The COURT: vou mean the reversion? 

The WITNESS: The reversion; yes, sir. 

Q. 3ut in this instance you made no attempt to examine 

title whatever or to have it done? 
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A. It is a question I would not like to say. 

Q. Well, I understood you to say so before, am I infor-

rect? 

A. I would not say that you are or are not. 

Q. And yoi never said anything to Mrs. Young about the 

report on titles being correct as set forth? 

A. No, sir, I could not say that. 

Q. Then how could you say whether the signatures that 

you were obtaining on this paper amounted to anything 

whatever if you — supposing one man had signed as owner 

for the whole block, would you have just taken him as the 

owner of the whole block without verification? 

A. Not for the whole block, Mr. Mylander. 

Q,. Well, I want to find out just how far you had gone? 

A. I can only say what I did, not what I would have 

done. 

Q. But that is what you did, you just took the names 

you found on the paper and recited them as the owners? 

A. I am inclined to believe I made some sort of an 

investigation as to this particular block. Now, that is 

my recollection. 
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Q,. Have you got some sort of an investigation here 

to show to us? 

A. I don't have it in that particular file. 

Q. v<hat would that indicate? 

A« That would indicate whether I had or had not. As I 

say, I had any number of files In this. This covers a 

period of some years. I find here, Mr. Mylander, in 

looking at my records, that there is a deed here which was 

furnished by |trs. Young, showing the dates the acknowledg­

ments were tacen as of these properties. 

Q. These are What Mrs. Young furnished you at, the time? 

A. Ye s , s i r. 

Q. I see you have in the acknowledgment here, "acknowl­

edged said indenture or agreement to be the act and deed 

of Dora Mylander, Florence Mylander, Katie Mylander, 

August C. Mylander, William F. Mylander and Millard C. 

Mylander and Anna Faust." Isthat the way she acknowledged 

it, to be the act and deed of .Millard G. Mylander? 

A- 1 d o n ' t know about the names, Mr. Mylander. 

<fc. what do- you mean when you say , "Mil lard C. Mylander", 

t h e r e i s no such i n d i v i d u a l as Mi l la rd C., i t i s '/.'alter C.J 

I jus t want t o f ind out i f that i s the way she acknowledged 
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it. 

A. Your name is in here as Walter 0. Mylander, 

Walter C. Mylander as attorney. 

Q. "and he acknowledged said indenture or agreement to 

he his act and deed and he also acknowledged said indenture 

or agreement to be the act and deed of Dora Mylander, 

Florence Mylander, Katie Mylander, August G. Mylander, 

William F. Mylander and Millard C. Mylander and Anna 

Faus t." 

A. You say that isn't Millard C ? 

Q,. It wasn't intended to be. 

A. Well, then, I suppose that is an error of mine in 

reading your writing. 

The COURT: That is the way Mr. Mylander signs his 

name, you will notice above. 

vhe WITNESS: Yes, sir. I suppose that was my 

error. 

Q,. Did you have any authority to line in the church 

seal; when you drew in the corporate seal there, did you 

have any authority to do that? 

A. From the church? 
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q. Yes. 

A. I did not. 

Q. And Realty Centre that Mrs. Young, in your presence, 

drew in the corporate seal for them, did she have any 

authority? 

A. I don»t know anything about that. I know Mrs. Young 

had been there and talked to them, but I did not know any­

thing about any authority. I don't know whether she did 

or did not have it. 

Q. But you do identify that as her handwriting? 

A. I think I am almost positive, however. 

.̂ Did you have any authority from the church secre­

tary to add the words, "and president"? 

A. No, I received none from the church. 

Q. And in drawing in the word "seal" after Mrs. Dowd's 

signature — do you recall that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did you have any authority to draw that word "seal" 

in there? 

A. I did not have any direct authority from her, it 

was only to fix the agreement the »ay it should have been. 

Instead of signing on the corresponding line where the seal 



163 

was, she signed above. 

Q,. You never saw any of these parties yourself? 

A. I never saw any of the parties sign the agreement. 

Sorae of the parties came to my office on the morning to 

have the paper drawn. 

Q,. How many of those parties? 

A. There were four or five. 

Q,. Mrs. Young was the lady who had the business deal­

ings with all of the parties? 

A. No, she did not have anything to do with that visit 

to my office. 

Q,. I mean with the exception you have noted, for all 

the other parties Mrs. Young was the business representa­

tive? 

A. I do not say that. She was the notary who took 

the acknowledgments. She was connected with the Lafayette 

Square Protective Association. 

Q,. Where does Mrs,. Young live, do you know? 

A. She used to live on Harlem avenue, I think; I 

don't know the number. I think she now lives on Carey 

street. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Garmody: 

Q,. Mr. Hessey, did you have an interview with Pastor 

Young, the pastor of the church there, at any time? 

A. I c-an not answer that, Mr. Carmody, because I 

do not recall the parties. You see, this has been a long 

time ago and there were so many interviews I had with 

this Lafayette Square Protective Association that I would 

hesitate to say I had an interviev; with Pastor Young. 

Q,. Do you recall that his signature was on the paper 

and that you wrote under it, "president"? 

A. Yes. 

Q» 3ut you do not r e c a l l ever speaking t o him? 

A. I do no t , Mr. Carmody* 

Q,. Do you recall ever talking to Mr. Storm, the sec­

retary? 

A- I do not. 

Q,. You d o n ' t remember any dea l ings with him? 

A. No, s i r , I do n o t . I won' t say I did n o t , now, 

but I d o n ' t r e c a l l i t . 

Q,- Did you have an i n t e rv i ew a t any time with Mr. 
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Berger , who was a member of the counci l of the church? 

A. Not tha t I r e c a l l . 

Q. You don ' t r e c a l l t h a t ? 

A. I d o n ' t r e c a l l . 

Q. Did you attend any of the meetings that were held 

in the church with regard to the 1100 block West franklin 

street? 

A. I attended one meeting held in the church, but 

whether it was with reference to the 1100 block If eat 

Franklin street or the other area, I do not recall. 

Q. Do you recall whether at that meeting there were 

any representatives ofi the church that attended? 

A. About the only person I remember was some one there 

to welcome us as we came in. What connection he had with 

the church, I do not know. 

The COURT: You do not mean the Lafayette Square 

church, do you? 

Mr. CARMODY: No, I mean the church in question 

here, the All Saints or the Concordia church? 

The WITNESS: Yes, on Franklin street. 

Q. The meetings were held in the church, weren't they? 
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A. Some meetings were, yes. 

Q,. That is, in the Concordia? 

A. Yes, sir, 

Q,. And you attended one there? 

A. I di d. 

Q. And you were welcomed by some person in authority, 

apparently? 

A. Well, I was welcomed when I got there by some one 

who was there welcoming everybody as they came in. 

Q,. iviv. Hessey, will you look at this paper again. 

From that paper will you tell the Court what date the 

pastor and the secretary acknowledged that to be their act, 

Mr. VOGJT; Objected to. 

The COURT: Well, that is simply for convenience. . 

The paper itself shows it. 

Mr. CARMODY: It is simply asking you to tell 

what the date of the acknowledgment is. 

The WITNESS: The 18th of February. 

The COURT: Did they both acknowledge it? 

The WITNESS: Henry B. Young, president. 

' The COURT: The question is the dateon which the 
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pastor of the church and Mr. Storm acknowledged. 

The WITNESS: There does not appear to be any 

acknowledgment of that date for Mr. Storm, only for Henry 

B. Young, president. 

By Mr. Oarmody: 

Q,. No acknowledgment from Mr. Storm? 

A. No, sir. 

Q,. Are they not joined in the one acknowledgment, 

Mr. Hessey? 

A. No, sir. 

(Testimony of the witness concluded). 



Thereupon 

ELIZABETH YOUNG, 

a witness of lawful age, produced on behalf of the de­

fendants, having been first duly sworn according to law, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Carmody: 

Q,. lhax is your full name? 

A. Elizabeth Young. 

Q. And your residence, Mrs. Young? 

A. At present, 423 North Carey.street. 

Q,. And your occupation? 

A. Notary public. 

§,• Mivs. Young, you have seen the agreement which was 

marked an exhibit in this case, that is, the agreement 

that has been signed by the parties to the agreement. 

Will you please tell the Court the circumstances regarding 

the signing of that agreement betv/een all the parties; how 

it originated and. who employed you and who you represented, 

and everything connected with the agreement, and speak so 

that the Court can hear you? 



A. Yes, sir. Well, through the Lafayette Protective 

Association I was appointed notary and also another lady 

was appointed notary, but isn't a notary today. We won't 

speak of the territory because that has nothing.to do with 

the case, we are losing time, I can write books on that 

but I won't do it. V,e can come right direct to the block 

question. The block question is this. Everybody that signed 

the first paper in that block signed the second with the 

exception of a few, the few people that did not sign. Mr. 

Merger was the head one to go around with me, had the 

paper, read it out, and I wouldn't have gotten the signa­

tures were it not for Mr. Berger. Mr. Berger sent for 

us, they were not ready for us to sign the paper over there 

at the church, and Mr. Berger said, Come such and such 

a time, and some of the people in the block went. I did 

not, I only went when I knew I could go there and take 

the signatures. So when they sent for me, I went. I 

went different times and they were not quite ready, so 

finally one time they were ready, and the papers will 

show when they were ready. They signed in good faith. 

Had it not been for Mr. Berger they wouldn't have signed. 



They had gotten a new pastor at that time and were most 

anxious, most eager to have their pastor satisfied. They 

wanted to keep him, they thought he was just one splendid 

man, and a few wee^s, I think something like two weeks 

or three weei<s that he was there before they would really 

sign the paper. They wanted him protected and we wanted 

the church, that is, the neighborhood, the block wanted 

the church's protection and they were hand in hand. 

They never worked harder than they did at that time when it 

was just a block paper. Now, that is the situation. 

Mr. Berger went over to Ahrling's, had it not been for 

Mr. Berger T wouldn't have got the Ahrlings, because they 

were just holding off. That is the situation of that 

block paper. That is just exactly the way that paper was 

signed. They were heart and soul in it, and more eager 

then than they ever were, and we had meetings over there 

and they were most courteous, but they always wrangled 

among themselves, I never heard of a congregation wrangling 

among themselves like that. And the same way out there, 

Mr. Berger's wife is a nervous brekdown today — 

The COURT: Mrs. Young, I thine you had better 
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confine yourself to the question. 

The WITNESS; All right. That is the situation of 

how they signed the papers and I was there at their 

service when they sent for me. That, is all I can say. 

Q,. This is the paper I had reference to, this is the 

same paper you refer to that you went around with Mr. 

Berger to have signed? 

A. This is the identical paper, the same paper, ex­

cept what Mr. Hessey tried to explain, and when I went 

to see Mr. Mylander, Mr. Mylander had this paper. He 

sent for it, he had it, he read it over. The committee 

waited on his sisters when they lived on Ga rollton 

avenue, and they said, Well, they would leave it to 

their brother. They went again. So finally they had 

decided, they told the brother they were satisfied, and I 

had gone to Mr. Mylander's office repeatedly and repeated­

ly and explained things. So finally he said, Yes, he had 

to wait until his sisters were satisfied. When I went 

there and he signed this that was the time he told me 

they had told him to go ahead, and, of course, a man an 

outstanding attorney like him — I am only an ordinary 
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notary, I did not know he was putting a hitch in here, if 

there s a hitch in it. .1 took him as a man of his word, 

as an outstanding attorney, and if we can not rely on 

them, I don't know what else we can do. He certainly ': id 

sign this in good faith and, furthermore, I went back 

over and over again to get the money that was due to the 

block. I promised the block I would get the four dollars 

from him, and I went there repeatedly and repeatedly, and 

finally I did get the four dollars, and his brother in 

the block gave three dollars for this very cause now, and 

his tenant, who is in there now, has been there twenty 

years,and he h:.s talked about the block not being what it 

was or is. If he won't paint the inside — they did 

all the inside painting. Mrs. Williams, who was the 

hostess — rather rented the house where the parsonage 

is now, she is there now; she has been there six months, 

and when she went in there he told her he knew the block 

would be good for two years and she will tell you that 

herself, if the block had gone down so terribly. That 

second hand place hasn't been there two or three years. 

I don't feel like arguing with an outstanding gentleman 



l i k e t h i s , I was only a se rvan t Tor the block and I did 

the best I knew how, but from now on I don ' t th ink I want 

t o be a Lutheran . 

Q,. Mrs. Young, was there any misrepresentation made 

in regard to the deal? 

A. Hever once, they had the paper once and read it 

over. Mr. Mylander had to go to Mr. Hessey's office and 

get it, and he read it over, and Mr. Berger knows all 

about it, because I would never have gotten the church 

people for Mr. Ahrling, who was sick in bed, if it had not 

been for Mr. Berger. 

Q. He went with you? 

A. He went with me and up to the bedroom and he 

had this and it was signed in his presence. He read it to 

Mr. Ahrling because Mr. Ahrling was a sick man. 

Q,. Do you recall the meeting at which Mr. Storm signed 

and acknowledged that paper? 

A. Well, I will tell you, Mr. Carmody. We had so 

many meetings around different places and so many meetings 

right in that basement of the church, and their own member 

attended and their own members only were too glad to have 



it protected, but as for days and dates, this is all I 

can say. That is all I can rernember. 

Q,. I am not asking as to the day or the date, I am 

asking you if you remember the circumstances of Mr. Storm 

signing it? 

A. Oh, yes, sure, he signed it and he also knows I 

went down to the B. and 0. at different times and had 

them look it over because my president was so exact, Mr. 

Rarney was so exact, "Now, Mrs. Young, be sure, you better 

go two or three times and be sure to see that they know 

what they are doing", and I went down to the 3. and 0. 

and I said' to Mr. Storm, "Mr. Storm, this is the paper 

you acKnowledge, this is your signature," not only when 

he signed it, but afterwards. 

Q,« At the time at which he signed that, who was pres­

ent? 

A. Well, there were quite a number of people there, 

quite a number. I don't know who they were, but there 

were some folks around, the congregation was around, 

and they were having some special. What that special 

meeting was, I don't know, because, as I say, I never 



went until it was time for me to go. 

Q* Do you recall whether it was in the morning or 

afternoon or evening? 

A. When that paper was signed, it was signed "in the 

evening; absolutely in the evening. 

The COURT: Was it Sunday evening? 

The WITNESS: Well, now, I don't know whether it 

was Sunday evening or Wednesday evening. It was either 

Sunday evening or Wednesday, but whichever the day is, 

it was signed, I don't know wha.t evening it was. 

By Mr. Carmody: 

Q,. Was Mr. Berger there? 

A. Yes, sir, :Ir. Berger was there. 

0- Did yo.u hear Mr. Berger make the statement they 

did not have authority to sign it but he could go ahead 

and sign it if he wished? 

A. Mr. Berger was only too eager, he never made any 

such remar.-c in my presence. 

Q,- You did not hear such a remark? 

A. No.such remark was made. He was only too helpful 

to me to go around and get the signatures. I never could 



have accomplished what I did had i t not been for Mr. 

Berger . 

Q,. I unders tand tha t the acknowledgment of Mr. Storm 

i s n ' t on tha t paper , though. Can you give any explana­

t i o n of t h a t , did you know t h a t ? 

A* I d o n ' t know how tha t was neg l ec t ed , I c a n ' t say 

how tha t was neg lec t ed i f i t i s n ' t on t h e r e . That i s a l l 

I know, because he c e r t a i n l y 3 id acknowledge i t in my 

p r e s e n c e , and i f I d id not put i t down t h e r e , tha t i s 

most u n f o r t u n a t e ; but I t h ink i t should be down t h e r e . 

The COURT: Let her see i f she can f ind i t . 

The WITNESS: I t should be down t h e r e , t h a t i s 

a l l t h e r e i s to i t . 

The COURT: See i f you can f ind i t . 

The WITNESS: I know he acknowledged to me, I 

know t h a t . I t must be in some o the r paper . 

The COURT: Mrs. Young, what did he acknowledge? 

Yhe WITNESS: He acknowledged tha t was h i s s igna­

t u r e in behal f of the church. 

The COURT: In behal f of the church? 

The WITNESS: Yes, s i r , I c a n ' t remember any more 



By Mr. Carraody: 

Q. Do you know how many property owners in the 1100 

block of West Franklin street signed that paper? 

A. Well, I think at the time — now, I don't know, 

that tells for itself, because we would never undertake 

to put a block on record unless we had 80 or 85 per cent 

and that was the greatest percentage of any blcok we 

had with the exception of Mulberry street and the 400 

block Carey street. There were plenty of blocks that 

could have gone on record but there ?/ere investors there. 

Mr. Ramey was too conscientious and Mr. Ramey advised me 

not to encourage the people when I could not get the 

investors. My own block on Harlem avenue, we had nearly 

90 per cent but I had a few investors there that posi­

tively would not sign, and it was not fair to the people, 

and so it was in all the blocks. If I had thought for 

one moment that this would have been brought up I would 

have stopped because Mr. Ramey gave me the greatest 

number, the greatest part, but the investors would slip 

in the block like they are doing in all blocks, and then, 

of course, we would have the people going both ways. So 



we would not tie the people up and this 1100 block, we 

wouldn't have allowed them to go on record for one moment 

if it wasn't for the fact they were helpless whites and 

needed protection and they had some homes that were not 

paid for, each and every one needed protection and were 

satisfied that those colored people stay there, to live 

with those people rather than to live in a block with 

seven or eight families. That is how that block was 

signed up, simply to help the helpless whites,from a 

humanitarian standpoint. 

Q,« Do you know how many in that block did not sign it? 

A* I think everybody signed with the exception we 

fell down on those and Mr. Hessey was just a little slow in 

getting it on record, which he has apologized many times 

for that. They slipped in and ?ot a mortgage on and that 

was the house next to the church. Everybody signed it. 

Q,. Everybody but two in the block signed it? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. Both on the north and south side of the block? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. There is a store, the side of a store on Franklin 



street that extends along the 1100 block, it faces, I 

think, on Carrollton avenue, doesn't it? 

A. Yes, sir, that is Crook's store. I could not get 

them to sign and we didn't want them because they face 

the ot'her way. They face the other way and Mr. Ramey 

never took a block or never took a piece of property that 

faced the other way, and it isn't in our paper, that 

isn t considered in our paper at all. 

Q. Did you take all the acknowledgments? 

A. Yes, I have taken all these acknowledgments. 

Q,. Did you leave the paper to be read, or did you 

read it to them before they signed it? 

A. In mostly all cases the paper was read to them and 

they had it to rea:l over. They knew just exactly what 

they were doing. The church people had that paper in 

their church and read it over. 

Q,' Were there any false statements made or misrepre­

sentations made regarding the paper or its character? 

A. Never, never. This is the way it was and that 

is the only way, with the exception of where they had to 

take and copy it over so as to get their names in there 



properly. 

Q,» Was there anything misleading said to Mr. Mylander? 

A. Never, never. I don't see how he could say it 

or think it, even-

Q,. Were any misrepresentations made of what the paper 

was? 

A* Never, nothing misleading, and Mr. Mylander even 

asked me, "Have these all been properly acknowledged?" 

I said, "Mr. Mylander, I have gone over them and they 

are all properly acknowledged", and when he signed -- I 

said, "Is it necessary to get your sisters?" He said, 

"No, now it is all right, I take charge of their property 

and I answer for them." What more was I to do? When 

a man has charge of his own sisters' property and I 

have nothing more to do with it, what else is there to do? 

Q,. What have you to say as to the agreement or as to 

any additions that were made after the signatures were 

obtained? 

Mr. MYLANDER: Ask her if she hasn't got the 

original papers. 

The WITNESS: There are the original papers right 

there with' the exception of Mr. Harney's -- just copied 



off the papers, tha t is the o r ig ina l paper and nothing 

e l se but the paper. That is the paper and I don't care 

who says otherwise. I am a woman but I don't care who 

says otherwise. I th ink these men have made a habit of 

fo rge t t ing . 

Q. Did you leave that paper with Mr. Mylander ? 

A. Yes, s i r , indeed* 

Q,. He had it in his possession? 

A* Yes, sir, indeed, he had it and read it over. 

Q. How long' did he have it in his possession, do you 

know? 

A* Well, it may have been a day, I don't know; but I 

let all of them have it whenever they wanted it. I was 

always willing — the paper reads the same as the old 

paper almost, but this is the original paper that Mr. 

Mylander had. I went down to Mr. Hessey's and asked him 

if this way is all right after he signed it and Mr. 

Hessey says, "Why, sure, if Mr. Mylander signed it for 

his sisters, that must be perfectly all right;" It is 

most convenient sometimes to forget. 

Q,. After the signatures were attach :d to this agree-



ment, were there any alterations made? 

A. Not any that I know of. Mr. Hessey was the 

attorney and I know — I see no alterations or nothing 

else. It was just as it is. Mr. Hessey was the attorney 

for the paper. 

Q,. When you called at Mr. Mylander's office, did you 

call there for the purpose of taking an acknowledgment? 

A- Yes-

Q,. At Mr. Mylander ' s o f f i c e ? 

A. A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q,- Then did he acknowledge that you were a notary? 

A. He knew that I was a notary, sure, he did. He had 

asked me that question previous, before he had signed his 

name to it. He was very particular about that, if 

everybody else had done the right thing. He was the 

last one that signed that paper. 

Mr. MYLANDER: He asked if everybody else had done 

the right thing? 

The WITSNESS: Yes. It may not have been just that 

word, but that is what you meant, that is what you said, 

you know, in reference to the people signing it, and I told 



you, Yes, that they had acknowledged. 

By Mr. Oarmody: 

Q,. Was the paper that you presented to Mr. Mylander 

just a few lines of typewriting? 

A. Oh, no, this is it. 

Q,. The whole paper? 

A- This is just as it was. 

Q,' With all the parties' signatures? 

A. Just as it is. 

Q,. Now, as to the present appearance and condition 

of that block. You are familiar with the block, you have 

known it for some ye&rs, I suppose? 

A. Oh, yes. 

Q- When dii you last visit there? 

A. I visit ther nearly every day going through to 

the stores and goin;̂  through in the car. 

Q,« You are thoroughly familiar with the conditions 

of the block at this time? 

.A. Yes, sir, thoroughly. 

Q,. "What, if any changes have taken place in the block, 

say, within the last two years? 



A. Well, in the last tv,o years there is a piece of 

property that was renting to people that I know, who now 

live next door to me, and they were getting forty dollars 

for it and they wouldn't do anything for them. Finally 

the people told them they would have to move. Well, 

they said they would have to move. Since those people 

moved out they are paying forty dollars next door to me, 

they have had hard luck, they should have hardluck. They 

had a good tenant and did not know how to treat them. 

Q,- That is one piece of property, any other? 

A. There is another one in Mr. Mylander's house, I 

think he has a tenant there who has been there from twenty 

to twenty-two years,, I think. She tells me she has done 

all the paiiting on the inside and she begged him to do the 

painting on the outside but they won't do it. They have 

Latrobe stoves and they are paying a pretty good price, so 

I don't think that house owes Mr. Mylander anything. 

Q,. Any other? 

A. Oh, yes, in that block is where Mrs. Herman lives 

in now. I don't know whether she is paying ^35, because 

she was going to rent a piece of property from me and I 



asked forty do l l a r s , and I think Mr. Mylander i s g e t t i n g 

t h i r t y - f i v e do l la r s ; t h i r t y - f i v e do l la rs for aa old-time 

Latrobe stove, coal to carry up, which I think is a very 

good p r i ce . Wtjen she went in there he told her he 

thought the property would be good for the next two 

years . He knows she has been there five or s ix months. 

and th i s is what they are t rying to do to our helpless 

white race . I would ra ther take care of one helpless 

Christ ian than to have a multitude and do no good. 

Q,- You have devoted a good deal of time to Mr. Mylander's 

property. Is that the only property in that block — 

• &.. No, the house where the second-hand furni ture place 

i s . I t i s true i t i s n ' t very pleasant , but the people don't 

mind i t because the man has to make a l i v ing . He helps 

out many a poor white and many a poor colored and as long 

as they are white people, the people are s a t i s f i e d . If 

they had the wherewithal to get out l ike some other peoole, 

of course, they would not t o l e r a t e t h i s , but they haven ' t , 

and shouldn' t they have some protec t ion when the church 

people were eager to get the i r protect ion and now because 

they are ready to take the i r money and put i t somewhere 



else, the poor white people have to sacrifice themselves. 

You know, that isn't fair to the other properties. There 

was one property, 1107, Mrs. Sheckells sold for the sole 

purpose of trying to protect the block. She sold it to 

some one and they put negroes in there and we fought it 

and a man by the name of Johnson went to jail until he 

vacated that house, and they have had tenants in it ever 

since. I understand Mr. and Mrs. Ahrling are not anxious 

about that block going black because they have good white 

tenants in there, very respectable people. Just as re­

spectable are coming there today as ever could afford to 

live in the block and I defy any one to say anything about 

my white race that can not afford to go to the suburbs or 

some other place. That is the only work I have ever done. 

I worked for ?,fc Donough, and worked for the Howard Park 

Sunshine. I do nothing but charity work and that is what 

I am doing in "his block, just from a humanitarian point. 

I will take anybody's signature that wants protection. 

Q,. Are there any other houses vacant in this block at 

the present time that you know of? 

A. Well, Mr. Mylander has one, and I don't know whether 



there are any others up there or not. I did not scrutinize 

the block but if there is, there might be,too, jud^e, but 

I would like to say that I would have to go out and look 

and come back and tell you. But they have never been idle 

very long if they give the white people what they should 

have. They won't give them the comforts that they have to 

do afterwards to the colored people. If they would pro­

tect the whites we could get plenty of v.hite people in 

lower Baltimore to come there, but they won't. The white 

people are looking for the big rents they get from the 

colored. 

Q,. Apart from Mr. My lander* a property, what is the 

condition of the rest of the block there? 

A. All right, perfectly all right; perfectly all right. 

The people keep their fronts nice, they sweep their pave­

ments and sweep their streets, and they are happy to 

live there until they can go else\>?here. I know it is only 

a short period -- that is what surprises me with the church, 

it is only a short period that they have to go, it is only 

something like two and a half years or three years, what­

ever the contract calls for. There are plenty of ways, 



if they want to be Christian people, where they could help 

the Christian people, but they v/on't do it. They suppress 

the white people. I have relatives who can not afford to 

get out, either, but I protect them. I was born and 

raised a Lutheran all my life, but we wouldn't undertake 

to do anything like that. I am ashamed that my Lutherans 

are acting like this, I am ashamed of it. 

CROSS -EXAMNAT ION 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Q,. Mrs. Young, you said when you opened your testimony 

that you at present lived at 423 North Carey street? 

A. I formerly lived 1031 Harlem avenue. 

And you at present live 423 North Carey? 

A. I do . 

Q,. Do you contemplate moving? 

A. ^io, s i r , I do not . I contemplate staying there 

and st icking to my white race as long as they want 

protec t ion . I l e f t my property on Earlem avenue to pro­

tect Mr. Wood, who is there today. I l e f t my property 

stand there one year and a half because I worked hard for 

the cause and I wouldn't take and put colored people in 



t h e r e . 

Q,' Now, you saw me q u i t e a number of t imes , d i d n ' t you? 

A. I c e r t a i n l y d id . 

QQ How many t imes? 

A. Oh, I c o u l d n ' t t e l l you how :nany t i m e s . 

Q« Well , es t imate i t ? 

A. Oh, many a t i m e . 

Q,* Well, would you say as many as a dozen times? 

A. Yes, sir, ever-y bit. More than that, too, I guess. 

Q,. And I didn't want to sign the paper, did I? 

A. No, because your sisters had a voice in the matter. 

You didn't have the voice, you were only their attorney, 

so you told me. 

0,* You say you only went to a place when you could go 

there to get the signatures, in other words — 

A* At the church, at the church and no other place; 

only at the church. 

Q,« That statement applies only to the church? 

A. Only to the church. 

Q,. But as to me, you v/ere soliciting the signatures, 

weren't you? 



A. Absolutely. 

Q.. And you were soliciting the signature over a dozen 

times, is that right? 

A* Well, that depends on whether it was a dozen 

times or not. Hal:' the time I would come to your office 

and you were not there and I would have to come a;;ain. 

Q,. How many weeks did it take all told? 

A. I don't know how many weecs. 

Q,. How many months? 

A. I don't know anything about that, either, the paper 

will tell that* From the time Voloshen and Voloshen 

put negroes in there and when they put them up"at auction, 

after two investors vent in I went to them and they vrould 

not sign and the property went up to auction a^ain and 

when Voloshen bought it I said, "Mr. Voloshen, I am so 

glad you bought this property because you have the where­

with to put it in good condition for helpless whites", 

and I said, "That is all you want, you put it in good con­

dition and the property will pay", and finally he walked 

off and made some remark as much as to say he didn't know 

whether I would be so glad or not. He is the one who put 



the negroes in t h e r e , he put negroes in the 400 b lock , too , 

b u t we made him take them o u t . I t o ld him i t would a l l 

come back to him, and I t h ink i t h a s . 

Q,. You s aw me about a dozen time s - -

A- I went to your p lace about a dozen times but you 

were not t h e r e ha l f the t i m e . 

Q* Very good. That took about how many weeics? 

A* ^h, I don ' t know. 

Q,- Did you e s t ima te how many wee :s i t took? 

A- No, I don ' t know. 

Q« Would you say as much as four weeks'? 

A. Maybe. 

Q,. Longer than t h a t or l e s s than that"? 

A. I don ' t know. 

Q. How die, you f ix .the da te of these var ious acknowl­

edgments, Mrs. Young? 

A« According to the way I took them. 

Q,. You were n e g o t i a t i n g with me or t r y i n g to t a l k ne 

i n t o s i g n i n g for a period of weeks, at any r a t e , w a s n ' t i t ? 

A* When I saw you I ta lked to you about i t . I don ' t 

know how many times i t was. 



Q,. And the purported acknowledgment of myself to this 

paper bears date the 21st and the purported first ack­

nowledgment on the paper bears date the 16th, that, was 

only a matter of five days between my signature and the 

first signature? 

A. Remember,when I went to your officeso many times 

I was working for the territory paper --

Q. Oh, I see — 

A. (Interrupting) 7/hen I went so many times, but I 

didn't have to go that many times for this. You own 

property down on Sdmondson avenue, you own it on 

Schroeder street, you own it on Carrollton avenue, you own 

it everywhere. 

Q. What was the first time you ever saw me, Mrs. Young? 

A. Oh, I have known you for years. 

Q. You have known me for years? 

A. Yes, for years, and all your family. 

Q,. Have I known you for years? 

A. I don't know whether you do or not, you might con­

veniently forget. 

Q,. Now, you say this paper or this form of paper 
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I signed, the signatures were already on here when I 

signed it, this very paper I signed? 

A- You certainly did, with the exception of what Mr. 

Hessey said, and he is an honorable, outstanding attorney-

He took them out to put out another paper. I wouldn't al­

low you or anybody else to say anything about Mr. Hessey, 

that he miscompared that paper, because he did not. 

Q,' Put out a new paper? 

A. No, he did not. 

Q,. You say the first two pa^es might have been re­

written. The third page, was that rewritten? 

A. I don't know whether it was rewritten or not. 

It is the original words, word for word. 

Q. How do you know that? 

A. Because he had his stenographer while I was in the 

office take and compare them while I was sitting there. 

Q,« Did you compare them? 

A. -Don't you think I think his stenographer is honor­

able enough to know --

Q,. I am not asking you anything about that, I am ask­

ing you a fact. Did you compare it? 



A. I heard them when they went over it, yes, sir; and 

if I am not mistaken, I won t say s sure, while Mr. Hessey 

was attending to something else I read it over, too. 

Q,. Can you tell us why you didn't put a seal for 

Catherine Dowd? 

A. "^ecause she signedup t h e r e — 

Q,« No, no, I am not talking about that. Mary S. Dowd, 

Mr. Hessey has testified he put a seal there? 

A. Yes-

4. But you forgot to put a seal opposite Catherine 

Dowd? 

A- Well, doesn't that account for it, one bunch in 

one family? 

Q,. So you think the seal below and above it would 

count just as well? 

A. I f 1 were an a t t o r n e y l i k e you, I would have put 

i t down, but, I wasn ' t an a t t o r n e y l i k e you. I had to do 

the best I knew how accord ing to my a b i l i t y . 

Q. Why WBS tha t page l e f t ha l f blank? 

A. I t was j u s t t h i s , unders tand , I had to put in a 

nev; page; t h a t i s the reason; I put in a new page. 



Q. You put that page in new? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that is the reason that is half length, although 

this paper was just that way when I signed it ? 

kt Yes, so it was, because you were the last person. 

Q,. Was I the last.person who signed? 

A. I think so. I don't know so, I think you were. 

Q. And you say I was awfully particular, wanted to 

know whether all of the other parties had properly ack­

nowledged, have I got your testimony right? 

A. Well, you said that, yes, and I told you they were. 

Q. Did I or did I not say anything to you about whether 

the titles had been examined? 

A. Let me tell you something' When it comes to the 

title examination, I told you Mr. Hessey was looking out 

for that and Mr. Hessey had looked out for all those 

signatures before on the old paper and there were only a 

few that had to be looked up and he said just as soon 

as they had the time he would do it, and he said he looked 

those few up and it was all right. He did not look them 

all over because his man at the office, who is a very 



capable man, said they all correspond with the papers they 

signed before, because those people had all signed before. 

Q- But you do recall my asking you about the titles? 

A. Of course, you did. 

Q,. And you told me Mr. Hessey had gone thoroughly 

into them? 

A. Well, he did. He didn't go all over the new ones 

in that block at that, time but he had gone through those 

that had signed before and they all corresponded when they 

went through the records and then this young man came back 

and did the same-

Q,« Who drew in the seal of the Realty Centre, can you 

tell me? 

A* Yes, I will tell you. Mr. Hessey said, "Well, now, 

listen, go on'', and he held my pen while I did it. 

Q. Mr. Hessey held your pen v?hile you drew in that seal? 

A* Yes, sir, because he told me they hadn't had the 
-

s e a l , a l s o the Real ty Company h a d n ' t the s e a l . 

Q. "here was that s e a l drawn i n , a t Mr. Hessey ' s of­

f i c e ? 

A. Yes, a t Mr. Hessey ' s o f f i c e . 



ft. Where v;as the s i gna tu r e of the Real ty Centre taken? 

A. Down at t h e i r o f f i c e , in one of these o f f i c e s ; in 

one of these b u i l d i n g s . 

Q. I t wasn ' t at Mr, Hessey ' s o f f i c e , was i t ? 

A. Oh, not t h a t , no. They sa id to me they h a d n ' t 

a s e a l but they were having one made and i t v as not made 

y e t . 

Q,. 3o then you went up to Mr. Hessey ' s o f f i ce from the 

o f f i c e of the Rea l ty Centre and with the a id of Mr. Hessey, 

drew in the s e a l , t h a t i s r i g h t ? 

A. Well, I guess that i s r i g h t . There i s no use say­

ing what i s n ' t r i g h t . 

Q,* What was the purpose in striking out some of 

these signatures, weren't they satisfactory to you? 

A* -̂ idn 't want duplicates, I reckon. 

Q,. So when you came to the name, Milton 0. Storm, 

parsonage, who struck that out? 

A. I don't know. 

Q,. Where was t h a t s t r i c k e n out? 

A. I d o n ' t know where t h a t was s t r i c k e n o u t . To t e l l 

you the t r u t h , I don ' t remember see ing t h a t s t r i c k e n out 



u n t i l today . 

Q,. Well, i t wasn ' t s t r i c k e n out a t the time I signed 

i t , was i t ? 

A. I don ' t know whether i t was or n o t . 

Q* Here i s ano ther s i g n a t u r e , can you read what i s 

s t r i c k e n out t he re on t h a t l i n e ? 

A.' I d o n ' t know. I t i s a mis t ake , I guess . That i s 

a l l I know, i t must have been some word in m i s t a k e . 

Q,« Well , was i t s t r i c k e n out a f t e r o r before my s i g ­

na ture? 

A. I d o n ' t know, i t must have been a mis t ake ; t h a t ' s 

a l l I know. 

Q,. Mr. Hessey has t e s t i f i e d the words, "and p r e s i d e n t " , 

were added by him a t h i s o f f i c e r i g h t before r ecord ing 

t h i s , the words appearing a f t e r the word " p a s t o r " , in 

connect ion with the s i g n a t u r e of Reverend Renry 3 . Young 

and a t the same time he added those words, "corpora te s e a l " 

and the name of the church, t h a t i s r i g h t , i s n ' t i t ? 

A- Yes, befcause I know they d i d n ' t have a s e a l and he 

just; put t h a t on t h e r e , I reckon. I don ' t know. 

Q,- Now, I n o t i c e here are some more s i g n a t u r e s changed 
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and stricken out. As a matter of fact, you don't know 

when those signatures were stricken out, do you? 

A. As I say, I don't r e a l l y — I can' t r e c a l l that 

because, as I say, i t has "oeen some time. I can not r e ­

ca l l t ha t . 

Q,. Have you got the o r ig ina l paper which was attached 

to the s ignatures at the tine the s ignatures were taken? 

A. That is a l l I have. Anything else I d idn ' t think was 

necessary . 

Q* But these f i r s t three pages, which !\Tr. Hessey has 

t e s t i f i e d were rewr i t t en , you don' t mean to indicate i h a t 

those pages wdre ac tua l ly on t h i s paper when I signed i t , 

do you? 

A. I ce r t a in ly say that t h i s — that paper i s exactly 

the same only where they had to have a space to put the 

inser t ions that were required; but they were absolutely 

the same. 

Q. I am not asking you, madam, if they were exactly 

the same, that i s another matter; but i t i s n ' t the same 

physical paper, is i t ? 

A. He told you he had to rewrite it to have that 



addition in there. 

Q,. And you did not keep the original paper? 

k. Well, he must have it. I cion't have it. 

Q. Wasn't this paper signed in parts, didn't you leave 

one part to one party and another part to another party? 

A. No, never, never. 

Q. What does this in the paper itself mean: "This 

agreement may be executed in several parts of like pur­

port except for the properties described and the parties 

and all the parts although separately executed shall be 

deemed and taken together as constituting one original 

agreement." 

A- Yes, sir, that means exactly what it reads there. 

Q* Was it signed up in parts or not? 

A. No, sir, it said if somebody else wanted to come 

in -- I can't express myself about it, but they could 

come in and sign either all in one day or two days or 

three days. I didn't have to get them all at one time, that 

is what that meant. 

Q,- How many weeks were you working on obtaining these 

signatures? 

A. I don't know. I know when I was working on the 



t e r r i t o r y I was working, I guess, for months, but as far 

as that was concerned, that, was very short work. 

Q,. Well, on the t e r r i t o r y you were years , weren't you, 

because you took that reso lu t ion of the church, which has 

been offered here in evidence, in the beginning of 1924 

affect ing the t e r r i t o r y ? 

A. Well? 

Q,. So you must have been working on it then already? 

A. That might have been the latter part, but we are 

not talking about the territory, we are talking about the 

1100 block Franklin street. That is all we are talking 

about. That is passe, the other blocks. 

Q,. I do gather from your testimony that that second­

hand furniture placa does not improve the neighborhood, 

does it? 

A. What of i t if i t don ' t? The -oeople are s a t i s ­

f ied , you a r e n ' t the re , what do you care if the people 

want to stay there , that i s none of your business . 

Q,. I just want to get your viewpoint, madam. 

The COURT: I think you had just be t t e r answer 

the questions and not argue. 



Q< The people are a l l s a t i s f i ed to l ive there and 

they keep t h e i r homes nice , don't they? 

A. They certainly do, the front part of that neighbor-

hood, and it looks as good as it ever did. 

Q,' And 1114 and 1115, those four story negro apart­

ment houses — 

A. Well, that is all right. They knew they were there 

when they signed it. 

Q,. They look just as good as the:/ ever did? 

A* They look just as good as yours. 

Q. And 1114 — 

A. With the exception that the landlords paint them 

on the outside. But as far as people who live on the 

inside, the people are just as good and just as clean. 

Q,' And th'it applies to 1114, where these negroes live? 

A. Just the same. In fact, that property looks better 

now than it ever did because it has been painted. 

Q,« If that is so, why are you objecting to having :other 

negroes in the block? 

A. because we are white and if you want negroes, you 

take them alongside of yours. 



Q,. White people living in a block with negroes? 

A. That is all right, if they are, and so did your sis­

ters live there with negroes. 

The COURT: Now, Mrs. Young — 

The WlfNESS: I am sorry, I can not help it, 

judge. 

The COURT: Weil, you must help it.. You answer 

the questions and stop being personal. 

The WITNESS: Well, they said some nasty things 

before and I have to get rid of my feelings. 

The COURT: You answer the questions, please. 

(&• You haven't said anything at all about that one 

property of ours that has been vacant eighteen months. 

Do you know anything about that, 1130? 

A- You put that property in condition and I can get 

you a tenant tomorrow. 

Q,. You said all the other block investors would not 

sign? 

A. No. 

Q,. And you said or Mr. Ramey told you it was not fair 

to the people to record the papers under those circumstances? 



A. No. 

Q,. Did you get the investors to sign this paper? 

A- *es, sir, some of them did because they wanted 

protection, understand, at that time just the same as the 

people that really live there and own the property. 

Q. "hat do you mean by investors? 

A. Well, your people are some. 

Q,' Well, would you call mortgagees investors? 

A> Listen, as long as I pay up my building association, 

no mortgage or no ground rent can come back on me until I 

fail to pay that, then you can come back; but as long as I 

meet my obligations every week, and I know what I am 

talking about, no mortgagee will come in on me. 

Q. I ara j.iSt getting your conception of what you mean 

by investors? 

A. I am only talking about people that own the property 

and are willing to take the rent: from the white, that is 

all. 

Q,. But would you call a mortgagee an investor? 

A. I don't know anything about that, you are further 

advanced than I am. I am not going to answer it. 



Q,' Then let us treat of some other facts here. It has 

been testified in this case that two of these properties 

were assigned to a life tenant, one of them over eighty 

years of age. 

A- And they still want to keep it white, one of them 

is here today. 

Q,. But a life tenant? 

A. Yes, but as long as they are living they have 

Jurisdiction over that property, and when they die if you 

want to turn it black and turn it black. 

Q,« Bid you know they were only life tenants when you 

got their signatures? 
• 

A. Yes, I knew that, because I know the wife and the 

husband is here today. 

Q,. Bid you tell me that, for instance? 

A* No, I did not t e l l you t h a t , I d idn ' t go into de­

t a i l s l ike t h a t ; of course not . That was your place to 

look them up if you wanted to know a l l t ha t . I was sim­

ply going around asking for the s igna tu res . 

Q,. Jid you tell Mr. and Mrs. Plitt that or Mr. Cassell? 

A. Tell what? 



Q. That you were taking the signature of a life ten­

ant 81 years old? 

A. I am not bothering about a life tenant 81 years old. 

I took that signature the same as I took the others. 

Q,. But you knew at the time you only had a life estate? 

A- I never went into details. I know they owned the 

property and that is all I know. 

The COURT: You said before you did know. Did 

you or did you not know that Mrs. Jeffers was a life ten­

ant? 

The WITNESS: Well, I have heard so much of it 

today — 

The COURT: Mr. Mylander asked you whether you knew 

it at the time you came to see him? 

The WITNESS: No, I don't think I did. 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Q,. Well, don't you know that you did know they were 

life tenants? 

A- No, I don't think I did know it then? 

Q. You are not certain of it, are you? 

A. All I know is that they owned the property and they 



signed it. ILv. Hessey took care of the rest of it, I 

didn't take care of that part of it. 

Q. Did you ask these various parties when you took 

their signatures what interest they had or what right 

they had to sign the paper? 

A. Well, they simply signed because they told me 

they owned it, that is all. I didn't think they would 

if they had thought they were doing something that was 

not right; they wouldn't have done it" 

Q,' Well, didn't you know, if that is the way you 

simply got the signatures of the owners, simply by their 

say so, didn't you know that Mr. Hessey had not deter­

mined the ownership of these properties when you got these 

signatures? 

A. Do you think for one moment that Mr. Hessey would 

have any one to jo and search the records before I had 

gotten the signatures? Why, no, I got the signatures 

first and then he searches the records. 

Q,. ..'ere there any changes made after that? 

A. Not as I know of. 

Q,. Mr. Hessey testified that in the other cases he 



examined the records f i r s t to a s c e r t a i n the ownerships . 

A. Not for me to get the s i g n a t u r e s , oh, no, t h a t 

never was s o . I get the s i g n a t u r e s and then he looks 

them up to see i f they are s a f e . 

Q,- And he found a l l of t hese safe? 

A. I expect he did; I don ' t know. 

Q,. and you told me I could rely on Mr. Hessey 's find 

ing these safe, is that right? 

A. You asked me, understand, if they were thoroughly 

acknowledged, and I told you, Yes, and who acknowledged 

them and I told him all that, I was the notary, and then 

after that the papers went to Mr. Hessey and he asked me 

if Mr. Hessey was' looking them over and I said, Yes, 

because I knew Mr. Hessey had looked the block over be­

fore and he held this up just for a few signatures that 

he had to look up. I didn't know anything more, that 

leaves me out afta? Mr. Hessey looked them up and thought 

it was safe to put on record for the short period of 

ten years. 

Q,. Did I ever see you between the time of putting my 

signature down here and the time of the reoording of this 



paper? 

A. I think, if I am not mistaken, I told you it was 

going on record just as soon as Mr. Hessey got to it, and 

that is all I can say. That is all I know. I had nothing 

to do with putting it on record. 

Q,« Did you make the statement that Mr. Hessey would 

have to verify the title ownerships or anything of that 

kirri ? 

A. I never said anything about that. 

Q. These questions are not being put to you with any 

idea of putting you into a trap --

A« All I know is that I carried out my duty to the best 

of my ability at that time and I have it on blac'-c and 

white the best I knew how, for the good of the people 

and for the good of everybody and I thought when you signed 

for your sisters you di:̂  it in the best of faith ana the 

best of spirit and as clean as it could be done, and now 

you are --

Q. Jid I not ask you — 

A. Well, why did you s ign i t — 

Q,. Did I not ask you whether the t i t l e s had been gone 

in to and d i d n ' t you rep ly tha t Mr. Hessey had gone in to 



them thoroughly and we could rely upon his work? 

k- I told you Mr. Hessey was going to look them all 

up and I felt --

Q. Did you say going to or did you say did? 

A. Well, I don't know what I did. I don't know 

whether I said did or going to. 

Q. Now, Mrs. Young, you called at my office many 

times all in the space of how long a period of time? 

A. Oh, from the time we first started with that work. 

Q,. And covering how long a period? 

A- I dropped in your office every once in a while, about 

the different blocks because I would have one paper for 

one block and another paper for another block and when­

ever I was in the neighborhood, and then, of course, you 

were always a busy man down in the court and I have seen 

myself sit there and wait for as long as an hour or so, 

then I would go and come again, but as far as this paper 

is concerned, I don't know how many times. 

Q,- I want to try o refresh your recollection just us 

events occurred. "When you repeatedly came to my office, 

is it not a fact that I expressed sympathy with the under 



taking but declared we would not sizn until we were the 

last people in any block to sign, that if you got all the 

other signatures, then you could count upon our signatures? 

A. Where is that paper? 

(Paper handed witness). 

A. Well, t h a t may be , but I don ' t say that you t o l d 

me p o s i t i v e l y you would not s ign for anyth ing e l s e but 

t h i s b lock, but you would sign for t h i s block, and t h a t 

i s what you d id . 

Q,. Why did you make a d i f f e r e n t i a t i o n between ?;his 

block and any o the r block? 

A. Because you d o n ' t want your proper ty t i e d . 

Q,. Why d i d n ' t we want our p r o p e r t i e s t i ed up? 

A. Well , of cour se , t ha t was your b u s i n e s s . 

Q,. But what were the q u a l i f i c a t i o n s which I uniformly 

PUT. on i t ? 

A. I don ' t :<now. 

Q. As a Blatter of f a c t , our names are the l a s t t h a t 

appear on t ha t paper , aaaa't they? 

A. Well , I b e l i e v e ; I don ' t know. 

Q,. You nave an acknowledgment here subsequently dated, 



one on the Both by Ahrling and his wife, and Ahrling and 

his wife's signature is the third appearing on the paper. 

Will you explain that? 

A. They were not put down in routine, they were put 

down, understand, where there was a space; that is all; 

they were not put down in routine or anything like that, 

they were put down promiscuously on that paper. 

Q,. You didn't go around with other sets of this paper 

and then copy them? 

A. No, sir, only one paoer. 

Q,. And you tools Ahrling's signature and his wife's 

signature on the first page of signatures? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q... And you took his acknowledgment, the last that was 

made on the whole paper, is that correct, 25th day of 

February? 

A. Whatever is there is correct. 

Q,. Now, you have Myers, the president of the Realty 

Centre. That is also on the 25th day of February acknowl­

edged but was that signature on there at the time I signed? 

A. I don't know, it was put down there, as I told you, 



your Honor, the man had the paper. I said, It does not 

make any difference, sign on any line, and that is what 

they did. They could have signed here as far as that 

is concerned. 

Q,. So you ha;5 these three papers or four sheets of 

paper all together, together with the typewritten matter 

which has been rewrittem, but those four signature sheets 

you took around everywhere and showed them all the sig­

nature sheets with these blanks, and in between where 

people just skipped spaces? 

A- ^ure. 

<i. And the signatures put here third in order are 

the last to be acknowledged on the 25th of February? 

A. Wherever they wanted to sign, they signed. 

Q,. Also the Healty Centre was the 25th of February. 
* 

Did they s ign or acknolwedge t h a t before I s igned or not? 

A. I d o n ' t know. Whatever tha t s t a t e s , t h a t i t i s . 

Q,. You said a few minutes ago you don ' t r e a l l y know 

whether the church signed on Sunday or on Wednesday, i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Well , I am going to t e l l you. I won't go back t h a t 
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far, whether it was on Sunday or whether it was on Wednes­

day. 

Q,. Four and one-ha If years is a long time to remember, 

isn't it? 

A. Yes, four and* one-half years is a good long time. 

Q. And throughout the many times you called at my 

office, will you state whether you ever did anything else 

than solicit signatures and money? 

A. The four dollars that you paid and your brother 

paid three dollars for this cause? Your brother paid 

three dollars for this very cause we are fighting now 

and you gave me four dollars? 

The COURT: Why don't you answer the question? 

The WITNESS: What question was it? 

Q. Did you ever represent yourself other than simply 

soliciting signatures and the money contributions toward 

the funis? 

A. -̂ et me tell you something, I never asked for the 

money unless it was given to me and they got a receipt. 

The rest of the people collected the money — 

Q. I am not criticising you for doing it at all, yes 



or no? 

A. I d i d n ' t get a l l the money, only when fo lks handed 

i t t o me and then we had a r e g u l a r form and I gave them the 

r e c e i p t . 

Q,. Jid you say anything in the many times you were at 

my office that you were a notary public? 

A. Absolutely, and you knew it. 

Q. How long before this had you become a notary? 

A. Well, vhen Governor Hitchie gave me the commission. 

Q,. When was that? 

A. Well, go back and look on the records now and 

look at the Record Office. 

Q,. What ma ices you say I knew it? 

A. Well, I was a notary when I signed this and 

that is all I can tell you; otherwise I would never have 

done it. 

Q,. Was that money for the fund paid at the same time 

that the signatures were obtained? 

A. That money was taken topass over to the attorney 

who was working on the case. 

Q,. I am just identifying the date. Was that paid on 



the same day that the s ignatures were taken? 

A. I don't know whether i t was or not because the res t 

of the folks in the block would go around and co l l ec t . 

Q,. Your reco l lec t ion is that you only got four dol lars 

from me, is that r igh t? 

A. Well, something l ike tha t . I don't think i t was 

much more, four or five d o l l a r s . I guess Br. Ramey has 

the l i s t . 

Q,. That i s your recol lec t ion? 

A. That i s what i t i s . 

Q,. And all your other testimony is equally a ccurate 

as that? 

A. I don't know because you have the receipt. 

Q,. We will produce the cancelled vouchers in due 

dourse. I am asking you to state your recollection of it. 

A. Well, I couldn't tell you because I collected so 

much money. 

Q,. You say you had to run after the money a number 

of times after you got the signature. You don't mean 

that, do you? Wasn't all money given to you the same day 

the signature was given? 



A. No, sir. 

Q,. As a matter of fact, you got two sums of money, 

one when you said you had to have more money for counsel 

to fight the case of Sheckells --

A. No, Mr. Mylander, I wouldn ' t say what happened, 

r e a l l y , when you gave me the money, but I went t h e r e 

s e v e r a l t imes when you were not in and I got the money, 

so t h a t s e t t l e s i t . 

Q. Tell us what did happen, was it anything bearing 

on the case? 

A. No, indeed, it was only a personal affair. 

Q. -Let us have it, if there is anything — 

A. Well, you said I was the most persevering woman 

you had ever dealt with. 

Q. . And I did want to know something about the titles, 

didn't I? 

A. You said I was the most persevering woman you 

ever dealt with. 

Q. And you do recall something about my not wanting 

to sign until all the others in the block had signed? 

A. You didn't want to do anything until your sisters 



sanc t ioned i t . I was only to see your s i s t e r s once and 

I was t o ld — 

Q,. Well , then , only t e l l what you know and not what 

somebody e l s e t o l d you. 

A. They went to your fo lks and you sa id you were 

ready to s ign and you signed and. I asked you i f I should 

go see the g i r l s and have them acknowledge, and you s a i d , 

Oh, no, I r e p r e s e n t them, and tha t i s p e r f e c t l y a l l r i g h t ; 

I take care of a l l t h e i r b u s i n e s s . 

Q,. So you d i d n ' t come to see me u n t i l i t was a l l ready 

and f ixed t h a t I should s ign? 

A. Well , I don ' t know. 

Q,. Well, do you know or don ' t you know" 

A- I know t h i s much, you put me off and f i n a l l y I 

went there and you s igned . 

Q. You d i d n ' t come to see me u n t i l i t was a l r eady 

agreed t ha t I should s i g n , i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Your sisters told you, yes. 

^ . And yet you ca l l ed to see me how many t imes , 

about a dozen t imes? 

A. Not about t h i s . 
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Q,. A l l r i g h t . y^ j v/eeks previous t o tha t ,how many 

t imes did you come t o see me? 

A. I t wasn ' t t h i s c o n t r a c t , i t was the o t h e r s . 

Q» How many times did you c a l l to see me with r e f e r ­

ence t o t h i s one c o n t r a c t ? 

A. I don ' t know. 

*<,. I t was a l o t of t imes , wasn ' t i t ? 

A. I d o n ' t know. 

Q,. You wouldn ' t say whether i t was one, two, t h r e e , four , 

f i v e , s i x t i m e s , would you? 

A. No. 

Q,. But you had quite a little trouble getting my 

signature? 

A. Well, for all the rest of them I did. I don't 

know whether I had so much with this one. 

Q,. You sail in answer to a question of Mr. Carmody 

that when you went to see me I insisted and I asked had 

everybody else done the right thing. These are your 

words, "Everybody else had done the right thing before 

he put his name down." In other words, I wanted to know 

from you if everybody else had done the right thing before 

W L _ _ 



I put my name down, i s that r igh t? 

A. Well, I think you made some remark l ike t h a t , yes, 

s i r ; and you pos i t i ve ly said, "Now, t h i s i s absolutely 

jus t for t h i s block, the rest of the t e r r i t o r y has nothin 

to do with i t . " I s a id , "Yes, s i r , that i s t rue , th i s 

i s just for th i s block and th i s block only." 

Q. You say you le f t that paper with various pa r t i e s 

who took i t and showed i t to t he i r own at torneys* Who 

did you leave i t with? 

A. Well, afterwards they said they just wanted to 

read i t over thoroughly and I did not blame the people, 

I did not blame anybody who wanted to look the paper 

over because a paper l ike t h a t , if you read i t over hur­

r i e d l y they would not understand i t . I l e f t i t a t 

Ahrl ing 's and one or two other places and they read i t 

over. I told them if they wanted to take i t to the i r 

a t torneys , they could do so. Whether they did or not , 

I don' t knoY;, but I g ave them the permission to do tha t . . 

Q,. Mrs. Young, I want to find out how much personal 

compensation you got for getting this paper signed? 

A. "hat is that? 
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ft. 

A . 

ft-

Q,. How much money you got p e r s o n a l l y for g e t t i n g t h i s 

paper s igned? 

A. .1 d o n ' t th ink t h a t i s your b u s i n e s s . 

Well , I p ress the ques t ion . 

Well , i t i s none of your b u s i n e s s . 

I th ink i t r e f l e c t s on the paper . 

The COURT: Are you w i l l i n g to answer the ques t ion? 

The HJTMESS: You know, i t i s gene ra l l y 25 cen ts a 

name, i s n ' t i t ? 

The COURT: f e l l , you are being asked. 

The WITNESS: Twenty-five cen t s a name. 

Will you swear to t h a t under oath? 

Twenty-five cents a name. 

You got twenty-five cents a name for getting the 

signatures and that constitutes your whole compensation 

for getting these signatures? 

A. I never got a cent from the organization or any­

thing. 

Q,. Outside of twenty-five cents a name, is that right? 

A. Yes, sir. 

ft. Twenty-five cen t s for every name appear ing on the 

ft. 

A . 

ft. 
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paper, that represents your whole compensation? 

A. ^es, 1 never got any more money than that, if I got 

f* that. 

Q,. The moneys which you collected, where did they go? 

A. They went to pay Mr. Hessey, I passed it over to 

the ones who took charge of it. 

ft. How much did Mr. Hessey get? 

A. I don't know. 

Q,. You say it went to pay Mr. Hessey, don't you know 

how much it was? 

A. Let me tell you. You know, if there are people in 

the block, understand, that didn't have the wherewith to 

pay, two or three of them would get together and pay for 

those that were not able to pay and they paid Mr. Hessey 

what he asked. Now, what he asked is his business and 

not mine. 

%. But all the moneys which* you collected you col­

lected for Mr. Hessey and you handed it over to Mr. Hessey? 

A. No, I didn't hand it over to Mr. Hessey. 

Q,. Who did hand it over to him? 

A. The people in the block, whoever had it, and then 

towards last they all went down to the office and 



straightened out with Mr. Hessey, whatever it was. I don 

know. 

Q,' When was the last time you went in that block on 

Franklin street? 

A. I guess I went through there this morning. 

Q,. In a machine or walking? 

A. Machine. 

Q,. Then you aren't prepared to tell us how many 

"For Rent" signs there are there now, are you? 

A. I went all through the suburbs yesterday, and they 

have "For Kent" signs everywhere. I don't see why you 

single out this block. In the suburbs, in blocks every­

where, there are "For Sale" and "For Bant" signs. 

Q. And did you find second hand stores in all the 

blocks in the suburbs, too0 

A. Well, I guess they will have them there. I wish 

they would among some people. 

:
c. And you found houses like 1114 occupied by 

colored people? 

A. Yes, In lots of blocks. There is poor Mrs. Sines 

in the 1000 block. 



Q- Do you find colored blocks in the suburbs of 

Bait imo re ? 

A. Yes, all you have to do is go out near the Rolling 

Road and you will see where they are all flocking there. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Vogt: 

Q,. You s a i d the church was most eager to have t h i s 

agreement execu ted . Do you mean the church or the 
i 

Lafaye t te Square Assoc i a t i on? 

A. I don ' t get the ques t i on , I don ' t know what you 

mean. 

ft. Was the Lafaye t t e Square A s s o c i a t i o n o r the church 

the most eager to ob ta in t h i s agreement? 

A. Th i s paper , t h i s paper the church was more eager 

t h a n the La faye t t e A s s o c i a t i o n ever dared to be. 

Q,. What did t h e church c o n t r i b u t e towards t h i s fund? 

A. We never charged the church, we had sympathy for 

the church; never charged any church. You don ' t pay 

t a x e s , so we d o n ' t t ax you. 

Q. To whom did you account for the money as you c o l ­

l e c t e d i t , Ivlrs. Youn-, in t h i s block; you say you did not 



turn it over to Mr. Hessey, to whom did you deliver it? 
* 

A. Y.ell, t h e r e were two or th ree of us a l l went down. 

I d o n ' t know anything about t h a t . I won't go i n to t h a t . 

Mr. MYLANDER: But we want you to 50 in to i t . 
Q,. You d o n ' t know who got the money tha t you c o l l e c t e d ? 

A. No. I know we were a l l t o g e t h e r in a body and they 

worked l i k e one family . 

Q,. What did you do with the money you. co l l ec t ed from 

Mr. Mylander? 

A. -Passed tha t over to Mr. Hessey. 

Q. Don't you remember what you did with the o t h e r s ' ? 

A. No, s i r , we were a l l t o g e t h e r . 

Q,. How many c o l l e c t i o n s did you make from the va r ious 

owners? 

A. I don ' t know, because , as I t o l d you before , 

t h e r e was one ' fami ly paid for t h r e e . 

Q,. Which family i s tha t? 

A. The Dowds. 

Q. At 1109? 

A. Yes, and I want t o t e l l you, t h e r e i s a family 

went in to t ha t block and they would have never i nves t ed 
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their money, and they spent as high as .̂ 700 to put a 

new plant in there --

Q,. Wait a minute, just answer the question. 

The COURT: Strike it out as not responsive to the 

question. Now, Mrs. Young, just answer the questions, 

do not volunteer anything, because it is just taking up 

a lot of time and we are not getting anywhere. 

Q. Mrs. Young, next to the church who was the most 

eager to procure this agreement? 

A. Do you mean the parsonage or the investors' 

property? 

Q. No, I mean this paper which you have before you. 

Who exhibited the most anxiety to have that paper per­

fected outside of the church? 

A. All the neighbors. You take — I don't recall 

their names. What is your name? (Addressing Mr. Patz). 

The COURT: If you don't know, just say so. 

The WITNESS: I can get it. 

Q. Well, d o n ' t you know who wanted the paper s igned? 

A. Leon Schiff, for one, and -Fannie Schiff and Doyle 

and Leary and Kretzler, all of these names were eager to 

get it. 



Q,. They are the contesting defendants, are they not? 

A. They were all eager, Freeburgers and all of 

these names were anxious to have the block kept white. 

Mr. Scholtholt, he was most anxious; he has a lot of little 

children and he wants to educate them and he wants to keep 

it white; and the Gonrads signed and were glad to have it 

white; Mrs. Heiderman and family most anxious to have it 

white; Mrs. Jeffers was anxious to keep it white; 

Grossmans were eager to keep it white; all of these 

people were anxious to keep it white. 

Mr. MYLANDER: Mr. Jeffers has not signed that, 

has he? 

The WITNESS: He has nothing to do with it. 

Mr. MYLANDER: Mrs. Jeffers, the life tenant, 

signed it? 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir, she signed it. He had 

nothing to do with it. Mary S. Dowd, Katherine Dowd and 

Agnes Dowd and the two Webers, Hugh and Philippine Weber, 

and Freedman and the Duggans and the Grossmans and the 

Myers; whatever is down on this paper. 

Q. You say all of them, then, were anxious to get it? 



A. They vere all anxious or they wouldn't have put 

their names down there. 

Q,. Can't you tell us which of those people were more 

anxious than the others to have it signed? 

A. They ui:re &}.l in the same boat. 

Q. Do you still say the church was the most eager to 

get the paper signed? 

A. The people who signed this paper and the church 

people that I talked with and the neighbors talked with --

Qt, Don't tell us what the neighbors talked with. 

The COURT: Strike out what the neighbors said. 

Q. The church is one you say was more eager to have 

this document executed? 

A. Just as eager as these people. They wanted to pro­

tect their new pastor and they wanted him to remain there 

and it was perfectly all right for a year or a year and a 

half until things went wrong and now it is all upset. 

G> -Didn't most of these people refuse to sign this 

paper or they had refused to sign until the church had 

signed the paper? 

A. No, s ir. 



Q,. Wasn't that the situation? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Why was the church approached f i r s t for i t s s i g ­

n a t u r e ? 

A. Well , v/e d i d n ' t j u s t s i n g l e them ou t , we wanted 

t o know. They went around the whole block f i r s t before 

they asked me to come and take the acknowledgments and 

s i g n . 

Q,. Who asked you to come and take the acknowledgments? 

A. »»hy, the people in the block. We had meetings 

after meetings among our little selves. 

Q,. You say t h i s agreement has only a shor t time to 

run ye t? 

A. Yes, only a shor t t ime . 

Q. Well , look a t i t . I t provides for 1934, i s n ' t 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t was ten y e a r s . 

Q,. From J u l y , 1924, to Ju ly , 1934, t h a t i s c o r r e c t , 

i s i t no t? 

A. Well , t ha t might b e . 

Q. This i s four and one-ha l f y e a r s , i s n ' t i t ? 



A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And you call that a short time? 

A. I call it a short time to do good Christian work. 

Q,. If it was dated February 15, 1925, why was it dated 

back to carry on from July, 1924; if it was dated in 

February, 1925, why was it to be effective from July, 1924, 

more than six or eight months prior to the execution of it? 

A* Well, I could not answer that because — I could 

not answer that, 

Q,. You said the Ahrlings were very anxious to remain 

in that property. If I told you Mr. Ahrling filed an 

answer stating he wished the document to be stricken down 

as to evevy one, would you change your statement? 

A. Well, it is perfectly all right about the Ahrlings. 

I don't want to have anything to say about them. 

Q. Will you change your statement if I confront you 

with that fact? 

A. No, I change no statement. 

Q. Why did Mr. Hessey hold your hand when that seal 

of the Realty Centre was drawn? 

A. Because I didn't know how to do it, I never did 



t 6 2 

anyth ing l i k e t h a t . 

Q,. I t wasn ' t because you c o u l d n ' t w r i t e ? 

A. I never drew no s e a l , he j u s t held my hand l i k e 

t h a t ( i n d i c a t i n g ) . 

Q,. You say a l l the s i g n a t u r e s were s o l i c i t e d except 

the church, i s t h a t r i g h t ; the church were the only people 

who sent fo r you to come and s i g n , i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. They were the only ones , yes - - I d o n ' t say they 

were the only ones who sent for me, but I wouldn' t go 

u n t i l I was sent for for the s i g n a t u r e s at any t ime . 

Q. Who communicated t h a t informat ion to you when you 

knew they v;ere ready, Mrs. Dowd? 

A. No, not Mrs. Dowd. Mr. Merger had given i t out and 

I th ink i t was Mr. Browning, lam not s u r e , but somebody 

t o l d me to come around to the church, tha t they were ready 

to s i g n . 

Q. Mr. Browning wasn ' t a member of t ha t church t h e n , 

was he? 

A. No, but I was away and he s ta r ted t o s o l i c i t and 

see i f the people would s i g n . 

Q. Oh, he was working with you, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 



Q,. Then your co-worker t o l d you the church would s ign? 

A. One of your o u t s t a n d i n g members ;^ave out the informa­

t i o n , Mr. Berger . 

Q. He d i d n ' t g ive i t t o you? 

A. He had many a t a l k with me about i t . 

Q,. You are f a m i l i a r wi th the book of d i s c i p l i n e and the 

r e g u l a t i o n s of the Lutheran church, t h a t a congrega t iona l 

meeting i s neces sa ry , at which a two- th i rd vote i s r e ­

qui red t o bind any c o n t r a c t in re fe rence t o d i spos ing of 

i t s p r o p e r t y or execu t ing an agreement? 

A. Well , I never was on the board. 

Q,. I s n ' t t h a t a customary r u l e with a l l Lutheran 

churches? 

A. I t h i n k when i t comes dowa to t h a t , Mr. Berger 

s h o u l d n ' t — 

Q,. I am not asking you what he d id . 

A. He s h o u l d n ' t have asked them to come around t h e r e , 

t h a t they were a l r eady to s i g n . 

Mr. VOGT: I ask t ha t be s t r i c c e n ou t , your Honor, 

as not r e s p o n s i v e . 

The COURT: I can not a l low a l l your answers t o 



stay in unless they are responsive to the questions. 

Q,. I asked you if you don't know that such a pro­

vision in the by-laws of this church isn't a similar pro­

vision to other Lutheran churches — which church are you 

a member of? 

A. Second Snglish Lutheran church. 

Q,. Haven't they a similar regulation that the church 

can not be sold or bound by such an agreement until two-

thirds of its members approve of it? 

A. Well, I understood that the mortgage was burned 

and that they were free to do as they pleased. 

The COUHT; Strike out the answer aa not respon­

sive . 

Q. ^on't you know that? 

A. No, I have never been on the board. 

Q,. You knew that the charter of this church should be 

recorded in the church records, do you not? 

A. Well, they changed them so often. 

Q. But you knew the church records were there — do you 

mean tha account books are changeable or the charter books? 

A. Well, both, I x*eckon. 
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Q,. I mean the c h a r t e r books h e r ' in the court house? 

A. Oh, no, not the cour t r e c o r d s . I t h ink the cour t 

r eco rds are c o r r e c t . 

Q,. Do you th ink the church members change these hooks 

at any time to s u i t t h e i r convenience? 

A. Well, I d o n ' t know tha t i t was, but t he re are many, 

funny th ings done. 

Q,. But you have never done any of those funny th ings 

you r se l f , i s that c o r r e c t ? 

A. I never was in any board or anything l i k e t h a t . 

Q,. *'hat aoout the church sea l? 

A. f e l l , I don ' t know anything about t h a t , whether they 

had a s e a l or n o t . 

q. You d o n ' t know whether they did or not have a s e a l ? 

A. Wo. 

Q,. You knew there was a mortgage on the property which 

had been sealed? 

A. I don't know. 

Q,. Who authorized you to put that seal on that paper, 

Mrs. Young? 

A. Well, I think I told you that Mr. Hessey -- or Mr. 



Hesssy put it on, I don't know. 

Q,. Then it wasn't when the church had signed it, 

but put there immediately after, is that correct — 

not the church, but when the secretary, Mr. Storm, signed 

it it wasn't that day, is that correct? 

A. bio, I don't suppose it was, 

o- Then it wasn't put on until the paper was ready 

to be recorded at Mr. Hessey's office. Eow many proper­

ties do you own in that section? 

A. I own quite a few. 

A. I own quite a few, I don't think that concerns 

anybody. 

We would Like to know how many properties you own 

in that locat ion? 

Why, that is none of your business. 

The COURT: Mrs. Young, you must not argue with 

counsel. Your business on the witness stand is to answer 

questions, and that is the only business you have, and I 

must insist on your stopping it. If you do not, I will 

have to take some other action. 

The WITNESS: Well, your Honor, do I have to --



The COURT: Just a minute, answer the question. 

What is the question? 

Mr. YOCfTj As to what properties she owns in 

the immediate vicinity. 

The WITNESS: Your Honor, do I have to --

The COURT: Mrs. Young, I asked you to keep quiet. 

It sufficiently appears she has a number of properties. 

By Mr. Vogt: 

Q,. Do you own properties in this block, 1100 block? 

A. Ho, sir, I don't. 

Mr. GJLSMODY: I must advise the witness she is 

my witness to pay strict attention to the instructions 

of the Court. 

The WITNESS: Thank you, I will, judge. 

Q,. You die; have this aoning agreement circulated 

amongst the various owners of property in that section,' 

is that correct; you circulated an agreement affecting a 

large number of bloctcs? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Can you tell me what year that was, Mrs. Young? 

A. Well. I don't know when it started. I don't know 



whether it was 1924 or 1925. 

Q,. ~>id i t s t a r t as fa r back as 1923? 

A. I d o n ' t know whether i t did or n o t . 

ft. You had a g r ea t many conferences and c o n s u l t a t i o n s 

with v a r i o u s owners both as to the o r i g i n a l agreement, t h e 

one a f f e c t i n g the l a r g e area? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

0,. And you were instrumental in procuring a segrega­

tion agreement affecting only the 400 block Carey street, 

is that correct? 

A. Yes, they sent for me and I went there and helped 

them out. 

Q,. And you had a great many consultations and meet­

ings with those folks, is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q,. How many meetings did you have with them concerning 

their agreement? 

A. Well, does that concern the 1100 block? 

Q,. Probably not, but won't you answer it for me? 

A. Well, I am not interested in that now, I am inter­

ested in the 1100 block Franklin street. 



The COURT: Do you want the question answered? 

Mr. YOGT: I would like to, your Honor. 

The COURT: Mrs. Young, it isn't a question of 

what you are interested in. You are a witness in this 

case and you must answer questions. You have answered 

very freely questions Mr. Carmody asked, and you are sub 

jeot to cross-examination by counsel on the other side, 

and if there is any objection to the questions it is Mr. 

Carmody*s duty to object, and I will rule on it. Mr. 

Carmody will object if an improper question is asked. 

Q,. Can you tell us how many meetings you had, Mrs. 

Young? 

A. No, I don't know. 

Q,. With reference to the 1100 block West Mulberry 

street, how many meetings did you have? 

A. I never hud ny. 

Q,. 1200 block West Mulberry street? 

A. I never had any because that belongs to the other 

territory. 

Q,. Which other territory? 

A. Senator — what is his name? 



Mr. CARMODY: Senator Ogden? 

The WITNESS: Senator Ogden. 

Q,. But you don't know how many you had in reference to 

the 400 block Carey street. Can you tell us how many meet­

ings you had in regard to the 1100 block W«»t Franklin 

street? 

A. No, I don't know. 1« were just talking in a casual 

way and I don't know how many. 

Q,. Did Mr. Berger acquaint you with the fact that it 

would take two-thirds of the congregation — 

A. Ho * 

Q,. To authorize the execution of that paper? 

A. No. 

Q,. You say that conditions there have gone down rapidly 

in that block — 

A. No, sir, I said they are holding their own and they 

look better today than thay ever looked with the exception 

of the properties that need painting on the outside. 

Q,. Well, I wrote down her-, Mrs. Young, in direct ex­

amination that the property has continued to rapidly go 

down since 1925 or prior thereto? 



A. - I never made such a remark. 

Q. You did not? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. When you say you'attended a meeting regarding the 

1100 block, is it possible you have confused yourself with 

the meeting that was held regarding the entire zone or 

area? 

A. No, sir, I never confused myself with them, with 

the rest of the territories. 

Q,. Although you don't remember how many meetings you 

had altogether in other areas? 

A. No, I do not* 

Q,. There is no possibility of a mistake? 

A. No. 

Q,. Can't you clear that up for me, Mrs. Young, if 

you can, why this agreement was dated back to 1924? 

A. I don't know. 

Q,- Is i t possible the e f fo r t s had continued over that 

period of time ? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. To procure the zoning? 



A. I d o n ' t know. 

Q,. I f I t e l l you t h a t the e f f o r t s to procure the 

binding of the e n t i r e zone or a rea s ince 1923, wouli you 

s t a t e t h a t i s n ' t c o r r e c t ? 

A. No, I wouli no t , because I t h ink you would know 

or you wouldn ' t say s o . 

Q. Would you say i t i s p o s s i b l e t h a t i t goes bac-c to 

1923? 

A. I can look at i t , but I d o n ' t th ink i t did« 

Q,. But you wouldn ' t say i t was i n c o r r e c t i f I 

informed you t h a t such were the case? 

A. I don ' t know whether I wouli or no t , I would have 

look a t i t - for myself. 

Q,. Well , the o r i g i n a l block agreement, wasn ' t t h a t 

supposed to run from J u l y , 1924, the agreement r e l a t i n g 

to the 1100 block? 

A. I w i l l t e l l you, I w i l l look up some of the papers 

I have in my c e l l a r and t e l l you. 

y . We want you t o he lp us i f you can. 

A. I am not going to say a n y t h i n g ! don ' t remember, 

because when i t goes down t h e r e , i t goes on record , and I 



am not going to put anything on record I am not sure of. 

Q. Didn't you intend to date this paper back to July, 

1924? 

A. I d i d n ' t in tend t o do any th ing . 

Q,. Wasn't tha t the scope of i t , t o have i t e f f e c t i v e 

from J u l y , 1924? 

A. I don ' t know how Mr. Ramey arranged t h a t , I had 

no th ing to do with i t . 

Q,. D idn ' t you begin as f a r back as J u l y , 19S4, to work 

on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r block paper? 

A. I c a n ' t say, the f i g u r e s w i l l show. Mr. Hessey 

ought t o be ab le to t e l l those t h i n g s . 

Q,. Would you say t h a t i s i n c o r r e c t i f I t o ld you t h a t ? 

A. I wouldn ' t say i t was c o r r e c t or i n c o r r e c t , I am 

no t going to do i t because I d o n ' t know. 

The COURT: When you say the church was very 

anxious to havs t h i s block arrnagement made, you mean, 

of cou r se , c e r t a i n i n d i v i d u a l s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

The COURT: Who were those individuals? 

The WITNESS: Mr. Berger was the main one, under-



stand, he was one, and Mr. Merger's wife. She has a 

nervous breakdown today because it is going — 

The COURT: I did not ask you that. It was Mr. 

and Mrs. Berger? 

The WlfNlSS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: Who else? 

The WITNESS: There is quite a number who have 

left the church, understand, because of their wrangling 

and going on about this now. 

The COURT: There ars other people who have since 

left the church? 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: Can you give rae the names of any of 

them? 

The WITNESS: Well, I d o n ' t l i k e to imp l i ca t e them 

in i t , I d o n ' t see any sense in i t . Your Honor, I f e e l 

t h i s way about t h i s , i t i s up t o you now whether you th ink 

i t i s r i g h t o r wrong. I d o n ' t t h ink the block people 

care i f you ar« the judge and they a re w i l l i n g t o abide by 

your d e c i s i o n . After t hese two days of hard l a b o r and i t 

has a l l been gone i n t o now, I t h ink the block w i l l agree 



with me it is up to you and whatever your decision is,they 

are satisfied. Nov/, I will ask my people here to — 

The COURT: Don't ask them now. For the present, 

just answer my questions. The reason I asked you who 

these people were, a church, of course, is a corporation, 

and when you say the church was anxious for it — 

The WITNESS: Well, of course, I expressed myself 

that way. 

The COURT: That is all right, but I really wanted 

to know what persons you wanted to name. The only names 

you can give me are Mr. and Hrs. Berger? 

The 'WITNESS: If I had known, your Honor, that 

thi3 would be brought forth, I would have been able to 

giveyou names, but I didn't think — these people have 

worked on this and the block people have not done one 

thing they did not think proper. These people have been 

working tooth and nail, and they have done everything 

proper and this makes a vast difference. 

The COURT: I want you to understand I can only 

decide the case that comes before me, the evidence that 

both sides bring to ray attention, and if you have anything 



else you want to call my attention to, you had better get 

the information and da> it. 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: Now then, I want to ask you just one 

other question. Mr. Mylander has called your a t t en t ion to 

the fact tha t there i s a sheet of s ignatures that is only 

about one-third fu l l? 

The WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

The COURT: And then there is a sheet of signatures 

that appears to be quite full with one or two blanks and 

the Mylanders' names are all at the foot of that. 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: You remember t h a t , do you? 

The WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

The COURT: that I want to asc you is this: Did 

Mr. Mylander sign the names for himself and for his sis­

ters and brothers before or after you secured the names 

on this sheet that is two-thirds blank, do you recall 

that? 

The WITNESS; No, I can not; I can not recall that. 

The COURT: Well, do you recall the way in which 



those appeared at the time you presented these papers to 

Mr. Mylander for signature, was this partially blank sheet 

ahead of the sheet on which you had him to sign his name, 

or how was it, do you know? 

The WITNESS: Well, I took for granted it was 

there. 

The COURT: Where it is now? 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: As I understand you, all of the 

sheets of t vpewritten matter, the first, second and third, 

were rewrittea and the only sheet that remains ia the form 

in which it was when you presented it to the various 

people to sign was this last sheet on which the signa­

tures had been, is that your recollection? 

The WITNESS: Judge, I didn't get what you say. 

The COURT: I think Mr. Hessey said, and I think 

you said, too, that certainly the first and secoad sheets 

of this paper were rewritten after the signatures were all 

obtained, thait is right, isn't it? 

The WITNESS: Well, now, understand, they were 

rewritten because there wasn't space enough left to put in 



the names. 

The COURT: I understand that. 

The WITNESS: That is i&at it was done for. 

The COURT: I am not bothered about the method, 

I am trying to get the facts. 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir, that is right. 

The COURT: Do you remember as to the third page0 

The WITNESS: f«ll, I tell you, your Honor, I 

couldn't say anything only that I was in the office while 

the girl was writing them off on the typewriter and I 

remember distinctly sitting there, that Mr. Eessey and the 

girl went all over them and I heard him say, "Be sure that 

they are just exactly right", and then he had a client 

and I was reading them over. That is all I can say* 

The COURT: On the first and second pages of this 

paper are the names of all the oarties and the properties 

which they respectively own. 

The WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

The COURT: In the nlace where those names now 

are what appeared, if anything, at the time you presented 

this paper for signature and acknowledgment by the various 
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parties? 

The WIIPNESS: Well, I t h ink i t was condensed. 

There was more space on the margin, you see , and t h a t i s 

where i t was condensed and put t o g e t h e r . I was not w r i t t e n 

o u t . 

The COURT: Were t he re any names and addresses I 

read w r i t t e n in t h i s paper when you p re sen t ed the paper 

to the va r ious people? 

The WITNESS: On the o u t s i d e ? 

The COURT: No, in the body of i t . 

The IPfiNESS: I d o n ' t th ink so , but I wouldn ' t 

l i k e to say . I d o n ' t t h ink s o . I t i s too far back-

Mr. Hessey i s the one should answer that and not me. 

The COURT: I want the b e n e f i t of your r e c o l ­

l e c t i o n as fa r as you can give i t to me. 

The WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

The COURT: I j u s t want t o ask you i f you remem­

b e r whether t h e r e were any names and addres ses on here? 

The WITNESS: I c a n ' t remember tha t a t a l l . 

The COURT: You cou ldn ' t t e l l me, then , what was 

the cond i t ion of the f i r s t and second pages when you p r e -
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sented that paper for signature? 

The WITNESS: No, I could not, only that I had the 

paper and it read the sane that reads with the exception 

of the insertbn of names that Mr. Hessey put in; but the 

reading matter- is all the same, I know that' The reed­

ing matter, word for word, is the same. 

The COURT: Did anybody question to you the mean­

ing of this language: "This agreement may be executed in 

several parts of like purport except for the properties 

described and the parties and all the parts although 

separately executed shall be deeraed and taken together as 

constituting one original agreement." Now, this is what 

I want to ask you about: "and shall be in no wise binding 

or of any effect unless or until it shall have been 

executed in respect to properties (exclusive of property 

No. 501 North Garrollton avenue which binds on the north 

side of fran<lin street) fronting or otherwise binding on 

seventy-five per centum of the front feet on both sides of 

the following streets the 1100 block of West Franklin 

street." Did anybody discuss with you what was meant in 

saying "it shall have been executed in respect to properties", 
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did anybod3̂  question that? 

The WITNESS: No, nobody questioned that. All 

I did, your Honor, was to ask them if they were owners 

and if they were owners, that is as far as I went, and 

they signed according to that. They read it over, and 

if they couldn't read, I would read it to them. 

By Mr. Vogt: 

Q,. In regard to the answers filed in this case by 

some of the defendants, Mrs. Young,'did you take the 

affidavits of'any of these defendants, for instance, 

Mr. and Mrs. Kretzler; did you take their affidavit to 

the answer in this case? 

A. Every one of them, I reckon-

Q,« Where did you 50 to procure that affidavit? 

A. They acknowledged to me that they Tanted it done. 

Q,. Did Mr. Kretzler acknowledge to you that he wanted 

it done? 

A. I expect he did, if his name is down there. 

Q. Well, he did not put his name there? 

A. Well, then, he did not do it if he didn't. I didn't 

see him. Men work and it is awfully hard when men work to 



ask them to come out. 

The COURT: Suppose you let Mrs. Young see the 

answer and maybe it will refresh her memory. 

Q. Mrs. Young, this is the answer filed here by Mamie 

Kretzler — purports to be filed on behalf of Carl 

Kretzler and Mary S. Kretzler. Will you tell the Court 

where you procured the signature to that and at what place 

you took the affidavit? 

A. Well, I don't know about taking — I wonder in 

whose house it was, didn't we have a meeting --

Mr. MYLANDER: Wall, nor, are you asking' the 

audience? 

The WITN23S: Oh, excuse me. I don't know just 

where it was, whether she had a broken arm. at that time 

or whether it was ta-cen at a house across the street. 

What house did you visit for that purpose? 

Leonhauser. 

At 1105? 

Yes, we had a meeting t he re and I d o n ' t know whether 

Mrs. K r e t z l e r was t h e r e or whether a t t ha t time she had 

a broken arm and I had to go t h e r e . 

A. 

ft. 



Q,. Well, you took the affidavit and returned the 

paper where? 

A. To Mr. Carmody. 

Q. Then, as far as you know, Mrs. Kretzler v/as not in 

his office, is that right? 

A. Not at that time. 

Q,. Well, who authorized this paper to be filed on 

behalf of Mr. Kretzler? 

A- His wife. 

Q,. Then why did you certify that Carl appeared before 

you and acknowledged it? 

A. They told me it was only necessary to get the one 

and I certified for her and not for him. 

Q,- Do you mean to tell me as notary public you cer­

tified that this man personally appeared before you? 

A. No, not him. He did not. 

Q. And yet you ce r t i f i ed under the o f f i c i a l seal of 

the notary that he was there? 

A. His name i s n ' t the re , he hasn ' t signed i t . 

The COURT: You had be t t e r take a look at t h i s , 

Mrs. Young, and see whether i t i s n ' t . 



(Paper handed witness). 

Mr. MYLAND3R: That is your signature to that 

certificate, isn't it, Mrs. Young? 

The WITNESS: Well, that is my signature all 

right, yes, sir. 

Mr. MYLANDER: We offer that answer in evidence. 

3y Mr. Vogt: 

Q. You certified that he had appearedon the strength 

that his wife had told you it was all right, that is 

correct, is it not? 

A.. Well, she was the owner, you see, and I took for 

granted that was perfectly all right. 

Q. Well, why did you take his acknowledgment if she 

was the owner? 

A. Well, I guess that was an oversight of mine. 

The COURT; That isn't an acknowledgment, it is 

an affidavit, isn't it? 

Mr. MYLANDBRj An affidavit to the answer, yes, s 

The WITNESS; That is an oversight of mine. 

By Mr. Vogt; 

Q,. Who did you swear for that affidavit? 

A. His wife. 



Q,. You read these papers very c a r e f u l l y , did you not? 

A. Weill I did whatever you see t h e r e . 

Q,. I see this answer purports to be filed on behalf 

of both himself and his wife, what authority did you 

have — 

A. Well, t h a t answer I d i d n ' t t h i n k was so awfully 

important any way, I thought t h a t was an answer to 

l e t you knot what the p rope r ty owners were a f t e r . 

The COURT: Mrs- Young i s ha rd ly r e s p o n s i b l e for 

the a f f i d a v i t and the answer-

Q. You took t h a t paper t o Mr. Carmody's o f f i c e and 

i t was executed and s igned by I.Irs. K r e t z l e r , i s t h a t co r ­

r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you didn't see Mr. Kretzler at all to obtain 

any authority from him as to its filing? 

A. He was working, judge. 

Q,. Where did you see Mrs. Kretzler, if you please? 

A. At her home and at one of the meetings. 

Q. I mean when this paper was signed? 

A. That was either signed at her home or at one of 



the meetings. 

Q. Where? 

A. At Mrs. Leonhauser's. 

Q. At 1135? 

A. Yes. 

Q,. But you c a n ' t say which? 

A. One of those two p l a c e s . 

Q. Did you have two meetings o r one meeting? 

A. Well , we had t h a t meeting and we t a l k e d i t ove r . 

Q,. Where was t h a t meeting he ld? 

A. At Mrs. Leonhause r ' s . 

Q,. Did you go from door to door to get t h e s e answers? 

A. They came to me, I d i d n ' t have to go t o the door. 

Q. Did you go to any other houses to get those affi­

davits? 

A. Well, I don't know whether I did or not. I got 

them. 

Q. Did you solicit the signatures for the parties in 

the case, did you solicit the signatures for the parties 

in the case? 

A. They asked me, understand, and I was their servant 



and I did what they wanted me to do, acknowledge their 

signatures• 

Q. Who asked you? 

A. Those that signed the paper. 

Q. Where were you when they asked you? 

A. Well, I don't know where I was. 

Q,. Who 'came for you and asked you that? 

A. Those people that signed the paper, the people in 

the 1100 block. 

Q. Did you go around to see any of the defendants who 

had not previously us'rted you to sign these answers? 

A. Oh, I used to go up and down the street so 

often, if I saw them outside on the street I would talk 

about it, and we talked about it until we had it com­

pleted. 

By Mr. Hylander: 

Q. You called at the houses of the p a r t i e s , but the 

answers were already made out for them to sign, weren't 

they? 

A. Yes, that paper jus t as i t i s . 

Q» In other words, a l l the answers were prepared in 



advance and you went around with those answers just the 

same just the same as you did with this agreement, 

"Sign here, and sign here, and I will take your affidavit. 

A. Well, they read it over, they knew just what they 

were doing. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Oarmody: 

Q,. -ars. Young, this is a question suggested by the 

first question of the Court to you. You stated that 

Mr. and Mrs. Merger represented the church, or .that they 

were the ones you remember of the membership of the 

church that were so deeply interested in this project. 

Do you remember any other names now besides Mr. and Mrs. 

berger; might I suggest Mr. Storm, did you see Mr. S^orm? 

A. I know his folks were most interested, understand, 

in the work, but I did not go to see them just at that 

time, but they were always most interested; and Mr. Brill, 

why, I knov. he was interested. You see, I didn't know 

the congreation very much, but there were a few I came in 

contact with, but, as I say, had I known for one moment 



t ha t t h i s would be r e q u i r e d , I would have had i t . 

Q. Mrs. Young, I don ' t want to i n t e r r u p t you, but we 

would l i k e to keep i t as c l e a r on the record as p o s s i b l e . 

This Mr. S r i 1 1 , do you know what h i s f i r s t name i s ? 

A. All I know is that I think he lives 2006 Harlem 

avenue, but what his initials are, I don't know. 

Q,. Did you know him in connection with the church? 

A. Oh, yes. 

Q. Ke was a member of the church, too? 

A. . Oh, yes. 

Q,. Was he president of the congregation, do you know? 

A- He was always anxious to keep the church white. 

Q,. That isn't the answer to my question — 

Mr. VOGT: Your Honor, we object to this . The 

lady is speaking from hearsay only, she says she never 

saw these people. 

The WITNESS: What people? 

Mr. VOGTj Mr. Brill. 

The WITNESS; I have seen Mr. Brill. 

Mr. CAPMODY: It is only amplifying the answer, she 

;,ave to the Court. 



Q,. Mr. Brill, do you know if he was an officer of the 

church? 

A. He was not. At times he was a very ardent worker 

at the church, he and his wife, both. 

Q,. You knew Mrs* Brill, too? 

A. I know Mrs. Brill very well. 

Q,. Was she interested in the oroject to keep colored 

people out? 

A. Oh, yes, those people worked very hard. 

Q. And they represented the church? 

A. Yes. 

Q,. Now, how about Mr. Storm? 

Mr. VOGT: Your Honor, we ob jec t t o t h i s l i n e of 

examina t ion . 

The COUPT: Yes, I w i l l s u s t a i n t h a t . 

Q,. I mean t h a t they were members of the church? 

A. Oh, s u r e , they were members of the church. 

The COURT: I w i l l leave t h a t i n . 

Q,. And they were i n t e r e s t e d as members of the church 

to have t h i s p r o j e c t go through? 

A. Ye s • 



Q,. How about Mr. Storm? 

A. Mr. Storm was c e r t a i n l y in favor of I t or he 

wouldn ' t have s igned i t . 

Q. He was a member of ' the church? 

A* He was a member of the church, and not only t h a t , 

the super in tenden t of the Sunday School . 

Q. What i s h i s name? 

A. Well , now, I am not s u r e , but I th ink i t i s Milton 

Storm. He marr ied the former p a s t o r ' s daugh te r . 

The COURT: Mil ton Storm? 

Q. You don ' t mean Milton Storm, i s that the name you 

s a i d ? 

A. Milton Storm, I t h i n k . 

Ql' He marr ied the former p a s t o r ' s daughter? 

A. Yes, s i r -

Q,. And he was solicitous to have this project go 

through? 

A. Sure, he signed it. 

Q,. He signed the agreement, did he? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q,. O.n his own behalf individually? 



A. Yes, s i r . 

(Objected t o ) . 

The COURT; The agreement speaks for i t s e l f . 

There i s no doubt t ha t he signed i t . 

Q. Now, coming back to the answers h e r e . Mr. Mylander 

asked you i f t hese answers were w r i t t e n up and handed to 

you t o go about to see the people whose names appear on 

t he re beforehand? 

A. I d o n ' t get t h a t , Mr. Qaraody. 

Q,. Well, you l e f t the impression on the Court , I am 

s u r e , t h a t a l l of t hese answers were w r i t t e n at one t ime 

and handed to you and you d i s t r i b u t e d them and took the 

acknowledgments, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Handed to me a t one t ime? 

q,. Yes? 

A. How do you mean? 

14. That they were written up, formally typewritten 

first, and then handed to you and you went out and saw 

those people? 

A. Ye s, sir. 

a« That was done? 



A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Al l at one t ime? 

A. I th ink so . I th ink tha t these c o n t r a c t s were a l l 

w r i t t e n up a l i k e . 

Q« I knov. they were a l l w r i t t e n up a l i k e , not the 

c o n t r a c t s , the answers . I s n ' t i t t r ue t ha t t h o s e people 

came in one a f t e r the o the r — 

Mr. MYIANDER: I ob jec t to the form as we l l as 

o t h e r w i s e . 

The COURT: I s u s t a i n the ob jec t ion to form, but 

I d o n ' t know about o t h e r w i s e . 

Mr. CAJIMODY: The wi tness might be mis taken about 

t h a t , I can ask he r i f i t i s n ' t t rue t h a t these answers 

came in i n d i v i d u a l l y . 

Mr. MYLANDER; I o b j e c t . 

(J. T e l l how they came i n . 

A. I don ' t even know what you mean. 

Q. You don ' t unders tand? 

A. No, I do n o t . 

The COURT: Show the wi tness the answers and l e t 

her t e l l us what she knows. 



Q,. Isn't it true that these answers were filed in my 

office at different times? 

Mr. MYLANDER: I object, your Honor. 

The COURT: Suppose you show her the answers. 

The WITNESS: Oh, the papers? 

Q. Yes? 

A< Why, of course --

(Objected to; objection overruled; exception noted). 

A. Your Honor, I must understand before I say Yes or 

No. I an not going to say Yes or No unless I thoroughly 

understand. 

The COURT; You are absolutely right. 

The WITNESS: When I demonstrate anything, I 

demonstrate enough that people understand it and know what 

it is. I know what he means now. Why, sure, they went 

down at different times. 

The COURT: I can not see that it makes any 

difference. 

The WITNESS: No, and I don't either. 

Q. Now, this is called an answer, Mrs. Young? 

A. Ye s . 



Q. All of these papers are called answers? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They were filed all at once or at different times? 

A. Oh, at different times- Never all at once. I 

thought you were talking about drawing up the contracts 

and they were all written alike. I told you I wasn't an 

attorney. 

REG ROSS-SXAMIKATION 

By Mr. Mylander: 

Q,« There is one answer which you have already told us 

the wife swore for the husband; that is right, you left 

that stand, didn't you? 

A. Well, I swore the wife. I don't know whether she 

swore for her husband or not, but she swore for herself, 

I know that. 

km But you certified that you swore the husband, that is 

right, isn't it? 

A. I don't know whether I certified that or not. She 

came there and I swore her. Do you want me to go back and 

get him to swear, I will do that. 

The COURT: No, no, just answer the Question. 
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CONSOLIDATED CASUS OF |* ! 

AIL SAINTS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH, 
OF BALTIMORE CITY, a body corporate, 

Complainant. 

T 8 , IN 

GEORGE D. AHRLING, et al., 
Defendants. 

AND 

DORA MYLANDER, 

LOUIS GROSSMAN, 

et al., 
Complainants. 

et al., 
Defendants. 

THE CIRCUIT COURT NO. 2 

OF 

BALTIMORE CITY. 

D E C R E E . 

THESE CONSOLIDATED CAUSES, standing ready for hearing, testimony 

was taken in open Court, and having been submitted, the counsel 

for the respective parties, were heard, and the proceedings were, 

by this Court, read and considered! 

IT IS THEREUPON, this 3rd day of Seeerslty^T^in the year, Nineteen 

Hundred and Thirty, by the circuit Courv^No. 2 of Baltimore city* 

ADJUDGED, ORDERED AND DECREED* that the agreement, between the 

owners of properties, in re, 1100 block of W. Franklin street, in 

the City of Baltimore, Maryland, filed with the first of the above 

mentioned consolidated cases, as "Complainant's Exhibit No. 2", and 

incorporated in the End of the above mentioned consolidated cases, 

by reference, be and the same is hereby declared NULL, VOID, and 

OF NO BINDING LEGAL FORCE OR EFFECT* and the said instrument, ( 

bearing date of February 16th,1925, and recorded among the Land 

Records of Baltimore City, in Liber S.C.L. No.4358,fol,147,&c.) 

be and the same is hereby so declared and decreed by this Court, 

as NULL, VOID AND OF NO BINDING LEGAL FORCE OR EFFECT, And it Is 

Further Adjudged, Ordered and Decreed, by this court, that neither 

the properties therein mentioned, nor any present or future 
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thereof, are in any manner, bound by the restrictions therein sought 

to be imposed upon the properties therein mentioned. 

And it is further Adjudged, Ordered and Decreed, that the Complainants 

in each of the two consolidated cases , namely:- All Saints Evangelical 

Lutheran Church of Baltimore City, a body corporate, Complainant in the 

case firstly instituted, and Dora Mylander, Florence Mylander, Kate E. 

Mylander, Annau Faust, August C. Mylander, William F. Mylander and Walter 

C. Mylander, Complainants in the case secondly instituted, each, pay one 

half of the Court costs herein accrued in the consolidated cases. 


